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The Honorable Gary Gensler 
Chair  
Securities and Exchange Commission 
100 F Street NE 
Washington, D.C. 20549 
  
 
 

Re: Notice of Proposed Rulemaking on Position Reporting of Large Security- Based Swap 
Positions; File No. S7-32-10  

 
 
Dear Chair Gensler,   
  

 

We write with respect to the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) two proposed 
rulemakings pertaining to security-based swaps and securities loans. In order to help the 
communities we represent succeed, regulators must support the U.S. economy by promoting 
liquid and efficient markets. We are concerned that the SEC’s proposals to publicly disclose 
positions in security-based swaps and securities loans on a loan-by-loan basis could impair 
market liquidity and hinder the SEC’s core mission to maintain fair, orderly, and efficient 
markets.  

We have long advocated for appropriate regulatory oversight of registered investment advisers 
and recognize the importance of well-crafted rules that help govern the activities of advisers with 
respect to their private fund clients and fund investors. We further support the Commission’s 
overall mission to protect investors; maintain fair, orderly, and efficient markets; and facilitate 
capital formation.  

The SEC has proposed significant regulatory changes that will impact nearly every type of 
investor and market participant. We strongly support your efforts to give the SEC the tools it 
needs to monitor for accumulating risk and ensure market integrity. We also believe it is 
important to ensure the cumulative effect of the rules are adequately assessed, including the 
potential impact on market liquidity of proposals to require public disclosure of investor 
positions. We support an approach to implementation that requires reporting for regulatory 
purposes to give the SEC experience with the data to refine it as necessary to ensure it serves its 
purpose.  



 
 

 

We support an approach to implementation that requires reporting for regulatory purposes to 
give the SEC experience with the data to refine it as necessary to ensure it serves its purpose. 
Retail Investors appreciates the immortalization of confessions from Financial Institutions, 
Market Makers, Family Offices, Hedge Funds, ISDA Members, Crypto Exchanges, & Swaps 
Counter-Parties on the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission’s (the “SEC” or 
“Commission”) release on proposed Rule 13f-2 (“Proposal”) under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934. Financial Institutions ISDA Counter-Parties, Hedge Funds, Crypto Exchanges, & 
Family Offices full knowledge Signed ISDA and Swaps Contract “directly or indirectly, actually 
or synthetically, relating to such Transaction or any connected hedging activity” “that can be 
used to create a long or short exposure to the Shares or Index” thereby creating “Synthetic 
Buyer” or “Synthetic Seller”. Utilizing “Share Swap Transaction”, “Share Basket Swap 
Transaction”, “Index Swap Transaction”, “Index Basket Swap Transaction” a “Custom Index 
Basket”, & “Tokenized Shares on Exchange” without having to own the underlying Shares.  

The documentation & confession using financial instruments such as “rate swap transaction, 
basis swap, forward rate transaction, commodity swap, commodity option, equity or equity index 
swap, equity or equity index option, bond option, interest rate option, foreign exchange 
transaction, cap transaction, floor transaction, collar transaction, currency swap transaction, 
cross-currency rate swap transaction, currency option, swap tokenized stock, swap dollar-pegged 
Circle’s USDC, or any other similar transaction (including any option with respect to any of 
these transactions)” as defined within ISDA agreements. These instruments & “securities-based 
swaps underlying certain of FTX, Alameda Research, & Archegos' positions in order to raise or 
depress the price of and induce others to purchase those securities”    
 
“Indeed, internal counsel from the various prime brokers held a call among themselves earlier 
that day, agreeing that lawyers would be present on any calls between the brokers, and that the 
lawyers would read a script on each call making clear that no broker was permitted to disclose its 
Archegos-related positions”, including Counter-Parties “CS participated in block sales of 
overlapping positions on April 5 and 14, 2021, liquidating approximately $3 billion and $2.2 
billion, respectively, on those dates. Otherwise, CS liquidated its other historic Archegos 
positions through open-market, algorithmic trading. As of April 22, 2021, CS had liquidated 
97% of its Archegos exposure.” “Goldman was organizing block sales of certain ADR positions 
and invited CS to participate. CS ultimately participated in three such Goldman-led block trades, 
selling shares in Baidu, Tencent, and Vipshop Holdings. In these trades, Goldman did not 
disclose to CS the number of shares it was putting up in the block, and there was no agreement 
with Goldman as to which broker’s shares were being sold first and/or how the sales would be 
distributed. Apart from the block, CS engaged in algorithmic trading that day, aiming to stay 
within 2-3% of average daily volume. Ultimately, CS sold just over $3 billion notional on March 
26, approximately $1.27 billions of which was sold in the Goldman-led block sales.”   
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

Family Office Member confession and admissions “…I and others executed trades that allowed 
the fund to amass market power and certain securities traded on U.S. exchanges. Archegos used 
security-based swaps to gain exposure to these securities while concealing the true size of the 
fund’s positions from the market and our trading counterparties. Once Archegos gained market 
power in these securities, I and others used this power to trade in such a way as to artificially 
manipulate the prices of the securities. Acting at the direction of the head of the fund [Hwang], I 
traded to increase the prices of names in which Archegos held long positions and reduced the 
prices of securities in which the fund hel[d] short positions. I did this by, for example, buying 
large amounts of a stock when the price dropped in response to negative news or trading 
premarket when I knew the fund’s activity would have a greater impact on price. I manipulated 
the prices of these securities in order to influence others in the market to buy or sell the securities 
in ways that would benefit Archegos’[s] key positions and increase Archegos’[s] purchasing 
power through variation margin.”  
 
Using positions in “highly-liquid, larger cap issuers” towards “less liquid, China-based issuers, 
as well as relatively smaller cap U.S. media and technology companies” “artificially increase the 
market value” & “artificially inflate the share prices”.    
 
These ISDA Counter-Parties & Swaps Contracts use “manipulative trading in those stocks 
interrupted the natural interplay of supply and demand for those stocks – and distorted their 
underlying economic value for the Counterparties and other market participants – by causing at 
least two sets of false pricing signals in the market: (1) that the Top 10 Holdings stocks were 
held by a relatively broad range of market participants, reflecting a relatively broad supply and 
demand for those stocks – when, in fact, a single buyer (Archegos) was surreptitiously, and by 
fraudulent means, dominating the market for those stocks; and (2) that the prices of those stocks, 
both daily and over time, reflected normal market forces when, in fact, their steep climb (and 
ultimate precipitous fall) was due at least largely to Archegos’s fraudulently dominating the 
market for, and engaging in manipulative trading of, those stocks.” “These swaps allow clients to 
obtain "synthetic" leveraged exposure to the underlying stocks without actually owning them.” 
Also known instruments “derivative known as a total return swap ("TRS")”.  
  
 
Before making recommendations regarding the Proposal, it is important to put some ISDA 
members, Family Offices, Crypto Exchanges, & Counter-Parties own confession, admissions and 
documentation around the shortcomings of the current system and the Commission’s goals with 
this proposal in order to evaluate whether the proposal will be successful.  
  
“Short selling volume and transactions data cannot easily explain changes in short interest, 
exposing a gap between these two types of existing data.” Furthermore, these data sets are 
subject to differences in reporting lag, and can misrepresent the amount of short selling due to 
mismarking, manipulation & method by Hedge Funds, Family Offices, Brokerages, Financial 
Institution, Crypto Exchanges, Counter-Parties & ISDA members.  
 



 
 
 
 
Crypto Exchanges confession and admissions; Sam Bankman-Fried FTX, Alameda Research, 
Coinbase Custodian w/ LMK Labs (OTC Swaps), Maclaurin Investment, West Realm Shires, 
Clifton Bay, & Island Bay Ventures: 

 
“Say you Tokenize Stocks. Instead of waiting 2 days to settle, you can swap AAPL-token 
<> USD-token on a blockchain” 

 
Zixiao Wang (Gary Wang) FTX, Alameda Research, Coinbase Custodian w/ LMK Labs (OTC 
Swaps), Maclaurin Investment, West Realm Shires, Clifton Bay, & Island Bay Ventures Guilty 
Plea Transcript: 
 

“THE COURT: First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale of any commodity 
in interstate commerce or contracts for future delivery on or subject the rules of any 
registered entity” 

 
Caroline Ellison FTX, Alameda Research, CoinBase Custodian w/ LMK Labs (OTC Swaps), 
Maclaurin Investment, West Realm Shires, Clifton Bay, & Island Bay Ventures Guilty Plea 
Transcript: 
 

“there are three elements to this crime: 
First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale of any commodity in interstate 
commerce or contract for future delivery on or subject to the rules of any registered 
entity” 

 
Nishad Singh FTX, Alameda Research, CoinBase Custodian w/ LMK Labs (OTC Swaps), 
Maclaurin Investment, West Realm Shires, Clifton Bay, & Island Bay Ventures Guilty Plea 
Transcript: 

 
“THE COURT: There are three elements to this crime: 
First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale of any commodity or interstate 
commerce or contract for future delivery to on or subject the rules of any registered 
entity” 

 
“THE COURT: Thank you. Do you understand, Mr. Singh, the elements of the charge of 
conspiracy to commit commodities fraud as distinguished from the substantive offense of 
commodities fraud?” 

 
“THE DEFENDANT: I do” 

 
“IEX has asserted that the FTX entities fraudulently induced IEX into entering into the Share 
Exchange Agreement” 
 
“I, Alex Mashinsky, Chief Executive Officer of Celsius Network LLC (together with the 



 
 
 
 
above captioned debtors and debtors in possession, the “Debtors”), and certain of its Debtor 
and non-Debtor affiliates (collectively, with the Debtors, “Celsius” or the “Company”), hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury” 
 

“Swap. In addition to offering consumers the ability to purchase cryptocurrencies on its 
platform, Celsius offered users the ability to “swap” (“trade” or “convert”) eligible 
cryptocurrencies for another type of eligible cryptocurrency without paying a fee (the 
“Swap Service”)” 

 
These are significant and material shortcomings in the transparency of US capital markets, but 
the Commission neglects to acknowledge the impact of these shortcomings. The lack of 
transparency into short positions has led to deep mistrust & manipulation by these Financial 
Institutions in markets for retail investors, and especially for newer retail investors. The 
Commission risks alienating these investors and driving them away from US capital markets if 
they do not act to provide transparency and certainty for them.  
  
We Need Increased Transparency  
  
Despite the pushback from industry firms who face increased compliance costs & spotlight 
shining on the method of manipulation, we fully support the Commission in this rulemaking, and 
urge the Commission to go further with these disclosures. Our movement is born from frustration 
over the many complex and conflicted aspects of market structure, with a lack of transparency 
and visibility into the inner workings around short selling being a primary driver of our retail 
investor supporters. The lack of transparency around short positions, the inability to adequately 
quantify short interest, and the ability for firms to skirt regulation through derivative positions 
such as options and security-based swaps are making a mockery of our free and open markets. 
The inadequate ability to properly measure and understand economic short exposure leads to 
supply/demand imbalances in markets and affects trading prices.  
 
We often lament the fact that regulators in other jurisdictions have done more, moved further, 
and advanced the cause of transparency far more significantly than we have in the US. As other 
commentators have noted, the EU adopted a short sale reporting regime that essentially requires 
“immediate public disclosure of large short positions,” by individual issuers. Despite this 
onerous disclosure regime that goes much further than the Proposal, we agree that “a study of the 
impact of the EU’s regulation finds no evidence that the disclosure requirements have resulted in 
increased coordination or have resulted in short sellers being targeted for short squeezes.” The 
concerns from the industry and from the short selling community are simply not valid.  
  
Harmonizing the Proposal with European standards would provide significant benefits, both 
from a transparency perspective and from the short-selling investment manager’s perspective - it 
is far easier to comply with the same rule across multiple jurisdictions than to manage varying 
standards and rules from country to country.  
  



 
 
 
 
It is also important to note, from the perspective of how to set an appropriate threshold for 
disclosure that, as the Commission acknowledges, the European threshold of 0.5% is being 
gamed, and therefore setting a threshold substantially higher than that will lead to even further 
gaming of the threshold and disclosure avoidance. There should be little doubt that firms will 
attempt to game any threshold that is set, as has happened with 13F long disclosures for many 
years. Given the European experience with a very low threshold, we would argue that it is 
important to set the threshold as low as possible to mitigate any effects and impacts from firms 
attempting to game the threshold.  
 
Despite the constant concerns expressed in comment letters about “reverse engineering trading 
strategies” and the concern voiced in the proposal that there would be a “risk of retaliation 
towards short individual sellers… as well as the ability for market participants to engage in copy-
cat strategies,” the same can be said of current 13F disclosures. Indeed there is an entire industry 
that follows 13F and other similar disclosures (e.g., politician trades) and allows for copy-cat 
strategies.  
 
The value of transparency and the need for investors, both retail and institutional, to understand 
the holdings of investment managers, as well as to form an accurate picture of short interest and 
short trading dynamics should far outweigh these concerns. The Commission has agreed with 
this view in crafting 13F policies, the EU has agreed with this view with their disclosure regime, 
and the Proposal should be expanded to include robust public disclosure at the individual 
manager level of this information.  
 
Finally, we would further urge the Commission to set a goal to harmonize reporting timelines for 
all relevant disclosures, from 13F long and short disclosures to reporting timelines for FINRA 
and the SROs to ensure that data is released consistently, to avoid misunderstandings and 
misconceptions.   
 
Choice and Control are Fundamental Investor Rights  
 
Much like the reasoning behind recent proposals from the Commission around ESG Disclosures, 
retail and institutional investors want to know the composition of the positions of the funds that 
they are investing in. While retail investors may not always have access to the type of funds that 
accumulate significant short positions, they may still be in the position of doing business with 
such firms, and they deserve to know when such firms are betting against core portfolio positions 
that they may be holding and may be very passionate about.  
  
The feedback from the industry has several consistent themes, but primarily it is focused on 
disguising short selling activity and reducing transparency. This is antithetical to the 
Commission’s objectives with the Proposal. Investors, both retail and institutional, cannot 
properly exercise their right to choose investments, counterparties and other relationships 
without visibility into the firms that they are investing in or doing business with. An appropriate  
 



 
 
 
 
level of transparency is absolutely required to empower investors to act in their own best 
interests in an informed manner.  
  
All Short Exposure Must Be Included  
 
The Proposal as currently crafted has a huge hole that must be remedied, one that the 
Commission is well aware of - “an investor wishing to profit from the decline of a security’s 
value can also trade in various derivative contracts, including options and security-based swaps.” 
The failure to include derivative exposure in this rule will inevitably result in firms exploiting the 
loophole and will drive more and more firms into the less regulated and less transparent space of 
derivatives. As the Commission acknowledges in the proposal, “trading in derivatives frequently 
leads to related trading in the stock market as derivatives’ counterparties seek to hedge their 
risk.” Derivatives have an impact on the market, and can have a detrimental effect on the price of 
stocks, as Archegos, FTX, Alameda Research, & Celsius demonstrated so clearly. While the 
positions held by Archegos, FTX, Alameda Research, & Celsius were not disclosed anywhere 
publicly because they had exploited a loophole in 13F disclosures, the impact on the market was 
material and overwhelming. Indeed, had these derivative positions been adequately disclosed, it 
is likely that institutional broker-dealers would have had enough information to mitigate the 
impact of Archegos’, FTX, Alameda Research, & Celsius trading would have been able to 
recognize the significant exposure that resulted from the leverage they extended via total return 
swaps, and would have prevented the crisis from developing in the first place.  
 
In much the same way, it is critical for institutional broker-dealers and for retail and institutional 
investors to understand the extent to which individual firms have high levels of short exposure to 
individual stocks or ETFs, regardless of whether that exposure is via equity, through the use of 
derivatives or through other novel mechanisms that the Commission has not considered. Markets 
are changing and evolving, and as regulators impose new disclosure requirements on firms, those 
firms will figure out ways to game or avoid those disclosures. That’s what Archegos, FTX, 
Alameda Research, & Celsius did with swaps, and that’s what other firms might do with other 
novel ways of gaining short exposure. One example of this could be through security tokens on 
crypto exchanges. Another could be through the use of fungible or nearly fungible holdings in 
foreign affiliates - both equity and derivatives.  
 
If one of the primary goals that the Commission is seeking to achieve with the Proposal is to give 
retail and institutional investors, along with regulators, better visibility into economic short 
exposure, it is imperative that all short exposure is included.  
 
We would also encourage the Commission to include ETF creation and redemption activities. 
“ETFs constitute 10% of U.S. equity market capitalization but over 20% of short interest and 
78% of failures-to-deliver.” Authorized participants are incentivized to “operationally short” 
ETFs, and often fail to deliver these shares. This is a potential source of stress on financial 
markets, and “the potential source of stress on the financial system appears to have shifted from 
common stocks during the pre-crisis period to ETFs during the post-crisis period.” As such,  



 
 
 
 
transparency into the ETF creation and redemption process is more important now than ever 
before. Whether that transparency starts strictly with regulatory transparency versus public 
disclosure is one that the Commission will have to decide - we would urge full public disclosure 
of ETF activities in order for the public to more accurately and adequately evaluate the risks 
involved in trading ETFs, and to better understand the short interest numbers in ETFs that can 
vary wildly.   
 
Hedging Indicator  
 
If the Commission insists on continuing with the aggregated disclosures, we would offer one 
suggestion for an important change. The current proposal for categorizing a position as not  
hedged, partially hedged or fully hedged could lead to serious problems and misrepresentations 
of actual economic short exposure, which is the first shortcoming identified by the Commission.  
 
Aggregated information could actually end up being very misleading, by painting an inaccurate 
picture of the size of short positions despite the “hedging” distribution disclosure. “Partial” 
hedging could be manipulated or abused to mask true short positions (e.g., by hedging an 
immaterial portion of the position to flag it as “partially hedged”), and overall gross position 
disclosures could overstate short positions when net positions are not accounted for. A better 
solution would be to have the actual amount of position hedged, which could range from 0% to 
100%+ if the manager’s long position is larger than the manager’s short position. This is similar 
to one of the alternatives proposed by the Commission, to report the delta value of hedged 
positions. This would be a critically important addition to the Proposal and make it far more 
informative if aggregation is the direction the Commission goes.  
 
Bona Fide Market Making Reporting  
 
We believe it is important that the Proposal’s provision that would “require CAT reporting firms 
that are reporting short sales to indicate whether such reporting firm is asserting use of the bona 
fide market making exception under Regulation SHO” is included in the final rule proposal. 
While we are encouraged by this, as it signals that surveillance teams and regulators are finally 
trying to better understand the use of this exception, we believe it to be an antiquated exception 
that is no longer applicable in modern markets, and which should be eliminated. The bona fide 
market making exemption is being abused, as illustrated by recent enforcement actions, and 
provides an unreasonable competitive advantage for firms who do not have affirmative 
obligations to make continuous markets on lit exchanges. As the Commission acknowledges in 
the proposal, “[f]irms that do not need to obtain a locate prior to effecting a short sale, on the 
basis of the bona fide market making exception, have a competitive advantage over firms that are 
required to obtain a locate because these firms can trade more quickly and more easily adjust to 
or take advantage of changing market conditions.”  
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
It is also possible that market makers are using the bona fide market making exception to include 
transactions and arrangements where other broker-dealers or customers are using the market 
maker’s exception to avoid compliance with Regulation SHO. It is important that the SEC and 
FINRA have the surveillance tools and data necessary to police markets, and including this data 
in CAT should be an easy decision.  
 
While it is outside the scope of the Proposal, we believe that market structure reform should 
focus on leveling the playing field, and fostering more robust and verdant competition in 
markets. Repealing regulation that affirmatively advantages certain firms over other firms is an 
important step in that direction.  
 
Conclusion  
 
Onimod Association appreciate the opportunity to respond to the Proposal & Immortalization of 
confessions from Financial Institutions, Market Makers, Family Offices, Hedge Funds, Crypto 
Exchanges, ISDA Members, & Swaps Counter-Parties. Thank you for considering our comments 
and we would be happy for ISDA Members, Crypto Exchanges, & Swaps Counter-Parties 
contracts and admission to answer any questions or further explain any of the points.  
  
 
Sincerely,  
 
Kam Nanoc  
Onimod Association  
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
------------------------------x 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,                

 
           v.                           22 CR 231 (LTS) 
 
WILLIAM TOMITA, 
 
               Defendant. 
 
------------------------------x 
 
                                        New York, N.Y. 
                                        April 22, 2022 
                                        2:35 p.m. 
Before: 
 

HON. LAURA TAYLOR SWAIN, 
 
                                        District Judge 
 

APPEARANCES 
 
 
DAMIAN WILLIAMS 
     United States Attorney for the 
     Southern District of New York 
MATTHEW D. PODOLSKY 
ANDREW M. THOMAS 
     Assistant United States Attorneys 
 

HELEN V. CANTWELL 
ADELE STICHEL 
     Attorneys for Defendant  
 
ALSO PRESENT:   
 
MARLON OVALLES, Pretrial Services  
ANDREAS ECONOMOU-ELLISON, FBI 
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(Case called) 

THE COURT:  Good afternoon.

Counsel, agents, pretrial services officer, would you

please introduce yourselves.

MR. PODOLSKY:  Good afternoon, your Honor.  Matthew

Podolsky and Andrew Thomas, for the government.  And with us at

counsel table is Special Agent Andreas Economou-Ellison, of the

Federal Bureau of Investigation.

THE COURT:  Good afternoon, Mr. Podolsky, Mr. Thomas,

and Special Agent Economou-Ellison.  You may be seated.

MR. THOMAS:  Good afternoon, your Honor.

MR. OVALLES:  Marlon Ovalles, on behalf of pretrial

services.  Good afternoon, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Good afternoon, Officer Ovalles.  You may

be seated.

MS. CANTWELL:  Good afternoon, your Honor.  Helen

Cantwell and Adele Stichel, from Debevoise & Plimpton, on

behalf of Mr. Tomita.  Nice to see you.

THE COURT:  Nice to see you.  

Good afternoon, Ms. Cantwell; good afternoon,

Ms. Stichel; and good afternoon, Mr. Tomita.

Is the gentleman in the back of the courtroom with

either of the parties?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.  I can represent that

he is also a special agent with the FBI.
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THE COURT:  Thank you.

Good afternoon, sir.

I have received a sealed application for an order

maintaining this case under seal, providing that the

documentation and docket entries in this case be kept under

seal, and that the case be captioned on the docket as United

States v. John Doe.  That, of course, also implicates the

sealed filing until further order of the Court of the

transcript of these proceedings.

Ms. Cantwell, is there any objection to the

application?

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I've read it thoroughly and conclude that

it does set forth appropriate grounds for holding this

information from public access, given certain law enforcement

considerations.  So I am granting it.  I note that it provides

for an update within three months concerning the continuing

need, if any, to maintain these materials under seal.

So, Ms. Ng, have we been given a signature copy?

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  Of what, the advice of rights?

THE COURT:  Well, no.  This is the sealing order.  The

copy that I have just has a printed S --

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  I'll give it to you.  Sorry.

(Pause) 

THE COURT:  So that is the order.  Great.  Thank you.
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I will sign it now.

I have signed the order.

It is my understanding that, today, we are here for a

first appearance and anticipated waiver of indictment,

arraignment, and plea proceeding.

Is that correct?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

First, I must share with you some important

information.  Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 5(f) requires

the Court to remind the parties orally and in writing of the

prosecution's obligations under the Supreme Court's 1963 Brady

v. Maryland decision and the cases that have built upon that

decision and of the possible consequences of violating those

obligations.

I hereby direct the government to comply with its

obligations under Brady v. Maryland and its progeny to disclose

to the defense all information, whether admissible or not, that

is favorable to the defendant, material either to guilt or to

punishment, and known to the government.  Possible consequences

for noncompliance may include dismissal of individual charges

or the entire case, exclusion of evidence, and professional

discipline or court sanctions on the attorneys responsible.

I will enter a written order more fully describing
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this obligation and the possible consequences of failing to

meet it, and I direct the government to review and comply with

that order.

Mr. Podolsky, do you and your colleagues understand

these obligations, and do you confirm that they have been

fulfilled or will be fulfilled?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor, I can represent that

the government understands its obligations and will comply with

them as required in this case.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

I will now turn to the first appearance.  And I inform

counsel that the arraignment on the information and the waiver

of indictment will be addressed as part of the anticipated plea

allocution colloquy.

So, first, Mr. Tomita, would you please stand.

Thank you.

Please state your full name.

THE DEFENDANT:  My full name is William Kenji Tomita,

your Honor.

THE COURT:  How old are you, sir?

THE DEFENDANT:  Thirty-eight years old.

THE COURT:  I will now explain to you certain rights

that you have under the Constitution of the United States.  You

have the right to remain silent; you need not make any

statement.  Even if you've already made statements to the
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authorities, you need not make any additional statements.  Any

statements that you do make can be used against you.

Do you understand these rights?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  You have the right to be released, either

conditionally or unconditionally, pending trial unless I find

that there are no conditions that would reasonably assure your

presence at future court hearings and the safety of the

community.  If the government were to ask me to detain you

pending trial, you are entitled to a prompt hearing on whether

such conditions exist.

Do you understand this right?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you a citizen of the United States?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct.

THE COURT:  Are you also a citizen of any other

country?

THE DEFENDANT:  I'm a dual national of Japan, your

Honor.

THE COURT:  Because of your dual nationality, you are

entitled to have Japan's consular representatives here in the

United States notified that you have been arrested or detained.

After your consular officials are notified, they may call or

visit you.  You are not required to accept their assistance,

but they may be able to help you with legal counsel and may
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contact your family and visit you if you are detained, among

other things.

I now direct the Office of the United States Attorney

to make the appropriate consular notification if you request

that that be made.

THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Podolsky will do that if there is a

request.

MR. PODOLSKY:  Correct.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Tomita, you have the right to be represented by an

attorney today and at all future proceedings in this case, and

if you are unable to afford an attorney, I will appoint an

attorney to represent you.

Do you understand these rights?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Do you wish to have, and are you able to

obtain and afford, counsel on your own?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you retained Ms. Cantwell and her

firm, Debevoise & Plimpton, to represent you in this case?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you're responsible

for paying the fees and expenses associated with Ms. Cantwell's

defense of you in this case?

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cv-03402-JPO   Document 35-24   Filed 06/28/22   Page 8 of 51



8

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

M4MKTOMP                

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And, for the record, do you want the Court

to appoint counsel for you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Not at this time, your Honor.  Thank

you.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You may be seated.

I would ask that Ms. Cantwell remain standing.

I'm informed that Mr. Tomita has an application to

waive indictment and enter a plea of guilty to the five-count

superseding information that is labeled United States v.

William Tomita.

Is that correct, Ms. Cantwell?

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And is this plea pursuant to an agreement

with a printed date of April 15, 2022, and an execution date of

April 22, 2022, which has been marked as Government Exhibit 1

in its executed form?

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

And do you have that marked copy of the agreement

there at defense table?

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Is there an executed Advice of Rights Form that has

been marked as Court Exhibit 1?
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MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you have that at defense table as well?

MS. CANTWELL:  I do.

THE COURT:  Thank you, Ms. Cantwell and Ms. Stichel.

You can be seated at this time.

Mr. Podolsky, would you please make a statement for

the record regarding the government's victim identification and

notification activities, if any, in connection with this

proceeding.

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.

We understand our obligations in that respect and will

comply with them -- reasonably comply with them under the

circumstances of this case.

THE COURT:  And I take it that given the particular

circumstances of this proceeding, although there may or may not

have been victims identified, there would be no notification at

this point?

MR. PODOLSKY:  To this point in time, that is correct,

but we will make reasonable efforts to notify them as we can.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  And that is for the reasons

that are set forth in the application relating to the sealing

of the materials?

MR. PODOLSKY:  That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Tomita, before I accept your waiver of indictment
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and your guilty plea, there are a number of questions that I

must ask you while you are under oath to assure that your

waiver and plea are valid.  At times, I may cover a point more

than once, and I may cover matters that were also addressed in

the Advice of Rights Form that you have seen.  If I do, that

will be because it is very important that you understand what

is happening here today.

In that connection, if you don't understand something

that I ask you, please say so, and I will reword the question

or you may speak with your attorney.  Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Please stand now to take the oath.

(Defendant sworn) 

THE COURT:  Please remain standing, but put your hand

down.  

Please, again, state your full name for the record.

THE DEFENDANT:  My full name is William Kenji Tomita.  

THE COURT:  Mr. Tomita, do you understand that you

have solemnly promised to tell the truth, and that if you

answer any of my questions falsely, your false or untrue

answers may later be used against you in another prosecution

for perjury, or making a false statement?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You can be seated for the next
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portion of the proceeding.

THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you.

THE COURT:  You are 38 years old; is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT:  Correct.

THE COURT:  How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT:  I finished a four-year Bachelor's

program.

THE COURT:  In what field?

THE DEFENDANT:  In economics and international

studies.

THE COURT:  Are you able to read, speak, and

understand the English language well?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And you are a citizen of both the United

States and of Japan?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  How did you become a citizen of the United

States?

THE DEFENDANT:  By birth, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you now, or have you recently been,

under the care of a doctor or a psychiatrist?

THE DEFENDANT:  I have in the past, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you currently suffering from any

conditions for which you are under treatment?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do have anxiety related to public
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speaking, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Does that condition affect you today in

terms of your ability to understand and respond to information

here in court?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you taking any medication that would

affect negatively your ability to understand and respond to

information?

THE DEFENDANT:  I took a Xanax, per my doctor's

prescription, just because of my fear of public speaking, but

that will not prevent me from public speaking.

THE COURT:  And so do you feel comfortable speaking in

the courtroom today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I do, very comfortable right now.

Thank you.

THE COURT:  Do you feel comfortable making important

decisions for yourself today?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you ever been hospitalized for any

mental illness or treated or hospitalized for any type of

addiction, including drug or alcohol addiction?

THE DEFENDANT:  I have not, your Honor.

THE COURT:  In the past 24 hours, have you taken any

drugs, medicine, or pills or had any alcohol to drink?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Other than the prescribed medication that

you just mentioned?

THE DEFENDANT:  Correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you ever been addicted to any drugs

or alcohol?

THE DEFENDANT:  I have not, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Is your mind clear today?

THE DEFENDANT:  It is, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you feeling well physically today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you represented by lawyers here today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And what are your lawyers' names?

THE DEFENDANT:  Helen Cantwell and Adele Stichel, from

Debevoise, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Ms. Cantwell, Ms. Stichel, do either of you have any

doubt as to Mr. Tomita's competence to waive indictment and

plead guilty at this time?

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.

MS. STICHEL:  No.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Podolsky, Mr. Thomas, does either of you have any

doubt as to Mr. Tomita's competence to waive indictment and

plead guilty?

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cv-03402-JPO   Document 35-24   Filed 06/28/22   Page 14 of 51



14

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

M4MKTOMP                

MR. PODOLSKY:  No, your Honor.

MR. THOMAS:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Tomita, your attorney has informed me

that you want to waive indictment and enter a plea of guilty to

a five-count superseding information.

Do you wish to waive indictment and plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you fully discussed your case with

your attorneys, including the charges to which you intend to

plead guilty, and any defenses that you may have to those

charges?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you and your attorneys also discussed

the consequences of pleading guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you satisfied with your attorneys and

their representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  On the basis of Mr. Tomita's responses to

my questions and my observations of his demeanor, I find that

he is fully competent to waive indictment and enter an informed

plea at this time.

Before I accept your waiver of indictment and plea,

sir, I'm going to ask you some additional questions.  These

questions are intended to satisfy the Court that you want to

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cv-03402-JPO   Document 35-24   Filed 06/28/22   Page 15 of 51



15

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

M4MKTOMP                

plead guilty because you are, in fact, guilty and that you

fully understand your rights and the consequences of your plea.

I am now going to describe to you certain rights that

you have under the Constitution and laws of the United States.

You will be giving up these rights if you plead guilty.  Please

listen carefully.  If you don't understand something that I'm

saying or describing, stop me, and I or your attorney will

explain it more fully.

Under the Constitution and laws of the United States,

you have the right to a speedy and public trial by a jury on

the charges against you that are set out in the superseding

information.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you have the right

to plead not guilty, and to continue to plead not guilty to

each of the charges?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If there were a trial, you would be

presumed innocent, and the government would be required to

prove you guilty by competent evidence and beyond a reasonable

doubt.  You would not have to prove that you were innocent at a

trial.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  If there were a trial, a jury composed of

12 people selected from this district would have to agree

unanimously in order to find you guilty.  Do you understand

that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If there were a trial, and at all stages

leading up to it, you would have the right to be represented by

an attorney, and if you could not afford one, an attorney would

be provided to you free of cost.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If there were a trial, you would have the

right to see and hear all of the witnesses against you, and

your attorney could cross-examine them.  In addition, you would

have the right to have your attorney object to the government's

evidence and offer evidence on your behalf if you so desired.

You would also have the right to have witnesses required to

come to court to testify in your defense, and you would have

the right to testify yourself, but you would not be required to

testify.

Do you understand all of that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that, if there were a

trial, and you decided not to testify, no adverse inference

could be drawn against you based on your decision not to

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cv-03402-JPO   Document 35-24   Filed 06/28/22   Page 17 of 51



17

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

M4MKTOMP                

testify?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if you were

convicted at a trial, you would have the right to appeal that

verdict?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand each and every one of

the rights that I have asked you about?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you have any questions about any of

these rights?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do not, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that by pleading guilty

today, you will be giving up each and every one of these

rights?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you also understand that you will be

giving up any possible claim that your constitutional rights

may have been violated?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that if you plead

guilty today, you will not have a trial?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that by pleading guilty,

you will also have to give up your right not to incriminate
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yourself because I will ask you questions about what you did in

order to satisfy myself that you are guilty as charged, and you

will have to admit and acknowledge your guilt?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you can change your

mind right now and refuse to plead guilty; you don't have to

enter this plea if you don't want to for any reason.

Do you understand that fully?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that fully, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And do you still want to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I would like to proceed, your

Honor.

THE COURT:  The document that contains the charges to

which you've indicated you wish to plead guilty is called a

superseding information.  It has been issued by the United

States Attorney.  You have a constitutional right to be charged

by an indictment rather than an information.  An indictment

would be a charge issued from a grand jury.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Ms. Cantwell, would you please show

Mr. Tomita the waiver of indictment form.

MS. CANTWELL:  He has it, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Tomita, have you signed this form?
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THE DEFENDANT:  I have, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you read it before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  I did, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss it with your attorney

before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And did you fully understand it before you

signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if you do not waive

indictment, if the government wants to prosecute you on the

particular charges that are in the superseding information, the

government would have to present the charges to a grand jury,

which might or might not indict you on them?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you're under no

obligation to waive indictment?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that by signing the

waiver of indictment, you are giving up your right to have

these charges presented to a grand jury?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand what a grand jury is?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anyone given you anything or made any
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threats or promises to you to get you to waive indictment?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you seen a copy of the superseding

information, which is captioned United States of America v.

William Tomita?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you read it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Several times, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you discussed it with your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand the charges against you

that are detailed in that information?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If you want me to, I will read the

information out loud now here in full to you in court.

Would you like me to read it out loud to you in court?

THE DEFENDANT:  For me, that's not necessary, your

Honor.

THE COURT:  Then it's not necessary for me, if it's

not necessary for you.

THE DEFENDANT:  Okay.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  You've waived the public

reading.

I find that Mr. Tomita's waiver of indictment is

knowing and voluntary.  It is accepted and so ordered.
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I will now, however, ask you summary questions about

the charges in the information.

So, first, do you understand that Count One of the

information charges you with violating Title 18 of the United

States Code, Section 1962(d) by willfully and knowingly being

part of a conspiracy, from at least in or about 2020 up to and

including in or about March 2021, to violate the racketeering

laws of the United States by conducting and participating,

directly and indirectly, in the affairs of what the superseding

information defines as the Archegos Enterprise through a

pattern of activity consisting of multiple offenses involving

fraud in the sale of securities, and that's indictable under

Title 18 Section 1343, relating to wire fraud, and that this

count charges that it was part of the conspiracy that you

agreed that a conspirator would commit at least two acts of

racketeering activity in the conduct of the affairs of the

Archegos Enterprise?

I always need you to answer in words.

THE DEFENDANT:  Sorry.  The question --

THE COURT:  So do you understand that that is the

charge?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that's the charge, yes,

your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Do you understand that Count Two charges you with
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violating Title 17 of the Code of Federal Regulations,

Section 240.10b-5, Title 15 of the United States Code, Sections

78j(b) and 78ff, and Section 2 of Title 18 of the United States

Code, by engaging in and aiding and abetting a scheme to

secretly amass market power in numerous securities traded on

United States securities exchanges, and to use that market

power and manipulative and abusive trading techniques for the

purpose of fraudulently altering the prices of those

securities, from at least in or about 2020 up to and including

at least in or about March of 2021?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor, I

understand it.

THE COURT:  So you understand that that is the charge?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that that's the charge,

correct.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Do you understand that Count Three charges you with

violating Title 15 of the United States Code, Sections

78i(a)(2) and 78ff, as well as Title 18, Section 2, by engaging

in and aiding and abetting a series of transactions in

securities and securities-based swaps underlying certain of

Archegos' positions in order to raise or depress the price of

and induce others to purchase those securities, from at least

in or about 2020 up to and including at least in or about March

of 2021?
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THE DEFENDANT:  I understand it, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that Count Four charges

you with violating Title 15 of the United States Code, Sections

78j(b) and 78ff, Title 17, CFR, Section 240.10b-5, and Title 18

of the United States Code, Section 2, by engaging in and aiding

and abetting a scheme to defraud Archegos' counterparties

through false and misleading statements regarding aspects of

Archegos' business, portfolio, and assets, from at least in or

about 2020 up to and including at least in or about March of

2021?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand what it means, your

Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that -- when you say you

understand what it means, you understand what the charge

written in the information means?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I understand what the charge is

and agree to the charge.

That's the question, right?

THE COURT:  Yes, the question is:  Do you understand

what you're charged with?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I understand what I'm charged

with.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT:  The one we just read, I understand it.

THE COURT:  Yes, thank you.  So we have one more now.
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Do you understand that Count Five charges you with

violating Title 18 of the United States Code, Sections 1343 and

2, by engaging in and aiding and abetting a scheme to defraud

Archegos' counterparties of their rights to control their

assets, and thereby exposing Archegos' counterparties to risk

of economic harm by false and misleading statements regarding

aspects of Archegos' business, portfolio, and assets, including

statements conveyed through interstate wires, from in or about

2020 up to and including in or about March 2021?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand the charge, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Do you understand that the government would have to

prove each and every part, or element, of each of these charges

beyond a reasonable doubt at a trial if you did not plead

guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Podolsky, would you please explain what the

government would have to prove if we were to go to trial on the

charges in the superseding information.

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.

As to Count One, racketeering conspiracy, the

government would have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that the enterprise alleged in the indictment

existed;
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Second, that the enterprise affected interstate or

foreign commerce;

Third, that the defendant was associated with, or was

employed by, the enterprise;

And, fourth, that the defendant knowingly and

willfully conspired with at least one other person to

participate in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise

through a pattern of racketeering activity.

I will note that the racketeering activities -- the

predicate racketeering activities are alleged in paragraph 2 of

the information, and your Honor has already read them just a

few moments ago.

As to both Counts Two and Four, which both charge

Title 15 securities fraud, the government would have to prove

beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that in connection with the purchase or sale of

a security, the defendant did any one or more of the following:

First, employed a device, scheme, or artifice to

defraud;

Or second, made an untrue statement of a material

fact, or omitted to state a material fact, which made what was

said under the circumstances misleading;

Or, third, engaged in an act, practice, or course of

business that operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit

upon a purchaser or seller;
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Second, that the defendant acted willfully, knowingly,

and with the intent to defraud;

And, third, that the defendant knowingly used or

caused to be used any means or instruments of transportation or

communication in interstate commerce or the use of the mails in

furtherance of the fraudulent conduct.

As to Count Three, market manipulation, the government

would have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that the defendant effected a series of

transactions in a security;

Second, that the series of transactions either

created -- either (a) created actual or apparent active trading

in the security, or (b) raised or depressed the price of the

security;

Third, that the conduct involved, directly or

indirectly, the use of the mails, any means of interstate

commerce, or any facility of a national securities exchange; 

And, fourth, that the defendant acted willfully and

with the purpose of inducing the purchase or sale of a security

by others.

As to Count Five, wire fraud, the government would

have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt:

First, that there was a scheme or artifice to defraud

or to obtain money or property by materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises;
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Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully

participated in a scheme or artifice to defraud with knowledge

of its fraudulent intent and with the specific intent to

defraud;

And, third, that in the execution of the scheme, the

defendant used or caused the use of interstate or foreign

wires, such as telephone calls, emails, or the transmission of

money through the use of wire transfers.

The government would also have to prove venue in the

Southern District of New York by a preponderance of the

evidence as to each count.

THE COURT:  Thank you, Mr. Podolsky.

Mr. Tomita, do you understand what the government

would have to prove if you did not plead guilty to these

charges?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for the crime charged in Count One is 20 years

of imprisonment, plus a fine of the greatest of $250,000, twice

the gain resulting from the offense, or twice the loss to other

people resulting from the offense, plus a $100 special

assessment, plus three years of supervised release after your

term of imprisonment, plus full restitution to all persons

injured by your criminal conduct?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for the crimes charged in each of Counts Two

and Four is 20 years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the

greatest of $5 million, twice the gain resulting from the

offense, or twice the loss to other people resulting from the

offense, plus a $100 special assessment, plus three years of

supervised release after your term of imprisonment, plus full

restitution to all persons injured by your criminal conduct?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for the crime charged in Count Three is

20 years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the greatest of

$5 million, twice the gain resulting from the offense, or twice

the loss to other people resulting from the offense, plus a

$100 special assessment, plus three years of supervised release

after your term of imprisonment, plus full restitution to all

persons injured by your criminal conduct?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for the crime charged in Count Five is

20 years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the greatest of

$250,000, twice the gain resulting from the offense, or twice

the loss to other people resulting from the offense, plus a

$100 special assessment, plus three years of supervised release

after your term of imprisonment, plus full restitution to all
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persons injured by your criminal conduct?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible combined penalty for the five crimes to which you

propose to plead guilty is 100 years of imprisonment, plus a

fine of $15,500,000, or, if greater, the sums of the relevant

gains, losses, and statutory amounts associated with your

offenses, plus full restitution to all persons injured by your

criminal conduct, plus a total of $500 as the mandatory special

assessment, plus supervised release for three years after your

term of imprisonment?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I will now give you some information and

verify your understanding of the supervised release aspect of

the potential penalty.

Supervised release means that you will be subject to

monitoring when you are released from prison.  Terms and

conditions will be imposed.  If you violate any of the set

terms and conditions, you can be sent back to prison without a

jury trial.

If you are on supervised release, and you do not

comply with any of the set terms or conditions, you can be sent

pack to prison for up to two years.  You will be given no

credit for the time that you served in prison as a result of

your sentence and no credit for any time spent on postrelease
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supervision.  So, for example, if you received a prison term

and then a three-year term of supervised release, and, after

you left prison, you lived up to the terms of supervised

release for almost three years, but then you violated some term

of the supervised release, you could be sent to prison for two

whole years.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you also understand that if I accept

your guilty plea and adjudge you guilty, that adjudication may

deprive you of valuable civil rights, such as the right to

vote, the right to hold public office, the right to serve on a

jury, and the right to possess any kind of firearm?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that there are

sentencing guidelines that the Court must consider in

determining your sentence?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have your attorneys discussed the

sentencing guidelines with you?

THE DEFENDANT:  They have, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that in determining your

sentence, the Court must calculate the applicable sentencing

guidelines range and consider that range, possible departures

under the sentencing guidelines, and other sentencing factors
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under Title 18 of the United States Code, Section 3553(a)?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if your attorneys

or anyone else has attempted to estimate or predict what your

sentence will be, their estimate or prediction could be wrong?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you also fully understand that even if

your sentence is different from what your attorneys or anyone

else told you it might be, or if it is different from what you

expect, you will still be bound to your guilty plea, and you

will not be allowed to withdraw your guilty plea?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the sentence to be

imposed will be determined solely by the Court, and that I can

only determine the sentence to be imposed after the probation

office prepares a presentence report?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the Court has

discretion, while taking into account the specific provisions

and policy statements in the guidelines, to sentence you to any

period of imprisonment between time served, at the low end of

the range, and the 100-year combined statutory maximums, at the

high end?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you now serving any state or federal
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sentence, or are you being prosecuted for any other crime?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that in connection with

Count One, the information also includes a forfeiture

allegation, in which the government asserts that you are

required to forfeit to the United States any interest acquired

or maintained in violation of Title 18 of the United States

Code, Section 1963, any interest in, security of, claim

against, or property or contractual right of any kind affording

a source of influence over any enterprise which you and your

coconspirators established, operated, controlled, conducted, or

participated in the conduct of, in violation of Title 18,

Section 1962, and any property constituting or derived from any

proceed obtained, directly or indirectly, from the racketeering

activity charged in Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that in connection with

Counts Two through Five, the information includes an additional

forfeiture allegation, in which the government asserts that you

are required to forfeit to the United States any and all

property, real and personal, that constitutes or is derived

from proceeds traceable to the commission of the offenses

charged in those counts, including, but not limited to, a sum

of money in United States currency representing the amount of

proceeds traceable to the commission of those offenses?
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THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Would you please look again at your

agreement, which has been marked as Government Exhibit 1.

Have you signed this agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I have, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you read it before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  I did, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss it with your attorney

before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I did, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you fully understand the agreement

before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Does the agreement reflect accurately your

complete and total understanding of the entire agreement

between the government, your attorney, and you?

THE DEFENDANT:  It does, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Is everything that you understand about

your plea, cooperation, and sentence covered in the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anything been left out?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, I do not believe so, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anyone made any promises to you, other

than what is written in that agreement, or threatened you or

forced you or given you anything to get you to plead guilty or
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enter into the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  None of the above, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that even if the

government does not oppose or take a position on what your

attorney will ask as a sentence, I am free to impose whatever

sentence I believe is appropriate under the circumstances and

the applicable law, and you will have no right to withdraw your

plea?

THE DEFENDANT:  I fully understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the agreement

provides that you must cooperate fully with the Office of the

United States Attorney, the Federal Bureau of Investigation,

and any other law enforcement agency designated by the United

States Attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the agreement does

not bind any federal, state, or local prosecuting authority,

other than the United States Attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the agreement

provides that, if the United States Attorney determines that

you have provided substantial assistance in an investigation or

prosecution, and if you have fully complied with the

understandings specified in the agreement, the United States

Attorney will file a motion pursuant to Section 5K1.1 of the
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sentencing guidelines, requesting that the Court sentence you

in light of the factors set forth in Section 5K1.1(a)(1)

through (5)?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the factors that

the Court may consider under Section 5K1.1 include the

significance and usefulness of your assistance, taking into

consideration the government's evaluation of your assistance,

the truthfulness, completeness, and reliability of any

information or testimony you provided, the nature and extent of

your assistance, any injury suffered or any danger or risk of

injury to you or your family as a result of your assistance,

and the timeliness of your assistance?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that even if the United

States Attorney files such a motion, the sentence to be imposed

on you remains within the sole discretion of the Court?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you will not be

entitled to withdraw your plea, even if the Court denies the

motion?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if the United

States Attorney determines that you have not provided

substantial assistance in an investigation or prosecution, or
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that you have violated any provision of the agreement, the

United States Attorney is not obligated to file a motion under

Section 5K1.1?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you will not be

entitled to withdraw your guilty plea, even if the United

States Attorney does not file the motion?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that, on page 4, your

agreement provides that, if you commit any further crimes, or

it is determined that you gave false, incomplete, or misleading

testimony or information, or that you otherwise violated any

provision of the agreement, you will be subject to prosecution

for any federal violations of which the United States Attorney

has knowledge, including perjury and obstruction of justice?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that, also on page 4,

the agreement provides that, if you commit any further crimes,

or it is determined that you gave false, incomplete, or

misleading testimony or information, or otherwise violated any

provision of the agreement, all statements that you have made

to the United States Attorney and other designated law

enforcement agents, and any testimony that you have given

before a grand jury or other tribunal, may be admissible in

evidence in any criminal proceedings against you?
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Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that your agreement also

provides that you may not assert a claim that such statements

should be suppressed from evidence, and that you have waived

your right to claim that such statements should be suppressed

from evidence?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that, on page 2, the

plea agreement includes your agreement, with respect to

Count One of the information, to forfeit to the United States

any interest acquired or maintained as a result of the

racketeering activity charged in Count One; any interest in,

security of, claim against, or property or contractual right of

any kind affording a source of influence over any enterprise

which you and your coconspirators established, operated,

controlled, conducted, or participated in the conduct of, in

violation of Title 18, Section 1962, as charged in Count One;

and any property constituting or derived from any proceeds

obtained, directly or indirectly, from the racketeering

activity charged in Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that page 2 of the

agreement also includes your agreement with respect to

Counts Two through Five of the information to forfeit to the
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United States any and all property, real or personal, that

constitutes, or is derived from, the commission of the offenses

alleged in Counts Two through Five?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that any amount that you

do forfeit will not be credited toward any fines, restitution,

cost of imprisonment, or any other additional penalty that the

Court may impose on you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that, on page 4, the

agreement provides that the government will not object to your

continued release upon bail conditions to be set, but that the

government reserves the right to move for revocation or

modification of those conditions without notice to you if it

determines that you have violated any provision of your

agreement or any release condition, or if it determines that

revocation or modification is otherwise appropriate?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand this, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you still want to plead guilty pursuant

to this plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Ms. Cantwell, do you know of any valid

reason why Mr. Tomita would prevail at trial?

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you know of any reason why he should
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not be permitted to plead guilty?

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Tomita, would you and your attorneys

please stand, and would you tell me what makes you guilty of

each of the crimes to which you are pleading guilty today.

MS. CANTWELL:  And, your Honor, just to be clear, he

is going to read from a prepared statement that we worked on

together.

THE COURT:  Very good.  And I may have some questions

for him following the reading of the statement.

MS. CANTWELL:  Okay.

THE DEFENDANT:  Okay.

From March 2020 through March 2021, I was head trader

at Archegos Capital Management.  During this time, I and others

executed trades that allowed the fund to amass market power and

certain securities traded on U.S. exchanges.  Archegos used

security-based swaps to gain exposure to these securities while

concealing the true size of the fund's positions from the

market and our trading counterparties.

Once Archegos gained market power in these securities,

I and others used this power to trade in such a way as to

artificially manipulate the prices of the securities.

Acting at the direction of the head of the fund, I

traded to increase the prices of names in which Archegos held

long positions and reduced the prices of securities in which
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the fund helped short positions.  I did this by, for example,

buying large amounts of a stock when the price dropped in

response to negative news or trading premarket when I knew the

fund's activity would have a greater impact on price.

I manipulated the prices of these securities in order

to influence others in the market to buy or sell the securities

in ways that would benefit Archegos' key positions and increase

Archegos' purchasing power through variation margin.

In addition to manipulating the prices of certain

securities, I also made misrepresentations to Archegos' trading

counterparties.  These counterparties were banks and brokers

who extended the fund credit to trade on margin and entered

into swap agreements with the fund.

I knew that the fund's counterparties considered

Archegos' portfolio and assets when setting margin rates and

limits on swap capacity.  In order to maintain favorable margin

rates and gain additional swap capacity, I made false and

misleading statements and omissions regarding the size and the

composition of the fund's portfolio.  I knew that doing so

would mislead counterparties as to the true risks presented by

the fund.  I made these false and misleading statements and

omissions during phone calls and email exchanges with

representatives from the banks.

While engaged in the activities I described, I worked

under the supervision of Sung Kook Hwang, also known as Bill
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Hwang, the founder and head of Archegos.  I agreed with Bill

and others to carry out the business of Archegos through a

pattern of manipulating the prices of securities and deceiving

counterparties.  I did so knowing that I, Bill, or others

committed at least two manipulative or deceptive acts in the

course of conducting Archegos' affairs.  I knew that Archegos'

trading activity was carried out over interstate wires and

affected interstate commerce.

I knew this conduct was wrong at the time that I

participated in it, and I knew that things I did were illegal.

Thank you.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Does everything that you have just read to me from

those notes truthfully relate your actions and your knowledge

at the relevant time?

THE DEFENDANT:  Correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Podolsky, are there any further

factual issues that the government would like addressed in the

plea allocution?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Just one, your Honor.

If you could ask whether any of the activities that

Mr. Tomita just described took place in Manhattan or in New

York City, just to clarify venue.

THE DEFENDANT:  The answer to that question is, yes,

some of these activities took place in Manhattan.
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THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Tomita and your counsel, you can be seated for a

moment, and I am going to ask Mr. Podolsky to summarize the

government's evidence against Mr. Tomita.

MR. PODOLSKY:  Thank you, your Honor.

If we were to proceed to trial in this case, the

evidence offered by the government would include:  Testimony by

law enforcement officials and percipient witnesses, extensive

email Bloomberg message and text message records, notes and

recordings of telephone calls, and corporate bank and other

financial and trading records.

THE COURT:  And it is the government's position that

that body of evidence would be sufficient to establish guilt

beyond a reasonable doubt?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Very much, your Honor, yes.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Tomita, would you please stand again.

How do you now plead to the charge in Count One of the

information, guilty or not guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  How do you plead to the charge in

Count Two of the information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  How do you plead to the charge in

Count Three of the information?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  How do you plead to the charge in

Count Four of the information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And how do you plead to the charge in

Count Five of the information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty to each of these

charges because you are, in fact, guilty of the crimes charged?

THE DEFENDANT:  That is correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Are you pleading guilty voluntarily and of

your own free will?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Would you please look at the Advice of

Rights Form, which has been labeled Court Exhibit 1.

Have you signed this form?

THE DEFENDANT:  I have, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you read it before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  I did, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss it with your attorneys

before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And did you understand it before you

signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Ms. Cantwell, did you also review and sign

Court Exhibit 1?

MS. CANTWELL:  I did, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Ms. Cantwell, are there any other

questions that you believe I should ask Mr. Tomita in

connection with this plea?

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Podolsky, are there any other

questions that you believe I should ask in connection with the

plea?

MR. PODOLSKY:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Tomita, you have acknowledged that you

are guilty as charged in the superseding information.  I find

that you know your rights and that you are waiving them

voluntarily.  Because your plea is entered knowingly and

voluntarily, and is supported by an independent basis in fact

containing each of the essential elements of each offense, I

accept your guilty plea, and I adjudge you guilty of the

offenses charged in Counts One, Two, Three, Four, and Five of

the superseding information captioned United States of America

v. William Tomita, to which you have pleaded guilty.

Ms. Cantwell, do you wish to be present for any

interview of Mr. Tomita in connection with the presentence

report?

MS. CANTWELL:  I do, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Thank you.  You can be all be seated.

So, counsel, what is your desire with respect to

setting a sentencing date or a control date?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Your Honor, in the circumstances of

this case, I think additional time would afford an opportunity

for the Court to receive information that would be important to

Mr. Tomita's sentencing.  For that reason, we would request a

control date within six months, at which time we will update

the Court as to whether a presentence investigation report

should be prepared, whether additional time is necessary.  Of

course, in the interim, if it becomes clear that we can proceed

to sentence sooner, we'll update the Court and request

preparation of the report at a sooner time.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Ms. Ng, may we have a control date about six months

out from here?

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  Friday, October 28, 2022, at

11:00 a.m.

THE COURT:  Counsel, are you all available on

October 28, 2022, at 11:00 in the morning, for a control date?

MR. PODOLSKY:  We are, your Honor.

MS. CANTWELL:  Sure thing, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

October 28, 2022, at 11:00 a.m., is set as the control

date for sentencing.
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Counsel, when it does come time to have the

presentence report prepared, I would ask that you give your

comments and any objections back promptly to the probation

office when the initial disclosure is made, and I ask that you

make your submissions in accordance with my sentencing

submission procedures, which are part of my individual

practices on the Court's website.

Mr. Tomita, at some point, the probation office will

be preparing a presentence report to assist me in sentencing

you.  You will be interviewed by the probation office.  It is

important that the information that you give to the probation

officer be truthful and accurate.  The report is important in

my decision as to what your sentence will be.  You and your

attorney have a right and will have an opportunity to examine

the report, to challenge or comment on it, and to speak on your

behalf before sentencing.  Failing to be truthful with the

probation officer and the Court may have an adverse effect on

your sentence and may subject you to prosecution.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand that, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Is there a proposed bail package?

MR. PODOLSKY:  There is, your Honor.

We've discussed with defense counsel and would jointly

propose that Mr. Tomita be released today upon his signature of
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a $500,000 personal recognizance bond, to be signed within

three weeks by one financially responsible person or one

additional financially responsible person.

THE COURT:  One person in addition to Mr. Tomita?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Exactly, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.

MR. PODOLSKY:  His travel to be restricted to the

Continental United States, and he will surrender today both his

United States and Japanese passports and any other travel

documents.

And I will say that in light of the agreement between

Mr. Tomita and the government and the fact that he has his

passports to be surrendered here with him, we do believe that

these conditions would reasonably assure his appearance in

court, as well as the protection of the community.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Would it be regular supervision?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Officer Ovalles, are there any other

conditions that you think need to be specified in the

disposition sheet?

MR. OVALLES:  Your Honor, the only condition that I

would ask that your Honor note, as opposed to regular pretrial

supervision, it would be pretrial supervision as directed.

Besides that, nothing else, your Honor.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cv-03402-JPO   Document 35-24   Filed 06/28/22   Page 48 of 51



48

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

M4MKTOMP                

THE COURT:  Very good.

I will now prepare the disposition form.

This is a voluntary surrender, correct?

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Today?

MS. CANTWELL:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Shall I say defendant to be released on

own signature plus surrender of passports?

MR. PODOLSKY:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  What I have written on this form is:

Date of arrest:  4/22/22, voluntary surrender.

Agreed conditions of release:  $500,000 PRB1FRP;

travel restricted to Continental United States; surrender

travel documents and no new applications; pretrial supervision

as directed by pretrial services.  

Defendant to be released on own signature plus the

following conditions:  Surrender of passports; remaining

conditions to be met by 21 days.

Is there anything else you would expect me to write on

this form?

MR. PODOLSKY:  No, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Officer Ovalles, anything else?

MR. OVALLES:  Nothing further, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  Very good.

Let me print out copies to sign them.
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I find that these conditions are appropriate and

sufficient based on the representations that have been made

here to assure against risk of flight and any danger to the

public.

(Pause) 

THE COURT:  I've provided the five copies to Ms. Ng.

Mr. Tomita, do you understand the conditions that I

have imposed for your release pending sentencing?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that the violation

of any conditions can have severe consequences?

THE DEFENDANT:  I certainly do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Do you also understand that if you don't appear in

court on the date that is finally set for your actual

sentencing, you will be guilty of a criminal act for which you

could be sentenced to imprisonment separate and apart from, and

in addition to, any other sentence that you might receive for

the crimes to which you have just pleaded guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Then I will expect to see you on the

appropriate date.

And I also encourage you to get yourself vaccinated

and get the boosters that are available to you to protect

yourself and your family.
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THE DEFENDANT:  Thank you, your Honor.  I'll keep up

with my vaccinations, as I have been.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  Glad to hear it.

I didn't just single you out for that.  I encourage

everybody.

Is there anything else that we need to take up

together this afternoon?

MR. PODOLSKY:  No, your Honor.  Thank you.

MS. CANTWELL:  No, your Honor.  Thank you very much.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Thank you, all.  Stay safe and be well.  We're

adjourned.

* * *  
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
------------------------------x 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, 
 
           v.                           22 Cr. 673 (RA) 
 
CAROLINE ELLISON, 
 
                                        Plea 
               Defendant. 
 
------------------------------x 
                                         
                                        New York, N.Y. 
                                        December 19, 2022 
                                        4:30 p.m. 
 
 
Before: 
 

HON. RONNIE ABRAMS, 
 
                                        District Judge 
                                          
 

APPEARANCES 
 
DAMIAN WILLIAMS 
     United States Attorney for the 
     Southern District of New York 
DANIELLE SASSOON 
NICOLAS ROOS 
     Assistant United States Attorney 
 
ANJAN SAHNI 
PETER G. NEIMAN 
STEPHANIE AVAKIAN 
NICK WERLE 
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(Case called) 

LAW CLERK:  Counsel, please state your name for the

record.

MS. SASSOON:  Good afternoon, your Honor.  Danielle

Sassoon and Nick Roos for the United States.  And with us at

counsel's table is Lea Harmon from pretrial services.

THE COURT:  Good afternoon to all of you.

MR. SAHNI:  Good afternoon, your Honor.  Anjan Sahni,

Peter Neiman, Stephanie Avakian and Nick Werle from WilmerHale

on behalf of Ms. Caroline Ellison.

THE COURT:  Good afternoon to all of you.  

I do want to note for the record that Mr. Sahni and I

worked together at the US attorney's office many years ago.

You can be seated.

As I said in my endorsement earlier today, I do not

believe that Ms. Ellison has met the high standard for closing

the courtroom.  I intend to file her letter requesting as much

together with my endorsement once the other filings in this

matter have been unsealed.  And I'll address the related

sealing issues at the end of this proceeding.

So, Ms. Ellison, I understand that you wish to plead

guilty to Counts One through Seven of the superseding

information; is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So before deciding whether to accept you
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plea, I'm going to ask you certain questions so that I can be

sure you understand your rights and that you are pleading

guilty voluntarily and because you are guilty and not for any

other reason.  It's important that you answer my questions

honestly and completely, but if at any time you have questions

about anything, feel free to ask me or feel free to consult

with your counsel; okay?

THE DEFENDANT:  Okay.

THE COURT:  Could you please place Ms. Ellison under

oath.

(Defendant sworn)

THE COURT:  So you are now under oath.  You should

know if you answer any of my questions falsely, you could be

charged with a separate crime of perjury.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So I'm going to start by asking you

questions to ensure that you are competent to plead guilty.

These are questions I ask of everyone in your situation.  

How old are you?

THE DEFENDANT:  28.

THE COURT:  How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT:  I got a bachelor's degree.
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THE COURT:  Have you ever been hospitalized for mental

illness, alcoholism or drug addiction?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  In the past 24 hours, have you taken any

drugs, medicine or pills or drunk any alcoholic beverages?

THE DEFENDANT:  I had one beer at about 8:00 p.m. last

night.  That's it.

THE COURT:  Is your mind clear today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And do you understand what's happening in

these proceedings?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Does either counsel have any doubt as to

Ms. Ellison's competence to plead guilty at this time?

MS. SASSOON:  No doubt, your Honor.

MR. SAHNI:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  On the basis of Ms. Ellison's responses to

my questions and my observations of her demeanor here in court
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and representations of counsel, I find that she's fully

competent to enter an informed plea of guilty at this time.

Have you had enough time and opportunity to discuss

your case with your attorneys, including the nature of the

charges to which you intend to plead guilty to and any possible

defenses you may have?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I have.

THE COURT:  Have you had enough time to discuss with

them the consequences of pleading guilty and the sentence which

may be imposed?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Are you satisfied with their

representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So I understand, as I noted, that you

intend to plead guilty to the charges contained in a

superseding information, which is a document containing a

formal accusation brought by the government.

Have you received a copy of the superseding

information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I have.

THE COURT:  And have you read it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Have you discussed it with your attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.
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THE COURT:  Would you like me to read it out loud or

do you waive its public reading?

THE DEFENDANT:  I waive the public reading.

THE COURT:  So under our legal system, before you or

anyone else can be charged with a felony offense, the

government is obligated to go to a grand jury, which must

decide whether there's probable cause to believe that an

offense was committed and that you committed it, and that

decision can result in what's called an indictment.  I want to

make sure that you understand that by allowing the government

to charge you by way of this superseding information, you are

giving up your right to being charged by a grand jury in an

indictment.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I do.

THE COURT:  And I have a waiver of indictment form

that you appear to have signed.

Did you just sign this waiver of indictment form?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And did you discuss it with your attorneys

before signing it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Were any threats or promises made -- other

than by the prosecution in the written plea agreement -- to get

you to waive indictment?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.
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THE COURT:  Does any counsel believe that Ms. Ellison

has not knowingly and voluntarily waived her right to be

charged by a grand jury?

MR. SAHNI:  No, your Honor.

MS. SASSOON:  It appears her waiver is knowing, your

Honor.

THE COURT:  I find that Ms. Ellison has knowingly and

voluntarily waived her right to be charged by a grand jury and

authorize the filing of the information.

So what now I'm going to do is explain certain

constitutional rights that you have to you.  These are rights

that you will be giving up if you enter a guilty plea.

First, under the Constitution and laws of the United

States, you have a right to plead not guilty to the charges in

the superceding information.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  If you did plead not guilty, you would be

entitled under the Constitution to a speedy and public trial by

jury to those charges.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  In advance of trial, if you went to trial,

you would have the opportunity to seek suppression of any or

all of the evidence against you, on the basis that it was
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obtained in violation of the Constitution.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  At trial, again, if you chose to go to

trial, you would be presumed innocent.  That means that you

would not have to prove that you were innocent.  Instead, the

government would need to prove your guilt beyond a reasonable

doubt before you could be found guilty.  So even if you did

nothing or said nothing at trial, you could not be convicted

unless a jury of 12 people agreed unanimously that you are

guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  During trial, if you chose to go to trial,

the witnesses for the prosecution would have to come to court

and testify in your presence, where you could see them and hear

them and your lawyer could cross-examine them.  If you wanted

to, your lawyer could offer evidence on your behalf.  You would

be able to use the Court's power to compel witnesses to come to

court to testify truthfully in your defense, even if they

didn't want to come.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And at trial, again, if you went to trial,

you would have the right to testify if you wanted to, but you
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would also have the right not to testify.  And if you chose not

to testify, that could not be used against you in any way.  So

no inference or suggestion of guilt could be made from the fact

that you chose not to testify.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  At trial and every stage of your case, you

would be entitled to be represented by an attorney.  And if you

could not afford an attorney, one would be appointed at public

expense, meaning free of cost, to represent you.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  If you were convicted at trial, if you

chose to go to trial, you would have the right to appeal that

verdict to a higher court.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  As I said before, you have the right to

plead not guilty.  So even as you sit here right now for

purposes of entering a guilty plea, you have the right to

change your mind and to go to trial.  If you do plead guilty

and I accept your plea, there will be no trial and you will be

giving up the rights that I just described.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.
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THE COURT:  If you plead guilty, I will sentence you

at the appropriate time based on your admissions, after

considering whatever submissions I get from you and from your

lawyers and from the government, as well as a presentence

report prepared by the probation department.  But there will be

no appeal with respect to whether the government could use the

evidence it has against you or with respect to whether you did

or did not commit the crime.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  If you plead guilty, you also have to

understand that you are giving up your right not to incriminate

yourself since I'm going to ask you certain questions here in

court today in order to satisfy myself that you are in fact

guilty as charged.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So I understand that you intend to plead

guilty to Counts One through Seven of the superseding

information, and that includes conspiracy to commit wire fraud

on customers, wire fraud on customers, conspiracy to commit

wire fraud on lenders, wire fraud on lenders, conspiracy to

commit commodities fraud, conspiracy to commit securities fraud

and conspiracy to commit money laundering.

Would the government please state the elements of the
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offenses in question.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  

Counts One and Three charge the defendant with

conspiracy to commit wire fraud in violation of 18 USC 1349.

This has two elements:

First, the existence of the conspiracy to commit wire

fraud, and I'll walk through the elements of wire fraud in a

moment; and

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully

became a member and joined in the conspiracy.

The elements of wire fraud -- and wire fraud is also

charged in Counts Two and Four in the superseding

information -- are as follows:  

First, that there was a scheme or artifice to defraud

or to obtain money or property by materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises; 

Second, that the defendant knowingly participated in

the scheme or artifice to defraud with knowledge of its

fraudulent nature and with specific intent to defraud, or that

she knowingly and intentionally aided and abetted others in the

scheme; and

Third, that in the execution of that scheme, the

defendant used or caused the use of interstate or international

wires, and wires refers to use of the telephone, text messages,

emails, and it also refers to wire transfers of funds.
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Count Five charges conspiracy to commit commodities

fraud in violation of 18 USC §371.  Conspiracy under 371 has

three elements:  

First, that two or more persons entered the unlawful

agreement charged in the specific count of the indictment; 

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully

became a member of that conspiracy; and

Third, that one of the members of the conspiracy

knowingly committed at least one overt act in furtherance of

the conspiracy.

Count Five charges the defendant with conspiracy to

commit commodities fraud in violation of Title 7 United States

Code §91 and 13(a)(5) and Title 17 Code of Federal Regulations

§180.1.  And there are three elements to this crime:

First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale

of any commodity in interstate commerce or contract for future

delivery on or subject to the rules of any registered entity; 

Second, the defendant or one of her coconspirators did

any one of the following:  A, employed or attempted to use or

employ a manipulative device, scheme or artifice to defraud; B,

made or attempted to make an untrue or misleading statement of

a material fact or omitted to state a material fact necessary

in order to make the statements made not untrue or misleading;

or C, engaged or attempted to engage in an act, practice or

course of business that operated or would operate as a fraud or
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deceit upon any person; and

Third, that the defendant acted knowingly, willfully

and with the intent to defraud.

Count Six charges a conspiracy to commit securities

fraud in violation of Title 18 United States Code §371.  I

listed the elements of 371, so I'll now state the elements of

securities fraud in violation of Title 15 United States Code

§78JB and 78FF and Title 17 Code of Federal Regulations

§240.10b-5.  There are three elements:  

First, that in connection with the purchase or sale of

securities, the proposed defendant either employed a device,

scheme or artifice to defraud or made an untrue statement of

material fact or omitted to state a material fact which made

what was said under the circumstances misleading, or three,

engaged in an act, practice or course of business that operated

or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon a purchaser or

seller;

Second, the defendant acted knowingly, willfully, and

with intent to defraud; and

Third, that the defendant knowingly used or caused to

be used any means or instruments of transportation or

communication in interstate commerce or the use of the mails in

furtherance of the fraudulent conduct.

The last count, Count Seven, charges the defendant

with conspiracy to commit money laundering in violation of 18
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USC §1956(h).  The elements of money laundering conspiracy are:  

First, that two or more people entered into an

unlawful agreement to commit money laundering; and

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully

entered into the agreement.

Count Seven charges two objects of the conspiracy:  

First, a concealment object, that the defendant

conducted or attempted to conduct a financial transaction which

must in some way or degree have affected interstate or foreign

commerce;

Second, that the financial transaction at issue

involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, which

here is alleged to have been a wire fraud scheme; 

Third, that the defendant knew that the financial

transaction involved the proceeds of some form of unlawful

activity; and

Fourth, that the defendant knew that the transaction

was designed in whole or in part to either disguise the nature,

location, source, ownership or control of the proceeds of the

unlawful activity.

The second object of the money laundering conspiracy

is engaging in money transactions of over $10,000 in property

derived from specified unlawful activity.  The elements are:  

First, that the defendant engaged in a monetary

transaction in or affecting interstate commerce; 
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Second, that the monetary transaction involved

criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000;

Third, that the property was derived from specified

unlawful activity; 

Fourth, that the defendant acted knowing that the

transaction involved proceeds of a criminal offense; and

Fifth, that the transaction took place in the United

States.

If this case proceeded to trial, the government would

also have to prove venue in the Southern District of New York

by a preponderance of the evidence.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

Ms. Ellison, I know that was a lot of legalese, but

the real question is:  Do you understand if you were to go to

trial, the government would need to prove all of the elements

of those crimes to a jury beyond a reasonable doubt, as well as

venue at a lower standard, by a preponderance of the evidence?

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So now let's discuss the maximum

penalties.  The maximum means the most that could possibly be

imposed.  It doesn't necessarily mean it is the sentence you

will receive.  But you have to understand that by pleading

guilty, are you exposing yourself to the possibility of

receiving any combination of punishments up to the maximums I'm
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about to describe.

So the maximum sentences for Counts One, Two, Three

and Four are all the same, so I'm going to read them together,

okay, at once.  So with respect to your liberty, the maximum

term of imprisonment for each of the four counts, One through

Four, is 20 years in prison.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yup.

THE COURT:  Any term of imprisonment that you do

receive may be followed by a term of supervised release of

three years on each count.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yup.

THE COURT:  Supervised release means that, if you are

sentenced to prison, after you are released from prison, you

will be subject to the supervision of the probation department,

you will be required to obey certain rules, and if you violate

those rules, you can be returned to prison without a jury trial

to serve additional time even beyond your original sentence.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yup.

THE COURT:  You should also understand that there is

no parole in the federal system.  So if you are sentenced to

prison, you will not be released early on parole.  Although,

there is a limited opportunity to earn credit for good
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behavior.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Now, in addition to these restrictions on

your liberty, the punishment for these crimes may also include

certain financial penalties.  The maximum allowable fine on

each of Counts One through Four is $250,000, twice the gross

pecuniary gain derived from the offense or twice the gross

pecuniary loss to persons other than yourself resulting from

the offense, whichever is greatest.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  I'm also required to impose a mandatory

special assessment or fee of $100 on each count.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  In addition, I must order restitution to

any persons or entities injured as a result of your criminal

conduct, and I can order you to forfeit all property derived

from the offense or used to facilitate the offense.

So do you understand that those are the maximum

penalties for each of Counts One through Four?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Now, we're going to turn to Counts Five

through Six.  And again, I'm going to group these and talk
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about them together.

With respect to your liberty on Counts Five and Six,

the maximum term of imprisonment for each count is five years.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Any term of imprisonment may be followed

by a term of supervised release of three years on each count.

And in addition, the punishment, again, includes certain

financial penalties.  The maximum allowable penalty is, again,

$250,000 for each of Counts Five and Six or twice the gross

pecuniary gain derived from the offense or twice the gross

pecuniary loss to persons other than yourself resulting from

the offense, whichever is greatest.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Again, I'm required to impose a mandatory

special assessment of $100 on each count.  And I must order

restitution to any persons or entities injured as a result of

your criminal conduct, and I can order you to forfeit all

property derived from the offense or used to facilitate the

offense.

And then lastly, on Count Seven, that has a maximum

term of imprisonment of 20 years and a maximum term of

supervised release of three years, a maximum allowable fine of

$500,000 or twice the value of the property involved in the
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transaction, whichever is greater.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  I'm also required to impose the mandatory

special assessment of $100, as I mentioned earlier, on each of

these counts.  And I must, again, order restitution to any

persons or entities injured as a result of your criminal

conduct, and I can order you to forfeit all property derived

from the offense or used to facilitate the offense.

Do you understand that these are the maximum penalties

for each of the counts, Counts One through Seven?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the total maximum

sentence of incarceration on Counts One through Seven of the

superseding information is 110 years in prison?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Is Ms. Ellison now serving a state or

federal sentence or otherwise being prosecuted or investigated

elsewhere, as far as you know?

MS. SASSOON:  No, your Honor, not criminally

investigated.

THE COURT:  Understood.  Thank you.

So you should be aware that the punishments that I

have just described are those that may be part of a sentence.

Being convicted of a felony may have other consequences.
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Are you a United States citizen?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Then you should understand that as a

result of your guilty plea, you may lose certain valuable civil

rights, to the extent that you have them now, such as the right

to vote, the right to hold public office, the right to serve on

a jury and the right to possess any kind of firearm.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So now we're going to talk about the

sentencing guidelines.  In imposing sentence, federal judges

are required to consider the recommendations of the federal

sentencing guidelines.  The guidelines are a complicated set of

rules for determining an appropriate sentence.  And although,

at one time, they were mandatory -- meaning judges were

required to follow them -- they are no longer mandatory or

binding on judges, but nonetheless, judges must consider the

guidelines and properly calculate them before imposing

sentence.

Ultimately, though, a judge is required to give the

sentence that she believes best satisfies the purposes of the

criminal law as set forth in a provision of the law, which is

18 United States Code §3553(a), even if that's higher or lower

than a guidelines recommendation.

Do you understand all of that?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss the sentencing guidelines

with your attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that they're only

recommendations to the Court?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Now, I understand that you have entered

into a written plea agreement with the government; is that

correct?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  I have before me an agreement that's dated

December 18th, addressed to your attorneys, signed by various

representatives on behalf of the government.  I'm going to mark

it as Court Exhibit 1.  And I'm going to ask my law clerk just

to show it to you and ask you if your signature is on the last

page.

Is that your signature?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Before you signed this agreement, did you

read the entire agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And did you discuss it with your

attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

22-10943-mew    Doc 937-5    Filed 02/01/23    Entered 02/01/23 00:45:39    Exhibit 5 -
Ellison Guilty Plea Transcript    Pg 22 of 36



22

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

MCJGellP                 

THE COURT:  I understand it's a somewhat lengthy

document, it contains some technical legal language.  But after

reviewing it and discussing it with your attorneys, do you

understand all of the terms of the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you have any questions about it?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  I'm going to ask the government to

summarize the primary terms of the agreement.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

The agreement begins by outlining the seven charges to

which Ms. Ellison will plead guilty and the penalties

associated with those charges.  It specifies that the defendant

is agreeing to waive any defense related to venue with respect

to the seven charges in the information.  The defendant admits

to the forfeiture allegations and states that she understands

she'll be making restitution with respect to the charges.

The agreement then describes some of the terms of the

defendant's cooperation with the government and the obligations

she's committing to in order to fulfill her cooperation with

the government.  It then outlines essentially the defendant's

immunity that she's receiving under this agreement, both for

the charges in Counts One through Seven and also other conduct

in which she has engaged and disclosed to the government.

On page 4, the agreement outlines what the government
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will do if the defendant provides substantial assistance to the

government and upholds her end of the cooperation agreement,

including informing the Court of her assistance and making a

motion under United States Sentencing Guidelines §5K1.1, while

noting that her sentence is ultimately going to be determined

by the Court at the time of sentencing.

On page 5, the agreement outlines the proposed bail

package to the Court for the defendant.  And the agreement also

notes that the defendant has chosen not to request discovery

materials and understands that the government will also not be

producing any discovery or material under Brady and Giglio.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Ms. Ellison, is that consistent with your

understanding of this agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, it is.

THE COURT:  I'm just going to follow up just very

briefly with two of them.

I want you to understand that it's up to the

government and not to me to decide whether whatever cooperation

you provide is productive enough for the government to file the

5K1.1 motion it mentioned and recommend a sentence that's below

the sentencing guidelines.

Do you understand that's up to the government?  

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  You should also understand that even if
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the government does that, it's ultimately up to me to decide

whether to give you any credit and, if so, how much for any

cooperation you may have provided.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you willingly sign this agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I did.

THE COURT:  Are you willingly pleading guilty today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Has anyone threatened, bribed or forced

you either to sign the plea agreement or to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  Other than what's in the plea agreement,

has anyone offered you any inducement to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  Has anyone made any promise to you as to

what your sentence will be?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if anyone has

attempted to predict what your sentence will be that that

prediction will be wrong?

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And I say that because no one here knows

for sure what your sentence will be -- your lawyers don't, the

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

22-10943-mew    Doc 937-5    Filed 02/01/23    Entered 02/01/23 00:45:39    Exhibit 5 -
Ellison Guilty Plea Transcript    Pg 25 of 36



25

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

MCJGellP                 

government doesn't, I don't -- because that's not going to be

determined until a later date, after I get a presentence report

from the probation department, I calculate the guidelines, I

get submissions from you, the government and the probation

department.

But even if your sentence is different from what you

had hoped for or expected, you won't be allowed to withdraw

your plea on that basis.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So now that you have been advised of the

charges against you and the possible penalties you face and the

rights you are giving up, is it still your intention to plead

guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, it is.

THE COURT:  So I'm going to ask you the official

question as to whether you are guilty or not guilty with

respect to each of the seven counts, one at a time.

So with respect to Count One of the superseding

information, conspiracy to commit wire fraud on customers, how

do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  And with respect to Count Two, wire fraud

on customers, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.
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THE COURT:  With respect to Count Three, conspiracy to

commit wire fraud on lenders, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  With respect to Count Four, wire fraud on

lenders, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  With respect to Count Five, conspiracy to

commit commodities fraud, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  With respect to Count Six, conspiracy to

commit securities fraud, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  With respect to Count Seven, conspiracy to

commit money laudering, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty.

THE COURT:  Now, tell me in your own words what you

did that makes you believe that you are guilty of these crimes.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yeah, so from approximately March 2018

through November 2022 --

THE COURT:  I'm going to ask you to speak very slowly,

please.  Thank you.

THE DEFENDANT:  From approximately March 2018 through

November 2022, I worked at Alameda Research, a cryptocurrency

trading firm principally owned by Sam Bankman-Fried.  At

Alameda Research, I first worked as a cryptocurrency trader and
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was later appointed by Mr. Bankman-Fried as the co-CEO and

eventually CEO of Alameda Research Ltd., the subsidiary that

housed the firm's main trading and market making operations.

In those roles, I reported to Mr. Bankman-Fried.

From 2019 through 2022, I was aware that Alameda was

provided access to a borrowing facility on FTX.com, the

cryptocurrency exchange run by Mr. Bankman-Fried.  I understood

that FTX executives had implemented special settings on

Alameda's FTX.com account that permitted Alameda to maintain

negative balances in various fiat currencies and crypto

currencies.  In practical terms, this arrangement permitted

Alameda access to an unlimited line of credit without being

required to post collateral, without having to pay interest on

negative balances and without being subject to margin calls or

FTX.com's liquidation protocols.  I understood that if

Alameda's FTX accounts had significant negative balances in any

particular currency, it meant that Alameda was borrowing funds

that FTX's customers had deposited onto the exchange.  

While I was co-CEO and then CEO, I understood that

Alameda had made numerous large illiquid venture investments

and had lent money to Mr. Bankman-Fried and other FTX

executives.  I also understood that Alameda had financed these

investments with short-term and open-term loans worth several

billion dollars from external lenders in the cryptocurrency

industry.  When many of those loans were recalled by Alameda's
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lenders in and around June 2022, I agreed with others to borrow

several billion dollars from FTX to repay those loans.  I

understood that FTX would need to use customer funds to finance

its loans to Alameda.  I also understood that many FTX

customers invested in crypto derivatives and that most FTX

customers did not expect that FTX would lend out their digital

asset holdings and fiat currency deposits to Alameda in this

fashion.

From in and around July 2022 through at least

October 2022, I agreed with Mr. Bankman-Fried and others to

provide materially misleading financial statements to Alameda's

lenders.  In furtherance of this agreement, for example, we

prepared certain quarterly balance sheets that concealed the

extent of Alameda's borrowing and the billions of dollars in

loans that Alameda had made to FTX executives and to related

parties.  I also understood that FTX had not disclosed to FTX's

equity investors that Alameda could borrow a potentially

unlimited amount from FTX, thereby putting customer assets at

risk.  I agreed with Mr. Bankman-Fried and others not to

publicly disclose the true nature of the relationship between

Alameda and FTX, including Alameda's credit arrangement.

I also understood that Mr. Bankman-Fried and others

funded certain investments in amounts more than $10,000 with

customer funds that FTX had lent to Alameda.  The investments

were done in the name of Alameda instead of FTX in order to
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conceal the source and nature of those funds.

I am truly sorry for what I did.  I knew that it was

wrong.  And I want to apologize for my actions to the affected

customers of FTX, lenders to Alameda and investors in FTX.

Since FTX and Alameda collapsed in November 2022, I have worked

hard to assist with the recovery of assets for the benefit of

customers and to cooperate with the government's investigation.

I am here today to accept responsibility for my actions by

pleading guilty.

THE COURT:  You mentioned that you knew that what you

were doing was wrong.  Did you also know that it was illegal?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Does the government want to make a proffer

with respect to venue?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes.  

With respect to venue and wires, your Honor, if the

case proceeded to trial, the government would prove that

certain acts in furtherance of each of the counts took place in

the Southern District of New York, including communications

with investors who were in New York, Tweets that were viewed by

customers and investors who were in the Southern District of

New York.  Among other things, that FTX had an office in the

Southern District of New York.  And in addition to that, that

the defendant has agreed to waive venue with respect to the

charges.
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In terms of wires, the proof at trial would include

evidence of wires transmitted in furtherance of the charges,

including emails, transmission of funds and Tweets.

THE COURT:  And what would the government's evidence

beyond that be if you were to go to trial against Ms. Ellison?

MS. SASSOON:  With respect to wires?

THE COURT:  With respect to all of the seven counts.

MS. SASSOON:  I see, your Honor.

The evidence against Ms. Ellison would include witness

testimony, as well as documentary and physical evidence, to

include signal communications, emails, documents transmitted to

investors and lenders, documents collected from FTX, including

evidence from FTX's software database and its code.

THE COURT:  Are there any additional questions you

would like me to ask Ms. Ellison?

MS. SASSOON:  No.  Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do both parties agree that there's a

sufficient factual predicate for the guilty plea?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

MR. SAHNI:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Ms. Ellison, do you also admit to the

forfeiture allegation in the superseding information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Ellison, because you acknowledge that

you are in fact guilty as charged in Counts One through Seven
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of the superseding information and because I'm satisfied that

you understand your rights, including your right to go to

trial, and that you are aware of the consequences of your plea,

including the sentence which may be imposed, because I find

that you are knowingly and voluntarily pleading guilty, I

accept your guilty plea to Counts One through Seven of the

superseding information.

Should we set a control date for sentencing

approximately, maybe, a year out?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  We would propose a

control date maybe a year from now.

THE COURT:  Why don't we set a control date for

sentencing on December 19th of 2023.

Now, let's talk about bail.  I understand that the

parties have agreed on a bail package, which was in the plea

agreement.  I have read the pretrial services report, but I

would be happy to hear further from any of the parties if they

would like to be heard.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  

The government stands by the proposal in the plea

agreement.  I know there's some additional conditions in the

pretrial services report.  We don't think the travel

restrictions or the monetary restrictions are necessary, based

on the information we have about the defendant.

THE COURT:  Would pretrial like to be heard, or is
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that not necessary?  It's up to you.

MS. HARMON:  I don't think so, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

So I'm going to grant that request.  Having reviewed

the pretrial services report, among other things, Ms. Ellison

has no criminal history and strong ties to the community, and

thus, I am releasing her on the following bail conditions:  A

$250,000 personal recognizance bond signed by her, travel

restricted to the continental United States, for her to

surrender all travel documents and refrain from making any new

applications, supervision will be as directed by pretrial

services, and she must adhere to all other standard conditions

of release.

Just to be clear, the government is not recommending

that the bond be signed by anybody other than Ms. Ellison?

MS. SASSOON:  That's correct, your Honor.

That was based on discussion withs defense counsel

about the feasibility of having a prompt cosigner and our

confidence that Ms. Ellison does not pose a flight risk.

THE COURT:  In light of that representation, I will

sign off on the bail conditions as requested.

Ms. Ellison, you should understand that if you don't

appear for any court proceedings for which you are scheduled to

appear, including sentencing, that you could be charged with a

separate crime of bail jumping and subject to additional fines
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and prison sentence in addition to whatever sentence you may

receive for the crimes to which you pleaded guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Moreover, if you violate any of the

conditions of your release, a warrant will be issued for your

arrest.  That may lead to revocation of your bail with

forfeiture of the bond that's being executed, as well as your

being detained.  And you could be prosecuted for contempt of

court as well.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  In addition, if you commit any crimes

while on release, that may lead to more severe punishment than

you would get for committing the same crimes at any other time

and, in addition, would likely constitute a breach of your

agreement with the government.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Finally, I should just advise you that

it's a crime to try and influence any juror or witness or any

person who may have information about the case or to retaliate

against anyone who may have provided information in the case or

otherwise attempt to obstruct justice.

Do you understand that?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Should we talk next about sealing and the

government's request that the documents in connection with this

proceeding, as well as the transcript, be sealed and docketing

delayed until tomorrow?  I'm happy to hear you out.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

As has been reported in the media, it's our

understanding that the defendant had some -- it was our

expectation that he was going to consent to extradition today,

and there have been some hiccups in the Bahamian courtroom.

We're still expecting extradition soon, but given that he has

not yet entered his consent, we think it could potentially

thwart our law enforcement objectives to extradite him if

Ms. Ellison's cooperation were disclosed at this time.  We're

therefore seeking a limited period of sealing until he's

brought here and presented in the Southern District of New

York.

THE COURT:  And my understanding is that there's no

objection from the defendant; is that correct?

MR. SAHNI:  That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  So that application is granted.

I agree the compelling law enforcement interests

support an order directing that filings and other docket

entries temporarily be made under seal.  Exposure of

cooperation could hinder law enforcement officials' ability to
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continue the ongoing investigation and, in addition, may affect

Mr. Bankman-Fried's decision to waive extradition in this case.

Although there is a qualified right of public access

to court documents, the Second Circuit has recognized that

documents may be filed under seal to protect, among other

things, further ongoing law enforcement efforts.  And the

Second Circuit has specifically recognized that the docketing

and the applications to seal those materials could themselves

be prejudicial and that, in such cases, the applications

themselves and related notes to the docket could be sealed.

And I'm just going to cite Alacantara for that.

So the transcript of this proceeding shall thus remain

sealed and docketing delayed until -- and you don't want it

based on tomorrow, just until Mr. Bankman-Fried is presented

here in this district; is that correct?

MS. SASSOON:  That's correct.

And at this point, I think it's unlikely that it will

be by noon tomorrow.

THE COURT:  Understood, for the reasons I just noted.

Are there any further applications on either side?

MS. SASSOON:  Not from the government.  Thank you,

your Honor.

MR. SAHNI:  No, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  We're adjourned.  Thank you.

(Adjourned) 
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(Case called)

MR. ROOS:  Good morning, your Honor.

Nick Roos, Danielle Sassoon, and Evelyn Alvayero, from 

pretrial services. 

THE COURT:  Good morning to all of you.

MR. GRAFF:  Good morning, your Honor.  Ilan Graff for

Mr. Wang, who is standing to my right.  

I am joined by my colleague Alex Miller. 

THE COURT:  Good morning to all of you.  You can be

seated.  So are we all ready to get started?

MR. ROOS:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Wang, I understand that you wish to

plead guilty to Counts One through Four of the information.  

Is that correct? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Before deciding whether to accept

your plea, I am going to ask you certain questions so that I

can be sure that you understand your rights and that you are

pleading guilty voluntarily and because you are guilty and not

for some other reason.  So it is important that you answer my

questions honestly and completely.

If at any time you are having trouble understanding 

anything or you want to talk to your lawyer, just let me know. 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Fields, could you please place
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Mr. Wang under oath.

(Defendant sworn)

THE COURT:  All right.

You are now under oath.  So you should know that if 

answer any of my questions falsely, you could be charged with a 

separate crime, perjury.   

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I am going to start by asking you some

questions to ensure that you are competent to plead guilty.

These are questions that I ask of everyone in your position.

So, first, how old are you? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Twenty-nine.  

THE COURT:  How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT:  I graduated college.

THE COURT:  Are you currently or have you recently

been under the care of a medical professional, psychiatrist, or

other mental health care provider?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you ever been hospitalized for mental

illness, alcoholism, or drug addiction?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  In the past 24 hours have you taken any

drugs, medicine, or pills or drunk any alcoholic beverages?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.
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THE COURT:  Is your mind clear today?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand what's happening in

these proceedings?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Does either counsel have any doubts as to

the defendant's competence to plead guilty at this time?

MR. ROOS:  No, your Honor.

MR. GRAFF:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  On the basis of Mr. Wang's responses to my

questions and my observations of his demeanor here in court and

representations of counsel, I find that he is fully competent

to enter an informed plea of guilty at this time.

Have you had enough time and opportunity to discuss

your case with your attorney, including the nature of the

charges to which you intend to plead guilty, any possible

defenses you may have, and the rights that you will be giving

up by pleading guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Has your attorney discussed

with you the consequences of pleading guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Are you satisfied with your

attorney's representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Okay.  So now what I want to talk about is

the charging instrument.  It a superseding information.  That's

the document, the charge that the government is seeking to file

in this case.

Have you received a copy of the superseding 

information?   

It's titled S1 22 Cr. 673. 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Have you reviewed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Have you discussed it with your attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  So under our legal system, before you or

anyone else can be charged with a felony offense, the

government is obligated to go to a grand jury, which must

decide whether there's probable cause to believe that an

offense was committed and that you committed it.  And that

decision may result in what's called an indictment.

I want to make sure that you understand that by

allowing the government to charge you by way of this

information, you are waiving, or giving up, your right to be

charged by a grand jury in an indictment?  

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do I have the signed waiver of indictment
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forms?

Do you have a signed version?

MR. ROOS:  We have a signed one.  I think we probably

actually should sign it again because it is already witnessed.

So I have a second copy.  I will just pass it back to counsel

right now.

THE COURT:  Why don't you do that.  All right.

So, Mr. Wang, I understand and witnessed that you just

signed this waiver of indictment form.

Did you discuss this form before signing it with your 

attorney? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Again, you understand that you are

agreeing to give up your right to be charged by a grand jury?

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Were any threats or promises made other

than by the prosecution in the written plea agreement to get

you to waive indictment?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Does either counsel have any reason

to believe that Mr. Wang has not knowingly and voluntarily

waived his right to be charged by a grand jury?

MR. ROOS:  No, your Honor.

MR. GRAFF:  No, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Okay.

I find that he has knowingly and voluntarily waived

his right to be charged by a grand jury, and I authorize the

filing of the superseding information.

Now what I am going to do is I am going to explain

certain constitutional rights that you have.  These are rights

that you will be giving up if you enter a guilty plea.

So, first, under the Constitution and laws of the 

United States, you have a right to plead not guilty to the 

charges in that superseding information.   

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If you did plead not guilty, you would be

entitled under the Constitution to a speedy and public trial by

jury of those charges.

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  In advance of trial, if you chose to go to

trial, you would have the opportunity to seek suppression of

any or all of the evidence against you on the basis that it was

obtained in violation of the Constitution.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  At trial, again, if you chose to go to

trial, you would be presumed innocent.  That means that you
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would not have to prove that you were innocent.  Instead, the

government would need to prove your guilt beyond a reasonable

doubt before you could be found guilty.

So even if you did nothing or said nothing at trial,

again, if you chose to go to trial, you could not be convicted

unless a jury of 12 people agreed unanimously that you are

guilty.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  During trial, if you chose to go to trial,

the witnesses for the prosecution would have to come to court

and testify in your presence, where you could see them and hear

them and your lawyer could cross-examine them.

If you wanted to, your lawyer could offer evidence on 

your behalf.  You would be able to use the Court's power to 

compel or force witnesses to come to court to testify 

truthfully in your defense, even if they didn't want to come. 

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  At trial, again, if you went to trial, you

would have the right to testify if you wanted to, but you would

also have the right not to testify, and if you chose not to

testify, that could not be used against you in any way.  So no

inference or suggestion of guilt would be made from the fact

that you chose not to testify.
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Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  At trial and at every stage

your case, you would be entitled to be represented by an

attorney.  And if you could not afford an attorney one would be

appointed at public expense, meaning free of cost, to represent

you?

Do you understand that?  

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If you are convicted at trial, you would

have the right to appeal that verdict to a higher court.

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  As I said before, you have the right to

plead not guilty.  So even as you sit here right now for

purposes of entering a guilty plea, you have the right to

change your mind and to go to trial.  But if you do plead

guilty and I accept your plea, there will be no trial, and you

will be giving up the rights that I just described.

If you plead guilty, all that will remain to be done 

is for me to impose sentence at the appropriate time.  I will 

enter a judgment of guilty and sentence you on that basis after 

considering whatever submissions I get from you, from your 

lawyer, the government, as well as a presentence report 

prepared by the probation department.  But there will be no 
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appeal with respect to whether the government could use the 

evidence it has against you or with respect to whether you did 

or did not commit the crime. 

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  If you plead guilty, you will also have to

give up your right not to incriminate yourself, because I am

going to ask you certain questions here in court today in order

to satisfy myself that you are in fact guilty as charged.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  So I understand that you seek to

plead guilty to Counts One through Four of the superseding

information and admit to the forfeiture allegation.

I am going ask the government to please state the

elements of the offenses in question.

MR. ROOS:  Yes, your Honor.

Counts One and Two of the information charge the 

defendant respectively with conspiracy to commit wire fraud and 

wire fraud.   

The elements of the first count, conspiracy to commit 

wire fraud are:   

First, the existence of a conspiracy to commit wire 

fraud; and  

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully 
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became a member of and joined in the conspiracy. 

The elements of wire fraud itself, which is the object

of Count One and the substantive crime of Count Two, are:  

First, that there was a scheme or artifice to defraud 

or to obtain money or property by materially false or 

fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises; 

Second, that the defendant knowingly participated in

the scheme or artifice to defraud with knowledge of its

fraudulent nature and with the specific intent to defraud or

that he knowingly and intentionally aided and abetted others in

the scheme; and

Third, that in the execution of that scheme, the 

defendant used or caused the use of interstate or foreign 

wires.   

Counts Three and Four of the indictment both charge 

the defendant with a violation of Title 18, United States Code, 

Section 371.   

Count Three is a conspiracy to commit commodities 

fraud.   

Count Four is a conspiracy to commit securities fraud. 

The conspiracy under Section 371 has three elements:

First, that two or more persons entered into an

unlawful agreement charged in the specific count; 

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully 

became a member of that alleged conspiracy; and  
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Third, that one of the members of the conspiracy 

knowingly committed at least one overt act in furtherance of 

the conspiracy. 

So for Count Three the object of the conspiracy is a

conspiracy to commit commodities fraud, in violation of Title

7, United States Code, Section 9(1)(13)(a)(5) and Title 17 Code

of Federal Regulations 180.1.

There are three elements to this crime:   

First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale 

of any commodity in interstate commerce or contracts for future 

delivery on or subject the rules of any registered entity;  

Second, the defendant or any of his coconspirators did 

any one or more of the following:   

(a) employed, attempted, to use or employ a 

manipulative device, scheme, or artifice to defraud; 

(b) made or attempted to make an untrue or misleading 

statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material 

fact necessary in order to make statements not untrue or 

misleading; or  

(c) engaged or attempted to engage in an act, 

practice, or course of business that operated or would operate 

as a fraud or deceit upon a person; and  

Third, that defendant acted knowingly, willfully, and 

with the intent to defraud.   

Finally, for Count Four, the object of the 371 
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conspiracy is a violation of Title 15, United States Code, 

Section 78j(b) and 78ff and Title 17, Code of Federal 

Regulations, Section 240.10b-5.  That's securities fraud.  

There are three elements of securities fraud:   

First, that in connection with the purchase or sale of 

a security the proposed defendant:   

(1) Employed a defendant scheme or artifice to 

defraud;  

(2) Made an untrue statement of material fact or 

omitted to state a material fact, which made what was said 

under the circumstances misleading; or  

(3) Engaged in an act, practice, or course of business 

that operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon a 

purchaser or seller. 

Second, the defendant acted knowingly, willfully, and

with intent to defraud; and

Third, that the defendant knowingly used or caused to 

be used any means or instrument of transportation or 

communication in the interstate commerce or the use of the 

mails in furtherance of the fraudulent conduct.   

And, finally, the government would have to prove by a 

preponderance of the evidence venue.   

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

So, Mr. Wang, I want to make sure you understand that

if you were to go to trial on these charges the government

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 21   Filed 12/23/22   Page 13 of 34



    14

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.

(212) 805-0300

MCJNWANP                 

would need to prove each of the elements that were mentioned

beyond a reasonable doubt in addition to proving venue, but

that is a lower legal standard.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  So now I am going to discuss the maximum

penalties for this crime or these crimes.  The maximum penalty

means the most that could possibly be imposed.  It doesn't

necessarily mean it's the sentence you will receive.  But you

have to understand that by pleading guilty you are exposing

yourself to the possibility of receiving any combination of

punishments up to the maximums that I am just about to

describe.

So with respect to Counts One and Two, the maximum

terms of imprisonment for each of those crimes is 20 years in

prison. 

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Any term of imprisonment you do receive

may be followed by a term of supervised release of three years

on each count.  Supervised release means that if you are

sentenced to prison, after you are released from prison, you

will be subject to the supervision of the probation department.

You will be required to obey certain rules, and if you violate

those rules, you can be returned to prison without a jury trial
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to serve additional time even beyond your original sentence.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  You should also understand that there's no

parole in the federal system.  If you're sentenced to prison,

you will not be released early on parole, although there is a

limited opportunity to earn credit for good behavior.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  In addition to these restrictions on your

liberty, the punishment for these crimes includes certain

financial penalties.

The maximum allowable final for each count -- again,

we are talking about Counts One and Two -- is $250,000, twice

the gross pecuniary gain derived from the offense or twice the

gross pecuniary loss to persons other than yourself resulting

from the offense.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  There's also a mandatory special

assessment, or fee, of $100 for each of these crimes.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  In addition, I must order restitution to

any persons or entities injured as a result of your criminal
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conduct, and I can order you to forfeit all property derived

from the offense or used to facilitate the offense.

Do you understand that as well?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  So now I am going to turn to Counts Three

and Four.

With respect to your liberty on each of those counts,

the maximum term of imprisonment for each count is five years.

Any term of imprisonment may be followed by a term of three

years of supervised release.  The maximum allowable fine is

again $250,000 on each count, twice the gross pecuniary gain

derived from the offense, twice the gross pecuniary loss to

persons other than yourself resulting from the offense,

whichever is higher.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I am also, again, required to impose a

mandatory special assessment, or fee, of $100 on each of those

counts.  

And, again, I must order restitution to any persons or 

entities injured as a result of your criminal conduct and can 

order you to forfeit all property derived from these offenses 

or used to facilitate these offenses. 

Do you understand that these are the maximum penalties

for Counts Three and Four?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Do you understand in addition

that the total maximum sentence of incarceration on Counts One,

Two, Three, and Four of this information is 50 years in prison?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Is Mr. Wang now being prosecuted elsewhere

that we know of?

MR. ROOS:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  So, Mr. Wang, you should be

aware that the punishments that I have just described are those

that may be part of a sentence, but being convicted of a felony

may have other consequences.

Are you a United States citizen? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Then you should understand

that, as a result of your guilty plea, you may lose certain

valuable civil rights to the extent that you have them now,

such as the right to vote, the right to hold public office, the

right to serve on a jury and the right to possess any kind of

firearm.

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Now, I am going to talk about the

sentencing guidelines.  In imposing sentence, federal judges

are required to consider the recommendations of the federal
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sentencing guidelines.

The guidelines are a complicated set of rules for

determining an appropriate sentence.  At one time they were

mandatory; judges were bound to follow them.  They are no

longer mandatory, but judges must nonetheless consider the

guidelines in determining an appropriate sentence, although

ultimately I am going to look to the factors set forth in a

provision of the law, 18 United States Code, Section 3553(a),

and impose a sentence that I believe best satisfies the

purposes of the criminal law as set forth in that statute, even

if it's higher or lower than the guidelines recommendation.

Do you understand all of that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss the sentencing guidelines

with your attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the guidelines are

only recommendations to the court?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Now, I understand that you have

entered into a written plea agreement with the government.  I

have what appears to be an original copy of that agreement.

It's dated December 18, and addressed to your attorneys,

Mr. Graff and Mr. Miller, and signed by various representatives

on behalf of the government.
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I am marking it as Court Exhibit No. 1.

I am going to ask my law clerk, Mr. Fields, to show it

to you.

Is that your signature on the last page?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Before signing this agreement, did you

read it?  Did you read the entire agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss it with your attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I recognize that it's a somewhat lengthy

document and it contains some technical and legal language, but

after discussing it with your attorneys, do you understand all

the terms of the agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  I am going to ask the government to

summarize the primary terms of the agreement, please.

MR. ROOS:  Yes, your Honor.

So the first page through the second page of the

document describe the charges in the information, the

penalties, and the understanding that the defendant will be

pleading guilty to those.  Also on the second page are the

provisions relating to admitting the forfeiture allegations and

agreeing to pay restitution.  There is a requirement on page 2

relating to the defendant's agreement to cooperate with the
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government.

There is on page 3 a discussion of what the defendant

will not be further prosecuted for, which includes a

description of the counts in the information as well as some

additional relevant conduct.

And then there are a series of additional provisions

through the remainder of the agreement that describe the

defendant's rights and certain rights that he is giving up by

pleading guilty.  As one of those I would just highlight, there

is a waiver of venue which appears actually on the second page

of the agreement.

THE COURT:  Okay.

Is all of that consistent, Mr. Wang, with your

understanding of this agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you have any questions about the

agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

I am just going to follow up on one or two terms.

I want to make sure that you understand it is up to

the government and not to me, not to the Court, to decide

whether any cooperation you provide has been productive enough

for the government to file what we call the 5K1 motion and

recommend a sentence below the sentence recommended by the
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sentencing guidelines.

Do you understand that?  

That is up to the government. 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  But even if the government decides to make

such a motion, it's going to be up to me to decide whether to

give you credit for that cooperation and, if so, how much and

how it should affect the sentence.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Did you willingly sign this plea

agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And are you willingly pleading guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anyone threatened, bribed, or forced

you to sign the plea agreement or to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Other than what's in this agreement, has

anyone offered you any inducement to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anyone made any promise as to what

your sentence will be?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  I ask that because I want to make sure you
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understand that if anyone attempts to predict or has attempted

to predict what your sentence will be, that that prediction

could be wrong.

I say that because no one in this courtroom, not the

government, not your attorney, not even I know what your

sentence will be.  That won't be determined until a later date

after the probation department has drafted a presentence report

and I've done my own independent calculation of the guidelines

and I have reviewed whatever submissions I get from you and

your lawyer and the government as well as the presentence

report.

So I just want to make sure you understand that even

if your sentence is different from what you had hoped for or

expected you won't be allowed to withdraw your plea on that

basis.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  You have not submitted a consent

order of forfeiture to date.  

Is that correct? 

MR. ROOS:  That's correct, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  I just wanted to make sure.  I

don't have that before me.

Okay.  So now that you have been advised, Mr. Wang, of 

the charges against you and the possible pents you face and the 
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rights that you are giving up, is it still your intention to 

plead guilty to these four charges? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  So now I am going ask you the official

question with respect to each count which is how do you plead,

guilty or not guilty?

So first with respect to Count One of the superseding 

indictment, which is a conspiracy to commit wire fraud on 

customers, how do you plead? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Now, with respect to Count Two, wire fraud

on customers, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  With respect to Count Three, conspiracy to

commit commodities fraud, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And with respect to Count Four, conspiracy

to commit securities fraud, how do you plead?

THE DEFENDANT:  Guilty, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And do you admit to the forfeiture

allegation that's in this information?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.

So now tell me in your own words what you did that

makes you believe that you are guilty of these crimes.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 21   Filed 12/23/22   Page 23 of 34



    24

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.

(212) 805-0300

MCJNWANP                 

THE DEFENDANT:  Between 2019 and 2022 --

THE COURT:  I am going to ask you to just speak very

slowly and very loudly.  It can be difficult to hear in this

courtroom because of the high ceilings.

Thank you. 

THE DEFENDANT:  Between 2019 and 2022, as part of my

employment at FTX, I was directed to and agreed to make certain

changes to the platform's code.  I executed those changes,

which I knew would Alameda Research special privileges on the

FTX platform.  

I did so knowing that others were representing to 

investors and customers that Alameda had no such special 

privileges and people were likely investing in and using FTX 

based in part on those misrepresentations.   

I knew what I was doing was wrong.  I also knew that 

the misrepresentations were being made by telephone and 

internet, among other means, and that assets traded on FTX 

included some assets that the U.S. regulators regard as 

securities and commodities. 

THE COURT:  When you did this, did you know that what

you were doing was wrong and was illegal?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Would the government like to ask any

additional questions?

MR. ROOS:  No additional questions, your Honor.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 21   Filed 12/23/22   Page 24 of 34



    25

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.

(212) 805-0300

MCJNWANP                 

The government would just proffer that there is a 

basis for venue.  In addition to the waiver, there's wires that 

go through the Southern District of New York, investors located 

in the Southern District of New York. 

THE COURT:  All right.  

And, Mr. Graff, any objection to that?   

I understand that you are waiving venue.   

Is that correct? 

MR. GRAFF:  That's correct, your Honor.

No objection. 

THE COURT:  Okay.

Could the government please summarize what its

evidence would be if you were to go to trial against Mr. Wang.

MR. ROOS:  Certainly, your Honor.

It would consist of witness statements, Signal 

communications and Slack communications, financial records, and 

records from FTX in the form of code and database, among other 

things. 

THE COURT:  All right.

Do the government and defense counsel agree that there 

is a sufficient factual predicate for the guilty plea? 

MR. ROOS:  Yes, your Honor.

MR. GRAFF:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Mr. Wang, because you acknowledge that you

are in fact guilty as charged in the information, and because
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I'm satisfied is that you are aware of your rights, including

your right to go to trial, and that you are aware of the

consequences of your plea, including the sentence which may be

imposed, I find that you are knowingly and voluntarily pleading

guilty.  I accept your guilty plea to Counts One, Two, Three,

and Four of the information.

I know we need to talk about bail and a few other

things, but should we set a control date for sentencing at this

time?

MR. ROOS:  Yes, your Honor.  We would suggest a date

fairly significantly far out, but I think a control date is

fine.

THE COURT:  What would you propose?  Nine months?  A

year?

MR. ROOS:  A year probably.

THE COURT:  All right.

Mr. Fields, can you just look on the calendar.  And 

just look at December 19 of next year and see if it is a 

weekday, please.  Why don't we set a control date for December 

19, 2023.   

Now we have to talk about bail.  I understand that the 

pretrial services does not have a written pretrial services 

report, but would like to report that orally.  That is 

something as a matter of course that is kept confidential.  So 

my question is how would you like to present that to the Court 
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in light of the fact that that is normally a document that is 

not publicly disclosed? 

MS. ALVAYERO:  Your Honor, pretrial requests that the

report be done orally in chambers.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Is there any objection to that?

MR. GRAFF:  None from the defense, your Honor.

MR. ROOS:  That is fine, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Again, because this is a document that is

as a matter of course kept confidential and not publicly

disclosed, I think that is appropriate, but we are not going to

discuss anything else.  So why don't we go into my robing room

and the parties, Mr. Wang, his attorneys, and the government,

can all come as well.  That will be done orally on the record

with the court reporter.

Okay.  That will be sealed from the transcript.  I

understand we have another sealing issue down the line, but why

don't we deal with this one first.

MR. ROOS:  Your Honor, just two other matters?

THE COURT:  Sure.

MR. ROOS:  One is I think, since he waived indictment

and the information was therefore entered today, he technically

needs to be arraigned.  Your Honor already reviewed the

substance of the information, so we would just ask on the

record that the defendant waive the public reading, if he

chooses, of the information.
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THE COURT:  Okay.  Sure.

So, Mr. Wang, I asked you at the beginning if you had 

reviewed the information and discussed it with your attorney.   

Do you waive its public reading?   

Just so you know, you have a right to have me read it 

oud loud in court.  Do you waive, or give up, that right such 

that I won't read it publicly in court? 

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.

Do you want to have this oral report with respect to 

the pretrial services report and then come back into court, or 

do you want to talk about sealing and then I will make my bail 

determination.  I think I have to make my bail determination in 

open court, so I intend to do that.  I could also do it in 

written fashion.  It can be sealed, but it needs to be public, 

and then I need to justify the sealing. 

So do you have a suggestion for the order of events?

MR. ROOS:  I think your Honor was inclined to go back

now.  That's fine with us.  My colleague just pointed out that

I think your Honor maybe has something right after this.

THE COURT:  I have something at 12:20.  I have a hard

stop, but I am available until 12:15 really.  So I am available

for the next half hour.

MR. ROOS:  I guess, like, in the interest of maybe

just doing everything in the courtroom now, and then we can
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conclude with whatever in chambers, although if your Honor

would prefer another way, that's fine.  

THE COURT:  That is fine.  But either way we either

have to come back in, or you have to submit a letter to me with

the bail conditions.

MR. ROOS:  Right.  We can come back out then.

I think that's fine. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Why don't we go in my robing

room.  Then we will come back, and if there are any, I

understand that there's consent on bail, but if anyone would

like to say anything on the record with respect to bail, they

will do so at that time.

All right.

(Pages 29 to 32 sealed) 
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THE COURT:  Everyone can be seated.

So the pretrial services report has been read to me

orally as well as to the parties.  I understand from the

agreement that the parties have reached an agreement and would

like to make that proposal.  

Do you want to just do so orally now? 

MR. ROOS:  May I just confer with defense counsel?

THE COURT:  Sure.

MR. ROOS:  So, your Honor.

THE COURT:  On page 4 of the agreement.

MR. ROOS:  Correct.  On page 4 is the parties'

agreement, $250,000 personal recognizance bond.  

So, combined, one financially responsible person, 

travel restricted to the continental United States, the 

defendant to surrender all travel documents and refrain from 

making any new applications supervision as directed by pretrial 

services, and adherence to all other standard conditions of 

release, which I think are largely the conditions of pretrial 

services.   

There's one that I just discussed with defense 

counsel, which is a proposal of no contact with codefendants or 

other witnesses.  I think we are fine with the codefendant, no 

contact with codefendant.  I think for, just based on some of 

the people in the defendant's life, I think it will be 

impractical to impose the condition of no contact with other 
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witnesses, so we would ask just that that condition be no 

contact with codefendants. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

Again, Mr. Graff, you are all right with adding that 

condition? 

MR. GRAFF:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  With respect to codefendants?

MR. GRAFF:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.

That application is granted.

I think, as noted, it's consistent with what was 

recommended by pretrial services.   

Among other things, Mr. Wang has strong ties in the 

community and no criminal history, among other things.  So I am 

going to grant that request. 

Now, Mr. Wang, you should understand that if you don't

appear for any court proceedings that you are ordered to appear

for or for sentencing you could be charged with a separate

crime of bail jumping and subject to an additional prison

sentence or fine in addition to whatever sentence you do

receive.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Okay.  You should also understand that if

you violate any condition of your release, a warrant for your
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arrest may be issued.  The will lead to revocation of your bail

with forfeiture of the bond, the $250,000 bond that is being

executed on your behalf, as well as to your being detained and

that you could be prosecuted for contempt of Court.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  You should also understand

that if you commit any crime while on release, that may lead to

a more severe punishment than you would get for committing the

same crime and additional time -- at a different time I should

say.  In addition, you would be violating the agreement that

you signed with the government.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.

Finally, I will just note that it is a crime to try 

and influence any juror or witness or any person who may have 

information about the case or to retaliate against anyone who 

may have provided information or otherwise attempt to obstruct 

justice. 

Do you understand that as well?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Thank you.

How long does Mr. Wang have to get the cosigner to 

sign the bond? 
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MR. ROOS:  Two weeks.

THE COURT:  Okay.  That's fine.

Thank you.  All right.

So we have discussed bail.  I understand that there is 

an application to seal today's transcript as well as to delay 

docketing of the various documents as will as the transcript. 

MR. ROOS:  That's correct, your Honor.  We submitted a

two-page letter dated today to your Honor.  We provided a copy

to defense counsel.

It asks for the sealing and delayed docketing for 

today's proceeding until the later of either tomorrow at noon 

or the presentment of codefendant Samuel Bankman-Fried, 

whichever is later. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

MR. ROOS:  At that time it these would all become

unsealed.

THE COURT:  That application is granted.

I will note that there are legitimate law enforcement

interests that support an order directing that these filings

and docket entries in this case be made under seal for that

period of time.  Exposure of any possible cooperation could

hinder law enforcement's ability to conduct and continue the

ongoing investigation as well as to further law enforcement's

other interests in connection with this prosecution.

Although there is a qualified right of public access 
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to court documents, the Second Circuit has recognized that 

documents may be filed under seal to protect, among other 

things, ongoing law enforcement efforts.  See United States v. 

Cojab and Haller.   

The Second Circuit has also recognized that even 

docketing the applications to seal can be prejudicial, and in 

such cases the applications themselves and related notes to the 

docket could be sealed.  See United States v. Alcantara.   

I am going to ask you to reach out to my chambers as 

soon as these documents can be unsealed by way of letter, and 

we will do so promptly.   

Are there any other applications at this time? 

MR. ROOS:  Not from the government, your Honor.

MR. GRAFF:  Nor from the defense.  Thank you, Judge.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  We are adjourned.

(Adjourned)
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(Case called; appearances noted)

THE COURT:  Good morning.  I understand that your

client wishes to waive indictment and enter a plea; is that

right?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct, Judge Kaplan.

THE COURT:  Okay.  Andy, please swear the defendant.

(Defendant sworn)

THE COURT:  Mr. Singh, I understand you want to enter

a plea of guilty; is that correct?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Before I accept your plea, I'm going to

ask you some questions to establish to my satisfaction that you

are pleading guilty because you are guilty and not for some

other reason.  If you don't understand anything I ask or you

have a desire, at any point, to talk to your attorney, just let

me know, and we will take care of whatever the problem is.  All

right?

THE DEFENDANT:  Understood.

THE COURT:  OK.  I take it you were born in the United

States, and that English is your first language; is that right?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  Do you understand that you are now

under oath, and that if you answer any of my questions falsely,

your answers later could be used against you in a further

prosecution for perjury or making a false statement?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  How old are you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Old, you said?

THE COURT:  Yes.

THE DEFENDANT:  27 years old.

THE COURT:  How far did you go in school?

THE DEFENDANT:  I got a bachelor's degree.

THE COURT:  Are you under the care of a doctor or a

mental health professional at this point?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Let me narrow it then.

Are you under the care of a mental health

professional?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And what sort of a mental health

professional?

THE DEFENDANT:  A psychiatrist.

THE COURT:  And for what malady?

THE DEFENDANT:  Anxiety and depression.

THE COURT:  All right.  Have you been hospitalized in

the past for mental illness?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  Have you had any medicine, pills,

narcotics, or alcohol in the last 24 hours?

THE DEFENDANT:  I've had anxiety and depression
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medication.

THE COURT:  And what have you had in the last 24

hours?

THE DEFENDANT:  Clonopin and Lexapro for anxiety and

depression.

THE COURT:  And do either of those drugs or the

combination of those drugs interfere with your ability to

engage in rational thought?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, they do not.

THE COURT:  Is your mind clear this morning?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do either counsel have any doubt as to the

defendant's competence to plead.  

Ms. Sassoon?

MS. SASSOON:  Government does not, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Sir?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We do not, your Honor.

THE COURT:  On the basis of Mr. Singh's responses to

my questions, I find that he is fully capable to enter an

informed plea.

Now, Mr. Singh, do you understand that you are

entitled under the constitution to be charged with a federal

crime of this nature only on the basis of an indictment

returned by a grand jury, but that you waived that right and

agreed to be charged on the basis only of an information signed
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by the United States Attorney?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  You should find before you a document

marked as Court Exhibit A, which I understand to be the waiver

of indictment.

Did you sign that document?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you read it before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you discuss its implications fully

with your attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you knowingly and voluntarily waive

your right to be prosecuted only on the basis of a grand jury

inditement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Have you had an adequate opportunity to

discuss the case with your lawyers?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And are you satisfied with your lawyers

and their representation of you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  I'm now going to describe your rights

under the constitution and laws.  Please listen carefully, I'm

going to ask at the end whether you understood everything I
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said.

You're entitled to a speedy and public trial by jury

on the charges contained in the information against you.  If

there were a trial, you would be presumed innocent and the

government would be obliged to prove you guilty by competent

evidence and beyond a reasonable doubt before you could be

found guilty.  You would not have to prove that you're

innocent.  You would be entitled to be represented by a lawyer

at every stage of your case.  If you couldn't afford a lawyer,

a lawyer would be provided for you at public expense.  The

government would have to bring its witnesses into court to

testify in your presence.  Your lawyer could cross examine the

government's witnesses.  Your lawyer could object to evidence

offered by the government, and your lawyer also could offer

evidence in your defense.  You would have the right to the

issuance of subpoenas, which are a form of compulsory process

issued by the Court to compel the attendance of witnesses to

testify in your defense.  You would have the right to testify,

if you chose to do so.  You would also have the right not to

testify.  And if you elected not to testify no inference of

guilt could be drawn from that fact.

You have the right to enter a plea of not guilty even

now.  But if you plead guilty, and I accept the plea, there

will be no further trial of any kind.  You will waive your

right to a trial and all the other rights that I just
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mentioned.  I'll enter a judgment of guilty and sentence you on

the basis of your guilty plea after I consider a presentence

report.

You'll also have to waive your right not to

incriminate yourself because I'm going to ask you questions

about what you did in order to satisfy myself that you are

guilty as charged.

Do you understand what I said so far?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor, I understand.

THE COURT:  Have you received a copy of the

information that contains the written charges against you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Have you discussed it fully with your

attorneys?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Have you discussed the charges in the

information to which you intend to plead guilty with your

counsel?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you are charged in

Count One of the information with conspiracy to commit wire

fraud on customers of FTX in violation of 18 U.S. Code 1349.

Do you understand that's the charge in Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon, please state the elements of
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the charge.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  

Count One charges the defendant with conspiracy to

commit wire fraud, as you noted, in violation of 18 U.S.C.

Section 1349.  There are two elements:  

First, the existence of the conspiracy to commit wire

fraud;  

And, second, that the defendant knowingly and

willfully became a member of and joined in the conspiracy.

The crime of wire fraud, which is both the object of

Count One and the offense charged in Count Two, which is

substantive wire fraud under 18 U.S.C. Section 1343, has three

elements, which I can describe now.

THE COURT:  Please.

MS. SASSOON:  First, there is a scheme or artifice to

defraud or to obtain money or property by materially false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations or promises;

Second, that the defendant knowingly participated in

the scheme or artifice to defraud with knowledge of its

fraudulent nature and with specific intent to defraud, or that

he knowingly and intentionally aided and abetted others in the

scheme.  

And, third, that the execution of that scheme the

defendant used or caused the use of interstate or international

wires.  "Wires" referring to the use of telephone, text
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message, emails and also refers to wire transfer of funds.

With respect to that count and all others in the

information, if the case proceeded to trial, the government

would also have to prove venue by a preponderance of the

evidence.  Although, any defense based on venue is based in the

plea agreement here.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Singh, do you understand that in order to convict

you on Count One, the government would have to prove the two

elements that Ms. Sassoon described to you beyond a reasonable

doubt, and but for your waiver of venue would have had to prove

the propriety of that count being brought in this court by a

preponderance of the evidence.

Do you understand those elements?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand.

THE COURT:  And do you understand the government's

burden of proof, as I just described it to you, with respect to

those elements?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for Count One is 20 years' imprisonment.  The

greater of a fine of $250,000, or twice the gross gain, or

twice the gross loss, plus an order of restitution, a mandatory

special assessment of $100, a term of supervised release of

three years.  And if you were released on supervised release,
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and found to have violated the terms thereof, you could be

sentenced to an additional prison term of two years without

credit for any time served on release.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon, I accurately stated the

consequences of a violation of supervised release, did I?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Now, do you understand that you are charged in 

Count Two of the information with the substantive crime of wire

fraud on customers of FTX and aiding and abetting the same in

violation of 18 U.S. Code 1343 and 2.  And I point out this is

the substantive crime of wire fraud as opposed to a conspiracy

to commit wire fraud; that is the subject of Count One.

Do you understand that's the charge in Count Two?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon already stated the three

elements of the substantive crime of wire fraud.

Do you understand the elements of that charge as

stated a moment ago by the government?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do.

THE COURT:  And once again, as on all of the counts of

this indictment, do you understand that to convict you on 

Count Two, the government would have to prove those three
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elements beyond a reasonable doubt?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for the substantive crime of wire fraud is

exactly the same as that on Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor, I understand.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you are charged in

Count Three with conspiracy to commit commodities fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  At this time, I'll ask Ms. Sassoon to

state the elements of conspiracy to commit wire fraud.

MS. SASSOON:  Thank you, your Honor.  And I appreciate

this has been broken up because it's a lot of elements.

THE COURT:  Yes.

MS. SASSOON:  So Count Three charges the defendant

with participating in an illegal conspiracy in violation of 

18 U.S.C. Section 371.  And I'll note that Counts Four and Six

likewise charge conspiracies under that statute, although with

different objects.  Conspiracy under the offense clause 371 has

three elements:

First, that two or more persons entered the unlawful

agreement charged in the specific count of the information;

Second, that the defendant knowingly and willfully

became a member of that alleged conspiracy;

And, third, that one of the members of the conspiracy
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knowingly committed at least one overt act in furtherance of

the conspiracy.

The object of the conspiracy charged in Count Three,

as your Honor noted, is commodities fraud.  In violation of

Title 7, United States Code, Sections 9, 1, and 13(a)(5) and

Title 17 CFR section 180.1.

There are three elements to this crime:

First, in connection with any swap or contract of sale

of any commodity or interstate commerce or contract for future

delivery to on or subject the rules of any registered entity.

And, second, the defendant or any of his

coconspirators did anyone or more of the following:

A, employed or attempted to use or employ a

manipulative, device, scheme or artifice to defraud.  

B, made or attempted to make an untrue or misleading

statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material

fact necessary to make the statements made not untrue or

misleading;

Or C, engaged or attempted to engage in an act,

practice, or course of business that operated or would operate

as a fraud or deceit upon any person;

And, third, that the defendant acted knowingly,

willfully and with the intent to defraud.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Do you understand, Mr. Singh, the elements of the
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charge of conspiracy to commit commodities fraud as

distinguished from the substantive offense of commodities

fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that to convict you

on this charge, the government would have to prove the elements

of conspiracy to commit wire fraud beyond a reasonable doubt?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty in the event of conviction on Count Three

would be five years' imprisonment, plus a fine, restitution, a

mandatory special assessment, and a term of supervised release,

all identical to those on Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you are charged in

Count Four of the information with conspiracy to commit

securities fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  I'll ask Ms. Sassoon to state the elements

of that crime.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes.  So I already noted the elements of

a conspiracy under Section 371.  So I'll now turn to the object

of the conspiracy charge in Count Four, which is securities

fraud in violation of Title 15, United States Code, Section

78j(b) and 78ff, and Title 17 CFR, Section 240.10b-5.  There

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 102   Filed 03/07/23   Page 13 of 39



14

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

N2SZZSINP-DC            

are three elements of securities fraud:

First, is that in connection with the purchase or sale

of securities, the defendant either employed a device, scheme,

or artifice to defraud, or made an untrue statement of a

material fact or omitted to state a material fact which made

what was said under the circumstances misleading, or engaged in

an act, practice, or course of business that operated or would

operate as a fraud or deceit upon a purchaser or seller;

Second, that the defendant acted knowingly, willfully,

and with intent to defraud.  

And, third, that the defendant knowingly used or

caused to be used any means or instruments of transportation or

communication in interstate commerce or the use of the mails in

furtherance of the fraudulent conduct.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Singh, do you understand the elements of the

charge of conspiracy to commit wire fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I do.

THE COURT:  And do you understand that to convict you

on that count, the government would have to prove each of those

elements beyond a reasonable doubt?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty in the event of conviction on Count Four is

exactly the same as on Count Three?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I do.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you are charged in

Count Five with conspiracy to commit money laundering?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon?

MS. SASSOON:  Count Five charges the defendant, as

your Honor noted, with conspiracy to commit money laundering in

violation of 18 U.S.C. Section 1956(h) money laundering

conspiracy are:

First, that two or more people entered into an

unlawful agreement to commit money laundering;

And, second, that the defendant knowingly and

willfully entered into the agreement.

Count Five charges that there were two objects of the

conspiracy:

One, concealment of money laundering;

And, two, spending money laundering; 

For the first object, concealment money laundering,

there are three elements:

First, that the defendant conducted or attempted to

conduct a financial transaction which must, in some way or

degree, have affected interstate or foreign commerce;

Second, that the financial transaction at issue

involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, which

here is the proceeds of the wire fraud scheme charged in Count
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Two;

Third, that the defendant knew that the financial

transaction involved the proceeds of some form of unlawful

activity, and that the defendant knew that the transaction was

designed in or in part either to disguise the nature and

location, source, ownership, or control of the proceeds of the

unlawful activity.  So I think that's actually four elements,

your Honor.

The second object of Count Five is engaging in a

monetary transaction of over $10,000 in property derived from

specified unlawful activity.  The elements of this object are: 

First, that the defendant engaged in a monetary

transaction in or affecting interstate commerce;

Second, that the monetary transaction involved

criminally derived profit of a value greater than $10,000.  

And, third, that the property was derived from

specified unlawful activity; again, here, wire fraud proceeds

from the scheme alleged in Count Two.

Finally, that the defendant acted knowing that the

transaction involved proceeds of the criminal offense, and that

the transaction took place in the United States.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Did you understand, Mr. Singh, the elements of this

charge as stated by the government?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.
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THE COURT:  Do you understand that to convict you on

this charge, the government would have to prove each of those

elements beyond a reasonable doubt?  Subject to this caveat, to

the extent that there is a charge of conspiracy, the government

would have to prove beyond a reasonable doubt only one of the

alleged objects of the conspiracy rather than all.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty of this crime is the same as on Count One?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you are charged in

Count Six with conspiracy to defraud the United States and

willfully violate the Federal Election Campaign Act?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes.  Thank you, your Honor.

And I believe just with respect to Count Five the fine

provision is slightly different than for the other charge as

noted in the plea agreement.

THE COURT:  OK.  Please enlighten us.

MS. SASSOON:  A maximum fine pursuant to 18 U.S.C.

Section 1956(a)(1)(B), the greatest of $500,000, or twice the

value of the property involved in the transaction.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  I stand corrected.
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Mr. Singh, did you understand that what was just said?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand.

THE COURT:  All right.

MS. SASSOON:  Turning now to Count Six of the

information, it charges the defendant with another conspiracy

under 18 U.S.C. Section 371, whose elements I previously

delineated.  The object of this conspiracy is conspiring to

violate the Federal Election Campaign Act and to defraud the

Federal Election Commission.  So I'll walk through those

objects now.

The first object is the object of making a political

contribution in the name of another person in violation of

Section 30122 of Title 15 of the United States Code.  The

elements of that offense are:

One, making one or more contributions;  

Two, in the name or names of one or more persons other

than the true source of the funds.

Three, with the aggregate amount of such contribution

being $25,000 or more in a calendar year; 

And, four, doing so knowingly and willfully.

The second object of the conspiracy is making a

political contribution from a corporation.  Under the federal

election laws, corporations are prohibited from making direct

contributions to political candidates.  It is unlawful for any

corporation to make such a contribution in violation of 
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Section 30118 of Title 15 of the United States Code.  The

elements of this object are: 

One, making one or more contributions to candidates.  

Two, via corporation.

Three, with the aggregate amount of such contribution

being $25,000 or more in a calendar year.  

And, four, that it was done knowingly and willfully.

The final object is a conspiracy to defraud the

Federal Election Commission.  The elements are 12 or more

persons agreed to impair, impede, obstruct or defeat by

fraudulent or dishonest means the lawful, regulatory and/or

enforcement function of an agency.  

And, two, the defendant knowingly became a member of

that conspiracy.  

And, three, an overt act in furtherance of that

conspiracy was committed.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Singh, do you understand the elements of the

charges just stated by the government?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that to convict you on

this count, the government would have to prove each of those

essential elements beyond a reasonable doubt, but subject also

to the same qualification I indicated to you with respect to

the previous count, namely, that they need to prove only one of
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the several alleged objects of the alleged conspiracy?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, understood.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the maximum

possible penalty for Count Six is the same as on Count Three?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, understood.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that you will be

sentenced on each of these six counts?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  Do you understand that the sentences could

be imposed either concurrently or consecutively, and that if

you were sentenced to the statutory maximum on each of the six

counts, the term of imprisonment would be the total of the

terms imposed on each of the six counts?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I understand.

THE COURT:  So that if the sentences were imposed

consecutively and the sentences were the maximum term of

imprisonment, you could actually be imprisoned under a sentence

calling for 75 years in jail?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand.

THE COURT:  Do you understand that if you enter a plea

of guilty, you've agreed to forfeit to the United States any

money or property you received or gained as a result of the

offenses charged in the indictment or that were used to commit

the offenses?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I understand.
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THE COURT:  The forfeiture order has been signed, has

it?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  All right.  Andy, do we have that marked?

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  I did not mark it.

THE COURT:  You did not mark it?

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  I believe it's up there.

THE COURT:  Let's mark one of them as Court Exhibit C.

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  Should this go before the

defendant?

THE COURT:  Yes, please.

Mr. Singh, the clerk has placed before you a document

marked Court Exhibit C.

Is that your signature on the last page?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did you read it before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you have the advice of counsel before

you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And are you satisfied with the advice you

received from your counsel?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.  

THE COURT:  And did you sign it voluntarily and

knowingly?
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THE DEFENDANT:  I did.

THE COURT:  Do you know its terms?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Ms. Sassoon, do you have any need to go

any farther with that?

MS. SASSOON:  No.  Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  I'm now going to describe the

sentencing process, Mr. Singh.  I'm sure that Mr. Capone and

Mr. Goldstein have done that already, but it's my job to do it

as well.

The law requires that you be sentenced in accord with

the Sentencing Reform Act and that I take into account the

United States Sentencing Guidelines.  The sentencing guides, in

turn, require that I take into account the actual conduct in

which you've engaged, which may be more extensive than what's

charged in the information, that I consider the victim or

victims of your offense, if there were any, the role that you

played, whether you engaged in any obstruction of justice, and

whether you've accepted responsibility for your actions, and

your criminal history, if you have one.  The guidelines provide

for the computation of a range of a minimum and a maximum

months of imprisonment.  You may be sentenced within that

guideline range.  The Court must consider the guideline range

and various other factors enumerated in the guidelines and in

the Sentencing Reform Act as well as factors articulated in
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Section 3553 of Title 18 of the U.S Code.  But the Court is not

obliged to follow the sentencing guidelines.  The only thing

you can be sure of about the sentence in your case is that I

can't sentence you to something more severe than the statutory

maximum that I just explained to you a few minutes ago.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand, your Honor.

THE COURT:  The probation department will be preparing

a written report setting forth the results of an investigation

that will conduct into your background and into the offenses to

which you are pleading guilty.  It's only after it does that

that the probation office will state its view as to what they

think the applicable sentencing guideline range should be.  The

Court isn't bound by the probation department's view either.

Now, I understand you entered into a plea agreement.

And we're going to discuss that in a little more detail in a

minute.

Do you have it in front of you?  It's marked as Court

Exhibit B?

THE DEFENDANT:  Oh, I do have it in front of me.

THE COURT:  And does it bear your signature?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, it does, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And did you read it carefully before you

signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.
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THE COURT:  Did you discuss it fully with your

attorneys before you signed it?

THE DEFENDANT:  I did.

THE COURT:  Do you have any unanswered questions about

it?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do not.

THE COURT:  For all the reasons I just articulated to

you, it's impossible to say for certain what your guideline

range will be or what sentence will be imposed.  If anyone has

tried to predict either one of those things to you, whatever

prediction you heard may be wrong.  Whoever made the prediction

may not have all the information that the Court will have when

you are sentenced.  The only thing, just to repeat, that you

can be sure of is that the sentence can't be more than the

statutory maximum.

I know you stated earlier that you were a born in the

United States and therefore are a citizen.  I'm obliged it

advise you that if you are not a U.S. citizen, a finding that

you are guilty of a felony may have a negative impact on your

immigration status and any application you may have in the

future for permission to remain in the United States or become

a citizen.  You may be subject to an order of deportation or

removal as a result of this guilty plea if are you not a U.S.

citizen.

Do you understand that?
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THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.  I understand.

THE COURT:  OK.  It's important that you understand

also that you won't be able to withdraw your guilty plea on the

ground that any prediction you may have heard about the

guideline range or the sentence turns out to be incorrect.

Do you understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand.

THE COURT:  Do you understand anything -- everything I

said?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Maybe I should ask whether you understood

anything I said.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, to both.

THE COURT:  But I have no doubt in your case that you

understood every word of it.

Has anyone offered you any inducements or threatened

you or anyone else or forced you in way to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No.

THE COURT:  Now, we already talked about the plea

agreement.  Has anyone made any promises to you other than what

whatever is set forth in that document that induced you to

plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Has anyone made any promises or assurances

to you as to what your sentence will be?
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THE DEFENDANT:  No, your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  Now, there are a couple of other

technicalities that need to be complied with.  Before we go on

to the next part of this proceeding, I direct the prosecution,

once again, to comply with its obligations under Brady v.

Maryland and its progeny to disclose to the defense all

information, whether admissible or not, that is favorable to

the defendant, material either to guilt or to punishment and

known to the prosecution.  Possible consequences of

noncompliance may include dismissal of individual charges, or

the entire case, exclusion of evidence, and professional

discipline, or court sanctions on the attorneys responsible.  I

will be preparing another written order, once again, describing

all of this and the possible consequences of failing to meet

it.  And, once again, I direct the prosecution to review and

comply with that order.

Does the prosecution, again, confirm that it

understands its obligations and will comply with them?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  The government

understood its obligation.  

I would just note on the bottom of page 5 into page 6

of the agreement is a paragraph of about the defendant choosing

not to request discovery material and understanding that if he

had not entered a plea of the guilty, the government would be

required to produce Rule 16 material and further be required to
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produce material pursuant to Brady and Rule 5(f) and, if the

defendant proceeded to trial, impeachment material under

Giglio.

THE COURT:  Do you understand what counsel just read

to you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I understand.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  And you understood it when you

signed the plea agreement?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, I did.

THE COURT:  OK.  Now, we need to go through the

charges.

Did you, as charged in Count One of the information,

conspire with one or more other persons to commit wire fraud on

customers of FTX?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Please tell me, in your own words, what

you did, that in your mind, makes you guilty of that offense.

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Your Honor, Mr. Singh prepared an

allocution that groups the facts of Counts One through Four

together and then Counts Five and Six together.  Could he

proceed in that way?

THE COURT:  We could do it that way.  Just let me

cover the other three counts.

Did you, as charged in Count Two of the information,

commit the substantive crime of wire fraud on customers of FTX
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or aid and abet in doing so?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Did, you as charged in Count Three of the

information, conspire to commit commodities fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you, as charged in Count Four of the

information, conspire to commit securities fraud?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  All right.  Now, tell me what you did

that, in your mind, makes you guilty of all four offenses those

charged in Counts One through Four.

THE DEFENDANT:  In 2017, I began working at Alameda

Research as an engineer.  In 2019, at the request of Sam

Bankman-Fried and Gary Wang, I moved from Alameda to FTX and

similarly began working as an engineer.  Eventually, I became

the head of engineering at FTX, where I was responsible for

coding, other aspects of FTX's platform, and managing junior

members of the engineering team.

By mid-2022, I understood that Alameda was borrowing

funds from FTX that belonged to other customers.  I understood

that customers were not aware of this, and had not consented to

such borrowing.

In June of 2022, I participated in an effort to more

precisely track the amount of customer money that Alameda had

borrowed from FTX and confirmed that it was several billion
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dollars' worth.

By early September 2022, I came to understand that

Alameda could not repay what it owed.  I knew that Sam

Bankman-Fried then tried to raise additional funds from

investors, and I understood that investors would not have been

told the full truth about FTX's financial condition.

In addition, despite understanding at that point, that

Alameda was in substantial debt to FTX customers, in my role as

a member of the leadership team, I agreed to certain

expenditures that originated with Alameda funds, and were,

therefore effectively coming from FTX customer money.  This

involved electronic messages and other wire communications.

In addition, at Sam Bankman-Fried's direction, I took

actions to make it appear that FTX's revenues were higher than

what they were.

In 2022, I provided that misleading information to

auditors.  I understood that that information would be used by

Sam Bankman-Fried and others in attempting to raise or in

raising funds from investors.

I knew at that time that I participated in each of

these events that my conduct was wrong.

THE COURT:  All right.  I have a couple of questions.

You said a few moments ago that in 2022 you came to

understand that investors would not have been told various

things in connection with the raising of additional capital.

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 102   Filed 03/07/23   Page 29 of 39



30

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

N2SZZSINP-DC            

Did I understand you correctly?

THE DEFENDANT:  That's correct.

THE COURT:  How did you come to understand that?

THE DEFENDANT:  I -- can I have one movement to --

(Defendant conferred with counsel)

THE COURT:  Please.

THE DEFENDANT:  Your Honor, I knew that Sam was

attempting to raise from investors.  I knew that affirmatively.

I had the strong belief that he would not share FTX's full

financial condition with them.

THE COURT:  Well, how did you come to have that

belief?

THE DEFENDANT:  From discussions with Sam.

THE COURT:  So is that something he told you?

THE DEFENDANT:  Not explicitly, your Honor.  But I

understood it implicitly that he would not share FTX's full

financial condition.

THE COURT:  All right.

And near the end of your prepared statement, you

indicated and possibly you can read it, again, it must have

been the last paragraph.

THE DEFENDANT:  Sure, your Honor.

At Sam Bankman-Fried's direction, I took actions to

make it appear that FTX's revenues were higher than they were.

In 2022, I provided that misleading information to auditors.  I

 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Case 1:22-cr-00673-LAK   Document 102   Filed 03/07/23   Page 30 of 39



31

          SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C.
            (212) 805-0300

N2SZZSINP-DC            

understood that the information would be used by Sam

Bankman-Fried and others in raising or attempting to raise

funds from investors.

THE COURT:  OK.  How did you come to have that

understanding.

THE DEFENDANT:  I understood this information made its

way into the financials like, the formal GAAP audited

financials.  And that those were part of what was provided to

prospective investors.

THE COURT:  And how did you know they were provided to

investors?

THE DEFENDANT:  I think I had that general

understanding from overhearing conversations at FTX about what

information was provided to investors.

THE COURT:  Conversations with whom?

THE DEFENDANT:  With Sam Bankman-Fried and others.

THE COURT:  All right.  Is the allocution on those

counts satisfactory to the government?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor, if I may, I will

provide a proffer on some jurisdictional --

THE COURT:  I was going to ask you that next.

MS. SASSOON:  There was mention of wire

communications, but I just wanted to proffer that for Counts

One and Two, which were the wire fraud counts, wires in the

form of Slack communications, customer wire transfer deposits
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and other bank wires went through the Southern District of New

York in connection with these crimes.  For Count Three,

commodities fraud, the government would prove that FTX.com

permitted trading of crypto derivates, such as future

contracts, which would constitute commodities under the

statute.  And for Count Four, securities fraud, the government

would prove that equity investors in FTX would receive stock,

which constitute a security under the relevant statute.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Mr. Singh, do you agree with what Ms. Sassoon said?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do.

THE COURT:  OK.  Now, let's go to Count Five.

THE DEFENDANT:  This is the campaign finance charge.

THE COURT:  Well, you're getting ahead of me.  I'm

sure you are a smart fellow, but let me get there first.

Did you, as charged in Count Five, conspire to commit

money laundering?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  All right.  What did you do that, in your

mind makes you guilty of money laundering conspiracy?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Just, again, your Honor, his

allocution --

THE COURT:  You want to take both counts together?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Did you, as charged in Count Six, conspire
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to defraud the United States and willfully to violate the

Federal Election Campaign Act?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  Please tell me, in your own words, what it

is you did that, in your mind, makes you guilty of the crimes

charged in Counts Five and Six.

THE DEFENDANT:  In 2022, I agreed with others at FTX

and Alameda to make political donations in my name that were

funded in part by transfers from Alameda.  Although I agreed

politically with many of the donations, I did not select the

candidates and the political action committees who received the

donations.  And I understood that the donations were in part

for the benefit of Sam Bankman-Fried and FTX and their ability

to be politically influential.

I also understood that any reporting of the donations

would conceal that the money came from Alameda.  And I knew at

that time that Alameda money had to be coming, effectively,

from FTX customer funds.

I knew that this misleading information about the

campaign donations, that said that I made the donations, would

be reported by the government.  And at the time I was not sure

whether my conduct was unlawful because I wasn't familiar with

the campaign finance rules, but I knew my conduct was wrong.

And I chose not to ask questions that would have made it clear

that facilitating these donations was unlawful.
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THE COURT:  Did you understand that there was a

substantial risk that what you did was prohibited by law?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  And did you consciously act to avoid

learning whether, in fact, it violated the law or not?

THE DEFENDANT:  May I have one moment to discuss with

counsel?

THE COURT:  Please.

(Defendant conferred with counsel)

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Is the allocution satisfactory to the

government?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

And with respect to Count Five, the money laundering

charge, the government would prove that wire transfers occurred

within the Southern District of New York.

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

Do you agree with what Ms. Sassoon just said?

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  How do you now plead to the charges

in Counts One through Six, guilty or not guilty?

THE DEFENDANT:  I plead guilty.

And, your Honor, I'm unbelievably sorry for my role in

all of this and the harm that it's caused.  I'm hoping that in

accepting responsibility, assisting the government, and
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forfeiting assets, I can begin to make it right.

THE COURT:  Thank you.

Are you pleading guilty because you, in fact, are

guilty of those crimes.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  You may be seated.

I will accept the plea of guilty.  A judgment of

guilty will enter.  The defendant acknowledges that he is, in

fact, guilty as charged in the information.  He knows that he

has a right to a trial.  He knows what the maximum possible

sentence is.  And he has an understanding of the applicable

sentencing guidelines.  I find that the plea is voluntary and

supported by an independent basis in fact containing each of

the essential elements of the offense.

Now, Mr. Singh, as I told you, the probation

department will prepare a presentence report to assist in

sentencing you.  You're going to be interviewed by the

probation officer who does that.  It's important that you be

truthful and accurate with the probation officer.  The report

may well be quite important in my decision as to what to

sentence you to.  You and your lawyers will have the right to

examine and comment on the report and to speak on your behalf

before you are sentenced.

Any written submissions on behalf of the defendant

must be submitted to chambers not later than three weeks before
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the sentencing date.

Do we have a control date for sentencing?

MS. SASSOON:  The parties would propose a date

approximately 18 months from now.

THE COURT:  Andy.

THE DEPUTY CLERK:  Sure, Judge.

Judge, 18 months from now, how about November 13,

2024, Judge?

THE COURT:  Sentencing is set for November 13, 2024,

at 10:00 a.m.

Now, it's premature, I'm sure, to set a date for the

submission of the prosecution case summary, yes?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  What do you propose?  Do you want to say

September of 2024?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  Thank you.

THE COURT:  The prosecution case summary will be

submitted to probation no later than September 1st, 2024.  And

leave it to probation and the defense to work out an interview

date, unless somebody has a better idea.  Now --

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  And we have a trial

date in this matter for Samuel Bankman-Fried, and after that

trial date we can circle back with the Court about setting

other deadlines related to Mr. Singh's sentencing.

THE COURT:  Now, there's an application with respect
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to the filing of redacted copies of the superseding

information.  And the forfeiture preliminary order of

forfeiture.

Any objection to any of that?  Have you all agreed on

that?

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.  And there's a related

redaction to the plea agreement that I know doesn't get filed

on the docket, but to the extent there is a public version made

available to interested parties, we would redact identical

language from the employment.

THE COURT:  Well, it's not the Court's practice to

make them available.

MS. SASSOON:  I know that our office sometimes

provides it given that it's a court exhibit.

THE COURT:  OK.

MS. SASSOON:  And I would just note that the

redactions, we would provide unredacted copies in the course of

executing the forfeiture.  So to the extent that we need to

coordinate the forfeiture of shares and the like, we would

provide the unredacted copy to parties that we would need to

coordinate with for purposes of executing forfeiture.

THE COURT:  Mr. Capone, anything on that?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Mr. Goldstein.  No, your Honor, no

objection.

THE COURT:  Oh, excuse me.  I should know better.
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OK.  Now, let's take a bail.  Who's going to handle

that for the government?

MS. SASSOON:  The government has a proposed bail

package for your Honor's consideration set forth in the plea

agreement on page 5.  And the proposed conditions are a

$250,000 personal recognizance bond signed by one financially

responsible person, travel restricted to the Continental United

States, surrender of travel documents, with no new

applications, supervision as directed by pretrial services, and

other standard conditions of supervision.  And I think relevant

context here is that this defendant voluntarily traveled back

to the United States from the Bahamas shortly after the

implosion of FTX, in part for the purpose of beginning meetings

with the government.  And so, principally, for that reason,

along with his cooperation, we don't have concerns that these

conditions will not be sufficient.

THE COURT:  All right.  I find that the conditions are

sufficient.

And does the government want to submit a bail order,

or do you trust your luck with Andy?

MS. SASSOON:  I always trust Andy, Your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  Mr. Singh, you understand what the

bail conditions are?

THE DEFENDANT:  I do, your Honor.

THE COURT:  You understand you absolutely have to
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comply with them, yes.

THE DEFENDANT:  Yes.

THE COURT:  And you understand if you don't show up as

required for sentencing, you could be prosecuted for escape?

THE DEFENDANT:  I missed a word from that, your Honor.

Sorry.  If I don't show up at what for sentencing?

THE COURT:  If you don't show up, as directed, for

sentencing, you could be prosecuted for escape and subject to

another prison term?

THE DEFENDANT:  I understand your Honor.

THE COURT:  OK.  Anything else this morning?

MS. SASSOON:  May I have one moment, your Honor?

THE COURT:  Please.

MS. SASSOON:  Nothing from the government.  Thank you,

your Honor.

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Your Honor, we understand that

Mr. Singh will sign the bond and be released today.

THE COURT:  Say again, please?

MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We understand that Mr. Singh will be

able to sign the bond and be released on those conditions

today.

THE COURT:  OK.

MS. SASSOON:  Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT:  Fine.  OK.  I thank you all.  And we'll

sort out all the paper here in due course.  * * *
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CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON 
PORTFOLIO SWAPS (STANDARD TERMS) ANNEX 

Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited ("CSFB'? and Tiger Asia Fund, L.P. (the 
"Counterparty") have entered into 1992 ISDA Master Agreement, with related schedules (the 
"Master Agreement"). This Annex (the "Standard Terms") supplements and forms part of the 
Master Agreement and is intended to govern the parties' relationship when entering into Swap 
Agreements on Securities ("Securities Swaps"). Each Contract shall be deemed a "Transaction" 
for the purposes of the Master Agreement. 

In order to enter into a Securities Swap, the Counterparty must notify (by telephone or as 
otherwise agreed between the parties) CSFB of its request for an offer, specifying the name of 
the relevant Security and the proposed quantity, and whether the Counterparty wishes to act as 
Synthetic Buyer or Synthetic Seller. If CSFB agrees to provide such offer it must then notify (by 
telephone or as otherwise agreed between the parties) the Counterparty of the proposed Opening 
Price. Should the Counterparty wish to accept this offer, it must immediately notify CSFB (by 
telephone or as otherwise agreed between the parties) of its acceptance. This acceptance gives 
rise to a binding Contract between the parties. An offer by CSFB that is not immediately accepted 
shall be deemed to lapse unless CSFB specifically states that it shall remain open. 

A Confirmation will be prepared and posted by CSFB on its client access website within one 
Business Day of the Transaction being entered into between the parties. The Counterparty shall 
be deemed to have accepted the terms of the Confirmation if it does not dispute its terms within 
24 hours (one Business Day) of such posting. Failure to dispute the terms within one Business 
Day shall constitute Counterparty's full acceptance of the Contract upon the terms, and subject to 
the conditions, as set out in the Confirmation and within these Standard Terms. In the event of 
any inconsistency between the provisions of the Standard Terms and any Confirmation, the 
Confirmation shall prevail. In the event of any inconsistency between the provisions of the 
Standard Terms and the Master Agreement, the Standard Terms shall prevail for the purposes of 
the relevant Transaction. 
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1. DEFINITIONS 

1.1. Additional Payments 

Appendix 

Applicable Cycle Date 

Applicable Interest Rate 

Applicable Interest Rate Cycle 

Bond 

Bond Pricing Factor 

Breakage Amount 

Business Day 

CEA 

Close of Business 

Closing Date 
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is defined in Section 5.1 . 

is the document substantially in the form 
attached hereto. The Appendix referred to in 
the Standard Terms is distinct from all other 
schedules incorporated into the Master 
Agreement. 

is as defined in the Appendix. 

is the rate for the Contract Currency as defined 
in the Appendix for the Applicable Interest Rate 
Cycle on the Applicable Cycle Date. 

is as defined in the Appendix or as otherwise 
specified in the Confirmation. 

is a bond or other debt instrument. 

is as set forth in the Confirmation. 

is as defined in Section 9.4. 

is, for each Contract, a day on which the 
Security is traded on the relevant Exchange or, 
for non-Exchange traded Securities, each day 
quotations are available to CSFB. 

means the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act, as 
amended. 

is the time of the official close of trading 
(without regard to any "after hours" trading) on 
the Exchange on which the Security is traded 
as specified in the Confirmation or if the 
Security is not traded on an Exchange as 
reasonably determined by CSFB. 

is the earliest of: 

(i) the Original Closing Date; 

(ii) the date determined in accordance 
with Section 7, Section 8 or Section 11 ; and 

(iii) the Business Day on which the 
Counterparty accepts the Closing Price quoted 
by CSFB and gives notice that it wishes to 
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Reference Price 

6 
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(ii) a distribution or dividend to existing 
holders of a Security of additional shares of the 
Security, other share capital or securities 
granting the right to payment of dividends 
and/or the proceeds of liquidation of the issuer 
equally or proportionately with such payments 
to holders of the Security or other types of 
securities, rights or warrants or other assets, in 
any case for payment (cash or other) at less 
than the prevailing market price as determined 
byCSFB; 

(iii) a call by the issuer in respect of shares 
of a Security that are not fully paid; 

(iv) a repurchase by the issuer of a 
Security, whether out of profits or capital and 
whether the consideration for such repurchase 
is cash, securities or otherwise; or 

(v) any other similar event that may have a 
diluting or concentrative effect on the value of a 
Security. 

is in relation to the valuation of any Security on 
any date: 

(0 shall be either the closing auction price 
or the last regular way trade on the Exchange 
for that Security as of the Close of Business 
(without regard to any "after hours" trading) on 
the date of such valuation; 

(ii) if the Security is a bond, or if for any 
reason such quotation is unavailable, or if 
CSFB has reasonably concluded that such last 
regular way trade price is not a fair reflection of 
market value, the price shall be reasonably 
determined by CSFB as at Close of Business 
on the date of such valuation taking into 
account, in the case of Bonds, any accrued 
interest; or 

(iiO if specified as a non-exchange traded 
Security then as reasonably determined by 
CSFB. 

(iv) if for any reason no such quotation is 
available (or if CSFB reasonably concludes that 
the last regular way trade price is not a fair 
reflection of the market value), the price as 
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Related Exchange 

Scheduled Closing Date 

Security 

Security Balance 

Security Cycle Date 

Security Payment 

Security Payment Date 

Spread 

Swap Fee Amount 

Swap Fee 

Synthetic Buyer 

Synthetic Seller 

Termination Date 

Trade Date 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 
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reasonably determined by CSFB at the Close 
of Business on the date of such valuation. 

is the principal exchange(s) on which futures or 
options related to the Security are traded. 

is the date (if any) identified as such in the 
Confirmation in relation to a Contract. 

is the security specified in the Confirmation. In 
the case of any Security that is a Bond, each 
Security will represent a nominal amount of 
such Security equal to the Bond Pricing Factor 
of such Security specified in the Confirmation. 

shall be an amount determined in accordance 
with Section 3.1 . 

is the settlement period mandated by the 
relevant Exchange, and specified in the 
Appendix: 

is a payment required to be made pursuant to 
Section 3.3. 

is each date specified in the Appendix and the 
Termination Date. 

is the percentage specified in the Confirmation. 

is the amount represented in basis points, as 
agreed between the parties as, specified in the 
Confirmation. 

is as defined in Section 3.5. 

is the party specified as such in the 
Confirmation. 

is the party specified as such in the 
Confirmation. 

is the number of Business Days following the 
Closing Date as specified in the Appendix for 
the relevant Exchange or as otherwise agreed 
between parties. 

is, for each Contract, the date specified as 
such in the Confirmation. 
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Valuation Date 

2. CONTRACT TERMS 

is, for each Contract, each successive 
Business Day from but excluding the Trade 
Date up to and including the Closing Date. 

2.1. The purpose of each Contract is to allow the Counterparty synthetically to gain exposure 
to fluctuations in the price of the relevant Security. Accordingly, CSFB and the 
Counterparty agree that it is an express term of the Contract that: 

(i) neither party acquires any interest in or right to acquire or dispose of any 
Security or any right to vote or give any consent with respect to any Security by 
virtue of any Contract; and 

(ii) neither party is obliged to sell, purchase, hold, deliver or receive any Security by 
virtue of any Contract. 

3. SECURITY AND CALCULATION OF INTEREST 

3.1. For each Contract, the Opening Security Balance adjusted as provided in 3.3 is referred 
to as the Security Balance. On the Trade Date the Opening Security Balance shall be 
zero. For the avoidance of doubt a Security Balance may be positive or negative. 

3.2. On each Valuation Date for a Contract, CSFB shall determine the Reference Price. 

3.3. On each Security Payment Date (up to but excluding any Closing Date) for a Contract, a 
Security Payment shall be made to take into account any change in the Reference Price 
of the Security. Security Payments shall adjust the Security Balance. The Security 
Payment shall be an amount equal to Q x (P2 -P1), where: 

Q = the Contract Quantity; 

P1 = the Reference Price on the immediately prior Security Cycle Date or in 
respect of the first Security Payment Date, the Opening Price; and 

P2 = the Reference Price on the most recent Security Cycle Date. 

If P2 is greater than P1, then the Synthetic Seller shall make the Security Payment to the 
Synthetic Buyer and the Security Balance shall be increased by an equal amount; or 

If P2 is less than P1, then the Synthetic Buyer shall make the Security Payment to the 
Synthetic Seller and the Security Balance shall be reduced by an equal amount and may 
be reduced below zero. 

3.4. On each Interest Payment Date for a Contract, the Synthetic Buyer shall pay to the 
Synthetic Seller an amount equal to the Interest Payment. The Interest Payment shall be 
the aggregate amount of Interest accrued daily from, and including, the immediately 
preceding Interest Payment Date (or the Effective Date in the case of the first payment 
made under this Section 3.4) to, but excluding, the next Interest Payment Date (or 
Closing Date as the case may be). 
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Each day's Interest shall be calculated as ((Q x P0) +N) x (R + C) x (1/F), where: 

Q = the Contract Quantity; 

P0 = the Opening Price; 

N = the Security Balance on the previous Interest Payment Date; 

R = the Applicable Interest Rate on such day; 

C = the Spread, which may be positive or negative, and may depend on 
whether Counterparty is Synthetic Buyer or Synthetic Seller, as set out 
in the Appendix; and 

F = the Day Count Fraction. 

3.5. On the first Security Payment Date only, the Counterparty shall pay an amount equal to 
the Swap Fee to CSFB. The Swap Fee is calculated as Q x P0 x Z, where: 

Q = the Contract Quantity; 

P0 = the Opening Price; and 

Z = Swap Fee Amount 

4. PAYMENTS NETTING 

4.1. If, on any Payment Date the same amounts would otherwise be payable by each party to 
the other (under any provision of a Security Swap with respect to any Contract), then on 
such date, each party's obligation to make such payment shall be netted against each 
other, and automatically satisfied and discharged. If the aggregate amount otherwise 
payable by one party exceeds the aggregate amount payable by the other, then the party 
with the larger aggregate amount shall be obligated to pay the difference on the Payment 
Date. 

5. ADDITIONAL PAYMENTS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

5.1. additional payments shall be made by the Synthetic Seller if, during the period from but 
not including the Trade Date to and including the Termination Date, any of the following 
circumstances shall occur(each being an "Additional Payment"): 

(i) If the issuer of a Security pays a dividend or makes another distribution in 
respect of such Security, the payment to be made by the Synthetic Seller shall 
be equal to the gross amount of the cash dividend or distribution per share 
(excluding for the avoidance of doubt any tax credits), as the case may be, 
multiplied by the Dividend Percentage, multiplied by the Contract Quantity, and 
in respect of a Security which is a Bond, an amount equal to the coupon 
amount payable to persons who would be holders of record of the Security 
multiplied by the Contract Quantity. 
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(ii) If the issuer of a Security shall, by way of preferential rights, offer, grant or issue 
to the holders of such Security generally such additional shares of the Security 
or any other securities, which by their terms of issue are convertible into or 
exchangeable for or carry rights to subscribe for or otherwise acquire such 
additional shares of the Security or any options, warrants or rights to subscribe 
for or otherwise acquire such additional shares of the Security or any such 
convertible or exchangeable securities, the payment to be made by the 
Synthetic Seller shall be equal to the aggregate value of the rights as 
determined by CSFB in its reasonable discretion on the Business Day on which 
the rights are first traded. 

(iii) If the issuer of a Security shall distribute to holders of such Security generally 
any of its assets (including cash or portfolio securities) out of its reserves (but 
excluding cash dividends payable out of distributable reserves), the payment to 
be made by the Synthetic Seller shall be equal to the value of the cash or 
securities obtained by way of distribution as determined by CSFB in its 
reasonable discretion on the Business Day on which the Security is marked ex 
the distribution. 

5.2 If CSFB reasonably determines that there has been, within the term of a Contract or the 
12 months following the date of a distribution, a change in any applicable law or 
regulation (or a change in the interpretation or application by any court, governmental or 
other authority of such law or regulation) which would have had the effect of reducing or 
increasing the amount of the ordinary cash dividend per Security actually due to the 
holder of the Security in the Counterparty's jurisdiction, CSFB may adjust the Dividend 
Percentage with immediate effect by notice in writing to the Counterparty. If any such 
change is to take effect prior to the date upon which CSFB gives such notice, CSFB 
may make such adjustments to the payment obligations of the parties in respect of any 
Contract to which it considers such change applicable. In the event that the Contract 
shall have been previously closed, the Counterparty shall indemnify CSFB in respect of 
any such change on a full indemnity basis. 

All Additional Payments made under this Section shall be payable on the date of the 
relevant distribution to holders of the relevant Security, or as otherwise reasonably 
determined by CSFB. 

6. POTENTIAL ADJUSTMENT EVENTS 

6.1. In case of a Potential Adjustment Event affecting a Security, CSFB shall determine (in its 
own discretion) the appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to the Security's 
Reference Price (or Opening Price as the case may be) and/or to its Contract Quantity. 
CSFB shall consider the diluting or concentrating effect of the Potential Adjustment 
Event, and attempt to preserve the economic equivalent of the rights and obligations of 
the parties as in effect immediately prior to the Potential Adjustment Event. CSFB shall 
also determine the date of adjustment. 

6.2. In determining whether an adjustment should be made as a result of a Potential 
Adjustment Event, CSFB. may have regard to, but shall not be bound by, any adjustment 
to the terms of the relevant options contracts made and announced by a Related 
Exchange. 
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8.3. If at any time prior to the Termination Date, the issuer of a Security shall have entered 
into insolvency or liquidation proceedings (whether following suspension or otherwise), 
then the Termination Date shall be deemed to be the date on which the liquidator or 
official receiver gives notice of the final distribution to the holders of shares in the 
insolvent issuer. If no such distribution is declared, the Termination Date shall be deemed 
to be the date of the final declaration of dividends to the unsecured creditors of the 
insolvent issuer. The Closing Price of the Security for the purposes of Section 9 shall be 
equal to the amount receivable through the distribution to each such holder of each share 
held by it or, if none, zero. 

9. CONTRACT CLOSING AND MATURITY 

9. 1 . On any Business Day when CSFB or the Counterparty wishes to close any Contract 
(whether in whole or in part), it shall give notice of that fact to the other party (by 
telephone or as otherwise agreed between the parties) specifying the Security and the 
proportion of such Contract it wishes to close. 

9.2. CSFB shall then calculate and notify the Counterparty of the Closing Price (by telephone 
or as otherwise agreed between the parties), which shall be binding upon the 
Counterparty. CSFB shall then settle the portion of the Contract to be closed in 
accordance with Section 9.3, and such date shall be deemed the Closing Date. In the 
event that a Contract is closed only in part, CSFB shall make any necessary adjustments 
to the Contract Quantity. 

9.3. On the Closing Date (be it the Termination Date or otherwise), CSFB shall calculate the 
Contract Price Difference as an amount equal to: (Q x (P3 - P0)), where: 

Q = the amount of the Contract Quantity to be closed; 

P0 = the Opening Price; and 

P3 = the Closing Price. 

If P3 is greater than P0, then the Synthetic Seller shall pay the Synthetic Buyer an 
amount equal to the Contract Price Difference. 

If P3 is less than P0, then the Synthetic Buyer shall pay such amount to the Synthetic 
Seller an amount equal to the absolute value of the Contract Price Difference. 

Additionally, if Security Balance is (i) positive then that amount shall be paid by the 
Synthetic Buyer to Synthetic Seller; (ii) negative then that amount shall be paid by 
Synthetic Seller to the Synthetic Buyer. 

9.4. In addition, if the Counterparty has elected to close the Contract, in whole or in part, 
before the Scheduled Closing Date, then CSFB (on the Closing Date) shall calculate the 
Breakage Amount, which shall be due from the Counterparty to CSFB. 

The Breakage Amount shall be an amount equal to (Q x Z x P3), where: 

Q = the amount of the Contract Quantity being closed; 

12 
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Z = the Swap Fee Amount; and 

P3 = the Closing Price. 

9.5. All payments due under 9.3 (Contract Price Difference), 9.4 (Breakage Amount) and the 
final Interest Payment under 3.4 shall be netted against each other, and the balance 
shall be due on the Termination Date. However, where agreed between the parties the 
balance, together with interest calculated at a rate agreed between the parties from time 
to time, may be paid on the following Security Payment Date according to the Appendix 
(as if such Contract had not terminated). 

9.6. If CSFB or the Counterparty gives notice to close only a portion of the .Contract Quantity, 
then the provisions of this Section shall apply only to that portion. The remainder of the 
Contract Quantity shall continue to be governed by these Standard Terms. 

10. CALCULATION AND SETTLEMENT OF PAYMENTS 

10. 1 . All payments made under a Contract shall be made in accordance with the account 
details specified in the relevant Confirmation. 

10.2. All payments shall be in the Contract Currency. 

11. ADJUSTMENT AND TERMINATION 

11 .1. Should CSFB wish to borrow, buy, sell or lend a Security and either is at any time unable 
to do so, or if CSFB's ability to do so becomes, in the reasonable opinion of CSFB, 
materially impaired or restricted at any time for whatever reason including, without 
limitation, for reasons of material increase in the cost of borrowing, then CSFB shall 
notify the Counterparty. On the Counterparty's request, CSFB shall provide reasonable 
evidence of such circumstances. However, CSFB's determination of impairment shall be 
conclusive. 

11.2. At any time following a notification under Section 11.1, CSFB may, at its election, close 
any Contract affected by the operation of Section 11 . 1 , in whole or in part CSFB shall 
immediately give the Counterparty notice of its action, including the Closing Price and, if 
relevant, the date of notice shall serve as the Closing Date. Sections 9.3 and 9.4 shall 
apply. Counterparty shall have the option to avoid the close of any Contract pursuant to 
this Section due to a material increase in the generally prevailing cost of borrowing by 
agreeing to adjust the Spread by an amount reflecting the increase in the cost of 
borrowing as reasonably determined by CSFB. 

11.3. Where a Contract references Convertibles such Contract shall terminate automatically 
upon the effective date of a conversion (however described in the terms of such 
Convertible) and such date shall be deemed to be the Termination Date in respect of 
such Contract. 

12. ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS AND AGREEMENTS 

12.1. Each party represents to the other party: 
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Appendix to Portfolio Swaps (Standard Terms) 
Dated February 4, 2005 which supplements the Master Agreement 

dated as of February 4, 2005 between 
Credit Suisse First Boston (Europe) Limited 

and 
Tiger Fund Asia, L.P. (uCounterparty") 

Spreads: 
Counterparly is Synthetic Buyer 
Counterparly is Synthetic Seller 

Dividend Percentages: 
Counterparly is Synthetic Buyer 
Counterparty is Synthetic Seller 

Applicable Interest Rate: 

Applicable Cycle Date: 

Applicable Interest Rate Cycle: 

Security Payment Date: 

Interest Payment Date: 

Business Day Convention: 

Day Count Fraction: 

Contract GBP USD AUD BRL 
Currency: 
Day Count 365 360 365 360 
Fraction: 

As determined in the relevant Confirmation. 
As determined in the relevant Confirmation. 

As determined in the relevant Confirmation. 
As determined in the relevant Confirmation. 

The London Interbank Offered Rate as set forth in the 
relevant Confirmation and as specified on Reuters 
pages LIBOR01 and LIBOR02, as applicable. 

[Daily] 

[1 week] 

Last Business Day in each calendar month 

each Security Payment Date 

In the event any relevant date falls on a day that is not 
a Business Day, such date shall be the first following 
day which is a Business Day unless that day falls in 
the next calendar month in which that date will be the 
first preceding day that is a Business Day. 

CAD CZK 

360 360 

Corresponding to the Contract Currency 
specified as such in the relevant 
Confirmation as listed below: 

DKK EUR GRD HKD ISK INR 

360 360 360 360 360 360 

JPY 

360 

Contract KPW KRW MYR MXN NZD PLN SGD ZAR SEK CHF 1WD THB 
Currency: 
Day Count 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 360 
Fraction: 
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Contract TRL USO 
Currencv: 
Day Count 360 360 
Fraction: 

Security Cycle Date: 

Exchange: London NASDAQ 
Stock 
Exchanoe 

Business 3 3 
Days: 

Exchange: Bombay Boursa 
Stock ltaliana 
Exchanae S.p.A 

Business 5 3 
Days: 

Exchange: KOSDAQ Kuala 
Lumpur 
Stock 
Exchanae 

Business 2 4-buy 
Days: 5-sell 

Exchange: Stock Stock 
Exchange of Exchange of 
Hano Kana Sinoaoore 

Business 2 3 
Days: 

Exchange: Tokyo Stock Wiemer 
Exchange BorseAG 

Business 3 3 
Days: 

Exchange: Xetra Borsa de 
Valores de 
Usboae 
Porto 

Business 2 3 
Davs: 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 

Unless specified otherwise in the Confirmation, 
number of Business Days before the Security 
Payment Date as specified in the table below for the 
Exchange as specified in the Confirmation: 

New York Athens Amsterdam Australian 
Stock Stock Stock Stock 
Exchanae Exchanae Exchanae Exchanoe 
3 3 3 3 

Copenhagen EASDAQ Euronext Icelandic 
Stock Exchange Belgium Stock 

Exchanoe 
3 3 3 1 

Balsa New Sao Paulo Johannesburg 
Mexicana de Zealand Stock Stock Exchange 
Valores Stock Exchange 

Exchanae 
3 3 3 As specified in 

the Confirmation 

Stock Stockholmborsen swx Taiwan 
Exchange of Stock 
Thailand Exchanoe 
3 3 3 1 

Warsaw Stock Euronext Prague 
Exchange ParisS.A. Stock 

Exchanoe 
3 3 5 
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Bolsade 
Madrid 

3 

Irish Stock 
Exchange 

3 
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CREDIT SUISSE FIRST BOSTON (EUROPE) LIMITED 

Name 
Title: 

Name 
Title: 

Name: ~'n\. In~ \r.l-t....x..n'\ 
Title: ~'i V'I°' yi,,.e~ 

Name: 
Title: 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 
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CREDIT SUISSE 
PORTFOLIO SWAPS (STANDARD TERMS) ANNEX 

Credit Suisse International ("CS") and Archegos Fund, LP (the "Counterparty") have entered 
into a 1992 ISDA Master Agreement dated as of December 15 2020, including the 
Schedule and any annexes thereto (as amended, amended and restated, supplemented or 
otherwise modified from time to time, the "Master Agreement"). This Portfolio Swaps 
(Standard Terms) Annex, including the Schedule attached hereto and made a part hereof (the 
"Standard Terms"), supplements and forms part of the Master Agreement and is intended to 
govern the parties' relationship when entering into an equity swap transaction through 
"Primeview" (or successor system) that the parties agree to be governed by the Standard Terms 
in relation to a single Share, a basket of Shares treated together (a "Custom Basket") a single 
Index or a basket oflndices treated together ( a "Custom Index Basket") ( each, an "Equity Swap 
Transaction"). Each Equity Swap Transaction shall be deemed a "Transaction" for the purposes 
of the Master Agreement. 

The definitions and provisions contained in the 2006 ISDA Definitions (the "Swap 
Definitions") and in the 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the "Equity Definitions," 
and together with the Swap Definitions, the "Definitions"), in each case as published by the 
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc., as amended and supplemented from 
time to time, are incorporated into these Standard Terms. In the event of any inconsistency 
between the Swap Definitions and the Equity Definitions, the Equity Definitions will govern. 
In the event of any inconsistency between either set of Definitions and the Standard Tenns, the 
Standard Terms shall prevail. The confirmation applicable to each Transaction, which shall 
constitute a "Confirmation" for the purposes of, and will supplement, form a part of, and be 
subject to, the Master Agreement, shall consist of the Standard Terms (including the Schedule 
hereto), as supplemented by the trade details applicable to such Transaction as set forth in the 
Confirmation for that Transaction. 

In order to enter into a Transaction, the Counterparty must notify (by telephone or as otherwise 
agreed between the parties) CS of its request for an offer, specifying the name of the relevant 
Shares, Custom Basket, Index or Custom Index Basket, and the proposed Number of Shares or 
the proposed Number of Units, as applicable, and whether the Counterparty wishes to act as 
Equity Amount Receiver/Synthetic Buyer or Equity Amount Payer/Synthetic Seller. If CS 
agrees to provide such offer, it must then notify (by telephone or as otherwise agreed between 
the parties) the Counterparty of the proposed Initial Price or formula for determining the Initial 
Price. Should the Counterparty wish to accept this offer, it must immediately notify CS (by 
telephone or as otherwise agreed between the parties) of its acceptance. This acceptance gives 
rise to a binding Transaction between the parties. An offer by CS that is not immediately 
accepted shall be deemed to lapse unless CS specifically states that it shall remain open. 

A Confamation will be prepared and either (i) posted by CS on its client access website or (ii) 
delivered by CS to the Counterparty by other electronic means, in each case, within one 
Business Day of the Transaction being entered into between the parties. The Counterparty shall 
be deemed to have accepted the terms of the Confirmation if it does not dispute its terms within 
one Business Day of such posting or delivery, as the case may be. Failure to dispute the terms 
within one Business Day shall constitute the Counterparty's full acceptance of the Transaction 
upon the terms, absent manifest en-or, and subject to the conditions, as set out in the 
Confirmation and within these Standard Terms. In the event of any inconsistency between the 
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Exchange Business Day: 

Settlement Currency: 

Calculation Agent: 

Depository Receipt Election: 

2. Equity Amounts 

Equity Amount Receiver: 

Equity Amount Payer: 

Equity Amount Payment Date: 

89383415 8 
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Any Scheduled Trading Day on which each 
Exchange and Related Exchange, if any, 
are open for trading during their respective 
regular trading sessions, notwithstanding 
such Exchange or Related Exchange, if 
any, closing prior to its Scheduled Closing 
Time; provided that (i) for non-Exchange 
traded Shares, each day on which price 
quotations are available to (or provided by) 
CS in respect of such Shares, (ii) for an 
Index Swap Transaction or an [ndex Basket 
Transaction, it shall also mean each day the 
Index Sponsor(s) publishes the level of the 
Index or Indices and (iii) for a Share Basket 
Swap Transaction or Index Basket Swap 
Transaction, Exchange Business Day shall 
be determined on a per Share or per Index, 
as applicable, basis. 

As specified in the Confirmation. 

Notwithstanding any provision of the 
Master Agreement, CS shall be the sole 
Calculation Agent. 

Applicable with respect to any of the Shares 
that are deposit01y shares or receipts, 
unless otherwise specified m the 
Confirmation. 

In the event that Depository Receipt 
Election is Applicable, the 2002 
Definitions shall be supplemented by the 
2007 Partial Lookthrough Depository 
Receipt Supplement to the Equity 
Definitions or the 2007 Full Lookthrough 
Depository Receipt Supplement to the 
Equity Definitions, as specified in the 
Confirmation. 

The party specified as the Synthetic Buyer 
in the Confirmation. 

The party specified as the Synthetic Seller 
in the Confirmation. 

Unless otherwise specified in the 
Confirmation, in respect of each Valuation 

Archegos-CFTC-SEC 002780 
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3. Floating Amounts: 

Floating Amount Payer: 

Floating Amount Receiver: 

Calculation Amount: 

Floating Amount Payment Dates: 

Business Day Convention: 

Floating Rate Option: 

Business Day: 

Designated Maturity: 

Spread: 

Floating Rate Day Count Fraction: 

Reset Dates (Interest): 

Compounding: 

Compounding Dates: 

89383415 8 
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11 

prov1s10ns of Section 6.1 of the Equity 
Definitions. 

In respect of an Index Swap Transaction or 
an Index Basket Swap Transaction, Not 
Applicable. 

The Equity Amount Receiver. 

The Equity Amount Payer. 

Equity Notional Amount. 

Each date specified in the Schedule and the 
Final Settlement Date; subject to 
adjustment in accordance with the Business 
Day Convention. 

As specified in the Confirmation. 

As specified in the Confirmation. 

As appropriate, based on the jurisdiction 
related to the specified Floating Rate 
Option and the jurisdiction related to the 
Settlement Currency. 

As specified in the Schedule or as otherwise 
specified in the Confirmation. 

The percentage specified in the 
Confirmation as such rate may be adjusted 
in accordance with the Equity Definitions 
or the terms hereof following the 
occurrence of a Potential Adjustment Event 
or Extraordinary Event (including, for the 
avoidance of doubt, any Increased Cost of 
Hedging). 

As specified in Section 6.2(g) of the 2006 
Definitions in respect of the relevant 
Floating Rate Option, unless otherwise 
specified in the Confirmation. 

As specified in the Schedule. 

Not Applicable, unless otherwise specified 
in the Confirmation. 

If Applicable, each day in the Calculation 
Period. 
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4. Swap Fees: 

(a) On the first Equity Amount Payment Date only, the Counterparty shall pay an amount equal 
to the Initial Swap Fee to CS. The Initial Swap Fee is calculated as Q x Pox Z, where: 

Q= 

Po= 

Z= 

Initial Swap Fee Percentage= 

In respect of a Share Swap Transaction, the 
Number of Shares; in respect of a Share Basket 
Swap Transaction, an Index Swap Transaction 
or an Index Basket Swap Transaction, the 
Number of Units; 

the Initial Price; 

Initial Swap Fee Percentage; and 

a percentage, represented in basis points, as 
agreed between the parties and as specified in 
the Confirmation. 

(b) On the Termination Date, the Counterparty shall pay an amount equal to the Final Swap 
Fee, to CS. The Final Swap Fee is calculated as (Q x P3 x Z), where: 

Q= 

Z= 

Final Swap Fee Percentage= 

In respect of a Share Swap Transaction, the 
Number of Shares; in respect of a Share Basket 
Swap Transaction, an Index Swap Transaction 
or an Index Basket Swap Transaction, the 
Number of Units, or, if such Transaction is 
terminated in part, then the Number of Shares or 
Number of Units, as applicable, being 
terminated; 

the Final Price; 

Final Swap Fee Percentage; and 

a percentage, represented in basis points, as 
agreed between the parties and as specified in 
the Confirmation. 

(c) If the Transaction is terminated, in whole or in part, before the scheduled Termination Date 
by the Counterparty, and the Breakage Option is Applicable, then CS (on the Termination Date) 
shall calculate the Breakage Amount, which shall be due from the Counterparty to CS. The 
Breakage Amount is an amount equal to the Floating Amount for the Calculation Period 
beginning on and including the last Reset Date to and excluding the next scheduled Reset Date; 
provided that the Calculation Amount for such calculation is the Equity Notional Amount in 
respect of the Number of Shares for a Share Swap Transaction or the Number of Units for a 
Share Basket Swap Transaction, an Index Swap Transaction or an Index Swap Transaction 
being closed. 

12 
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11. Optional Termination and Maturity 

(i) Unless otherwise specified in the Confinnation for a particular Transaction, on 
any Exchange Business Day when CS or the Counterparty wishes to terminate 
any Transaction (whether in whole or in part), it shall give one (l) Exchange 
Business Day's notice of that fact to the other party (by telephone or as 
otherwise agreed between the parties) specifying the proportion of such 
Transaction it wishes to terminate; subject to Section 10 hereto. 

(ii) In respect of a Share Swap Transaction or a Share Basket Swap Transaction, 
if the Shares or any Shares included in the Custom Basket are registered 
pursuant to Section 12 of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended ( the "Exchange Act") or convertible into securities registered 
pursuant to the Exchange Act and, if at any time the aggregate number of such 
Shares beneficially owned by CS and its affiliates (the "Transaction Equity") 
exceeds or could exceed 8% of the number of outstanding, voting Shares of an 
Issuer at such time (such event, the "Partial Termination Event"), CS may 
notify the Counterparty of its desire to effect an early settlement with respect 
to a portion of the Transactions on such Shares or Custom Basket including 
such Shares, as determined by CS subject to the conditions set forth below, so 
that, after completion of the unwind related to the Partial Termination Event, 
the Transaction Equity would not exceed 8% of the number of outstanding 
Shares of such Issuer. 

(iii) Upon sending or receiving notice on any date as discussed in (i) or (ii) above, 
CS shall then calculate the Final Price on such date to the extent practicable 
and commercially reasonable, or the next Exchange Business Day, as 
determined by CS (the "Optional Termination Date") and notify the 
Counterparty of the Final Price (by telephone or as otherwise agreed between 
the parties), which shall be binding upon the Counterparty. CS shall then settle 
the portion of the Transaction to be tenninated in accordance with these 
Standard Terms on the Final Settlement Date with respect to such portion. 

(iv) All payments due on the Final Settlement Date shall be netted against each 
other, and the balance shall be due on the Final Settlement Date, unless 
otherwise agreed between the parties. 

(v) If CS or the Counterparty gives notice to terminate only a p01tion of the 
Number of Shares in respect of a Share Swap Transaction or the Number of 
Units in respect of an Index Swap Transaction or an Index Basket Swap 
Transaction, then the provisions of this Section shall apply only to that portion 
of the relevant Transaction. In the event that a Transaction is terminated only 
in part, CS shall make any necessary adjustments to the Number of Shares in 
respect of a Share Swap Transaction or the Number of Units in respect of a 
Share Basket Swap Transaction, an Index Swap Transaction or an Index 
Basket Swap Transaction. The remainder of the Transaction shall continue to 
be governed by these Standard Terms. 

20 
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CREDIT SUISSE INTERNATIONAL 

~-~ 
Nam~~fi'· J Reis 

Title: Authorized signatory 
December 16, 2020 

~:,;;w.k 
N a=~~~2'~""43.,.,_R_r_y_n~1-u_k ____ _ 

Title: Authorized signatory 
December 16, 2020 
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ARCIIEGOS Futm, LP 
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T1tle: Managing Member oftly;:Cfeneral Partner· ·<< . 

. ,.,.,., . ..,., . .,,, ...... . 

CS t l Archegos Fund, LP 
Portfolio Swaps Armex 
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Tiger Asia Fund L.P. 

Deutsche Bank I/I 
Deutsche Bank AG London 
Winchester house 
1 Great Winchester St, London EC2N 2D8 
Telephone: 44 20 7545 8000 

c/o Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. 
60 Wall Street 
New York, NY 10005 
Telephone: 212 250 5977 

MASTER CONFIRMATION FOR 
EQUITY SWAP TRANSACTIONS 

This MASTER CONFIRMATION FOR EQUITY SWAP TRANSACTIONS (this "Master Confirmation") 
effective as of November 20, 2003, is intended to supplement the terms and provisions of transactions (each, a 
"Transaction") entered into from time to time between Deutsche Bank AG London ('~Deutsche") and Tiger Asia 
Fund L.P. (the "Fund" or "Counterparty") and Tiger Asset Management, LLC, a corporation organised under the 
laws of Delaware, acting as Investment Advisor on behalf of the Fund (the "Agent") as evidenced by a side letter in 
the form attached hereto as Annex B (the "Side Letter"). This Master Confirmation, taken alone, is neither a 
commitment by either party to enter into any Transaction nor evidence of a Transaction. 

Transactions are also referred to as "Portfolio Swap Transactions", the terms of which shall be reflected for each 
Transaction on a Supplemental Confirmation for Portfolio Swap Transactions, as illustrated in Exhibit A-2 or such 
other forms as Deutsche may prescribe; a group of Portfolio Swap Transactions sharing common terms is referred to 
as a "Portfolio", and the common terms for a Portfolio are referred to as "General Portfolio Terms", which terms 
shall be reflected on a Supplemental Confirmation for particular Portfolios, as illustrated in Exhibit A-1 or such 
other forms as Deutsche may prescribe. Each Portfolio Swap Transaction will relate to a single Share or Index and 
not to a Basket. "Supplemental Confirmation" shall refer to the Supplemental Confirmations for the General 
Portfolio Terms and the Portfolio Swap Transactions in a particular Portfolio. A Supplemental Confirmation 
confirming General Portfolio Terms, taken alone, is neither a commitment by either party to enter into any Portfolio 
Swap Transaction nor evidence of a Portfolio Swap Transaction. 

This Master Confirmation together with both of the Supplemental Confirmations for a particular Portfolio Swap 
Transaction shall constitute a "Confirmation" as referred to in, and supplement and form a part of and be subject to, 
the ISDA Master Agreement, including the Credit Support Annex, if any, dated as of , as amended and 
supplemented from time to time (the "Agreement"), between Deutsche Bank AG and Counterparty. All provisions 
contained in the Agreement govern this Master Confirmation and each Supplemental Confirmation except as 
expressly modified below. 

DEUTSCHE BANK AG IS NOT REGISTERED AS A BROKER OR DEALER UNDER THE U.S. 
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934. DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC. ("DBSI") HAS ACTED 
SOLELY AS AGENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED BY THIS MASTER 
CONFIRMATION AND HAS NO OBLIGATION, BY WAY OF ISSUANCE, ENDORSEMENT, 
GUARANTEE OR OTHERWISE WITH RESPECT TO THE PERFORt"\1:ANCE OF EITHER PARTY 

Chairman of the Supervisory Board; Ro!f,E Breuer 
Board of Managing Directors: Clemens Borsig, Hermann-Josef Lamberti, 
Josef Ackermann, Tessen von Heydebreck 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 

Deutsche Bank AG is regulated by the FSA for the conduct of 
designated investment business in the UK, is a member of the 
London Stock Exchange and is a limited liabi!lty company 
incorporated in the Federal Republic of Germany HRB No. 30 ooo 
District Court of Frankfurt am Main; Branch Registration No. in 
England and Wales BR000005, Registered address: Winchester 
House, 1 Great Winchester Street, London EC2N 2DB. 
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UNDER SUCH TRANSACTIONS. DEUTSCHE BANK AG, LONDON IS NOT A MEMBER OF THE 
SECURITIES INVESTOR PROTECTION CORPORATION (SIPC). 

The definitions and provisions contained in the 2000 ISDA Definitions (the "Swap Definitions"), and in the 2002 
ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the "Equity Definitions" and, together with the Swap Definitions, the 
"Definitions"), in each case as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. are 
incorporated into this Master Confirmation. In the event of any inconsistency between the Swap Definitions and the 
Equity Definitions, the Equity Definitions will govern. In the event of any inconsistency between either set of 
Definitions and this Master Confinnation, this Master Confirmation will govern. In the event of any inconsistency 
between this Master Confirmation and any Supplemental Confirmation, the Supplemental Confirmation will govern 
for purposes of the relevant Transaction. In the event of any inconsistency between a Supplemental Confirmation 
confinning General Portfolio Terms and any Supplemental Confirmation confirming Portfolio Swap Transaction 
terms thereunder, the Supplemental Confirmation confirming Portfolio Swap Transaction terms will govern for 
purposes of the relevant Transaction. References herein to a "Transaction" shall be deemed to be references to a 
"Swap Transaction" for purposes of the Swap Definitions. 

"Loss" payment measure and "Second Method" payment method shall apply to all Transactions governed by this 
Master Confirmation. 

Set forth below are the terms and conditions which, together with the terms and conditions set forth in each 
Supplemental Confirmation in respect of each relevant Transaction, shall govern all Transactions which are Equity 
Swap Transactions (for which the term "other security", as used in Article 1 of the Equity Definitions, shall be 
deemed to include bonds and other debt securities ("Bonds"), options and over-the-counter derivative transactions). 

1. Transaction Initiation: 

Counterparty may from time to time request (verbally, electronically or otherwise) Deutsche to enter into a Portfolio 
Swap Transaction, specifying such information as Deutsche may from time to time require. Deutsche shall 
promptly notify Counterparty whether Deutsche, in its sole discretion, accepts such request, in part or in whole. The 
parties specifically agree that time shall be of the essence in resolving any disputed material Transaction terms. If 
Counterparty has not, within 1 Local Business Day following Deutsche's Effective Delivery (as defined below) of a 
Supplemental Confirmation to Counterparty, in good faith objected in writing to Deutsche with respect to any 
material term in ( or purp01iedly omitted from) the relevant Supplemental Confmnation, Counterparty shall be 
deemed to have agreed that the terms set forth in such Supplemental Confirmation accurately evidence the terms 
agreed by the parties. 

"Effective Delivery" means where the Supplemental Confirmation is (i) delivered in person by courier, the date it is 
delivered, (ii) sent by facsimile transmission, the date the transmission is sent by Deutsche to the designated 
Counterparty-specified Contact Name (or other Counterparty responsible party) via the facsimile number provided 
by Counterparty, as evidenced by a transmission report generated by sender's facsimile machine, or (iii) sent via the 
Deutsche Bank Global Equities Web-site, the date such information is posted by Deutsche to Counterparty's 
designated area of such Web-site. 

2. General Transaction Terms: 

a. General Terms: 

Business Days for Reset Dates 
and Payment Dates: 

Calculation Agent: 

PC Docs 107595 
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Shall mean a day on which commercial banks and foreign 
exchange markets settle payments in the jurisdictions selected 
by the Calculation Agent in good faith. 

Deutsche 
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Shares: 

Termination Date: 

Trade Action Indicator: 

Unlisted Shares: 

b. Equity Amount Terms: 

(i) Price Terms: 

Final Price: 

PC Docs 107595 
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is appropriate, the Calculation Agent shall perform such 
conversion in good faith using commercially reasonable 
procedures. 

The term "Shares" shall also be deemed to include "Bonds" if 
bonds are listed in the relevant Supplemental Confirmation, or 
"Options" if options are listed in the relevant Supplemental 
Confirmation or "OTC Transactions" if over-the-counter 
derivative transactions are listed in the relevant Supplemental 
Confirmation (in which case the transaction terms for a 
particular OTC Transaction shall be attached to the 
Supplemental Confirmation). 

The final (or only) Cash Settlement Payment Date, which is 
expected to be the date specified in the relevant Supplemental 
Confirmation. 

As specified in the Supplemental Confirmation, where "New" 
means the Supplemental Confirmation evidences a new 
Transaction and "Cancelled" means the Supplemental 
Confirmation evidences the cancellation of a previously 
documented Transaction. 

In the case of a Share Swap Transaction, each Share in respect 
of which "Not Applicable" is specified opposite the caption 
"Exchange" in the relevant Supplemental Confirmation. 

The Equity Definitions will apply, except: 

(a) With respect to any primary U.S. Exchange (other than the 
NASDAQ Stock Market), or any successor exchange thereto, 
the closing price as quoted by such Exchange as of the 
Valuation Time on the relevant Valuation Date; or 

(b) with respect to the NASDAQ Stock Market, or any 
successor quotation system thereto, the official NASDAQ 
closing price per Share as of the Valuation Time on the 
relevant Valuation Date as reported in the official price 
determination mechanism for the Exchange; or 

( c) with respect to any Transaction where the Exchange is 
specified as "Not Applicable", the price per Share, including 
accmed interest, if any (in the case of Bonds) as determined 
by the Calculation Agent, based on the best available firm 
commitment "bid price", in the case where Deutsche is the 
Equity Amount Payer, and "offer price", in the case where 
Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer, respecting the full 
Number of Shares, as provided by the Reference Dealers; 

4 
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(ii) Ordinary Dividend Terms: 

Dividend Amount: 

Dividend Period: 

Dividend Amount: 

PC Docs 107595 
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Valuation Time shall mean the Scheduled Closing Time on 
such Exchange; 

(b) NASDAQ Stock Market, or any successor quotation 
system thereto, then the Valuation Time shall mean 4:00 p.m. 
(local time) in New York; 

(c) Not Applicable, then the Valuation Time shall mean 
4:00 p.m. (local time) in the jurisdiction selected by the 
Calculation Agent in good faith, unless the Shares underlying 
the Transaction are an OTC Transaction, in which case 
Valuation Time shall mean the time specified in the 
transaction terms for such OTC Transaction; 

( d) any other Exchange, then as specified in the 
Supplemental Confirmation. 

Subject to the "Dividend Disruption Event" provisions below, 
the Equity Amount Payer shall pay the relevant Dividend 
Amount on each Dividend Payment Date pursuant to the 
following provisions. The following provisions shall not 
apply to Futures Price Valuation Transactions, Extraordinary 
Dividends or OTC Transactions. As used in the Definitions, 
"gross cash dividends" shall include, without limitation, in the 
case of Bonds, all interest payable by the Issuer of the Bond. 
"Dividend Receipt Date" means the date of receipt of a 
dividend by holders of record. "Record Date" means each 
relevant date of determination of holder of record status. 

In the case of a Share Swap Transaction where the Record 
Date for the Shares is after the ex-dividend date (i.e. in a 
jurisdiction where stock ownership is determined as of 
settlement date) for such Shares, the following provisions 
shan apply: 

The Dividend Percentage (as specified in the Supplemental 
Confirmation) multiplied by the Record Amount multiplied by 
Number of Shares. 

The period connnencing on and including the Clearance 
System Business Day that is one Settlement Cycle following 
the Trade Date and ending on but excluding the final Cash 
Settlement Payment Date. 

In the case of a Share Swap Transaction where the Record 
Date for the Shares is prior to the ex-dividend date (i.e. in a 
jurisdiction where stock ownership is determined as of 
trade date rather than settlement date) for such Shares, the 
foHowing provisions shall apply: 

The Dividend Percentage ( as specified in the Supplemental 
Confirmation) multiplied by the Record Amount multiplied by 
Number of Shares. 
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Share Dividend Elections: 

c. Floating Amount Terms: 

Floating Rate for the initial Calculation 
Period: 

In the event that an actual dividend is payable in either cash or 
property or a combination thereof at the election of a person 
who would be a holder of record of such Shares and Deutsche 
is the Equity Amount Payer, the Dividend Amount shall be 
determined as if no election were made pursuant to the 
election default provision as set forth in the documents relating 
to the payment of dividends on the Shares. If Counterparty is 
the Equity Amount Payer, the Dividend Amount shall be 
determined by the Calculation Agent with respect to the 
Shares. The Calculation Agent shall notify the Counterparty 
of such determination at least 3 Scheduled Trading Days prior 
to the last date the election may be made. 

As specified in the General Portfolio Tenns, where (i) 
"Historic Rate" means the Floating Rate as of the most recent 
Reset Date, (ii) "New Rate" means the Floating Rate (without 
Linear Interpolation) as of the Effective Date, and (iii) "Daily 
Rate" means the Overnight Rate (as specified in the General 
Portfolio Tenns) reset each day during the initial Calculation 
Period (non-compounded). 

d. Settlement Terms for Share Swap Transactions: 

Cash Settlement: Applicable 

e. Optional Early Termination of Portfolio Swap Transactions: 

Optional Early Termination of 
Portfolio Swap Transactions: 

PC Docs 107595 
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Notwithstanding any other termination provision contained in 
this Master Confirmation or the Agreement and so long as no 
Termination Event or Event of Default (as such terms are 
defined in the Agreement) shall have occurred and then be 
continuing with respect to the party making the election 
hereunder, either party may upon three (3) Scheduled Trading 
Days' prior notice to the other party terminate a Transaction in 
a Portfolio prior to the relevant Termination Date by 
designating an earlier Scheduled Trading Day as the 
"Optional Early Termination Valuation Date", subject to 
the following: (1) the relevant Optional Early Termination 
Valuation Date shall be deemed to be the fmal Valuation Date 
(subject to Dismpted Day provisions, if applicable), (2) the 
Optional Early Termination Payment Date (as defined below) 
shall be deemed to be the final Cash Settlement Payment Date 
and Floating Amount or Fixed Amount Payment Date, as 
applicable, (3) the Final Price for the relevant Share or Index 
shall be based on an objective measure ( either the current 
market price for the applicable number of shares or the closing 
price) as agreed by the parties ( except (i) if the parties are 
unable to agree or (ii) the shares underlying the Transaction 
are Unlisted Shares, an objective measure determined by the 
Calculation Agent), with the Final Price determined by the 

8 

Archegos-CFTC-SEC 002876 

116351
Highlight



Case 1:22-cv-03401-JPO   Document 44-21   Filed 11/01/22   Page 12 of 22

Consequences of Merger Events: 

(a) Share-for-Share: 

(b) Share-for-Other: 

(c) Share-for-Combined: 

Determining Party: 

Tender Offer: 

Consequences of Tender Offers: 

(a) Share-for-Share: 

(b) Share-for-Other: 

(c) Share-for-Combined: 

Determining Party: 

Composition of Combined Consideration: 

Bonds and OTC Transactions: 

Nationalisation, Insolvency 
or Delisting: 

Determining Party: 

PC Docs 107595 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment] 

Deutsche 

Applicable 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment. 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment. 

Modified Calculation Agent Adjustment 

Deutsche 

Inapplicable (for both Merger Events and Tender Offers) 

Where the shares underlying a Share Swap Transaction are 
either Bonds or an OTC Transaction, the Calculation Agent 
shall have the right to terminate or make necessary 
adjustments to the Share Swap Transaction upon the 
occurrence of a Dividend Amount being paid on the Bonds or 
Shares underlying the OTC Transaction or any event affecting 
the Bonds or shares underlying the OTC Transaction which is 
analogous to a Potential Adjustment Event, Merger Event, 
Tender Offer, Nationalization, Insolvency, Delisting, 
Additional Disruption Event ( each as defined in the transaction 
terms for such OTC Transaction, or if none are provided, as 
defined herein) or other similar event. 

Cancellation and Payment. In the case of a Futures Price 
Valuation Transaction, Delisting shall not apply except if 
Section 6.8( e) of the Equity Definitions applies and a 
Delisting occurs with respect to the Exchange for purposes of 
such provision. 

Deutsche 

Section 12.2(e) and 12.3(d) of the Equity Definitions are 
amended by replacing "options exchange" with "options or 
futures exchange" and "options" with "options or futures" 
each time such terms appear therein. 
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Agreements and Acknowledgments 
Regarding Hedging Activities: 

Additional Acknowledgments: 

Applicable 

Applicable 

b. Mutual Representations and Agreements. Each of Deutsche and Counterparty represents and warrants 
to and agrees with the other party (which representations, warranties and agreements shall be deemed to be repeated 
by each party on each date on which the parties enter into a Transaction) that: 

(i) the purpose of each Transaction is to gain exposure synthetically to fluctuations in the price of Shares or 
Indexes and by so doing to attain a profit or avoid a loss; 

(ii) neither party acquires any interest (beneficial or otherwise) in or right to acquire any Share or Index by 
virtue of any Transaction; 

(iii) neither party is obliged to sell, purchase, hold, deliver or receive any Share or Index, nor does either party 
acquire a security interest in any Share, by virtue of any Transaction; 

(iv) neither party acquires any voting rights, or other consent or similar rights, with respect to any Share or 
Index by virtue of any Transaction; 

(v) the primary right and obligation of each party under any Transaction is to make or receive the respective 
payments referred to in the relevant Supplemental Confirmation; and 

(vi) notwithstanding anything provided herein or in the Agreement, and notwithstanding any express or implied 
claims of exclusivity or proprietary rights, the parties (and each of their employees, representatives or other 
agents) are authorized to disclose to any and all persons, beginning immediately upon commencement of 
their discussions and without limitation of any kind, the tax treatment and tax structure of any Transaction, 
and all materials of any kind (including opinions or other tax analyses) that are provided by either party to 
the other relating to such tax treatment and tax structure. 

(vii) Commodity Exchange Act It is an "eligible contract participant" within the meaning of Section la(12) of 
the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (the "CEA"), each Transaction has been subject to 
individual negotiation by the parties, and no Transaction has been executed or traded on a "trading facility" 
as defined in Section la(33) of the CEA. It has entered into such Transaction with the expectation and 
intent that such Transaction shall be performed to its termination date. Each Transaction hereunder that is 
designated a Swap Transaction or Equity Swap Transaction constitutes a "swap agreement" as defined in 
Section 206A of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, as amended (the "GLB Act"). 

(viii) Securities Act. It is a "qualified institutional buyer" as defined in Rule 144A under the U.S. Securities Act 
of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or an "accredited investor" as defined under the Securities Act. 

(ix) Investment Company Act. It is a "qualified purchaser" as defined under the Investment Company Act of 
1940. 

(x) ERISA. It is not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended 
("ERISA") and the assets used in each Transaction (1) are not assets of any "plan" (as such term is defined 
in Section 4975 of the Internal Revenue Code (the "Code")) subject to Section 4975 of the Code or any 
"employee benefit plan" (as such term is defined in Section 3(3) of BRISA) subject to Title I of BRISA, 
and (2) do not constitute "plan assets" within the meaning of Department of Labor Regulation 2510.3-101, 
29 CFR Sec. 2510-3-101. 
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Deutsche is regulated by the Financial Services Authority. 

Agreed and accepted by the parties as of the date of this Master Confirmation. 

Regards, 

DEUTS°CHE BANK AG LONDON , 

~,j,,•~,_._,,,~· '~

By:-----------

~~~ !fj$Jid! 
Title: 

DEUTSCHE BANK SECURITIES INC. 
acting solely as Agent in connection with this :::e::°'i;;c: gov=M hfileby 

::~w~~ 
Name: 
Title: 

Confinned and Acknowledged as of the date first above written: 
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saths 

For the avoidance of doubt, this Master Confirmation Agreement does not govern any transaction that where the 
Exchange or Related Exchange is located outside of the United States of America or Canada 

GOLDMAN SACHS MASTER CONFIRMATION AGREEMENT 
FOR SYNTHETIC EQUITY PRODUCTS 

This agreement ("Master Confirmation Agreement" or "MCA") is dated as of 25 November, 2020 between each 
Goldman Entity and Archegos Fund, LP ("Counterparty"). This Master Confirmation Agreement supplements, forms a 
part of, and is subject to the relevant ISDA Master Agreement between Counterparty and Goldman Entity, dated as of 
December 6, 2013, as may be supplemented, amended, or amended and restated from time to time (the "Master 
Agreement"). 

For the purposes of this MCA, "Goldman Entity" means Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC ("GS&Co."), Goldman Sachs 
International ("GSI") and/or Goldman Sachs Bank USA ("GS Bank"); provided that this MCA shall be effective with 
respect to a particular Goldman Entity and Counterparty only to the extent both of the following conditions have been 
satisfied: (i) such Goldman Entity and Counterparty have executed this MCA and at least one PCA (as defined below); 
and (ii) such Goldman Entity and Counterparty have executed a Master Agreement (as defined below), and such Master 
Agreement remains in effect. Upon satisfaction of both conditions (whether or not contemporaneously), this MCA shall 
automatically be effective with respect to such Goldman Entity and Counterparty. 

It is understood and agreed that no Goldman Entity shall have any liability for the obligations of any other 
Goldman Entity. With respect to each Goldman Entity, (i) only Transactions between such Goldman Entity and 
Counterparty shall be part of the Master Agreement (as defined below) with such Goldman Entity and 
Counterparty and (ii) any references in this MCA to the "Agreement" or "Master Agreement" shall be deemed to 
refer to the Master Agreement between such Goldman Entity and Counterparty. References herein to "GS" shall 
be deemed to refer to the applicable Goldman Entity. 

The parties wish to facilitate the process of entering into and confinning the transactions and accordingly agree as 
follows: 

1. ISDA Definitions. This MCA, the GT (as defined below), each PCA and each TS hereby incorporate by 
reference the definitions and provisions of the 2006 ISDA Definitions (the "2006 Definitions") and the definitions and 
provisions of the 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the "Equity Definitions", and together with the 2006 
Definitions, the "Definitions"), in each case as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. 
("ISDA''). Any capitalized term not otherwise defined herein, in the MCA, the GT, each PCA and each TS shall have the 
meaning assigned to such term in the Definitions. 

2. Coverage. Unless the parties agree otherwise at the time of trading, if as of the Trade Date a Transaction is a 
Share Swap Transaction, Share Basket Swap Transaction, Index Swap Transaction or an Index Basket Swap Transaction 
with an Exchange in a Specified Country (a "Covered Transaction"), then that Covered Transaction is subject to the 
terms of this Master Confirmation Agreement. 

"Specified Country" means Canada or the United States of America. 

3. Confirmation Process. The parties intend to enter into separate transactions (each a "Transaction") set out in a 
TS substantially in the fonn specified in Exhibit I to the PCA (each, a "Transaction Supplement" or a "TS"). The 
confirmation applicable to each Transaction, which shall constitute a "Confirmation" for the purposes of, and will 
supplement, form a part of, and be subject to the Master Agreement , shall consist of this MCA and PCA applicable to 
such Transaction executed by the parties hereto referencing this MCA (the "Product Customization Agreement" or 
"PCA" for such Transaction), in each case as supplemented by the trade details applicable to such Transaction as set 
forth in the TS for that Transaction. 

For any Transaction, in the event of inconsistency between the MCA, (including the GT) and the PCA for such 
Transaction, the PCA shall govern for purposes of such Transaction. For any Transaction, in the event of inconsistency 
between the MCA (including the GT and the PCA) and the Equity Definitions, the MCA shall govern for purposes of 
such Transaction, and in the event of inconsistency between the MCA (including the GT and the PCA) or the Equity 
Definitions, on the one hand, and the TS, on the other hand, the TS shall govern for the purpose of the relevant 
Transaction. The TS shall set forth, at a minimum, all of the information set out in the form of the TS in Exhibit I to the 
PCA. 

4. Non-Exclusive. The parties acknowledge and agree that the execution of this MCA and any PCA does not 
require them to document Transactions in accordance with this MCA or PCA, as the case may be. 
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5. Preparation of TSs. Unless otherwise agreed between the parties, the preparation of a TS shall be the 
responsibility of GS. Failure by GS to send a TS with respect to a Transaction shall not affect the validity of such 
Transaction. In respect of all Transactions entered into the TS will (in the absence of manifest or proven error) be 
conclusive as to the terms of each Transaction referred to therein, notwithstanding that the TS may not be signed by 
either party. 

6. Incorporation of General Terms. The General Tenns set forth on Annex I hereto (the "General Terms" or 
''GT") are hereby incorporated herein by this reference and made a part of this MCA to the same extent as if the GT were 
set forth in full herein. 

7. Acknowledgement and Agreement Regarding Synthetic Exposure. Each party acknowledges and agrees thal 
each Transaction is a derivative transaction providing synthetic exposure to an underlying asset. Neither party intends 
thal any Transaction will be setlled by taking delivery of any shares or other securities, or that a Transaction will confer 
on either parly any right, title, voting righls or interest in any shares or other securities, or entitle or oblige either party to 
acquire, receive, hold, deliver or dispose of any particular shares or other securities. 

8. Undertaking Regarding Disclosure. Counterparty undertakes to GS that it will make or provide any disclosure 
reasonably required by GS or ils Affiliates in connection with its entTy into each Transaction pursuant to the applicable 
securities laws or applicable regulations in the jurisdiction of the relevant Share or the rules of lhe relevant Exchange, 
notwithstanding any duty of con fidenliality owed by GS. Counterparty acknowledges and agrees that GS may make such 
disclosure to any legal or regulatory body or authority as GS or ils Affiliates shall reasonably consider necessary or 
appropriate regarding the Transaction . 

9. Notice Regarding Tax Treatment of Short Bullet Transactions. The tax treatment of a bullet contracts for 
differences Transaction or bullet swap Transaction where Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer (a "Short Bullet 
Transaction") is uncertain. GS does not provide tax advice and has made no representations, express or implied, as to 
the possible tax consequences of investing in a Short Bullet Transaction. Counterparty should consult its ovvn tax advisor 
regarding the tax consequences to it of entering into this position, including, if relevant, Counterparty' s holding period. 
For lhe avoidance of doubt, this notice is not applicable to Transactions other than Short Bullet Transactions. 

10. No Material Non-Public Information. In addition to the representations, warranties and covenants in the Master 
Agreement, Counterparty represents, warrants and covenants to GS (and any Affiliate of GS) that on each date that a 
Transaction is entered into and on each date that Counterparty elects to close a Transaction, it is not entering into or 
closing, as applicable, such Transaction "on the basis of' (as such term is defined in Rule 10b5-l under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act") or other applicable securities law) in respect of any U.S. Component 
Underlier any material, non-public information concerning the relevant Issuer or the Shares, or in respect of an Index 
Transaction where the Index is not a Broad-based Index, any Issuer of the shares comprising the relevant Index, which 
would result in a violation by it of applicable law or regulation, including for these purposes, a violation of applicable 
law or regulation if Counterparty were to actually purchase or sell the securities of the Issuer or the securities comprising 
the Index, as the case may be. 

"Broad-based Index" means an Index that is widely published, broadly based, a wide range of sectors, comprised of 
100 or more securities, and with no single underlier comprising more than 10% of the index's weighting. 

"U.S. Component Underlier" means any Shares or shares comprising a Basket or Index, as the case may be, for which 
the Exchange (or primary exchange for any Component Underlier in respect of an Index Transaction) is located in the 
United States. 

11. Additional Representation Regarding MOC/MOO Execution. In respect of a Share Transaction or a Share 
Baskel Transaction where (i) the Exchange is located in the United States or Canada, or where the Share is Margin Stock, 
and (ii) the Initial Price and/or Final Price is determined based on lhe market-on-close ("MOC") or market-on-open price 
("MOO") (as applicable), Counterparty represents lhat it will not, directly or indirectly, in connection with entering inlo, 
or terminating (at scheduled termination or otherwise), any Transaction, submit to any broker or dealer or electronic 
execution venue a sell or buy order, as the case may be, for any of the shares underlying ( or any of the shares underlying 
the basket in the case of a Share Basket Transaction), for execution at the market-on-close or market-on-open price (as 
applicable) on any relevant Trade Date and/or Valuation Date (as applicable). 

12. Acknowledgement and Represenlalion Regarding Security-Based Swaps. Each party acknowledges that lhe 
offer and sale of each Transaction to it is intended to be exempt from registration under the Securities Acl of 1933, as 
amended (the "Securities Act"), by virtue of Section 4(a)(2) thereof and the provisions of Regulation D thereunder 
("Regulation D"). Accordingly, each party represents and warrants to the other that (a) it has the financial ability lo bear 
the economic risk of ils investment in lhe Transaction and is able to bear a tolal loss of its investment, (b) it is an 
"accredited investor" as lhat tem1 is defined under Regulation D, (c) it will purchase lhe Transaction for investment and 
nol with a view lo lhe dislribulion or resale thereof, and (d) the disposition of lhe Transaction is restricted under lhis 
MCA, the Securities Act and state securities laws. 

13. Amendment to Master Agreement. The parties agree that, notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Master 
Agreement, no breach by Counterparty of any of the representations, covenants or warranties set forth in Paragraphs 10 
and 11 of this Master Confirmation Agreement shall constitute an Event of Default or Potential Event of Default under 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have eM:cut-.::d this document with e11ect from the date spedfied on the first page 
of this document 

GOLDMAN SACHS lNTERNATJONAL 

Name: 

Title: 

Craig JJ onaffio 
Vke Prt:ileut 

GOLDIHAN SACHS & CO, LLC 

By: __________ _ 

Name: 

GOLDMAN SACHS BANK USA 

By: _________ _ 

Name: 

Title: 

An:hegos Fund, LP . • f 

~. ~ .. · ·. ,.·{· /~,l.. . ' '··, I . / \ 

I ··-sn By:~~ . \J \ 
Name: SungKookHwa11g . \ 

t 

Title: Managing Member of tile General Paitn~ 

Gddman Sachs i Archegos Fund, LP 
MCA for Synthetic Equity Products 
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ANNEXI 

General Terms 

The purpose of these General Tem1s is to set forth certain general temis and conditions of any Share Swap 
Transaction, Share CFD Transaction, Share Basket Swap Transaction, Share Basket CFD Transaction, Index Swap 
Transaction, Index CFD Transaction, Index Basket Swap Transaction and Index Basket CFD Transaction entered into 
between GS and Counterparty under the Master Confirmation Agreement for Synthetic Equity Products that these 
General Temis are annexed to (the "MCA"). 

A Transaction (including any contracts for differences transactions, each a "CFD Transaction") that references 
a single Share, two or more Shares, a single Index, or two or more Indices will constitute, respectively, a Share Swap 
Transaction, a Share Basket Swap Transaction, an Index Swap Transaction, and an Index Basket Swap Transaction for 
the purposes of the Equity Definitions and will be referred to herein, respectively, as a Share Transaction, a Share Basket 
Transaction, an Index Transaction, or an Index Basket Transaction. 

The general terms of each Transaction to which these General Terms relates are as follows, as supplemented by 
the PCA and the TS relating to such Transaction: 

General Terms: 

Trade Date: 

Effective Date: 

Shares/Index/Basket: 

Exchange(s): 

Related Exchange(s): 

Termination Date: 

Equity Amounts: 

Equity Amount Payer: 

Number of Shares/Units/Baskets: 

Equity Notional Reset: 

Type of Return: 

Equity Notional Amount: 

Initial Price: 

Final Price: 

89308416_1 

As specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

The final Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

As specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

Not Applicable if such Transaction has one Valuation Date; Applicable if 
such Transaction has more than one Valuation Date. 

(i) In respect of a Share Transaction and a Share Basket Transaction, Total 
Return. 

(ii) In respect of an Index Transaction, (a) where the Calculation Agent 
determines the Index is a total return index, Price Return; otherwise, (b) 
Total Return. 

(i) In respect of a Share Transaction, the product of the Number of Shares 
and the Initial Price. 

(ii) In respect of a Share Basket Transaction, the smn of the values for each 
Share in the Basket as the product of the Initial Price of each Share and the 
relevant Nmnber of Shares comprised in the Basket, multiplied by the 
Number of Baskets. 

(iii) In respect of an Index Transaction, the product of the Nmnber of Units 
and the Initial Price. 

(iv) In respect of an Index Basket Transaction, the smn of the values for 
each Index in the Basket as the product of the Initial Price of each Index and 
the relevant Number of Units comprised in the Basket, multiplied by the 
Number of Baskets. 

Except as set forth in the PCA, as specified in the TS. 

Except as set forth in the PCA, the Final Price or the Relevant Price (in 
respect of a Share Basket Transaction or an Index Basket Transaction), as 
the case may be, shall be determined: 

(i) in respect of any interim Valuation Date(s) (if applicable to such 
Transaction) as provided in Section 5.9 of the Equity Definitions, unless 
NASDAQ is the Exchange, in which case the NASDAQ Official Closing 
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Paymenl Instructions: 

Credit Provisions: 

Agents shall be deemed to be the price or rate. For all calculations, 
valuations and any other matters, the consensus determination of at least two 
(2) of the three (3) Substitute Calculation Agents shall be deemed to be the 
final determination, and if no consensus is reached by at least two (2) 
Substitute Calculation Agents within two (2) Scheduled Trading Days, then 
the provisions in this "Calculation Agent" provision relating to the 
appointment of and making of determinations by Substitute Calculation 
Agents shall cease to apply to that determination. Unless there is a clear 
error, the prices, rates and other detenninations of the Substitute Calculation 
Agents shall be binding and conclusive, but only with respect to the relevant 
Transaction and such calculation or determination will be without prejudice 
to any other Transactions between GS and Counterparty. Such 
determinations of lhe Substitute Calculation Agenls shall also be kept 
confidential by GS and Counterparty as well as by lhe Substitute 
Calculation Agents. Counterparty and GS shall pay equally any costs of the 
Substitute Calculation Agents. Each of Counterparty and GS waives any 
claim thal it might otherwise have against the Substitute Calculation Agents 
for errors or omissions made in good faith in making any calculation or 
determination in connection with a Transaction." 

"Independent Dealer" means a leading dealer in the relevant market that (i) 
is not an Affiliate of either of the parties or any other appointed Independent 
Dealer and (ii) does not have any trades with GS and/or Counterparty, the 
settlement of which requires or involves the relevant disputed detennination 
or calculation. 

As separately notified. 

Any Transaction entered into under this MCA shall be governed by the 
Credit Support Annex between GS and Counterparty. The "Independent 
Amount" with respect to the Counterparty for any such Transaction shall be 
the percentage specified in the related TS multiplied by the Equity Notional 
Amount. 

(a) Optional Early Closing Right: Provided that no Event of Default, Potential Event of Default or Termination 
Event has occurred and is continuing with respect to a party, and subject to the additional terms set forth in the 
PCA, such party may on any Exchange Business Day ("Early Unwind Date") close any Transaction, in whole 
or in part by giving notice to (i) in the case of Counterparty, at least (1) one Exchange Business Day prior to the 
Early Unwind Date and (ii) in the case of GS, giving notice to Counterparty at least (5) five Exchange Business 
Days prior to the Early Unwind Date. Such notice shall specify the Number of Shares, Number of Units, or 
Number of Baskets (as applicable) to be terminated ("Early Unwind Amount"). The final Valuation Date 
shall, subject to the other tenns of this MCA, be deemed to be the Early Unwind Date for that Early Unwind 
Amount and the Calculation Agent shall determine the amount payable vvith respect to the termination of such 
transaction. Any other amounts or obligations that are expressed to survive any closing of such Transaction 
shall survive the closing of the Transaction. If a party gives notice to close only part of a Transaction, then the 
above provisions shall apply mutatis mutandis and the Equity Notional Amount, Initial Price, the Number of 
Baskets or the Number of Shares or Number of Units (as applicable) of such Transaction shall be adjusted 
accordingly. If GS elects to close a Transaction in whole or in part, all amounts payable in respect of such Early 
Unwind Amount shall be payable lhe dale which is the number of days specified under Valuation Date(s), Cash 
Selllement Payment Date(s) or Settlement Period (as applicable) after the Early Unwind Date. 

(c) Additional Provisions Regarding Financial Securities: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the 
occurrence of any final Valuation Date of a Transaction (a) where GS is the Equity Amount Payer and (b) the 
underlier of which is the common stock (or the equivalent thereof) of a "financial institution" or a "financial 
sector entity" (as such terms are defined below), or an index/basket, or security that contains the common stock 
( or the equivalent thereof) of a "financial institution" or "financial sector entity", shall be delayed, in whole or in 
part, to the extent necessary, as determined by GS in good faith and a commercially reasonable manner, treating 
Counterparty comparably to similarly situated swap or contracts for differences customers, to allow GS (or its 
Affiliates) to unwind any hedge it may have to a Transaction; provided that, (i) such delay is necessary, as 
determined in GS's reasonable discretion, for appropriately hedging exposure to a "financial institution" or 
"financial sector entity" in compliance with Basel lIJ capital rules, and (ii) on any scheduled final Valuation 
Date, GS will use all commercially reasonable efforts to unwind any relevant hedge in light of then -prevailing 
market conditions. As used herein: 

"Financial institution" shall have the meaning defined in "Regulatory Capital Rules: Regulatory Capital, 
Implementation of Basel III, Capital Adequacy, Transition Provisions, Prompt Corrective Action, Standardized 
Approach for Risk-weighted Assets, Market Discipline and Disclosure Requirements, Advanced Approaches 
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ANNEX II 

Product Customization Agreement - Swap Transactions 

The purpose of this Product Customization Agreement, or "PCA", is to set forth product-specific terms and conditions, in 
addition to the GT, of Share Swap Transactions, Share Basket Swap Transactions, Index Swap Transactions and Index 
Basket Swap Transactions entered into between GS and Counterparty under the Master Confirmation Agreement for 
Synthetic Equity Products that this PCA is annexed to (the "MCA"). 

1. Any Transaction that is designated a "Swap Transaction" in the relevant TS shall be governed by, and be subject to, 
this PCA. All provisions contained in the Master Agreement and the MCA (including the GT) govern each 
Transaction to which this PCA relates, except as expressly modified below. Terms used but not defined herein shall 
have the meaning set out in the MCA or the GT. 

2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Master Agreement or the MCA, an agreement (whether oral or in the 
form of a writing evidenced by a facsimile transmission or email) to amend or modify any term or provision of this 
PCA will be effective at the time of such agreement, and following such agreement GS shall deliver a written notice 
of such agreement to Counterparty (a "PCA Amendment Notice"), which shall be conclusive as to the scope and 
terms of such amendment, notwithstanding that the PCA Amendment Notice may not be signed by either party. 
Failure by GS to send a PCA Amendment Notice shall not affect the validity of such agreement. 

3. The general terms of each Transaction to which this PCA relates are as follows, as supplemented by the TS related to 
such Transaction: 

Equity Amounts: 

Valuation Date(s): 

Initial Price: 

Gross Initial Price: 

Commission: 

FXRate: 

Final Price 

Gross Final Price: 

Floating Amounts: 

Floating Amount: 

Spread Notional Amount: 

Spread Notional Valuation Date(s): 

The final Valuation Date as specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS, being the Gross Initial Price adjusted by the relevant 
Commission, converted using the FX Rate. 

As specified in the TS. 

As agreed between the parties and as specified in the TS. 

As specified in the TS. 

The Gross Final Price adjusted by the relevant Commission, converted using 
the FX Rate. 

Final Price as specified in the GT in respect of the relevant Valuation Date. 

Floating Amount will be an amom1t equal to the sum of (i) the Floating 
Amount as defined in the GT (the "Basic Floating Amount") and (ii) all 
Compounding Amounts in respect of each Reset Date in the Calculation 
Period. 

(i) For the initial Spread Notional Reset Date, the Equity Notional Amomit; 
and 
(ii) For each subsequent Spread Notional Reset Date: 

(A) In respect of a Share Transaction, the Reset Final Price multiplied 
by the Number of Shares. 

(B) In respect of a Share Basket Transaction, the sum of the product of 
the Reset Final Price of each Share and the relevant Number of 
Shares comprised in the Basket, multiplied by the Number of 
Baskets. 

(C) In respect of an Index Transaction the Reset Final Price multiplied 
by the Number of Units. 

(D) In respect of an Index Basket Transaction, the sum of the product 
of the Reset Final Price of each Index and the relevant Number of 
Units comprised in the Basket, multiplied by the Number of 
Baskets. 

(i) Where Designated Maturity is specified in the TS as "ID", daily from the 
Effective Date; provided that such date shall be treated as a Valuation Date. 

Page 19 of23 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding Archegos-CFTC-SEC 004026 

dragonbreathe
Highlight



Case 1:22-cv-03401-JPO   Document 44-23   Filed 11/01/22   Page 2 of 39

Jefferies 
SHARE SWAP Al~D SHARE BASKET SWAP 

MASTER CONFIRMATION AGREEMENT (BULLET; BULLET) 

Archegos Fund, L.P. 
620 Eighth Avenue, 44th Floor 
New York, NY 10018 
Attention: Palrick Halligan, Chief Financial Officer 

Dear Sir or Madam: 

November 16, 2017 

The purpose of this Share Swap and Share Basket Swap Master Confirmation Agreement (Bullet; Bullet) 
(this "Master Confirmation Agreement") is to confirm certain general terms and conditions of Share Swap and/or 
Share Basket Swap Transactions (each, a "Transaction") to be entered into between Jefferies Financial Products, 
LLC ("Party A") and Archegos Fund, L.P. ("Party B") from time to time and to facilitate the process of entering 
into and confirming such Transactions. The parties intend that each Transaction shall be a separate Transaction for 
purposes of the ISDA Master Agreement referred to below. The confinnation applicable to each Transaction, which 
shall constitute a "Confirmation" for purposes of the ISDA Master Agreement, shall consist of this Master 
Confirmation Agreement as supplemented by the trade details applicable to such Transaction as set forth in a 
Transaction Supplement which may be in the form of Annex I (for Share Basket Swaps) or Annex II (for Share Swaps) 
attached hereto or a different form to which the parties agree, or any amendment to any of the foregoing or any related 
tennination statement (each, a ''Transaction Supplement"). All provisions contained in this Master Confirmation 
Agreement govern each Confirmation except as expressly modified in a Transaction Supplement. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the execution of this Master Confirmation Agreement does 
not require them to document Transactions in accordance with this Master Confirmation Agreement. Party A is 
not a member of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation ("SIPC"). Obligations of Party A hereunder 
are not protected by SIPC or any other organization or authority. 

This Master Confirmation Agreement, together with any Transaction Supplements, supplements, forms 
a part of, and is subject to, the ISDA Master Agreement dated as of November 16, 2017, as amended and 
supplemented from time to time (the "Agreement"), between Party A and Party B. All provisions contained in 
the Agreement govern this Master Confirmation Agreement except as expressly modified below. 

The definitions and provisions contained in lhe 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (lhe "Equity 
Definitions") and the 2006 ISDA Definitions (the "2006 Definitions"), each as published by the International 
Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. ("ISDA''), are incorporated into this Confirmation. Ifin relation lo any 
Transaction there is any inconsistency in terms or definitions, lhe following will prevail for purposes of such 
Transaction in lhe order of precedence indicated: (i) the Transaction Supplement; (ii) this Master Confirmation 
Agreement; (iii) the 2007 Partial Lookthrough Depository Receipt Supplement to the Equity Definitions; (iv) the 
Equity Definitions; (v) the 2006 Definitions; and (vi) the Agreement. 

Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, the preparation of a Transaction Supplement shall be the 
responsibility of Party A. Party A shall submit such Transaction Supplement to Party Bas soon as possible after the 
parties have agreed to enter inlo a Transaction. Failure by Party A to send a Transaction Supplement with respect to 
a Transaction shall not affect the validity of such Transaction. Upon receipt thereof, Party B shall examine the terms 
of each Transaction Supplement sent by Party A, and unless Party B objects to the tenns within one Local Business 
Day following receipt of that Transaction Supplement, those terms shall be deemed accepted and, absent manifest 
error, Party B shall be deemed to have agreed that the tenns contained in the relevant Transaction Supplements 
correctly set forth the tenns agreed by the parties with respect to the relevant Transaction, in which case that 
Transaction Supplement will be sufficient to form a binding supplement to the Agreement, and the terms of such 
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establish, re-establish, substitute, maintain 
unwind or dispose of any Hedge Positions, 

where, for the purposes of the foregoing, ''foreign 
qualified investor" means Qualified Foreign 
Institutional Investor or Renminbi Qualified Foreign 
Institutional Investor, as applicable. 

2. Calculation Agent: As specified in the Agreement. 

3. Credit Support Document; Independent Amount: The Credit Support Annex executed between 
Parly A and Party B. For these purposes, the "Independent Amounl" with respect to Party B in relation lo each 
Transaction shall be an amount equal to lhe IA Rate, determined by Party A from time to time in a commercially 
reasonable manner, multiplied by the Equity Notional Amount. The IA Rate shall be, intitially, as set forth in lhe 
relevant Transaction Supplement, and thereafter, as notified by Party A and Party B upon one (1) Local Business 
Day's prior nolice to Party B. 

4. Mutual Early Termination Right: 

(a) Either party may, with al least one Scheduled Trading Day's nolice, elect to early tem1inate a 
Transaction in whole or in part (and, for a Share Basket Swap Transaction, any partial early termination shall be for a 
pro rata portion of the relevant Basket), in its sole discretion, by specifying in such nolice a Scheduled Trading Day 
occurring prior to the scheduled Valuation Date (or, if Averaging is applicable, prior to the initial Averaging Dale in 
respect of the scheduled Valuation Date) as the "Optional Early Termination Date" and the number of Shares ( or 
portion of the Basket) in respect of which it is tenninating the Transaction early (the "Terminated Number of 
Shares/Basket"). 

(b) Subject to (c) and (d) below, the Equity Amount, the Floating Amount and the Dividend Amount 
shall be determined as provided in accordance with the terms set forth herein but on the basis that references to the 
''Number of Shares" (or, for a Share Basket Swap Transaction, the relevant pro rata portion of the Basket) are deemed 
to be references to the Terminated Number of Shares/Basket. If Averaging or ADTV Limitation is not applicable, the 
Valuation Date with respect to the portion of that Transaction being terminated early shall be accelerated to the 
Optional Early Temlination Date. If Averaging or ADTV Limitation is applicable, the Averaging Dates in respect of 
the Valuation Date with respect to the portion of that Transaction being terminated early shall be accelerated to 
consecutive Scheduled Trading Days commencing on the Optional Early Termination Date (each, an "Accelerated 
Averaging Date") and the latest occurring Accelerated Averaging Date shall be deemed to be the Valuation Date for 
purposes of the portion of the Transaction being terminated early. The Cash Settlement Payment Date and Period End 
Date for the portion of the Transaction that is tenninated early shall be the date that is one Settlement Cycle follo\ving 
such accelerated Valuation Date. 

(c) If the portion of the Transaction being terminated early is less than 100%, the remainder of the 
Transaction shall continue in accordance with its terms. 

( d) Break Fm1ding Recovery: The Floating Am0tmt shall be adjusted to account for any break funding 
costs incurred by the Hedging Party in connection with the early termination of any portion of the Transaction, as 
determined by the Calculation Agent. 

5. Payment of Unpaid Local Taxes or Excess Local Taxes: 

If the amounl of Local Taxes or the basis on which it is to be determined is not confim1ed before the relevant 
day on which a Dividend Amount or lhe Final Price, as the case may be, is being detem1ined and/or is subject to 
change in the future, and (i) if any amount of Local Taxes ("Unpaid Local Taxes") that should have been taken into 
account was not laken into account in the determination of lhe Dividend Amount or the Final Price, as the case may 
be, the Non-Hedging Party shall pay lo the Hedging Party an amount equal lo such Unpaid Local Taxes within 10 
Currency Business Days following notification from the Hedging Party; or (ii) if any excess amount of Local Taxes 
("Excess Local Taxes") that should not have been taken inlo accounl was taken into account in the determination of 
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Please confinn that the toregoirig correctly sets fortJ1 the terms ofour agreement by executing a copy of this 
MasietConfirn,ation Agreement and returning iuo us at SF_CONF1I{MS@jefferies.com; · · · · 

JEFFERIES FINANCIAL PRODUCTS, LLC 

l9 
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Date: November 16, 2017 

Dear Sirs, 

Jefferies 

This notice is directed to the undersigned (hereinafter referred to as "you" and the tenns "your" and "yourself" are 
to be construed accordingly) in connection with and in consideration of all transactions which you may enler into or 
have entered into, from time to time, with Jefferies Financia I Products, LLC ("Jefferies") or any of its affiliates ( each 
an "Issuer", and together the "Issuers") that is linked to the performance of shares, bonds, warrants or other securities 
traded and listed on a stock exchange in the People's Republic of China (for these purposes, excluding the Hong Kong 
Special Administrative Region, the Macao Special Administrative Region and the Taiwan area, the "PRC"), securities 
investment funds quoted in Renminbi or any other financial instruments, in each case, eligible for investment under 
the PRC Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor scheme, the PRC Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor 
scheme or the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect programme, the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock or any other stock 
connect programme separately notified to you by Jefferies (in each case, "PRC Securities"), or indices relating to 
PRC Securities (each a ''Relevant Transaction"), whether in the fonn of: 

(i) over-the-counter derivatives transactions; and/or 

(ii) notes, certificates, warrants or any other structured products or instruments by whatever name they are called. 

For the purposes of this notice, the term "Relevant Transaction" refers to any future or currently outstanding Relevant 
Transaction(s) as of the date of this notice as well as any previous transaction which has been transferred, terminated, 
matured, redeemed or otherwise unwound prior to the date of this notice. 

Notwithstanding any agreements between the Issuer and/or its associates/affiliates and you or any regulatory rules 
applicable to the Issuer or lhe Issuer's associates/affiliates or you, in respect of the Relevant Transactions entered into 
by you, you hereby agree, undertake and acknowledge lo each Issuer that: 

1. Investor status 

1.1 In relation to each Relevant Transaction linked to the performance of PRC Securities which are 
eligible for investment under the PRC Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor scheme or the PRC 
Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional Investor scheme: 

1.1.1 you are not (1) a person holding a resident identification card of the PRC (a "PRC Citizen") 
resident in the PRC, (2) a PRC Citizen resident outside the PRC who is not a permanent 
resident of another country or permanent resident of Hong Kong, Macau or Taiwan, or (3) an 
entity incorporated or organized in the PRC ( a "Legal Person Registered in the PRC") ( each 
a "Domestic Investor"); and 

1.1.2 to the best of your knowledge and belief after enquiries that you reasonably deem necessary, 
all amounts paid or to be paid by you under such Relevant Transaction did not and will not 
involve moneys financed by or sourced from any Domestic Investor in contravention of the 
laws and regulations of the PRC. 

1.2 In relation to each Relevant Transaction linked to the performance of PRC Securities which are 
eligible for investment under the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect programme, lhe Shenzhen
Hong Kong Stock or any other stock connect programme separately notified to you by Jefferies, you 
are not (1) a natural person holding a resident identification card or olher equivalent government issued 
identification of lhe PRC who is not a pennanent resident of another jurisdiction or permanent resident 
of Hong Kong, Macau or Taiwan or (2) a Legal Person Registered in the PRC, or if you are such a 
person or legal entity, then your entry into the Transaction does not violate the laws and regulations 
of the PRC including those in relation to foreign exchange contrnl and reporting. 

PRC Tax Side Letter - page 1 
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AMENDMENT dated as of May 18, 2004 

to the ISDA Master Agreement 

dated as ofNovember 8, 2001 between 

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL LI.MITED ("Party A") and 

TIGER ASIA FUND LP ("Party B" or "Counterparty") 

This Amendment Agreement supplements, forms part of, and is subject in all respects to, that certain 

ISDA Master Agreement including the Schedule and Credit Support Annex thereto (if any), dated as of November 

8, 2001 by and between Party A and Party B (collectively, the "Agreement"). Capitalized terms used herein, 

unless otherwise defined, have the meanings specified in the Agreement. 

1. Party A and Party B hereby agree that the Agreement is amended as of the date hereof by adding 

the Automated Transactions Supplement attached hereto. 

2. Each of the signatories below represents and warrants that he or she is duly authorized to sign this 

Amendment Agreement on behalf of the party set forth above his or her signature. Each of the parties 

represents and warrants that (a) its execution and delivery of this Amendment Agreement have been duly 

authorized by all requisite action by such party and do not and will not (i) violate its relevant organizational 

documents or (ii) result in a breach of, constitute a default under, or give any party the right to modify, amend, 

cancel, terminate or otherwise affect any contract, agreement, indenture, lease, license or other instrument to 

which it is a party or by which it or any of its assets is bound, and (b) this Amendment Agreement has been 

duly executed by it and is enforceable against it. 

3. The Amendment Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts. Each counterpart will 

constitute an original but all the counterparts together will constitute one and the same instrument. 

4. This Amendment Agreement will be governed by the governing law of the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment Agreement by their duly authorized officers 

as of the date hereof. 

TIGER ASIA FUND LP 

Name:~ "f,..ro\. 

Title: Y11'\o;Ao..~~ ./NLm'loQ.v ~ 

~ ~~ ~Ct.\~~ 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 

MORGAN STANLEY & CO. INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED 

By: _____________ _ 

Name: 
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Transaction Request); 

(v) the Valuation Date(s), Termination Date, Settlement Currency, Dividend Ratio, Floating 

Rate Option, Designated Maturity, Floating Rate Day Count Fraction and Fee Adjustment 

are each as determined with respect to the initial A TS Transaction( s) of the relevant A TS 

Series by Party A acting in a commercially reasonable manner; 

(vi) the Number of Shares is initially the number specified in the relevant ATS Transaction 

Request as the same may be reduced by Party A pursuant to paragraph 5(c) of this 

Supplement; and 

(vii) the other terms are as provided for in Schedule 2 (in the case of the initial ATS 

Transaction(s) of any ATS Series) or Schedule 3 (in any other case) to this Supplement. 

(f) Confirmation of initial ATS Transactions of an ATS Series: Where Party A accepts an ATS 

Transaction Request which is the first request in relation to an A TS Series, Party A shall prep~e and 

deliver to Party B, and Party B shall promptly execute and deliver by way of exchange to Party A, a 

Confirmation with respect thereto in or substantially in the form set out in Schedule 2 to this 

Supplement with such modifications as Party A shall determine to be appropriate in the 

circumstances. 

(g) Deemed confirmation of other ATS Transactions: Where Party A accepts an ATS Transaction 

Request (other than the first such request in relation to an ATS Series), the parties shall be deemed to 

have executed and exchanged a Confirmation with respect to the A TS Transaction there by 

constituted on the terms set out in Schedule 3 to this Supplement 

(h) Acceptance of ATS Unwind Request: Acceptance by Party A of an ATS Unwind Request shall 

constitute an agreement between the parties to adjust the relevant ATS Transaction(s) by reducing 

the Number of Shares by the number specified by Party B in such request (as the same may be 

reduced pursuant to paragraph 5(d) of this Supplement) (the "Unwind Number of Shares") and on 

the basis of the further adjustments and payments provided for in paragraph 6 of this Supplement. 

6, ATS Transaction Unwind 

(a) Unwind Adjustment: Where an ATS Unwind Request is accepted by Party A, the terms of the 

relevant ATS Transaction(s) shall be adjusted by (i) reducing the Number of Shares by the relevant 

Unwind Number of Shares and (ii) reducing each of the Equity Notional Amount and Notional 

Amount, by multiplying each such amount by (x) one minus (y) the quotient of the Unwind Number 

of Shares and the Number of Shares immediately prior to such adjustment. 

(b) Order of ATS Transactions to be unwound: If an ATS Unwind Request relates to a particular Share 

in respect of which more than one ATS Transaction within the relevant ATS Series is outstanding, 

then the adjustments required by paragraph 6(a) of this Supplement shall be applied to such ATS 

4 
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Schedule 3 

Form of Deemed Confirmation 

This Confmnation confirms the terms and conditions of the transaction entered into between Morgan 

Stanley & Co. International Limited ("Party A") and Tiger Asia Fund LP ("Party B" and, together with 

Party A, the "Parties") on the Trade Date specified below (the "Transaction") and constitutes a 

"Confirmation " as referred to in the ISDA Master Agreement specified below. 

The definitions and provisions contained in the 2000 ISDA Definitions ( other than Articles 10 through 17) 

(the "Swap Definitions") and in the 1996 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions as amended by the 1998 

ISDA Euro Definitions (the "Equity Definitions", and together with the Swap Definitions, the 

"Definitions"), in each case as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. 

("ISDA''), are incorporated into this Confirmation subject as specified herein. In the event of any 

inconsistency between the Swap Definitions and the Equity Definitions, the Equity Definitions will govern. 

In the event ofany inconsistency between either set of Definitions and this Confirmation, this Confirmation 

will govern. Any reference to a currency shall have the meaning contained in the 1998 ISDA FX and 

Currency Option Definitions, as published by ISDA. 

This Confirmation supplements, forms part of, and is subject to, the ISDA Master Agreement dated as of 

November 8, 2001 as amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Agreement") between the Parties 

including any Supplement thereto referencing ATS Transactions (the "Supplement"). AH provisions in the 

Agreement (excluding the Equity Option Annex (if any) thereto) govern this Confirmation subject to any 
express modification below. Terms defined in the Supplement have the same meanings herein and shall 

prevail in the event of any inconsistency with the Definitions. 

As used herein, the "relevant A TS Transaction Request" means the A TS Transaction Request specifying 

proposed terms for the Transaction and "Initial Confmnation" means the Confirmation with respect to the 

initial ATS Transaction( s) of the A TS Series having the ATS Series Reference specified in the relevant 

A TS Transaction Request. 

General Terms: 

A TS Series Reference: 

Trade Date: 

Equity Amount Payer: 

Effective Date: 

Termination Date: 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding 
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As specified in the relevant A TS Transaction Request. 

The date of Party A's acceptance of the relevant A TS 

Transaction Request. 

As specified in the Initial Confirmation. 

The date determined as such by Party A with respect 

to the Transaction. 

The date specified as such in the Initial Confirmation 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED SYNTHETIC PRIME BROKERAGE MASTER 
CONFIRMATION 

This Amended and Restated Synthetic Prime Brokerage Master Confirmation (this 
"SPBMC") is dated as of March 18, 2016. It sets out the terms and conditions on which 
Nomura International plc ("Nomura") agrees to provide synthetic prime brokerage 
services to Archegos Fund, LP ("Counterparty" and, together with Nomura, each a 
"Party" and collectively the "Parties"). 

The Parties previously entered into a Synthetic Prime Brokerage Master Confirmation 
dated March 22, 2006, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Original 
SPBMC"). The Parties hereby agree to amend and restate the Original SPBMC in its 
entirety as follows and to have this SPBMC govern the terms of all existing and future 
SPB Transactions and SPB Transaction Unwinds. 

1. Definitions and Interpretation. 

1.1 The definitions and provisions contained in the 2006 ISDA Definitions (the "Swap 
Definitions") and in the 2002 ISDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the "Equity 
Definitions", and together with the Swap Definitions, the "Definitions"), in each 
case as published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. 
("ISDA''), are incorporated into this SPBMC and the documents comprising the 
Confirmation ( as hereinafter defined) with respect to each SPB Transaction entered 
into hereunder subject as specified herein. Any capitalized tem1 not otherwise 
defined herein (including in Schedule l hereto) shall have the meaning assigned to 
such term in the Definitions. 

1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between any of the Swap Definitions, the Equity 
Definitions, this SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, an SPB Product 
Supplement, an SPB Transaction Supplement or the Jurisdiction Supplement (if 
applicable), the following documents will prevail in relation to the relevant 
Transaction in the following order of precedence: the SPB Transaction Supplement, 
the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable), the applicable SPB Product 
Supplement, the SPB General Terms Supplement, this SPBMC, the Equity 
Definitions and the Swap Definitions. 

1.3 Any reference to a currency shall have the meaning contained in the 1998 ISDA 
FX and Currency Option Definitions, as published by ISDA. 

1.4 This SPBMC supplements, forms part of, and is subject to, the ISDA Master 
Agreement (including the Schedule and Credit Support Annex) entered into 
between the Parties and dated as of March 22, 2006, as amended and supplemented 
from time to time (the "Agreement"). All provisions in the Agreement govern this 
SPBMC, except as expressly modified below. 

1.5 For the purposes of the Definitions and for the Agreement: 
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(a) each SPB Transaction (subject to full or partial termination from time to 
time pursuant to any SPB Transaction Unwind) shall be a "Transaction" 
for the purposes of the Agreement and an Equity Swap Transaction for the 
purposes of the Equity Definitions; and 

(b) the "Confirmation" with respect to each such SPB Transaction shall 
comprise this SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the applicable 
SPB Product Supplement, the SPB Transaction Supplement relating to that 
SPB Transaction and, if applicable, the Jurisdiction Supplement. 

2. Services. 

Nomura may, in its absolute discretion, agree to enter into equity derivative 
transactions pursuant to this SPBMC. Nomura will not provide any advice 
(investment, financial, accounting legal or otherwise) in relation to this Agreement 
or any SPB Transaction or SPB Transaction Unwind. 

3. Confirmation Process. 

3.1 SPB Transaction Request 

(a) Counterparty may request on any Scheduled Trading Day after the date of 
this SPBMC that Nomura enter into an SPB Transaction or effect an SPB 
Transaction Unwind (each an "SPB Transaction Request"). Such SPB 
Transaction Request shall specify, at a minimum, the number of Units, the 
Underlying(s) and whether such transaction is to be an SPB Transaction 
(and if so whether a Long SPB Transaction or a Short SPB Transaction) or 
an SPB Transaction Unwind. 

(b) Any SPB Transaction Request shall constitute an offer made upon the 
terms of this SPBMC to Nomura to enter into such SPB Transaction or 
effect such SPB Transaction Unwind. Counterparty may, by notice to 
Nomura (such notice being effective only when actually received by 
Nomura), revoke the offer at any time until Nomura accepts the offer. 

(c) At any time whilst the offer constituted by an SPB Transaction Request for 
an SPB Transaction or an SPB Transaction Unwind is outstanding Nomura 
may accept such SPB Transaction Request and shall promptly 
acknowledge acceptance of such SPB Transaction Request subject to the 
tenns described hereinafter. 

(d) Notwithstanding its acceptance of an SPB Transaction Request Nomura, 
acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, may reduce 
the number of Units applicable to such SPB Transaction or SPB 
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4. Synthetic Payment. 

Counterparty shall pay to Nomura a Synthetic Payment (a) for each accepted SPB 
Transaction Request, (b) in respect of each termination ( whether under its terms or 
otherwise) of an SPB Transaction and (c) as otherwise specified in the applicable 
SPB Product Supplement. A Synthetic Payment shall be calculated by Nomura and 
will be equal to the product of the Synthetic Payment Adjustment and the Synthetic 
Payment Notional Amount ("Synthetic Payment Amount"). If Combined 
Synthetic Payment is specified as "Not Applicable" in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement, Counterparty shall pay all Synthetic Payment Amounts that have 
accrued but remain unpaid since the previous Synthetic Payment Date on the 
following Synthetic Payment Date. If Combined Synthetic Payment is specified as 
"Applicable" in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, then such Synthetic 
Payment Amounts will be included in the Initial Price and Final Price stated in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

5. Margin. 

With respect to any SPB Transaction an Independent Amount with respect to the 
Counterparty shall be applicable which shall be an amount equal to the Equity 
Notional Amount multiplied by the Margin Percentage specified in the SPB 
Transaction Supplement or as otherwise agreed by the parties from time to time. 

6. Determinations. 

Where any fact, criterion or qualitative issue is required to be determined by 
Nomura or the Calculation Agent under any Terms, unless otherwise stated herein, 
Nomura or the Calculation Agent, as applicable, shall exercise such determination 
in good faith and in its commercially reasonable discretion. 

7. No Rights in Underlying. 

The entry into an SPB Transaction does not confer on either Party any rights 
(whether in respect of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to the relevant 
Underlying. 

8. Termination of Agreement. 

If there are no SPB Transactions outstanding under this SPBMC, either Party may 
terminate this SPBMC by giving two SPB Business Days' notice to the other Party 
in writing. 

9. Miscellaneous. 

(a) The Parties hereto intend for: 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this document with effect from 
the date specified on the first page of this document. 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Cvw,~ frtyfvne.r (, 
MttMS~ ~ J)T (p,etD '( 
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SCHEDfilE 1 

Definitions 

For the purposes of all terms under this SPBMC, the following definitions shall apply: 

"Bonds" means the bonds or debt securities specified in the SPB Bonds Supplement. 

"Cash Settlement Payment Date(s)" means, each Scheduled Cash Settlement Payment 
Date and with respect to any Units subject to an SPB Transaction Unwind each Unwind 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

"Closed Market Country" means each of ihe People's Republic of China, India, 
Indonesia, Korea, tvfa1aysia, Pakistan, Russia, Taiwan, Thailand and each other country 
as may be agreed in writing by the parties from time to time. 

"Combined Synthetic Payment" has the meaning given to it in Clause 4 of the SPBMC. 

"Corporate Action" has the meaning given to it in Clause 3.4(b) of the SP BMC. 

"Currency Day Count 'fraction" means, with respect to a currency, 1 divided by such 
denominator as the Calculation Agent may elect in order to convert the applicable 
benchmark overnight rate corresponding to that ctmency into a rate per day. 

"Custom Basket Shares" means the Shares of any Issuer included in an SPB Custom 
Basket. 

"Designated Maturity" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Distribution Receipt Date" means as defined in the SPB Bonds Supplement. 

"Effective Date" means as specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Equity Amount Payer" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Equity Definitions" means as defined in 1.he SPBMC. 

"Equity Notional Amount" means as defined in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Equity Notional Reset" means as specified in the SPB General Tenns Supplement. 

"Ex Amount Market" means each market as determined by the Calculation Agent where 
the customary practice is that a holder of shares entitlement to a dividend is determined 
by reference to the date that the Shares have commenced trading ex-dividend on the 
Exchange. 
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"Short Position" means with respect to an Underlying that the Counterparty has one or 
more SPB Transactions where the Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

11Short SPB Transaction" means with respect to an Underlying, an SPB Transaction 
where the Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

11SPB Bonds 11 means an SPB Transaction that references Bonds and to which the SPB 
Bonds Supplement applies, 

11SPB Business Day11 means each day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange 
markets settle payments and are open for business (including dealings in foreign 
exchange and foreign exchange deposits) in London. 

"SPB Custom Baskets" means an SPB Transaction that references a basket of Shares 
and to which the SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Futures 11 means an SPB Transaction that references Futures and to which the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement applies. 

"SPB General Terms Supplement" means the general terms supplement appended at 
Schedule 3 hereto, 

11SPB Index'1 means an SPB Transaction that references an Index and to which the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement applies. 

"SPB Product Supplement 11 means each of the SPB Bonds Supplement, the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement and the SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement appended to 
this SPBMC. 

11SPB Product Type 11 means the 11Product Type11 specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, being SPB Bonds, SPB Futures, SPB Index, SPB Shares or SPB 
Custom Baskets, as applicable. 

"SPB Shares" means an SPB Transaction that references Shares and to which the SPB 
Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Transaction" means an Equity Swap Transaction entered into under the terms of 
this SPBMC. 

"SPB Transaction Request 11 means as defined in Clause 3.1 of the SPBMC. 

11SPB Transaction Supplement" means as defined in Clause 3.2 of the SPBMC. 

1rSPB Transaction Unwind" means, with respect to an Underlying referenced in one or 
more SPB Transactions, the termination (in whole or in part) of one or more SPB 
Transactions in respect of that Underlying, as effected on the Termination Valuation Date 
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with respect to that SPB Transaction Unwind. The Underlying. number of Units and 
Termination Valuation Date with respect to each SPB Transaction Unwind shall be set 
out in an SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Spread" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Synthetic Payment Adjustment" means the value specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time in accordance 
with the provisions of the SPBMC in relation to the Terms. 

"Synthetic Payment Amount11 has the meaning given to it in Clause 4 of the SPBMC. 

"Synthetic Payment Notional Amount" means for the purposes of determining a 
Synthetic Payment Amount (i) in respect of an accepted SPB Transaction Request, the 
Initial Price prior to the first Valuation Date multiplied by the number of Units for the 
SPB Transaction with respect to that SPB Transaction Request specified in the relevant 
SPB Transaction Supplement, (ii) in respect of the termination of an SPB Transaction 
pursuant to an SPB Unwind or Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC, the Final Price determined for 
the purposes of such SPB Transaction Unwind or termination multiplied by the number 
of Units subject to such SPB Transaction Unwind or termination, (iii) in respect of the 
termination of an SPB Transaction other than where Sub-clause (ii) applies, the Final 
Price determined for the purposes of such termination multiplied by the Number of Units 
under that SPB Transaction as of the Tennination Date; and (iv) expressed to be payable 
under the SPB General Terms Supplement as defined in the SPB General Terms 
Supplement. 

"Termination Date" means as defined in the General Terms Supplement. 

"Termination Valuation Date" has the meaning given to it in Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC. 
Other than for the purposes of Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC, a Termination Valuation Date 
shall not be a Valuation Date. 

"Terms" means each of the following tenns: the Transaction Spread, Floating Rate, 
Dividend/Distribution Percentage, Fee Adjustment and the Synthetic Payment 
Adjusbnent. 

11Trade Date11 means as specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

11Transaction Spread11 means for each SPB Transaction, the relevant Transaction Spread 
as defined in the SPB General Terms Supplement unless otherwise specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time 
in accordance with the provisions of the SPBMC in relation to the Terms. 

"Type of Return" means as specified in the ~PB General Terms Supplement. 

Schedule 1 - S 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding Archegos-CFTC-SEC 0403765 

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight



Case 1:22-cv-03401-JPO   Document 44-25   Filed 11/01/22   Page 17 of 112

)> 
;:i 
:::; 
(D 

(0 

0 
V, 

() 
I] 
-I 
0 
(J) 
m 
0 
0 
.j:>. 
0 
(,) 
-J 
(J) 
-J 

SCHEDULE2 

Form of SPB Transaction Supplement 

This SPB Transaction Supplement is entered into between Nomura International plc ("Nomura") and[•] ("Counterparty" and, 
together with Nomura, the "Parties") on the Trade Date set forth below. 

The purpose of this communication is to confirm the terms and conditions of the SPB Transaction entered into between Nomura and 
Counterparty on the Trade Date specified below. This SPB Transaction Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the 
Synthetic Prime Brokerage Master Confirmation between the Parties dated [ • J, as may be amended and supplemented from time to 
time (the "SPBMC"), and, together with the SPBMC, the SPB Genera1 Terms Supplement, the applicable SPB Product Supplement 
and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a "Confirmation" as referred to in the· Agreement. 

The terms of the SPB Transaction to which this SPB Transaction Supplement relates are as follows: 

Product rue Code r ISl:N Underlying SPB Product Futures Price Multiplier Maturity lhte Trade Date Effective Date Long/ Short/ 

Identifier Type Valuation' Unwind 

' 
f [SPB Bonds] [Applicabte][Not 

[SPB Shares] Applicahle J 
[SPB Custom 

Basket] [SPB 
!ndex] (SPB 
Futures] 

1 This will be "Applicabie" where the SPB Product Type Is SPB Futures. Futures Price Valuation may also be applied via the SPB Transaction Supplement to SPB Shares. For 
SPB Custom Baskets, please insert "NIA". 
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Number of Units lni1ial Price/ Final FXRate Dividend/ Transaction Fee Adjustment Related Eichange Combined Synthetic Payment 
Price' Distribution Spread (bps) (bps) Synthetic Pa1·rnmt Adjustment 

FloRtinl! Amount Paver l'avment Dates 

[Each Cash Settlement Payment Date] [[!st] Business Day of each month 

and each Unwind (',ash Stu.lerneat Payment Da1e] [Last SPB Business Day 

of each month and each Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date] 

Percentage 

Valuation Dntes 
[•] / [lst Scheduled Trading Day of each rnonthJ i [Each Scheduled Trading 
Day]/ [{a) !st Fcbrumy, 1st May, 1st August and 1st November in e.ich year 
from the Effective Date to the Termination Date, or in ef.ch case if not a 
Scheduled Trading Day, L~e next following Scheduled Trading Day and (bl 
the Scheduled Trading Day falling one Settlement Cycle prior to the 
Termination Date] 

~otifications of Calculation Agent :amendments: 

[Applicable][Not 

Applicable] 

[AUD-SWAP O!S-RBA] 
[HIBOR-HKAB] 
[JPY-LlBOR-ICEJ 
[NZD-OCR-RBNZ] 
[SGD-SJBOR-ABS] 
[USD-LlBOR-ICE] 
[GBP-LiBOR-!CE] 
[EUR-EURISOR-EBF1 

[VJ, orothcrwise 
notified by Nomura 
to Countel)larty 
from time to time in 
accordance with the 
SPBMC. 

!<louting Rate Option 

Any notification of amendments by the Calculation Agent, including, without limitation, amendments resulting from any Corporate 
Action will not constitute a Confinnation but shall be a notice only. 

2 This will be the "Initial" where the SPB Transaction is a short or long and Final Price where the SPB Transaction is an Unwind. 
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SCBEDULE3 

SPB General Terms Supplement 

This SPB General Terms Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the 
SPBMC and, together with the SPBMC, the applicable SPB Product Supplement, the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement (as each such term is defined in the SPBMC) and 
the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a 11Confirmationn with respect to 
the relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement. This SPB General Terms 
Supplement shaH be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Termination Date: 

Unit: 

Multiplier: 

The date which is five (5) calendar years after the 
date of the SPBMC, unless otherwise agreed between 
the parties, or the final Cash Settlement Payment 
Date, whichever is later 

A trading unit of the Underlying ( or, in the case of an 
Underlying that is Custom Basket Shares, the number 
of Shares of each Issuer included in a single SPB 
Custom Basket) 

In respect of SPB Transactions to which Futures 
Price Valuation applies, a 11Multiplier 11 may be 
specified in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement for the purpose only of informing the 
Counterparty of the multiplier embedded in the 
relevant Exchange-traded Contract. Notwithstanding 
any SPB Transaction Supplement, the Multiplier for 
the purposes of the Equity Definitions shall be 1 for 
all SPB Transactions. A 11Multiplier 11 specified in any 
SPB Transaction Supplement is not intended to take 
operative effective per the Equity Definitions. 

Equity Amounts payable by Equity Amount Payer: 

Equity Amount Payer: 

Number of Units: 

Equity Notional Amount: 

As specified with respect to the relevant Units in the 
SPB Transaction Supplement 

As specified with respect to the relevant Underlying in 
the SPB Transaction Supplement (subject to reduction 
from time to time pursuant to any SPB Transaction 
Unwind). 

The product of the Initial Price and the Number of 
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SCHEDULE4 

PRODUCT SUPPLEMENTS 

SPB Bonds Supplement 

The following terms shall apply where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the 
SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Bonds. 

This SPB Bonds Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SPBMC 
and, together with the SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplen1ent (as each such tennis defined in the SPBMC) and the 
Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a "Confirmation" with respect to the 
relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement, This SPB Bonds Supplement 
shall be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Issuer: 

Bonds: 

Underlying Shares: 

Transaction Face Amount: 

Relevant Jurisdiction: 

Scheduled Trading Day: 

The Issuer of the Bonds. 

Subject to "Additional Provisions - Conversions" 
below, the Underlying specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement. 

In respect only of Bonds that are exchangeable or 
convertible bonds, the shares. if any, into or for 
which the Bonds are or may be convertible or 
exchangeable at a specified time, or from time to 
time, whether at the option of the Issuer or any 
holders thereof or on a mandatory basis. 

Number of Units multiplied by the principal amount 
outstanding of a Bond on the Effective Date. The 
Transaction Face Amount shall be subject to 
reduction by the Calculation Agent on account of any 
Partial Redemption. 

With respect to any amount payable under an SPB 
Transaction, such of the jurisdictions specified in 
sub-paragraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) of "Dividend/ 
Distribution Adjustment Event" in this SPB Bonds 
Supplement as the Calculation Agent may detennine 
to be material for the purposes of such payment. 

(a) In respect of Bonds that are not exchangeable or 
convertible bonds, not applicable; and (b) in respect 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 1 
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Bond Business Day: 

Observation Date: 

Exchange: 

Related Exchange: 

of Bonds that are exchangeable or convertible bonds, 
as determined in accordance with Section 1.31 of the 
Equity Definitions. 

Each day which is both an SPB Business Day and (if 
applicable) a Scheduled Trading Day. 

In respect of a payment under Bonds (a) that are 
bearer bonds, the date of such payment and (b) that 
are registered bonds, whichever of the record date for 
such payment under such Bonds (as specified by the 
Issuer or in the legal instrument governing the Bonds 
or as otherwise determined by the Calculation Agent) 
and the date of such payment that the Calculation 
Agent determines to be the more appropriate in 
connection with such Bonds. 

(a) In respect of Bonds that are not exchangeable or 
convertible bonds, not applicable; and (b) in respect 
of Bonds that are exchangeable or convertible bonds, 
the exchange or quotation system on which the 
largest volume of Underlying Shares normally trade. 

Not Applicable 

Equity Amounts payable by Equity Amount Payer: 

Equity Amount: Each Equity Amount shall be determined as if this 
SPB Transaction were a Share Transaction; provided 
that if the Equity Amount is payable on a Cash 
Settlement Payment Date falling on or after the Full 
Redemption Date or the Scheduled Maturity Date, 
the Equity Amount payable on the corresponding 
Cash Settlement Payment Date shall be equal to: 

(i) any amounts of principal actually paid by the 
Issuer in cash to holders of the Bonds in the 
Relevant Jurisdiction on the Full Redemption 
Date or Scheduled Maturity Date, as 
applicable, in respect of Bonds with an 
outstanding principal amount equal to the 
Transaction Face Amount as of the 
Observation Date relating to the Full 
Redemption Date or the Scheduled Maturity 
Date of the Bonds (prior to giving effect to 
such principal payment), as applicable, minus 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 2 
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Synthetic Payment for Full 
Redemptions: 

Additional Equity Amounts: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
Payer: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
Period: 

Additional Equity Amount: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
'Payment Dates: 

Partial Redemption: 

the Transaction Face Amount as of the Observation 
Date relating to the Full Redemption Date. 

The Synthetic Payment Notional Amount for the 
purposes of determining a Synthetic Payment 
pursuant to the occurrence of a Full Redemption shall 
be equal to the sum of the Full Redemption Amount 
and any Proceeds Value determined by the 
Calculation Agent in connection with such Full 
Redemption ( or that would have been so detennined 
if "Non-Cash Distributions, Redemptions and 
Conversions Occurring Following the Final 
Valuation Date'' had applied thereto). 

As specified in the Consequences of Cash Partial 
Redemptions provision below. 

The period which commences on, and includes, the 
Effective Date and ends on, but excludes, the final 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

In respect of any Partial Redemption that consists of 
cash (in whole or in part). the Additional Equity 
Amount shall be an amount equal to: 

(i) the Cash Partial Redemption Amount; minus 
(ii) the Initial Price as of the Valuation Date 

immediately preceding the Observation Date 
for such Cash Partial Redemption multiplied 
by the portion of the Transaction Face 
Amount to which such Cash Partial 
Redemption Amount relates (as detennined 
by the Calculation Agent). 

The Additional Equity Amounts Payer shall pay to 
the other Party any Additional Equity Amount five 
SPB Business Days following the related P.artial 
Redemption Date, notwithstanding the occurrence of 
the final Cash Settlement Payment Date (unless the 
Partial Redemption Date occurs more than six 
months fo11owing the final Cash Settlement Payment 
Date, in which case the Additional Equity Amount 
will not be paid). 

Any repayments of principal on the Bonds or 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 6 
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Synthetic Payment for Partial 
Redemptions: 

Distribution Amounts: 

Distribution Amounts Payer: 

Distribution Amounts Period: 

Distribution Amount: 

to an obligation for either Party on account of such 
Non-Cash Partial Redemption which is a delivery 
rather than a payment obligation, and subject to the 
"Non-Cash Distributions and Redemptions Occurring 
Following the Final Valuation Date11 provision of this 
SPB Bonds Supplement. 

Counterparty, shall pay to Nomura a Synthetic 
Payment in respect of each Additional Equity 
Amount Payment Date. The Syntheti~ Payment 
Notional Amount for the purposes of determining 
such Synthetic Payment shall be equal to the sum of 
the Cash Partial Redemption Amount and the cash 
value of the Non-Cash Partial Redemption Amount, 
as determined by the Calculation Agent, ( or as would 
have been so determined if ''Non-Cash Distributions, 
Redemptions and Conversions Occurring Following 
the Final Valuation Date'' had applied thereto). 

Equity Amount Payer 

The period that commences on, and includes the 
Effective Date and ends on, but excludes, the final 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

Any and all payments or distributions, including, 
without limitation, interest and coupon payments and 
consent fees, but excluding Partial Redemption 
Amounts or Full Redemption Amounts. that are 
actually made by the Issuer to holders of the Bonds 
in the Relevant Jurisdiction in respect of an 
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds equal to 
the Transaction Face Amount as of the relevant 
Observation Date and for which the Observation 
Date occurs during the Distribution Amounts Period. 

Actual Cash Distribution Amount: The portion of a Distribution Amount. if any, that 
consists of cash. 

Non-Cash Distribution Amount: That portion of a Distribution Amount, if any. that 
consists of property other than cash including, 
without limitation, securities or other non-cash 
assets. 

SPB Bonde Supplement - 8 
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SCHEDULE 1 

Definitions 

For the purposes of all terms under this SPBMC, the following definitions shall apply: 

"Bonds" means the bonds or debt securities specified in the SPB Bonds Supplement. 

"Cash Settlement Payment Date(s)" means, each Scheduled Cash Settlement Payment 
Date and with respect to any Units subject to an SPB Transaction Unwind each Unwind 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

"Closed Market Country" means each of the People's Republic of China, India, 
Indonesia, Korea, Malaysia, Pakistan, Russia, Taiwan, Thailand and each other country 
as may be agreed in writing by the parties from time to time. 

"Combined Synthetic Payment" has the meaning given to it in Clause 4 of the SPBMC. 

"Corporate Action" has the meaning given to it in Clause 3.4(b) of the SPBMC. 

"Currency Day Count Fraction" means, with respect to a currency, 1 divided by such 
denominator as the Calculation Agent may elect in order to convert the applicable 
benchmark overnight rate corresponding to that currency into a rate per day. 

"Custom Basket Shares" means the Shares of any Issuer included in an SPB Custom 
Basket. 

"Designated Maturity" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Distribution Receipt Date" means as defined in the SPB Bonds Supplement. 

"Effective Date" means as specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Equity Amount Payer" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Equity Definitions" means as defined in the SPBMC. 

"Equity Notional Amount" means as defined in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Equity Notional Reset" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Ex Amount Market" means each market as detennined by the Calculation Agent where 
the customary practice is that a holder of shares entitlement to a dividend is determined 
by reference to the date that the Shares have commenced trading ex-dividend on the 
Exchange. 

Schedule 1 - 1 
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"Short Position" means with respect to an Underlying that the Counterparty has one or 
more SPB Transactions where the Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

"Short SPB Transaction" means with respect to an Underlying, an SPB Transaction 
where the Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

"SPB Bonds" means an SPB Transaction that references Bonds and to which the SPB 
Bonds Supplement applies. 

"SPB Business Day" means each day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange 
markets settle payments and are open for business (including dealings in foreign 
exchange and foreign exchange deposits) in London. 

"SPB Custom Baskets" means an SPB Transaction that references a basket of Shares 
and to which the SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Futures" means an SPB Transaction that references Futures and to which the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement applies. 

"SPB General Terms Supplement" means the general terms supplement appended at 
Schedule 3 hereto. 

"SPB Index" means an SPB Transaction that references an Index and to which the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement applies. 

"SPB Product Supplement" means each of the SPB Bonds Supplement, the SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement and the SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement appended to 
this SPBMC. 

"SPB Product Type" means the "Product Type" specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, being SPB Bonds, SPB Futures, SPB Index, SPB Shares or SPB 
Custom Baskets, as applicable. 

"SPB Shares" means an SPB Transaction that references Shares and to which the SPB 
Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Transaction" means an Equity Swap Transaction entered into under the terms of 
this SPBMC. 

"SPB Transaction Request" means as defined in Clause 3.1 of the SPBMC. 

"SPB Transaction Supplement" means as defined in Clause 3.2 of the SPBMC. 

"SPB Transaction Unwind" means, with respect to an Underlying referenced in one or 
more SPB Transactions, the termination (in whole or in part) of one or more SPB 
Transactions in respect of that Underlying, as effected on the Termination Valuation Date 
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with respect to that SPB Transaction Unwind. The Underlying, number of Units and 
Tennination Valuation Date with respect to each SPB Transaction Unwind shall be set 
out in an SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Spread" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Synthetic Payment Adjustment" means the value specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time in accordance 
with the provisions of the SPBMC in relation to the Terms. 

"Synthetic Payment Amount" has the meaning given to it in Clause 4 of the SPBMC. 

"Synthetic Payment Notional Amount" means for the purposes of determining a 
Synthetic Payment Amount (i) in respect of an accepted SPB Transaction Request, the 
Initial Price prior to the first Valuation Date multiplied by the number of Units for the 
SPB Transaction with respect to that SPB Transaction Request specified in the relevant 
SPB Transaction Supplement, (ii) in respect of the termination of an SPB Transaction 
pursuant to an SPB Unwind or Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC, the Final Price determined for 
the purposes of such SPB Transaction Unwind or termination multiplied by the number 
of Units subject to such SPB Transaction Unwind or termination, (iii) in respect of the 
termination of an SPB Transaction other than where Sub-clause (ii) applies, the Final 
Price determined for the purposes of such termination multiplied by the Number of Units 
under that SPB Transaction as of the Termination Date; and (iv) expressed to be payable 
under the SPB General Terms Supplement as defined in the SPB General Terms 
Supplement. 

"Termination Date" means as defined in the General Terms Supplement. 

"Termination Valuation Date" has the meaning given to it in Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC. 
Other than for the purposes of Clause 3.3 of the SPBMC, a Termination Valuation Date 
shall not be a Valuation Date. 

"Terms" means each of the following terms: the Transaction Spread, Floating Rate, 
Dividend/Distribution Percentage, Fee Adjustment and the Synthetic Payment 
Adjustment. 

"Trade Date" means as specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Transaction Spread" means for each SPB Transaction, the relevant Transaction Spread 
as defined in the SPB General Terms Supplement unless otherwise specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time 
in accordance with the provisions of the SPBMC in relation to the Terms. 

"Type of Return" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 
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"Underlying" means (i) in respect of an SPB Transaction to which Futures Price 
Valuation does not apply, the bonds, debt securities, index or shares specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as applicable in each case, and (ii) in respect of 
SPB Transactions to which Futures Price Valuation applies, the Futures or the relevant 
Exchange-traded Contract relating to the Shares or Index specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, as applicable in each case. 

"Underlying Currency" means the currency in which the relevant Underlying (or, in the 
case of Custom Basket Shares, the Shares of any Issuer included in the SPB Custom 
Baskets) is denominated except that if the Underlying is an Index the Underlying 
Currency means the relevant currency of the Index as described on the relevant 
Bloomberg Page or such other source as the Calculation Agent shall reasonably 
determine. 

"Underlying Jurisdiction" means, with respect to any SPB Transaction that has an SPB 
Product Type of (a) SPB Shares, SPB Futures or SPB Index, the jurisdiction of 
incorporation of the issuer of the Underlying, and (b) SPB Custom Baskets, each of the 
jurisdictions of incorporation of the issuers of the Shares included in the SPB Custom 
Basket. 

"Units" means as specified in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 

"Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date" mean l Settlement Cycle following each 
Termination Valuation Date, or if not a Currency Business Day, the next following 
Currency Business Day. 

"U.S. Underlyings" mean publicly traded equities or exchange traded funds issued by 
U.S. issuers or traded on U.S. exchanges (including American depositary receipts), 
baskets of such equities or exchange traded funds, or regularly quoted and published third 
party-sponsored indices that include any of such equities or exchange traded funds. 

"Valuation Date" means as specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement and, if 
applicable, the relevant SPB Product Supplement. 

"Valuation Time" means as defined in the SPB General Terms Supplement. 
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SCHEDULE2 

Form of SPB Transaction Supplement 

This SPB Transaction Supplement is entered into between Nomura International plc ("Nomura") and[•] ("Counterparty" and, 
together with Nomura, the "Parties") on the Trade Date set forth below. 

The purpose of this communication is to confirm the terms and conditions of the SPB Transaction entered into between Nomura and 
Counterparty on the Trade Date specified below. This SPB Transaction Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the 
Synthetic Prime Brokerage Master Confirmation between the Parties dated[•], as may be amended and supplemented from time to 
time (the "SPBMC"), and, together with the SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the applicable SPB Product Supplement 
and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a "Confirmation" as referred to in the Agreement. 

The terms of the SPB Transaction to which this SPB Transaction Supplement relates are as follows: 

Product RIC Code I ISIN Underlying SPBProduct Futures Price Multiplier Maturity Date Trade Date Effective Date Long/ Short/ 

Identifier Type Valuation 1 Unwind 

[SPB Bonds] [Applicable][Not 

[SPB Shares] Applicable] 

[SPB Custom 

Basket] [SPB 

Index] [SPB 

Futures] 

1 This will be "Applicable" where the SPB Product Type is SPB Futures. Futures Price Valuation may also be applied via the SPB Transaction Supplement to SPB Shares. for 

SPB Custom Baskets, please insert "NIA". 
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Number of Units Initial Price / Final FXRate Dividend/ Transaction Fee Adjustment Related Exchange Combined Synthetic Payment 

Price2 Distribution Spread (bps) (bps) Synthetic Payment Adjustment 

Percenta2e 

[Applicable][Not [•J, or otherwise 

Applicable] 
notified by Nomura 
to Counterparty 
from time to time in 
accordance with the 
SPBMC. 

Floatin2 Amount Paver Pavment Dates Valuation Dates Floatin2 Rate Option 

[Each Cash Settlement Payment Date] [[1st] Business Day of each month [•] I [1st Scheduled Trailing Day of each month]/ [Each Scheduled Trading [AUD-SWAP OIS-RBA] 

and each Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date] [Last SPB Business Day 
Day]/ [(a) 1st February, 1st May, 1st August and 1st November in each year [HIBOR-HKAB] 
from the Effective Date to the Termination Date, or in each case if not a [JPY-LIBOR-ICE] 

of each month and each Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date] Scheduled Trailing Day, the next following Scheduled Trading Day and (b) [NZD-OCR-RBNZ] 
the Scheduled Trading Day falling one Settlement Cycle prior to the [SGD-SIBOR-ABS] 
Termination Date] [USD-LIBOR-ICE] 

[GBP-LIBOR-ICE] 
[EUR-EURIBOR-EBF] 

Notifications of Calculation Agent amendments: 

Any notification of amendments by the Calculation Agent, including, without limitation, amendments resulting from any Corporate 
Action will not constitute a Confirmation but shall be a notice only. 

2 This will be the "Initial" where the SPB Transaction is a short or long and Final Price where the SPB Transaction is an Unwind. 

Schedule 2 - 2 

Synthetic Payment 

Date 

[Each Cash 
Settlement Payment 
Date] [3 Currency 
Business Days after 
the next Valuation 
Date defined in the 
SPB Bonds General 
Terms Supplement] 
[The T errnination 
Date] 
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Valuation Time: 

Valuation Dates: 

Disrupted Day: 

Currency) from the Underlying Currency into the 
Settlement Currency on the relevant Valuation Date 
using the Relevant Exchange Rate subject to the 
occurrence of an FX Disruption Event (if applicable). 

The Final Price shall be inclusive of accrued interest 
through the relevant Valuation Date, unless the 
Calculation Agent determines that on the Effective 
Date the Bonds trade exclusive of accrued interest, in 
which case such Final Price will be exclusive of 
accrued interest. 

Where the Underlying Jurisdiction is Japan, for the 
purposes of determining the Final Price, the 
Calculation Agent may take into account any closing 
special quote per Underlying quoted by the Exchange 
(tokubetsu kehaine). 

The time selected by the Calculation Agent. 

As specified in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement; provided that any reference to 
"Scheduled Trading Day" in the definition of 
Valuation Dates as specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement shall be construed as a 
reference to "Bond Business Day". 

Section 6.4 of the Equity Definitions shall not apply. 
"Disrupted Day" means any Scheduled Trading Day 
on which (a) any event that disrupts or impairs (as 
determined by the Calculation Agent) the ability of 
market participants in general to effect transactions in 
or obtain market values for the Bonds or (in the case 
of a Bond which is a convertible or exchangeable 
bond) any Underlying Shares has occurred or (b) in 
the case of a Bond which is a convertible or 
exchangeable bond, the Exchange fails to open for 
trading during its regular trading session. The 
Calculation Agent shall as soon as reasonably 
practicable under the circumstances notify the Parties 
or other Party, as the case may be, of the occurrence 
of a Disrupted Day on any day that, but for the 
occurrence of a Disrupted Day, would have been a 
Valuation Date. Without limiting the obligation of 
the Calculation Agent to notify the Parties as set forth 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 4 
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Synthetic Payment for Full 
Redemptions: 

Additional Equity Amounts: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
Payer: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
Period: 

Additional Equity Amount: 

Additional Equity Amounts 
Payment Dates: 

Partial Redemption: 

the Transaction Face Amount as of the Observation 
Date relating to the Full Redemption Date. 

The Synthetic Payment Notional Amount for the 
purposes of determining a Synthetic Payment 
pursuant to the occurrence of a Full Redemption shall 
be equal to the sum of the Full Redemption Amount 
and any Proceeds Value determined by the 
Calculation Agent in connection with such Full 
Redemption ( or that would have been so determined 
if "Non-Cash Distributions, Redemptions and 
Conversions Occurring Following the Final 
Valuation Date" had applied thereto). 

As specified in the Consequences of Cash Partial 
Redemptions provision below. 

The period which commences on, and includes, the 
Effective Date and ends on, but excludes, the final 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

In respect of any Partial Redemption that consists of 
cash (in whole or in part), the Additional Equity 
Amount shall be an amount equal to: 

(i) the Cash Partial Redemption Amount; minus 
(ii) the Initial Price as of the Valuation Date 

immediately preceding the Observation Date 
for such Cash Partial Redemption multiplied 
by the portion of the Transaction Face 
Amount to which such Cash Partial 
Redemption Amount relates (as determined 
by the Calculation Agent). 

The Additional Equity Amounts Payer shall pay to 
the other Party any Additional Equity Amount five 
SPB Business Days following the related Partial 
Redemption Date, notwithstanding the occurrence of 
the final Cash Settlement Payment Date (unless the 
Partial Redemption Date occurs more than six 
months following the final Cash Settlement Payment 
Date, in which case the Additional Equity Amount 
will not be paid). 

Any repayments of principal on the Bonds or 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 6 
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Synthetic Payment for Partial 
Redemptions: 

Distribution Amounts: 

Distribution Amounts Payer: 

Distribution Amounts Period: 

Distribution Amount: 

to an obligation for either Party on account of such 
Non-Cash Partial Redemption which is a delivery 
rather than a payment obligation, and subject to the 
"Non-Cash Distributions and Redemptions Occurring 
Following the Final Valuation Date" provision of this 
SPB Bonds Supplement. 

Counterparty, shall pay to Nomura a Synthetic 
Payment in respect of each Additional Equity 
Amount Payment Date. The Synthetic Payment 
Notional Amount for the purposes of determining 
such Synthetic Payment shall be equal to the sum of 
the Cash Partial Redemption Amount and the cash 
value of the Non-Cash Partial Redemption Amount, 
as determined by the Calculation Agent, ( or as would 
have been so determined if "Non-Cash Distributions, 
Redemptions and Conversions Occurring Following 
the Final Valuation Date" had applied thereto). 

Equity Amount Payer 

The period that commences on, and includes the 
Effective Date and ends on, but excludes, the final 
Cash Settlement Payment Date. 

Any and all payments or distributions, including, 
without limitation, interest and coupon payments and 
consent fees, but excluding Partial Redemption 
Amounts or Full Redemption Amounts, that are 
actually made by the Issuer to holders of the Bonds 
in the Relevant Jurisdiction in respect of an 
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds equal to 
the Transaction Face Amount as of the relevant 
Observation Date and for which the Observation 
Date occurs during the Distribution Amounts Period. 

Actual Cash Distribution Amount: The portion of a Distribution Amount, if any, that 
consists of cash. 

Non-Cash Distribution Amount: That portion of a Distribution Amount, if any, that 
consists of property other than cash including, 
without limitation, securities or other non-cash 
assets. 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 8 
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Consequences of Actual Cash 
Distribution Amounts: 

Consequences of Non-Cash 
Distribution Amounts: 

Distribution Receipt Dates: 

Additional Disruption Events: 

Insolvency Filing: 

Additional Provisions: 

The Distribution Amounts Payer shall pay the 
Floating Amount Payer an amount (the "Cash 
Distribution Amount") equal to the product of the 
applicable Dividend/Distribution Percentage and the 
Actual Cash Distribution Amount five SPB Business 
Days following the relevant Distribution Receipt 
Date, notwithstanding the occurrence of the final 
Cash Settlement Payment Date (unless the 
Distribution Receipt Date occurs more than six 
( 6) months following the final Cash Settlement 
Payment Date, in which case the Cash Distribution 
Amount will not be paid). 

The Calculation Agent shall adjust the terms of the 
Transaction, effective as of the relevant Distribution 
Receipt Date, to account for any Non-Cash 
Distribution Amount(s), subject to the "Non-Cash 
Distributions and Redemptions Occurring Following 
the Final Valuation Date" provision of this SPB 
Bonds Supplement. 

In respect of a Distribution Amount, the date on 
which the payment or distribution by the Issuer in 
respect of that Distribution Amount would have been 
received by holders of the Bonds in the Relevant 
Jurisdiction. 

Applicable 

(a) Conversions. This provision shall apply only in respect of Bonds that are 
convertible or exchangeable bonds. If the Issuer converts the Bonds of 
holders in the Relevant Jurisdiction, whether pursuant to a mandatory 
conversion or optional conversion rights of the issuer or a holder, in whole 
or in part, into any securities or assets other than cash (including, without 
limitation, any Underlying Shares) (a "Conversion"), as of any 
Observation Date that occurs during the period from and including the 
Effective Date to but excluding the final Cash Settlement Payment Date, 
then, subject to the "Non-Cash Distributions and Redemptions Occurring 
Following the Final Valuation Date" provision of this SPB Bonds 
Supplement: 

(i) if such conversion is in respect of less than all of the SPB Bonds 
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Execution Copy 

SPB MASTER CONFIRMATION 

This SPB Master Confinnation (this "SPBMC") is dated as of March 10, 2021. It sets out the terms and 
conditions on which Nomura Global Financial Products Inc. ("Nomura") agrees to provide a swap 
transaction facility to Archegos Fund, LP ("Counterparty" and, together with Nomura, each a "Party" and 
collectively the "Parties"). 

1. Definitions and Interpretation. 

1.1 The definitions and provisions contained in the 2006 JSDA Definitions (the "Swap Definitions") 
and in the 2002 lSDA Equity Derivatives Definitions (the "Equity Definitions", and together with 
the Swap Definitions, the ''Definitions"), in each case as published by the International Swaps and 
Derivatives Association, Inc. ("ISDA"), are incorporated into this SPBMC and the documents 
comprising the Confirmation (as hereinafter defined) with respect to each SPB Transaction entered 
into hereunder subject as specified herein. Any capitalized term not otherwise defined herein 
(including in Schedule 1 hereto) shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Definitions. 

1.2 In the event of any inconsistency between any of the Swap Definitions, the Equity Definitions, this 
SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, an SPB Product Supplement, an SPB Transaction 
Supplement or the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable), the following documents will prevail in 
relation to the relevant Transaction in the following order of precedence: the SPB Transaction 
Supplement, the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable), the applicable SPB Product Supplement, 
the SPB General Terms Supplement, this SPBMC, the Equity Definitions and the Swap Definitions. 

1.3 Any reference to a currency shall have the meaning contained in the 1998 ISDA FX and Currency 
Option Definitions, as published by ISDA. 

1.4 This SPBMC supplements, forms part of, and is subject to, the ISDA Master Agreement (including 
the Schedule and Credit Support Annex) entered into between the Parties and dated as of March 8, 
2021, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Agreement"). All provisions in the 
Agreement govern this SPBMC, except as expressly modified below. 

1.5 For the purposes of the Definitions and for the Agreement: 

(a) each SPB Transaction (subject to full or partial termination from time to time pursuant to 
any SPB Transaction Unwind) shall be a ''Transaction" for the purposes of the Agreement 
and an Equity Swap Transaction for the purposes of the Equity Definitions; and 

(b) the "Confim1ation" with respect to each such SPB Transaction shall comprise this 
SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the applicable SPB Product Supplement, 
the SPB Transaction Supplement relating to that SPB Transaction and, if applicable, the 
Jurisdiction Supplement. 

2. Confirmation Process 

2.1 SPB Transaction Request 

(a) Counterparty may request on any Scheduled Trading Day after the date of this SPBMC 
that Nomura enter into an SPB Transaction or effect an SPB Transaction Unwind (each 
an "SPB Transaction Request"). Such SPB Transaction Request shall specify, at a 
minimum, the number of Units, the Underlying(s) and whether such transaction is to be 
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an SPB Transaction (and if so whether a Long SPB Transaction or a Short SPB 
Transaction) or an SPB Transaction Unwind. 

(b) Any SPB Transaction Request shall constitute an offer made upon the terms of this 
SPBMC to Nomura to enter into such SPB Transaction or effect such SPB Transaction 
Unwind. Counterparty may, by notice to Nomura (such notice being effective only when 
actually received by Nomura), revoke the offer at any time until Nomura accepts the 
offer. 

(c) At any time whilst the offer constituted by an SPB Transaction Request for an SPB 
Transaction or an SPB Transaction Unwind is outstanding Nomura may accept such SPB 
Transaction Request and shall promptly acknowledge acceptance of such SPB 
Transaction Request subject to the terms described hereinafter. 

2.2 SPB Transaction Supplements 

(a) For each SPB Transaction entered into and SPB Transaction Unwind effected on any date 
Nomura will prepare and make available to Counterparty a transaction supplement 
substantially in the form appended at Schedule 2 (an "SPB Transaction Supplement"). 

(b) Following the provision of an SPB Transaction Supplement, Com1terparty shall promptly 
notify Nomura of any disagreements as to any terms. If Counterparty has not contacted 
Nomura specifying the disagreements within one (1) SPB Business Day of the day on 
which such SPB Transaction Supplement was made available to it then Counterparty shall 
be deemed to have agreed to such SPB Transaction Supplement and its terms shall be 
final and conclusive absent manifest error. 

2.3 SPB Transaction Unwinds 

Under each SPB Transaction against which an SPB Transaction Unwind is applied (but only in 
respect of the part of that SPB Transaction which is tenninated pursuant to such application), a 
Valuation Date shall occur (the "Termination Valuation Date"), which shall be the Scheduled 
Trading Day agreed between the Parties or, ifno agreement has been reached between the Parties at 
the time of the relevant SPB Transaction Request then the Termination Valuation Date shall be 
detennined by the Calculation Agent. The Final Price, the Cash Settlement Payment Date and 
Payment Date with respect to the Units of the relevant SPB Transaction(s) (or part thereof) to be 
unwound shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the relevant SPB Product 
Supplement or Jurisdiction Supplement. The number of Units the subject of each SPB Transaction 
affected by an SPB Transaction Unwind shall be amended by the Calculation Agent to reflect such 
unwind on each applicable Termination Valuation Date. 

2.4 Adjustments and modifications to SPB Transaction Supplements 

(a) If Nomura determines, in its good faith discretion, that any adjustments or modifications 
are required to any tenns of any SPB Transaction Supplement, Nomura may: 

(i) if the relevant adjustment or modification relates to any Tenns, make such 
adjustment or modification upon at least five (5) SPB Business Days' written 
notification to Counterparty of the revised Terms; provided that (x) the 
foregoing is without prejudice to any right that Nomura may have to make a 
Price Adjustment to any SPB Transaction in accordance with the other terms 
hereof and (y) Nomura may make adjustments or modifications to the Terms of 
any Short SPB Transaction related to a security that is classified by Nomura as a 
hard-to-borrow or non-GC security or an index that includes any such security as 
a constituent upon notice to Counterparty; or 
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(ii) if the relevant adjustment or modification relates to any other tenn of an SPB 
Transaction Supplement, make the relevant adjustment or modification to the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement and make an amended and restated 
version of such SPB Transaction Supplement available to Counterparty. 

(b) Any notification of amendments to an SPB Transaction made by the Calculation Agent to 
the Parties, including, without limitation, amendments resulting from any Merger Events, 
Tender Offers, other Extraordinary Events or Potential Adjustment Events (each a 
''Corporate Action"), will (notwithstanding that such amendments may be notified in an 
amended and restated SPB Transaction Supplement) not constitute an SPB Transaction 
Supplement but shall be a notice only (and accordingly clause 2.4(c) shall not apply 
thereto). 

(c) Following the provision of an amended and restated SPB Transaction Supplement or any 
adjustment or modification to Tenns pursuant to Clause 2.4(a) above, Counterparty shall 
promptly notify Nomura of any disagreements as to any terms. If Counterparty has not 
contacted Nomura specifying the disagreements within three (3) SPB Business Days of 
the day on which such amended and restated SPB Transaction Supplement was made 
available to it (or, if earlier, the latest day by which the relevant Transaction must be 
confirmed in accordance with Applicable Law), then Counterparty shall be deemed to 
have agreed to such amended and restated SPB Transaction Supplement and its terms 
shall be final and conclusive absent manifest error. 

2.5 Early Termination 

Nomura may, in its sole discretion, by giving at least five SPB Business Days' prior written notice 
to Counterparty (or such lesser period if required to comply with Applicable Law), terminate any 
outstanding SPB Transactions at a reasonable market rate determined by the Calculation Agent as if 
Counterparty had made and Nomura had accepted an SPB Transaction Request in respect of an SPB 
Transaction Unwind in relation to those SPB Transactions on the day such notice is effective. 

3. Synthetic Payment. 

Counterparty shall pay to Nomura a Synthetic Payment (a) for each accepted SPB Transaction 
Request, (b) in respect of each termination (whether under its tenns or otherwise) of an SPB 
Transaction and (c) as otherwise specified in the applicable SPB Product Supplement. A Synthetic 
Payment shall be calculated by Nomura and will be equal to the product of the Synthetic Payment 
Adjustment and the Synthetic Payment Notional Amount ("Synthetic Payment Amount"). If 
Combined Synthetic Payment is specified as "Not Applicable" in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement, Counterparty shall pay all Synthetic Payment Amounts that have accrued but remain 
unpaid since the previous Synthetic Payment Date on the following Synthetic Payment Date. If 
Combined Synthetic Payment is specified as "Applicable" in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement, then such Synthetic Payment Amounts will be included in the Initial Price and Final 
Price stated in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

4. Margin. 

With respect to any SPB Transaction, an Independent Amount with respect to the Counterparty shall 
be applicable, which Independent Amount shall be determined as follows: (a) if the parties have 
agreed that SPB Transactions will be margined in accordance with a rules-based margin 
methodology provided by Nomura to the Counterparty from time to time (the ''Margin 
Methodology"), an amount equal to the Equity Value multiplied by a margin rate detennined by 
Nomura in accordance with the Margin Methodology (which Independent Amount may be specified 
as an aggregate amount in respect of all SPB Transactions and/or other margin positions 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties have executed this document with effect from the date specified 
on the first page of this document. 

NOMURA GLOBAL FINANCIAL PRODUCTS INC 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

,,// 
/// i' 

/<1 ,;,,t·<--~-P~- ·
, / ,:_,, 

ofual Kurek 
I 

,/4\uthorized Representatiw 

ARCHf;COS FUND, LP 

B~ ~~ 
Name: 

Titk: 

Sung Kook Hwang 

Managing tviember of the General Partner 

Nomura Global Financial Products Inc./ Archegos Fund, LP 
SPB Master Confirmation 
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"Lender" means, with respect to an SPB Transaction, any third party entity whom the Calculation Agent 
determines is engaged in securities lending transactions with Nomura or any of its Affiliates in connection 
with the SPB Transaction (including on a portfolio basis) involving securities identical or equivalent to (or 
involving securities of the same issuer in respect of) the relevant Underlying. 

"Long Position" means with respect to an Underlying that the Counterparty has one or more SPB 
Transactions where the Counterparty is the Floating Amount Payer. 

"Long SPB Transaction" means with respect to an Underlying, an SPB Transaction where the 
Counterparty is the Floating Amount Payer. 

"Multiple Exchange Index" means, in relation to an SPB Transaction, an Index to which the Calculation 
Agent determines the provisions of the SPB Index/Futures Supplement relating to "Multiple Exchange 
Indices" shall apply. 

"Open Market Country" means any country that is not a Closed Market Country. 

"Record Amount Market" means each market as determined by the Calculation Agent where the 
customary practice is that a holder of shares entitlement to a dividend is determined by reference to the 
applicable record date for such dividend. 

"Relevant Exchange Rate" means the exchange rate for converting one unit of the relevant Underlying 
Currency into 1 unit of the Settlement Currency at a time on the relevant date as determined by the 
Calculation Agent in a commercially reasonable manner. 

"Scheduled Cash Settlement Payment Date" means 1 Settlement Cycle following each Valuation Date, 
or if not a Currency Business Day, the next following Currency Business Day. 

"Short Position" means with respect to an Underlying that the Counterparty has one or more SPB 
Transactions where the Cmmterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

"Short SPB Transaction" means with respect to an Underlying, an SPB Transaction where the 
Counterparty is the Equity Amount Payer. 

"SPB Bonds" means an SPB Transaction that references Bonds and to which the SPB Bonds Supplement 
applies. 

"SPB Business Day" means each day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle 
payments and are open for business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign exchange deposits) 
in London. 

"SPB Custom Baskets" means an SPB Transaction that references a basket of Shares and to which the 
SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Futures" means an SPB Transaction that references Futures and to which the SPB Index/Futures 
Supplement applies. 

"SPB Index" means an SPB Transaction that references an Index and to which the SPB Index/Futures 
Supplement applies. 

"SPB Product Supplement" means each of the SPB Bonds Supplement, the SPB Index/Futures 
Supplement and the SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement appended to this SPBMC. 

"SPB Product Type" means the ''Product Type" specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, 
being SPB Bonds, SPB Futures, SPB Index, SPB Shares or SPB Custom Baskets, as applicable. 
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"SPB Shares" means an SPB Transaction that references Shares and to which the SPB Shares/Custom 
Baskets Supplement applies. 

"SPB Transaction" means an Equity Swap Transaction entered into under the terms of this SPBMC. 

"SPB Transaction Unwind" means, with respect to an Underlying referenced in one or more SPB 
Transactions, the termination (in whole or in part) of one or more SPB Transactions in respect of that 
Underlying, as effected on the Termination Valuation Date with respect to that SPB Transaction Unwind. 
The Underlying, number of Units and Termination Valuation Date with respect to each SPB Transaction 
Unwind shall be set out in an SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Synthetic Payment Adjustment" means the value specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, 
as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time in accordance with the provisions of the SPBMC in 
relation to the Terms. 

"Synthetic Payment Notional Amount" means for the purposes of determining a Synthetic Payment 
Amount (i) in respect of an accepted SPB Transaction Request, the Initial Price prior to the first Valuation 
Date multiplied by the number of Units for the SPB Transaction with respect to that SPB Transaction 
Request specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, (ii) in respect of the termination of an SPB 
Transaction pursuant to an SPB Unwind or Clause 2.3 of the SPBMC, the Final Price detennined for the 
purposes of such SPB Transaction Unwind or termination multiplied by the number of Units subject to such 
SPB Transaction Unwind or termination, (iii) in respect of the termination of an SPB Transaction other 
than where Sub-clause (ii) applies, the Final Price determined for the purposes of such termination 
multiplied by the Number of Units under that SPB Transaction as of the Termination Date and expressed to 
be payable under the SPB Transaction Supplement. 

"Termination Valuation Date" has the meaning given to it in Clause 2.3 of the SPBMC. Other than for 
the purposes of Clause 2.3 of the SPBMC, a Termination Valuation Date shall not be a Valuation Date. 

"Terms" means each of the following terms: the Transaction Spread, Floating Rate, Dividend/Distribution 
Percentage, Fee Adjustment and the Synthetic Payment Adjustment. 

"Transaction Spread" means for each SPB Transaction, the relevant Transaction Spread as specified in 
the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as may be adjusted by Nomura from time to time in accordance 
with the provisions of the SPBMC in relation to the Tem1s. 

"Underlying" means (i) in respect of an SPB Transaction to which Futures Price Valuation does not apply, 
the bonds, debt securities, index or shares specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as 
applicable in each case, and (ii) in respect of SPB Transactions to which Futures Price Valuation applies, 
the Futures or the relevant Exchange-traded Contract relating to the Shares or Index specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, as applicable in each case. 

"Underlying Currency" means the currency in which the relevant Underlying (or, in the case of Custom 
Basket Shares, the Shares of any Issuer included in the SPB Custom Baskets) is denominated except that if 
the Underlying is an Index the Underlying Currency means the relevant currency of the Index as described 
on the relevant Bloomberg Page or such other source as the Calculation Agent shall reasonably detem1ine. 

"Underlying Jurisdiction" means, with respect to any SPB Transaction that has an SPB Product Type of 
(a) SPB Shares, SPB Futures or SPB Index, the jurisdiction of incorporation of the issuer of the Underlying, 
and (b) SPB Custom Baskets, each of the jurisdictions of incorporation of the issuers of the Shares included 
in the SPB Custom Basket. 

"Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date" mean 1 Settlement Cycle following each Termination 
Valuation Date, or if not a Currency Business Day, the next following Currency Business Day. 

Schedule 1 - 3 

Confidential Treatment Requested by King & Spalding Archegos-CFTC-SEC 011559 

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight



Case 1:22-cv-03401-JPO   Document 44-26   Filed 11/01/22   Page 12 of 50

SCHEDULE2 

Form of SPB Transaction Supplement 

This SPB Transaction Supplement is entered into between Nomura Global Financial Products Inc. ("Nomura") and Counterparty ("Counterparty" and, together 
with Nomura, the "Parties") on the Trade Date set forth below. 

The purpose of this communication is to confirm the terms and conditions of the SPB Transaction entered into between Nomura and Counterparty on the Trade 
Date specified below. This SPB Transaction Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SPB Master Confirmation between the Parties dated as 
of [8], as may be amended and supplemented from time to time (the "SPBMC"), and, together with the SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the 
applicable SPB Product Supplement and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a "Confinnation" as referred to in the Agreement. 

The terms of the SPB Transaction to which this SPB Transaction Supplement relates are as follows: 

Floating Amount Payer Payment Dates Valuation Dates Floating Rate Option Combined Synthetic Margin Percentage 
Payment 

[Each Cash Settlement Payment Date] [[1st] [•] / [1st Scheduled Trading Day of each month] / [AUD-SWAP OIS-RBA] [Applicable ][Not Applicable] 
Business Day of each month and each [Each Scheduled Trading Day]/ [(a) 1st February, 1st [HIBOR-HKAB] 
Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date] May, 1st August and 1st November in each year from [JPY-LIBOR-ICE] 

[Last SPB Business Day of each month and the Effective Date to the Termination Date, or in each [NZD-OCR-RBNZ] 

each Unwind Cash Settlement Payment Date] 
case if not a Scheduled Trading Day, the next [SGD-SIBOR-ABS] 
following Scheduled Trading Day and (b) the [USD-LIBOR-ICE] 
Scheduled Trading Day falling one Settlement Cycle [GBP-LIBOR-ICE] 
prior to the Termination Date] [EUR-EURIBOR-EBF] 
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Product 
Identifier 

RIC Code I ISIN Underlying SPB Product Trade Date Effective Date Long I Short I Futures Price Multiplier 2 Maturity Date 3 

Type Unwind Valuation 1 

[SPB Bonds] [Applicable] [Not 
[SPB Shares J Applicable] 
[SPB Custom 
Basket] 4 [SPB 

1 This will be "Applicable" where the SPB Product Type is SPB Futures. Futures Price Valuation may also be applied via the SPB Transaction Supplement to SPB Shares. For 

SPB Custom Baskets, please insert "NIA". 

2 This will be "Applicable" where the SPB Product Type is SPB Futures. Futures Price Valuation may also be applied via the SPB Transaction Supplement to SPB Shares. For 

SPB Custom Baskets, please insert "NIA". 

3 This will be "Applicable" where the SPB Product Type is SPB Futures. Futures Price Valuation may also be applied via the SPB Transaction Supplement lo SPB Shares. For 

SPB Custom Baskets, please insert "NIA". 

4 Where the Product Type is SPB Custom Basket, the following shall apply: 

The information provided to you as counterparty to an SPB Master Confirmation (the "Information" and the "Counterparty" respectively) in relation to any custom baskets of 

shares or other relevant financial instruments created by Nomura International plc (an "NIP Custom Basket"), is provided by the Prime Finance department of Nomura 

International plc ("NIP"). NIP is authmised by the Prudential Regulation Authority ("PRA"), regulated by the UK Financial Conduct Authority and the PRA and is a member of 

the London Stock Exchange. 

For the avoidance of doubt and without limitation, Information shall include: (i) any materials relating to the NIP Custom Basket; and (ii) in particular, the level(s) of any such 

NIP Custom Baskets or the level(s) of transaction(s) linked to the NIP Custom Basket which may be published or communicated by NIP from time to time (including on any 

page, platfom1 or source, such as Bloomberg) and any corresponding page ticker or identifier (such level and/or ticker together, the "Level")). 

Information relating to the NIP Custom Basket (or any part ofit) is confidential and has been furnished solely for the Cmmterparty's information, it should be held in complete and 

strict confidence, and must not be referred to, disclosed, transmitted, reproduced or redistributed, in whole or in part, to another person. By receiving such Infmmation the 

Counterparty agrees and represents that, (a) unless the Counterparty first obtains written consent from NIP, the Counterparty shall not disclose the Level to any person (including 

any of the Counterparty's affiliates or group companies) other than those of the Counterparty's own directors, officers and employees whose knowledge of such information is 

strictly necessary for these purposes and (b) the Counterparty shall inform NIP immediately upon becoming aware of any suspected or actual breach of this requirement. Neither 
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Number of Units Initial Price/ FXRate 
Final Price 5 

I rooe, JISPR 
Futures] 

Synthetic 
Payment 

Ad_justment 
[•J, or otherwise 
notified by 
Nomura to 
Counterparty 
from time to time 
in accordance 
with the SPBMC. 

Notifications of Calculation Agent amendments: 

Dividend/ Transaction Fee Adjustment Related 
Distribution Spread (bps) (bps) Exchange 
Percenta2e 

Any notification of amendments by the Calculation Agent, including, without limitation, amendments resulting from any Corporate Action will not constitute a 
Confirmation but shall be a notice only. 

the Custom Baskets nor Levels are administered as a benchmark for the purposes of the European Benchmark Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 ("EU BMR")) or the 

Benchmai·ks (Amendment and Transitional Provisions) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019 ("UK BMR")). 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing between the Counterparty and NIP, the Counterparty shall not use any information, NIP Custom Baskets or Levels in any manner which would 

amount to the use of such information or Levels as a benchmark within the scope of the EU BMR, UK BMR, or within the scope of the IOSCO Principles for Financial 
Benchmarks, which for the avoidance of doubt includes, use of information, NIP Custom Baskets or Levels: 1. As reference for the issuance of a financial instmment; 2. As 

reference for the determination of the amount payable under a financial instmment or a financial contract; 3. As reference by a party to a financial contract; and 4. For measuring 

the petformance of an investment fund. 

This will be the "Initial" where the SPB Transaction is a short or long and Final Price where the SPB Transaction is an Unwind 
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SCHEDULE3 

SPB General Terms Supplement 

This SPB General Terms Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SPBMC and, 
together with the SPBMC, the applicable SPB Product Supplement, the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement (as each such term is defined in the SPBMC) and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) 
constitutes a "Confinnation" with respect to the relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement. 
This SPB General Tenns Supplement shall be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Tennination Date: 

Unit: 

Multiplier: 

For each SPB Transaction (a) as specified in the relevant SPB 
Transaction Supplement, subject to adjustment in accordance 
with Following Business Day Convention; and (b) if a 
Termination Date is not specified, the final Cash Settlement 
Payment Date in respect of that SPB Transaction. 

A trading unit of the Underlying (or, in the case of an 
Underlying that is Custom Basket Shares, the number of Shares 
of each Issuer included in a single SPB Custom Basket) 

In respect of SPB Transactions to which Futures Price 
Valuation applies, a "Multiplier" may be specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement for the purpose only of 
informing the Counterparty of the multiplier embedded in the 
relevant Exchange-traded Contract. Notwithstanding any SPB 
Transaction Supplement, the Multiplier for the purposes of the 
Equity Definitions shall be 1 for all SPB Transactions. A 
"Multiplier" specified in any SPB Transaction Supplement is 
not intended to take operative effective per the Equity 
Definitions. 

Equity Amounts payable by Equity Amount Payer: 

Equity Amount Payer: 

Number of Units: 

Equity Notional Amount: 

Equity Notional Reset: 

Type of Return: 

As specified with respect to the relevant Units in the SPB 
Transaction Supplement. If a Long SPB Transaction, then the 
Equity Amount Payer shall be Nomura, and if a Short SPB 
Transaction, then the Equity Amount Payer shall be 
Counterparty. 

As specified with respect to the relevant Underlying in the SPB 
Transaction Supplement (subject to reduction from time to time 
pursuant to any SPB Transaction Unwind). 

The product of the Initial Price and the Number of Units 
(subject to any SPB Transaction Unwind). 

Applicable 

As specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement; 
provided, however, that if Type of Return is not specified in the 
relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, it shall be Total Return 
unless the relevant SPB Transaction references an Index, in 
which case the Type of Return shall be Price Return. Section 
8.6(b) of the Equity Definitions shall be amended so that 
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SCHEDULE4 

PRODUCT SUPPLEMENTS 

SPB Bonds Supplement 

The following terms shall apply where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB Product 
Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Bonds. 

This SPB Bonds Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SP BMC and, together with 
the SPBMC, the SPB General Tenns Supplement, the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement (as each such 
term is defined in the SPBMC) and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a ''Confinnation" 
with respect to the relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement. This SPB Bonds Supplement 
shall be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Issuer: 

Bonds: 

Underlying Shares: 

Transaction Face Amount: 

Relevant Jurisdiction: 

Scheduled Trading Day: 

Bond Business Day: 

Observation Date: 

The Issuer of the Bonds. 

Subject to ''Additional Provisions - Conversions" below, the 
Underlying specified in the relevant SPB Transaction 
Supplement. 

In respect only of Bonds that are exchangeable or convertible 
bonds, the shares, if any, into or for which the Bonds are or may 
be convertible or exchangeable at a specified time, or from time 
to time, whether at the option of the Issuer or any holders 
thereof or on a mandatory basis. 

Number of Units multiplied by the principal amount outstanding 
of a Bond on the Effective Date. The Transaction Face Amount 
shall be subject to reduction by the Calculation Agent on 
account of any Partial Redemption. 

With respect to any amount payable under an SPB Transaction, 
such of the jurisdictions specified in sub-paragraphs (i), (ii) and 
(iii) of "Dividendi Distribution Adjustment Event" in this SPB 
Bonds Supplement as the Calculation Agent may determine to 
be material for the purposes of such payment. 

(a) In respect of Bonds that are not exchangeable or convertible 
bonds, not applicable; and (b) in respect of Bonds that are 
exchangeable or convertible bonds, as determined in accordance 
with Section 1.31 of the Equity Definitions. 

Each day which is both an SPB Business Day and (if 
applicable) a Scheduled Trading Day. 

In respect of a payment under Bonds (a) that are bearer bonds, 
the date of such payment and (b) that are registered bonds, 
whichever of the record date for such payment under such 
Bonds (as specified by the Issuer or in the legal instnunent 
governing the Bonds or as otherwise determined by the 
Calculation Agent) and the date of such payment that the 
Calculation Agent detennines to be the more appropriate in 
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Exchange: 

Related Exchange: 

connection with such Bonds. 

(a) In respect of Bonds that are not exchangeable or convertible 
bonds, not applicable; and (b) in respect of Bonds that are 
exchangeable or convertible bonds, the exchange or quotation 
system on which the largest volume of Underlying Shares 
normally trade. 

Not Applicable 

Equity Amounts payable by Equity Amount Payer: 

Equity Amount: 

Cash Settlement Payment Dates: 

Initial Price: 

Each Equity Amount shall be determined as if this SPB 
Transaction were a Share Transaction; provided that if the 
Equity Amount is payable on a Cash Settlement Payment Date 
falling on or after the Full Redemption Date or the Scheduled 
Maturity Date, the Equity Amount payable on the corresponding 
Cash Settlement Payment Date shall be equal to: 

(i) any amounts of principal actually paid by the Issuer in 
cash to holders of the Bonds in the Relevant 
Jurisdiction on the Full Redemption Date or Scheduled 
Maturity Date, as applicable, in respect of Bonds with 
an outstanding principal amount equal to the 
Transaction Face Amount as of the Observation Date 
relating to the Full Redemption Date or the Scheduled 
Maturity Date of the Bonds (prior to giving effect to 
such principal payment), as applicable, minus 

(ii) the Initial Price multiplied by the Transaction Face 
Amount as of the Observation Date relating to the Full 
Redemption Date or as of the Scheduled Maturity Date 
of the Bonds (prior to giving effect to such principal 
payment), as applicable. 

Notwithstanding the definition of Cash Settlement Payment 
Dates in Schedule 1 of the SPMBC, if the Observation Date 
with respect to the Scheduled Maturity Date or the Full 
Redemption Date occurs on or prior to the date that would (but 
for this proviso) have been the final Cash Settlement Payment 
Date (the "Scheduled Final Cash Settlement Payment Date"), 
such Cash Settlement Payment Date shall not occur, and instead 
the final Cash Settlement Payment Date shall occur five SPB 
Business Days following the Scheduled Maturity Date or the 
Full Redemption Date (as the case may be). 

(i) Prior to and on the first Valuation Date, the Initial Price shall 
be a price per Unit of the relevant Underlying determined by the 
Calculation Agent acting in a commercially reasonable manner, 
as converted (where the Underlying Currency is different from 
the Settlement Currency) from the Underlying Currency into the 
Settlement Currency on the Effective Date or relevant Valuation 
Date, as applicable, using the Relevant Exchange Rate subject 
to the occurrence of an FX Disruption Event (if applicable); and 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 2 
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Consequences of a Disrupted Day: 

Full Redemption Date: 

Scheduled Maturity Date: 

to notify the Parties of the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall 
not affect the validity of the occurrence and effect of such 
Disrupted Day on any SPB Transaction to which this SPB 
Bonds Supplement applies. 

Section 6.6 of the Equity Definitions shall not apply. If any 
Valuation Date (other than a Valuation Date occurring pursuant 
to sub-paragraph (a) of the definition thereof in this SPB Bonds 
Supplement) is a Disrupted Day, then such Valuation Date shall 
be the first succeeding Bond Business Day that is not a 
Disrupted Day; provided that if such Valuation Date has not 
occurred as of the Valuation Time on the eighth Bond Business 
Day immediately following the date which, but for the 
occurrence of the event causing the Disrupted Day, would have 
been such Valuation Date, then ( 1) that eighth Bond Business 
Day shall be deemed to be such Valuation Date, and (2) the 
Calculation Agent shall determine its good faith estimate of the 
value of the Bonds (inclusive of accrued interest through such 
eighth Bond Business Day, unless the Calculation Agent 
determines that on such day the Bonds then trade exclusive of 
accrued interest), on that eighth Bond Business Day (and such 
value shall be the Final Price for such Value Date). 

The date, if any, on which the Issuer pays all holders of the 
Bonds in the Relevant Jurisdiction in respect of the entire then 
outstanding principal amount of the Bonds held by such holders 
in cash (a "Full Redemption") in respect of an Observation 
Date that occurs during the period extending from and including 
the Effective Date to but excluding the Scheduled Final Cash 
Settlement Payment Date. 

The date on which the Bonds are scheduled to be redeemed in 
full (without taking into account any provisions in their terms 
and conditions relating to the early redemption or acceleration 
of the Bonds). 

Full Redemption Amount: The amount of principal actually paid by the Issuer in cash on 
the Full Redemption Date to holders of the Bonds in the 
Relevant Jurisdiction in respect of Bonds with an outstanding 
principal amount equal to the Transaction Face Amount as of 
the Observation Date relating to the Full Redemption Date. 

Synthetic Payment for Full Redemptions: The Synthetic Payment Notional Amount for the purposes of 
determining a Synthetic Payment pursuant to the occurrence of 
a Full Redemption shall be equal to the sum of the Full 
Redemption Amount and any Proceeds Value detennined by the 
Calculation Agent in connection with such Full Redemption ( or 
that would have been so determined if "Non-Cash Distributions, 
Redemptions and Conversions Occurring Following the Final 
Valuation Date" had applied thereto). 

Additional Equity Amounts: 

Additional Equity Amounts Payer: As specified in the Consequences of Cash Partial Redemptions 
provision below. 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 4 
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Consequences of Non-Cash 
Partial Redemption: 

Synthetic Payment for Partial 
Redemptions: 

Distribution Amounts: 

Distribution Amounts Payer: 

Distribution Amounts Period: 

Distribution Amount: 

Actual Cash Distribution Amount: 

Non-Cash Distribution Amount: 

Consequences of Actual Cash 
Distribution Amounts: 

If the Additional Equity Amount is negative, the Floating 
Amount Payer shall pay the absolute value of the related 
Additional Equity Amount to the Equity Amount Payer on the 
relevant Additional Equity Amounts Payn1ent Date. 

The Calculation Agent shall adjust the terms of the Transaction, 
as it reasonably deems appropriate, to account for any Non
Cash Partial Redemption(s), but without giving rise to an 
obligation for either Party on acc0tmt of such Non-Cash Partial 
Redemption which is a delivery rather than a payment 
obligation, and subject to the "Non-Cash Distributions and 
Redemptions Occurring Following the Final Valuation Date" 
provision of this SPB Bonds Supplement. 

Counterparty shall pay to Nomura a Synthetic Payment in 
respect of each Additional Equity Amount Payment Date. The 
Synthetic Payment Notional Amount for the purposes of 
determining such Synthetic Payment shall be equal to the sum 
of the Cash Partial Redemption Amount and the cash value of 
the Non-Cash Partial Redemption Amount, as determined by 
the Calculation Agent ( or as would have been so determined if 
"Non-Cash Distributions, Redemptions and Conversions 
Occurring Following the Final Valuation Date" had applied 
thereto). 

Equity Amount Payer 

The period that commences on, and includes the Effective Date 
and ends on, but excludes, the final Cash Settlement Payment 
Date. 

Any and all payn1ents or distributions, including, without 
limitation, interest and coupon payments and consent fees, but 
excluding Partial Redemption Amounts or Full Redemption 
Amounts, that are actually made by the Issuer to holders of the 
Bonds in the Relevant Jurisdiction in respect of an outstanding 
principal amount of the Bonds equal to the Transaction Face 
Amount as of the relevant Observation Date and for which the 
Observation Date occurs during the Distribution Amounts 
Period. 

The portion of a Distribution Amount, if any, that consists of 
cash. 

That portion of a Distribution Amount, if any, that consists of 
property other than cash including, without limitation, securities 
or other non-cash assets. 

The Distribution Amounts Payer shall pay the Floating Amount 
Payer an amount (the "Cash Distribution Amount") equal to 
the product of the applicable Dividend/Distribution Percentage 
and the Actual Cash Distribution Amount five SPB Business 
Days following the relevant Distribution Receipt Date, 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 6 
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Consequences of Non-Cash Distribution 
Amounts: 

Distribution Receipt Dates: 

Additional Disruption Events: 

Insolvency Filing: 

Additional Provisions: 

notwithstanding the occurrence of the final Cash Settlement 
Payment Date (unless the Distribution Receipt Date occurs 
more than six (6) months following the final Cash Settlement 
Payment Date, in which case the Cash Distribution Amount will 
not be paid). 

The Calculation Agent shall adjust the terms of the Transaction, 
effective as of the relevant Distribution Receipt Date, to account 
for any Non-Cash Distribution Amount(s), subject to the "Non
Cash Distributions and Redemptions Occurring Following the 
Final Valuation Date" provision of this SPB Bonds Supplement. 

In respect of a Distribution Amount, the date on which the 
payment or distribution by the Issuer in respect of that 
Distribution Amount would have been received by holders of 
the Bonds in the Relevant Jurisdiction. 

Applicable 

(a) Conversions. This provision shall apply only in respect of Bonds that are convertible or 
exchangeable bonds. If the Issuer converts the Bonds of holders in the Relevant 
Jurisdiction, whether pursuant to a mandatory conversion or optional conversion rights of 
the issuer or a holder, in whole or in part, into any securities or assets other than cash 
(including, without limitation, any Underlying Shares) (a "Conversion"), as of any 
Observation Date that occurs during the period from and including the Effective Date to 
but excluding the final Cash Settlement Payment Date, then, subject to the ''Non-Cash 
Distributions and Redemptions Occurring Following the Final Valuation Date" provision 
of this SPB Bonds Supplement: 

(i) if such conversion is in respect of less than all of the SPB Bonds then 
outstanding, then this SPB Transaction shall become an SPB Transaction with 
respect to the Bonds and such other securities or such other assets, or any 
combination of the foregoing, as applicable, and the Calculation Agent shall 
adjust the terms of such SPB Transaction as it reasonably deems appropriate to 
account for such conversion; and 

(ii) if such conversion is in respect of all of the Bonds then outstanding, then this 
SPB Transaction shall become an SPB Transaction with respect to such other 
securities or such other assets, or any combination of the foregoing, as applicable, 
and the Calculation Agent shall adjust the tem1s of such SPB Transaction as it 
reasonably deems appropriate to account for such conversion. 

(b) Non-Cash Distributions, Redemptions and Conversions Occurring Following the 
Final Valuation Date. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this SPB Bonds 
Supplement, if the Observation Date for any Non-Cash Distribution Amount, Non-Cash 
Partial Redemption or Conversion occurs during the period from and including the final 
Valuation Date to but excluding the final Cash Settlement Payment Date for an SPB 
Transaction, then in lieu of making adjustments described under the headings 
"Consequences of Non-Cash Distribution Amounts", "Consequences of Non-Cash Partial 
Redemptions" and "Conversions", (i) the Calculation Agent shall determine a cash value 
of the proceeds (the "Proceeds Value") that would be received by a holder in the Relevant 
Jurisdiction of Bonds with an outstanding principal amount equal to the Transaction Face 

SPB Bonds Supplement - 7 
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SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement 

The following terms shall apply where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB Product 
Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares or SPB Custom Baskets. 

This SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SPBMC and, 
together with the SPBMC, the SPB General Tenns Supplement, the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement 
(as each such term is defined in the SPBMC) and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a 
"Confirmation" with respect to the relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement. This SPB 
Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement shall be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Futures Price Valuation: 

Shares: 

Exchange-traded Contract: 

Exchange: 

Related Exchange: 

Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB 
Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares, as 
specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement, provided 
that, for purposes hereof, Section 6.8 of the Equity Definitions 
shall be amended by deleting references to "Index" and "Index 
Transaction" and replacing them with references to "Share" and 
''Share Transaction" respectively, and that the words "level of 
the relevant Index" in Section 6.S(e) of the Equity Definitions 
shall be deleted and replaced with the words '·price of the 
relevant Shares as determined by the Calculation Agent". 

Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB 
Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares: (a) If 
Futures Price Valuation applies, the share that underlies the 
Exchange-traded Contract; (b) if Futures Price Valuation does 
not apply, the Underlying. 

Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB 
Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares: (a) if 
Futures Price Valuation applies, the Underlying; (b) if Futures 
Price Valuation does not apply, Not Applicable. 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares, 
the exchange or quotation system identified by the Exchange 
Reuters ID Number in the SPB Transaction Supplement; or 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Custom 
Baskets, each exchange or quotation system on which the 
largest volume of Shares of each Issuer included in the SPB 
Custom Basket nonnally trade. 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Shares, 
All Exchanges: 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Custom 
Baskets, each exchange or quotation system where trading has a 
material effect (as detem1ined by the Calculation Agent) on the 
overall market for futures or options contracts relating to the 
Shares of each Issuer included in the SPB Custom Basket; or 

SPB Shares/Custom Baskets Supplement - 1 
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SPB Index/Futures Supplement 

The following terms shall apply where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that the SPB Product 
Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Index or SPB Futures. 

This SPB Index/Futures Supplement supplements, forms part of and is subject to the SPBMC and, together 
with the SPBMC, the SPB General Terms Supplement, the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement (as each 
such term is defined in the SPBMC) and the Jurisdiction Supplement (if applicable) constitutes a 
"Confirmation" with respect to the relevant SPB Transaction as referred to in the Agreement. This SPB 
Index/Futures Supplement shall be construed in accordance with Clause 1 of the SPBMC. 

General Terms: 

Futures Price Valuation: 

Index: 

Exchange-traded Contract: 

Exchange: 

Related Exchange: 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Futures, 
applicable; or 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Index, as 
specified in the relevant SPB Transaction Supplement. 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Futures, 
the Index will be the index that underlies the Exchange-traded 
Contract. The Calculation Agent shall determine whether the 
Index is a Multiple Exchange Index; or 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Index, (i) 
if Futures Price Valuation applies, the index that underlies the 
Exchange-traded Contract; or (ii) if Futures Price Valuation 
does not apply, the Underlying. 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Futures, 
the Underlying; or 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Index, (i) 
if Futures Price Valuation applies, the Underlying; or (ii) if 
Futures Price Valuation does not apply, Not Applicable. 

(a) If the Index is not a Multiple Exchange Index, the exchange 
or quotation system identified by the Exchange Reuters ID 
Number and (b) if the Index is a Multiple Exchange Index, with 
respect to each Component Security, the stock exchange where 
that Component Security is principally traded. 

(a) Where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 
the SPB Product Type for an SPB Transaction is SPB Futures 
and the Underlying Jurisdiction in an Open Market Country, if 
the Exchange Traded Contract is an option contract or futures 
contract on the Index, the stock or futures exchange where such 
options contract or futures contract is principally traded; 

(b) where the SPB Transaction Supplement specifies that 

SPB Index/Futures Supplement - 1 
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$UBS 

Portfolio Swap Master Confirmation 

~----------------- .... ,,,,,, .... ·""""·············'"·····"·~·· --------------, 
This Mastin Confirmation ls dtited as of February It, 202.0 M1d is subject to th-~ ISDA Master 
Agreement between UBS AG (UBS) and the Cour1t~rpartv named below dated~s of February 4, 2020 

as amended ahdsupplernented from timetotime (the Master Agreement). 

A~C'.HEGOS FW,JD, LP Countcrparly 
Addres5 c/o Archegos(apital Management, LP 

888 Seventh Avenue, 38th floor 
Nl':w Yoi'k1 NY10019 

Phone 2n.271.2012 

Attention Scott V. Be• ker 

Execution 

Signed for and on behalf of lJBS by; 

/ •' .·' ·,>::,:~:\\:•••,:.::.::·· 
Signature ' ·- ', ~·-· 

Name A~~-;~?t1ark 
Date Director 

SigrNd for Prfu-drl tkR~H:it Counterparty by; 

Signature /4 ~~ 
'.S .,,.1 J/<,il /.f .... ,,,,.,) Name Name 

Date Date 

SK 99979 1070 !!44660$ VI 
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JJ\ffROOUCTION 

1 DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

1,1 Incorporation by Reference This Master Confirmation constitutes a Confarrmtion under the 
Master Agreement and incorporate:; by reforence: 

(a) the :zo,n lSD,A Equity Derivatives Definitions (as supplernei1ted by the 2qo7 Full 
Lookthrovgh Depository Receipt Supplement) (EqllityDeflnitions); and 

(b) the 2006 ISDA Definitions (togetMrwith the Equity Definitions, thf' Definitions) 

1.2 Secticrns: Referen,:;es to ''Sectlpns"are !9 se:ctkins in the EqµityDefinitions-

:L3 CapitaHsed Terms: Capitalised terms not othe,wbe defined herein are defined in the Definttlons. 

2 COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

1.1 Covered Transactions: Unless. agreed othervvise at the tkne of trading ea<:h Equity Swap 
Transaction; lridex Swap Transaction and Basket Swap Jransa~tion entered into b~tween 
Counterp~rty and UBS on or after the date of this Mast~r Confirmation will be a Covered 
Trnn;-sattion wtiject to this Master C:~v1firrh,;1tion .. 

2 .2 Separate Transactions: Each Covered Transaction is B separate Tran$action for tf-ie purposes of 
the Mast<?r Agreement 

3 AMENDMENTS 

p. Without limiting either parly's termination and partial terrninatlon rights under any Covered 
TransactiQn the parties may ~9ree atariy time to change the ttrms of any covered Trnns,1ction, 
including changing which party is the Equity Amount F,iyer (as definedin the Equity Derivatives 
DefiO!tions)a11d which is; the Floating Amount Payer (.,s defined in the ISDA Df>finlfrins). 

~P- \>Vhet"El the parties agree to do so, such amendments wili be wnfirm;q in the Activity Repo~ t>y an 
gntry in respeizt of th\;! r!;:levant Covered Transaction in which ''Resize" wif! be speclflecl a.s the 
"Event Type", 

4 CONFIRMATION PROCESS 

4,1 Reports: We will prepare and send to you the fc,ilowfng Reports Which will be part of Md wbjed 
to this MasterConfrmatlon: 

(a) Activity Report B d,;iilf swap synthetic transaction activity r-eport for all Covered 
Tti!nsact:or1:>; 

(b) SwapSupp!ernent: a dailyswapeco.nomics confirmation; 

(c) Basket Swap Notifications: ln the case of any Basket Swap Transactlnn1 the Basket Swap 
Notification described in the "Basket Swap" section of this Master Confirmation, 

4.2 transmission of Reports: We INiH send relevant Reports to you e!ettrpnkally within 1 Loc91 
Business Day of the relevant Trade Date, Termination Date or amendment date. 

(a) Ob.crepandes; lt is your responsibjlity to rev\~w eat:h Report and notfy ll5 of any 
di~crepancy . . . 

{b) No Signatures: Signature$ (iife not r~quired from eith¢rpc1rty; 

(<.::J Deemed Consent: Unless you have notified us of an objectiont you will ha deemed to have 
accepted the terms set out iii each Report on the earlier of (i) 3 Local Business Days 
following reteiptand (ii) such shorter p.er,od as maybe required by Applh:abla Law 

., 
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SPECIFIC UNDE.RUER TERMS 

Equity swap Tram~ctions 

Shares As tpedfied in the A.ttivlty Repott under the heading "lnstrume'nt Name", 
"Shares" m~y iridt.H:le convertlbh.• bonds (Bonds:) ind exchange-traded contracts, 

Eql}ity Notional Arhovnt Fo_r eachValµation Date: 

Number of Shares 

Share Adjustments 

Number ofShare!:t * lnltialPrk:e; converted where ne.cessary in accordance with 
the FX Pr9vision~. 

The ~ouantlty" ~pecihed inthaActivlty Report, 

(a) Mfl!thod of Adjustment: Cakulatlori Agent AffJµstment. 

(b) Cons~quences of Merger Events; 

(i). Sharesfqr"Share: Alternative Obligation. 

(H} Share~tor~Othar: Calt:ulation AgentAdj1,15tt11er1t. 

(iii) Share-for-Combine& Component Adjustment 

(t) Tender Offer: Applies. 

(d) tonsequeoces of Tender Offers: Cakulatior1 Agent ,o,dju$tment. 

{e) Composit.kmof Combined Consideration: Applfos. 

(f) N~tion~!isatkm, lnsolven~y or Delistihg; C::anteUati()fl and Payment. 

Equity Swaps with Bond Onderliers 

Conversion Ri.ght The Floating Amovnt Payer m~Yr by giving rwtite to. thi; EqUity Amount Payert 
terminate ,;11! or part of a Covered Transaction ri;ferencing a Bond {the terminated 
pottion being the Converted Portion) and tep!~te it with a Covered Tra~3c.hon 
reforendng the number of :.hares in the !39hd fosver that a Bondholder would 
ree-eive lfit exerr:hedlts c0nversitin fight unMr the aond Terms with respect to a 
number 6f Sands tbrre1pt:mdln9 to the Cot·1verted Portion, 

Such converskm right is subject to: 

(a) hiji payment by the. Floating Amount Payer.ofal! Conver~JqrJ C~ts; and 

(b) the Conver~ion P.rovlso, 

The f!rial Va!uatlori Pate: in respect ofthe Converted Portion will be determined 
bythe(akulatidn Agent if"llt~ sole dJ5i:rdron, 

With effect frorn the final Valuation Dale, the Number of Shares undf:lr this 
Covered Tf,M1saction :.hall be reduced by the Converted Portion accordingly, 

If a Bondholder wo.u!d tie entitled under' the. aonJ Tetrn:. to redeem the Bonds 
eti{!y for cash, the Eqµity. Amount Receiver may, by ghnn9notke tP the Equlty 
Amount Payer, terminate this Transaction (in whole or i11 part) (the terrnintited 
pottionbelng Put Shares), provided that: 

(a) the• pijyment qate of5u<:h H$h amount. Will be deen1ed to be the tina1 
VdtJa(fon D,;1te lri respect of tne Put Shares, and With effect from 5lKh 

date; the Number of Shares under this Covered Transaction shall be 
reduced by the Pvt Shares accordingly;and 

(b) sui:h dght pf reqemption un(ler th.e Bonds is si,ibjeft to the Cotl\lerslon 
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Ma ndatmy Early 
Termination 

Conversion Costs 

C6riverslor1 Proviso 

Stinds 

Bond Terms 

B¢nd Issuer 

Bondholder 

Type of Return 

Futures Price Valuation 

Final Price 

Valuation Time 

ExchMgeAr\ided 
coMtract 

Non-Commerfcement or 
Discontinuance of 
E:xchange iiaded 
Contract 

Index Underliers 

Provis.o, 

If the a&nd lsst.ter ex~rl'.:ises its rtght to redeerh the Bonds early by deHvery of 
shares or cash underthe Bond rermstheri (uptm the EqvityAmount Payer giving 
reasonable notice of such ekerdse and .subject to fuli payment by the Equity 
Amount Receiver ohmy Conversion C<1st:5): 

(a) if th¢ $¢nd$ ate ri;:deetned by delivery pf shares1 the Cove.red Transaction 
will be te(n1frrnted in whole and rep!a.:;e"d by a Cover~d Transaction 
(efer¢ntin9 the 11umber ofshare11 whlth a holder of a Number of Shares in 
the Bt:mds would hJve received under the a.ond Te.rm:.; an.d 

(b) if the Bonds are redeemed in cash; the Covered Tra11sat:tlon Will be 
terminated and tl'Hi paytneht date ofsuth cash amount will be deemed to 
be the Mat Valuation Dat!:!. 

PrpvldM that if a eondhp!di?r rnay elect for VJSh or physical settlement the 
rloating Amount PayetwHl have atorrespondlng rlghthereundert subject to the 
Conversion Proviso. 

With respect to any Bond, th~ conversion price, cdrnrnis.!Hons, costs, e*pem;es, 
duties, t~x (other than. FATCA \N!thhold1ng T<1X (as defined in tha Sthedufo)), 
leviest foe, or other chiirrges payable by Equity Amount Payer onts nominee in 
connectit.ili with the conversion. 

Any conversion hereundet is subject fo the Etiulty Arnour1t Payer being able fo 
convertsvffident Bonds into shares of the !tsvet vrtder .the 130nd Tei-ms within a 
masonabfe time and in <:lctordance the n.iles of MY relevaht E'.!ilchange oi' deiJriri9 
syi;tem. 

c:Onverti~!e aondsrnferented by atovered Transattlbn. 

The terms and conditions ofthe Bonds. 

The issvar ofthe Bonds. 

An ad;ual holder ofariy Bonds. 

Total Return: 

Applicable, 

The Official Settlernentf'rl09ftherelevant Exch~nge-tradeJ Q;mtrat;t. 

The tiffle at which the Final Prlce is published by the Related Exchange 

The futures or opt:kms wnfract relating to the relevant Index or Share traded oh 
the kebtiid Eichange the explry i:fofe for which it (er would have bil'n, wl'!r.e ft 
11ot a Disrupted Day or a: nori-Sehedvied Trading Day) th¢ Valwation Date. 

Section 6'.$(e) is replaced bythefo!lowing; 

"If there Is no Offid!ll Settlement Pri,e as. a res.ult of the. fact that tra-0tng lh the 
Exchange.traded Contra<:t never commences or is. permanently discQntinued at 
anytime on or pdorto the Valuation Date, svth event shall be deemed a Hedging 
Dlstuptkin", 
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Index 

Equity Notion;;l AmoiJnt 

Number of Units 

lhdex AdJwstrnent 
Ev~nts 

Index Disclairh.er 

Basket swap$ 

Notkinal Amount 

8a$ket Creatibri 

aasketfy1odifftatlon 

Basket Swap 
Notifltatioh 

BloomqergPubl!c~tion 

The !ndet specified in the Activrty Report. 

NvmbercfiJriits * lnitial Prit&. 

The "Quantity" spedfied in thff Activity R~port, 

lndf;!j( Ci:iJ'l<:ellation;: ciincellaH¢n 1:1nd Payment 

h1dexMt;t~ifkatkm: Cuncelliiition and P<lyment. 

lrtdexD1$ruptiori: Calcv!ation Agent Adjustment 

Applies, 

As specified in the Basket Swap Notification or Bk>ornberg P•ublkaUon. 

Couriterparty may requestthat uascreate a Basket at any t!m~. For eatnBaJket 
swept UBS rrmst either (i) send a. Basket Swap Notification to Covn~rpart:y and 
Countetparty rn.ust acknowted:gtthe i:;ons:t,i.uentsby e•rnallprior to trading;or(H) 
pobHsh @ eroornberg PvblkMion th?t b only available to UBS and those parties 
notiflfl.d tiy C9vnter~rfy to USS to have ~trni:.$ipn to view lt. 

counterparty may remov~ on~ cir rncfre Share~ fmm the Ba$ket at any time, 
~u~jec.t to UBS's prior consent, whkh i::bnser,tsheH riofbe unreas:or'iably withheld. 

An e-mi:lil sent by Ll$5 to Counterparty listing the constituents ofthe relevant 
Basket 

A pub!icati<mon BJpornberg I isting th¢ toristffv~nti pf the refovantBas~et 
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Debtor Name:  FTX Europe AG Case Number:  22-11075 (JTD)

Assets - Real and Personal Property

Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock interests in incorporated and unincorporated businesses, including any interest in an LLC, partnership, or joint venture.

 Non-publicly traded stock and interests in incorporated and
 unincorporated businesses, including any interest in an LLC,
 partnership, or joint venture (Name of entity:)

 Current value of debtor's
 interest

 Valuation method
 used for current value

% of
Ownership

BCOIN DIGITAL ASSETS LTD Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

CM-EQUITY AG Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

9.9%

CONCEDUS DIGITAL ASSETS Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

90.1%

DAAG TRADING, DMCC Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX CERTIFICATES GMBH Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX CRYPTO SERVICES LTD. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX EU LTD. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX EXCHANGE FZE Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX STRUCTURED PRODUCTS AG Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX SWITZERLAND GMBH Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX TRADING GMBH Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

TOTAL

+ Undetermined Amounts

$0.00
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Debtor Name:  West Realm Shires Inc. Case Number:  22-11183 (JTD)

Assets - Real and Personal Property

Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock interests in incorporated and unincorporated businesses, including any interest in an LLC, partnership, or joint venture.

 Non-publicly traded stock and interests in incorporated and
 unincorporated businesses, including any interest in an LLC,
 partnership, or joint venture (Name of entity:)

 Current value of debtor's
 interest

 Valuation method
 used for current value

% of
Ownership

DIGITAL CUSTODY INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

EMBED FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX LEND INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

FTX MARKETPLACE, INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

GOOD LUCK GAMES, LLC Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

HAWAII DIGITAL ASSETS INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

LEDGER HOLDINGS INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

PIONEER STREET INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

WEST REALM SHIRES FINANCIAL SERVICES INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

WEST REALM SHIRES SERVICES INC. Undetermined% Ownership Per 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92]

100%

BITNOMIAL, INC. $2,000,000.00Funded AmountUndetermined

IEX GROUP, INC. $112,554,985.67Funded AmountUndetermined

TOTAL

+ Undetermined Amounts

$114,554,985.67
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Debtor Name:  West Realm Shires Inc. Case Number:  22-11183 (JTD)

Statement of Financial Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Bankruptcy

SOFA Question 25: Other businesses in which the debtor has or has had an interest

Nature of Business OperationBusiness Name and Address EIN Existed From Existed To

Financial offeringsDIGITAL CUSTODY INC.
122 S PHILLIPS AVE
SUITE 250
SIOUX FALLS, SD 57104

Unknown 11/17/2021 Current

Securities Clearing FirmEMBED FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES INC.
651 N BROAD STREET
SUITE 206B
MIDDLETOWN, DE 19709

Unknown 03/01/2022 Current

Non-Operating Lending BusinessFTX LEND INC.
167 N GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

Unknown 03/25/2022 Current

Dormant EntityFTX MARKETPLACE, INC.
167 N GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

Unknown 10/13/2021 Current

Operates a virtual gaming business.; 
Creator of the crypto card auto battle 
game Storybook Brawl

GOOD LUCK GAMES, LLC
167 N GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

Unknown 09/07/2021 Current

Dormant EntityHAWAII DIGITAL ASSETS INC.
167 N GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

35-2669879 08/09/2022 Current

Holding CompanyLEDGER HOLDINGS INC.
1110 BRICKELL AVE
SUITE 430K-200
MAMI, FL 33131

87-2550264 09/07/2021 Current

Dormant EntityPIONEER STREET INC.
167 N GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

84-455402 01/29/2020 Current

Holding company of FTX Capital 
Markets LLC

WEST REALM SHIRES FINANCIAL 
SERVICES INC.
167 N. GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

88-2663993 05/27/2022 Current

Operator of On-line Digital Currency 
exchange marketplace

WEST REALM SHIRES SERVICES INC.
167 N. GREEN STREET
SUITE 1102
CHICAGO, IL 60607

Unknown 05/05/2020 Current

UndeterminedBITNOMIAL, INC.
318 W ADAMS STREET
CHICAGO, IL 60606

Unknown Undetermined Current

UndeterminedIEX GROUP, INC.
3 WORLD TRADE CENTER
58TH FLOOR
NY, NY 10007

Unknown Undetermined Current
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Debtor Name:  FTX Europe AG Case Number:  22-11075 (JTD)

Statement of Financial Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Bankruptcy

SOFA Question 25: Other businesses in which the debtor has or has had an interest

Nature of Business OperationBusiness Name and Address EIN Existed From Existed To

Dormant EntityBCOIN DIGITAL ASSETS LTD
3 Cavendish Row
Dublin I, DO I KV26
IRELAND (EIRE)

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Majority owned by Third PartyCM-EQUITY AG
KAUFINGERSTRAßE 20
MUNICH, 80331
GERMANY

Unknown 09/30/2022 Current

Financial offeringsCONCEDUS DIGITAL ASSETS
Schlehenstrasse 6
90542 Eckental
GERMANY

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Proprietary trading firmDAAG TRADING, DMCC
UNIT 2617 DMCC BUSINESS CENTRE
LEVEL NO. 1, JEWELRY & GEMPLEX 3
DUBAI, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Issuer of Structured Products.FTX CERTIFICATES GMBH
CHURERSTRASSE 135
8808 PFÄFFIKON
SWITZERLAND

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Crypto Asset Service ProviderFTX CRYPTO SERVICES LTD.
AVE 23 SPYROU KYPRIANOU
3RD FLOOR, 4001
LIMASSOL, CYPRUS

Unknown 11/24/2020 Current

Investment ServicesFTX EU LTD.
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfaffikon, SWITZERLAND

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Trading VehicleFTX EXCHANGE FZE
c/o FTX Europe AG
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfäffikon, SWITZERLAND

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Services for banks and credit 
institutions

FTX STRUCTURED PRODUCTS AG
13 SCHAANERSTRASSE
VADUZ, 9490
LIECHTENSTEIN

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Financial IntermediaryFTX SWITZERLAND GMBH
CHURERSTRASSE 135
8808 PFÄFFIKON
SWITZERLAND

Unknown 11/14/2021 Current

Fintech product collaboration vehicleFTX TRADING GMBH
63 Wülfeler Straße
Hanover, 30539
GERMANY

Unknown 02/03/2020 Current
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   Fill in this information to identify the case:

Debtor name

United States Bankruptcy Court for the: 

Case number (If known):

Check if this is an 
amended filing

FTX Trading GmbH

District of Delaware

22-11123 (JTD)

¨

Official Form 206G

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases
Be as complete and accurate as possible. If more space is needed, copy and attach the additional page, numbering the entries consecutively.

12/15

Yes. Fill in all of the information below even if the contracts or leases are listed on Schedule A/B: Assets - Real and Personal Property (Official 
Form 206A/B).

  2.   List all contracts and unexpired leases

  1.  Does the debtor have any executory contracts or unexpired leases?

No. Check this box and file this form with the court with the debtor’s other schedules. There is nothing else to report on this form.

 State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

¨

þ

2.1
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

CM-Equity
Kaufingerstrafie 20
Munich, 80331
GERMANY

JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT DATED 
10/27/2020

2.2
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Deloitte Limited
24 Spyrou Kyprianou Avenue
P.O.Box 21675
Nicosia, CY-1075
CYPRUS

ENGAGEMENT FOR TAXATION AND 
PAYROLL SERVICES DATED 5/5/2022

2.3
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Digital Assets DA AG
IndustriestraBe 28
Herisau, 9100
SWITZERLAND

JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENT DATED 
10/27/2020

2.4
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

FTX EU Ltd.
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfaffikon, 
SWITZERLAND

LIQUIDITY SERVICES PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT DATED 3/1/2022

2.5
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

FTX Europe AG
135 Churerstrasse
Pfaffikon, 8808, 
SWITZERLAND

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING 
CONTRACT DATED 1/5/2022

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 1 of 2
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Debtor FTX Europe AG 22-11075 (JTD)Case number (If known)

Name

 Part 2:  List All Creditors with NONPRIORITY Unsecured Claims 

3.   List in alphabetical order all of the creditors with nonpriority unsecured claims. If the debtor has more than 6 creditors with nonpriority
      unsecured claims, fill out and attach the Additional Page of Part 2.

  Amount of claim

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.1 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

965.29Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

Allianz Suisse Versicherung-Gesellschaft AG
Richtipl. 1, 8304 Wallisellen

SWITZERLAND
¨

¨
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.2 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

19,403.35Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

AristaFlow GmbH
Talfinger Str. 7
Ulm, 89073
GERMANY

¨

¨
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Basis for the claim:  Stablecoin Collateral

Undetermined

3.3 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

UndeterminedCheck all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

CM-EQUITY
KAUFINGERSTRABE 20
MUNICH, 80331
GERMANY

þ

þ
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.4 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

UndeterminedCheck all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

Kephas Corporation
1254 Bay St
Florence, OR 97439

¨

¨
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.5 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

5,013.56Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

MLL MEYERLUSTENBERGER
GRABENSTRASSE 2 6340 BAAR/ZUG
ZURICH, 
SWITZERLAND

¨

¨
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.6 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

32,076.00Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

Prof. Dr. Dirk Zetzsche, Düsseldorf
ADDRESS ON FILE

¨

¨
þ

¨
þ

Last 4 digits of account number

Schedule E/F: Creditors Who Have Unsecured ClaimsOfficial Form 206E/F Page 2 of 4
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Debtor FTX Exchange FZE

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11100 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.13

Dubai World Trade Centre LLC
Sheikh Zayed Road
P.O.Box 9292
Dubai, 
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

LEASE AGREEMENT - THE OFFICES 
5, OFFICE NUMBER TO5-FLR06-06.01 
DATED 9/1/2022

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.14

Dubai World Trade Centre LLC
Sheikh Zayed Road
P.O. Box 9292
Dubai, 
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

LEASE SURRENDER AGREEMENT 
DATED 8/10/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.15

EMIRATES  TELECOMMUNICATIONS GROUP COMPANY P.J.S.C.
ETISALAT TOWER 1
DIERA
PO BOX 3838
ABU DHABI, 
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

INTERNET PRO BUSINESS EDGE 
DATED 10/27/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.16

FARAHAT & CO.
PO BOX 4647
DUBAI, 
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

ACCOUNTING WITH VAT SERVICES 
DATED 8/5/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.17

FTX Europe AG
135 Churerstrasse
Pfaffikon, 8808, 
SWITZERLAND

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.18

FTX Trading Ltd.
10-11 Mandolin Place, Friars Hill Road
St. John's AG-04, 
ANTIGUA & BARBUDA

INTERCOMPANY SERVICE 
AGREEMENT DATED 10/1/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.19

Hoko Agency Middle East FZ LLC
TwoFour54
PO Box 2454
Abu Dhabi, 
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

MARKETING AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 3 of 6
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Debtor FTX Europe AG

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11075 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.6

DMAP Vendor (Giorgio Antonucci and Ren6 Robert Wandfluh)
ADDRESS UNKNOWN

TERM SHEET AGREEMENT DATED 
12/23/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.7

Ernst & Young Law GmbH
Pelzmann Gall Größ
Rechtsanwälte GmbH
Wagramer Straße 19, IZD-Tower
Vienna, 1220
AUSTRIA

ENGAGEMENT LETTER AND 
STATEMENT OF WORK DATED 
6/4/2022

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.8

FTX EU Ltd.
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfaffikon, 
SWITZERLAND

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DATED 
5/12/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.9

FTX EU Ltd.
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfaffikon, 
SWITZERLAND

INTERCOMPANY AMENDMENT TO 
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
DATED 12/5/2021

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.10

FTX Exchange FZE
c/o FTX Europe AG
Churerstrasse 135
8808 Pfäffikon, 
SWITZERLAND

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.11

FTX Trading GmbH
63 Wülfeler Straße
Hanover, 30539
GERMANY

MANAGEMENT CONSULTING 
CONTRACT DATED 1/5/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.12

FTX Trading Ltd.
10-11 Mandolin Place, Friars Hill Road
St. John's AG-04, 
ANTIGUA & BARBUDA

POWER OF ATTORNEY AGREEMENT 
DATED 9/5/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 2 of 6
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Debtor FTX EU Ltd.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11166 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.6

Constantinos Charalampous
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
5/2/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.7

Erini Athinodorou
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
5/26/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.8

Frini Fournari
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
11/19/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.9

FTX Europe AG
135 Churerstrasse
Pfaffikon, 8808, 
SWITZERLAND

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DATED 
5/12/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.10

FTX Europe AG
135 Churerstrasse
Pfaffikon, 8808, 
SWITZERLAND

INTERCOMPANY AMENDMENT TO 
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
DATED 12/5/2021

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.11

FTX Trading GmbH
63 Wülfeler Straße
Hanover, 30539
GERMANY

LIQUIDITY SERVICES PROVIDER 
AGREEMENT DATED 3/1/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.12

FTX Trading Ltd.
10-11 Mandolin Place, Friars Hill Road
St. John's AG-04, 
ANTIGUA & BARBUDA

SERVICE AGREEMENT DATED 
4/1/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 2 of 6
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Debtor FTX Europe AG

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11075 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.20

James Eugene Manczak
ADDRESS ON FILE

SIDE AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.21

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd
Griva Digeni
Anna Tower
1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT NO.2 DATED 2/11/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.22

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd
Griva Digeni
Anna Tower
1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT DATED 2/9/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.23

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd.
56, Griva Digeni
Anna Tower, 1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

SIDE LETTER TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT DATED 5/12/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.24

light year capital GmbH
Schlehenstraße 6
Eckental, 90542
GERMANY

QUOTA PURCHASE AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.25

Loyens & Loeff Advocaten-Avocats CVBA/SCRL
Tervurenlaan 2
Brussels, 1040
BELGIUM

LETTER RE: MATTER AGREEMENT 
DATED 8/22/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.26

Matthew Robert Straughen
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTANCY AND EXCLUSIVITY 
AGREEMENT DATED 4/29/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 4 of 6
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Debtor FTX EU Ltd.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11166 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.13

Irene Kitrou
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
4/4/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.14

JAUME MORENO ROVIRA
ADDRESS ON FILE

AFFILIATE AGREEMENT
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.15

Joanna Argyridou
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
3/28/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.16

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd
Griva Digeni
Anna Tower
1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT DATED 2/9/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.17

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd
Griva Digeni
Anna Tower
1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

AMENDMENT TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT NO.2 DATED 2/11/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.18

K-DNA Financial Services Ltd.
56, Griva Digeni
Anna Tower, 1st Floor
Limassol, CY-3063
CYPRUS

SIDE LETTER TO THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT DATED 5/12/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.19

Konkrit Accounting Services Ltd
Williamson House, Aiolou & Panagioti Diomidous 9
P.O. Box 59511
Katholiki
Limassol, 
CYPRUS

ENGAGEMENT LETTER DATED 
10/1/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 3 of 6
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Debtor West Realm Shires Inc. 22-11183 (JTD)Case number (If known)

Name

 Part 2:  Additional Page

     Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the
     previous page. If no additional NONPRIORITY creditors exist, do not fill out or submit this page.

    Amount of claim

Basis for the claim:  Threatened Litigation

Undetermined

3.7 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

Last 4 digits of account number

UndeterminedCheck all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

IEX GROUP, INC.
3 WORLD TRADE CENTER
58TH FLOOR
NEW YORK, NY 10007 þ

þ
þ

¨
þ

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.8 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

Last 4 digits of account number

756.32Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

INSIGHT DIRECT USA INC
2701 E INSIGHT WAY
CHANDLER, AZ 85286

¨
¨
¨

¨
þ

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.9 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

Last 4 digits of account number

1,750.00Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

INTRINIO, INC.
76 4TH STREET N #150
SAINT PETERSBURG, FL 33731

¨
¨
¨

¨
þ

Basis for the claim:  Trade Payable

Various

3.10 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

Last 4 digits of account number

2,091.84Check all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
1 EMBANKMENT PLACE
LONDON, WC2N 6RH
UNITED KINGDOM ¨

¨
¨

¨
þ

Basis for the claim:  Indemnity Agreement

Undetermined

3.11 Nonpriority creditor’s name and mailing address As of the petition filing date, the claim is:
 $

Date or dates debt was incurred

Last 4 digits of account number

UndeterminedCheck all that apply.

Contingent

Unliquidated

Disputed

Is the claim subject to offset?
No
Yes

SINA NADER
ADDRESS ON FILE

þ
þ
þ

¨
þ

Schedule E/F: Creditors Who Have Unsecured ClaimsOfficial Form 206E/F Page 4 of 7
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Debtor West Realm Shires Inc.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11183 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.62

Gregory Sandman
ADDRESS ON FILE

Retention Incentive Award Agreement
Dated 9/30/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.63

HAROLD BOO
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
3/31/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.64

IEX DAP Group LLC
3 World Trade Center
58th Floor
New York, NY 10007

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT 
DATED 3/18/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.65

IEX GROUP, INC.
ADDRESS UNKNOWN

IEX GROUP, INC.  TERM SHEET FOR 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP WITH 
WEST REALM SHIRES INC. DATED 
1/4/2022

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.66

Intrinio, Inc.
76 4th Street N
#150
Saint Petersburg, FL 33731

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/7/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.67

Ivana Milicic
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
3/31/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.68

JASON HAMLIN
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
3/31/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 10 of 25
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EXECUTION VERSION 

 
4853-8071-0762 v.15 

SETTLEMENT AND STOCK EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 

BY AND BETWEEN 

IEX GROUP, INC., 

WEST REALM SHIRES INC. 

AND 

FTX TRADING LTD. 

dated as of 

July 31, 2023 

 

Case 22-11068-JTD    Doc 2110-3    Filed 08/02/23    Page 2 of 35



 

 -1- 
4853-8071-0762 v.15 

SETTLEMENT AND STOCK EXCHANGE AGREEMENT 

This SETTLEMENT AND STOCK EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) 
is made as of July 31, 2023, by and between FTX Trading Ltd., a company established under the 
laws of Antigua and Barbuda (“FTXT”), West Realm Shires Inc. (“WRS” and, together with 
FTXT, collectively with any of their successors or assigns, “FTX” and each, an “FTX Entity”), 
and IEX Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“IEX”).  The signatories to this Agreement are 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”.  Capitalized terms used and 
not otherwise defined herein have the meanings set forth in Article IX below. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Share Exchange Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2022, as 
amended as of May 17, 2022, by and among FTX and IEX, WRS acquired 1,570,142 shares of 
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share, of IEX (the “IEX Shares”) and IEX acquired 5,663,211 
shares of Common Shares, par value US$0.0000026 per share, of FTXT (the “FTXT Shares”) and 
49,234,136 shares of Class A Common Stock, $0.00001 par value per share (the “WRS Shares” 
and, together with the FTXT Shares, the “FTX Shares”), of WRS (the “Prior Transaction”); 

WHEREAS, IEX has asserted that the FTX entities fraudulently induced IEX into entering 
into the Share Exchange Agreement by, among other things, making false statements during the 
negotiations therefor and by making knowingly false representations in the Share Exchange 
Agreement and at the closing thereof;  

WHEREAS, on November 11, 2022 and November 14, 2022, FTX and certain of its 
Affiliates (collectively, the “Debtors”) commenced voluntary proceedings under Chapter 11 of 
Title 11 of the United States Code (11 U.S.C. §§ 101, et seq., as amended, the “Bankruptcy Code”) 
by filing petitions for relief in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the 
“Bankruptcy Court”), which cases are being jointly administered as In re FTX Trading Ltd., et al. 
(Case No. 22-11068 (JTD)) (the “Bankruptcy Proceedings”); 

WHEREAS, WRS asserts that it continues to own the IEX Shares and IEX continues to 
own the FTX Shares; 

WHEREAS, IEX has asserted that the IEX Shares are not property of the WRS bankruptcy 
estate nor any of the other Debtors’ estates;  

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to effect an exchange of all the FTX Shares for 991,542 of 
the IEX Shares (the “Transferred IEX Shares”) pursuant to Sections 105 and 363 of the Bankruptcy 
Code and Rule 9019 of the Federal Rules of Bankruptcy Procedure (the “Bankruptcy Rules”); 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire that FTX will retain 578,600 of the IEX Shares (the 
“Retained IEX Shares”); 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire that, promptly following the Bankruptcy Court’s approval 
of the Exchange and Settlement Order, IEX and FTX will, commence a sale process for the 
Retained IEX Shares, as provided in this Agreement, including by soliciting IEX’s existing 

Case 22-11068-JTD    Doc 2110-3    Filed 08/02/23    Page 5 of 35
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[Signature Page to Settlement and Stock Exchange Agreement]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
above written.

FTXT:

FTX TRADING, LTD.

By: __________________________________
Name: John J. Ray III
Title:  Authorized Signatory

WRS:

WEST REALM SHIRES INC.

By: __________________________________
Name: John J. Ray III
Title:  Authorized Signatory

FTXTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT:::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::::

FTX XXX TRTRTRTRTRTRTRTTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTTRTRTTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTTRRTRTRTRTTRRTRTRTRTRTRTRTRTTTTRTTRTRTTRTRRRTRTTRTTRADAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA INNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNG,G,G,G,G,GGGG,GGGGG,GGGGGGGG,GGGG,GGGGGGGGGGGG,GGGGGGGGGGG,GGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGGG LLL

By: ___________ ___________________________________________________________ ________________________________
Namemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm : JoJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJ hn J. Ray
Titlllleeeeeeeee:eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee   AuAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA thorized

WRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRS:S:S:S:SSS:S:S:S:S:S:S:S:S:S:S:SS:SSSS:S:S:S:S:S:SSS:S:S:S:S:S:SS:SS:SSSS:S:SSSSS:SS:SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

WEWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW STSTSTSTTTTTTTTTTTTSTSTTTTTTTTTSTTTTTTTTTTTTTSTTTTTTTTTTTSTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTSTT RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRREEAEAEAEEEEEAEAEEEAEAEAEEAEAEEEAEAEAEAEAEEEEEAEEEEAEAEEAEAEAEEEEEAEEEAEEEEAEAEAEAEAEEAEAEEEEEEAEEEEEAEEEAEEAEAEEAEEEEEEEEEAEEEEAEEAEEEEEEEEEEEAEAAEEAAEAE LMLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLLL  SH

By: _______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ ___________________________________________
Name: JoJoJoooooooooooooooooooooJooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooJooooooohnhnhnhnhhnhnhnhhhnhnhnhhhhnhhnhnhnhnhnhhhhhnhhnhhhnhnhnhnhhhhhhnhhnhhnhhhnhnhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhh  J. RaRR y
Title:  Auuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuttttttthttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttt orized
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 IEX: 

 
IEX GROUP, INC. 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
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Debtor Name:  West Realm Shires Services Inc. Case Number:  22-11071 (JTD)

Statement of Financial Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Bankruptcy

SOFA Question 4: Payments or other transfers of property made within 1 year before filing this case that benefited any insider

Relationship to DebtorCreditor Name and Address Total Amount or Value Dates Reason for Payment or Transfer

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$17,139.64 07/28/2022 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$7,299.32 06/15/2022 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$4,773.00 04/22/2022 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$26.00 04/20/2022 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$1,000,000.00 01/25/2022 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$7,947.95 12/28/2021 Cash Payment

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$16,909.00 2022 Expense Reimbursement

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$500.00 2022 Retirement Related Benefits

Father to Samuel 
Bankman-Fried

Bankman, Joseph
ADDRESS ON FILE

$41,666.65 2022 Salary

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$5.00 11/03/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$100.00 11/01/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$1,156.00 10/28/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$180.00 10/21/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$68.00 10/19/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$24.92 10/17/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$2,026.65 10/10/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$5.00 10/03/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$260.59 10/03/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$80.00 10/01/2022 Amex Charge

FounderBankman-Fried, Samuel
ADDRESS ON FILE

$884.00 09/30/2022 Amex Charge

Page 1 of 111
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Debtor West Realm Shires Services Inc.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11071 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.258

Jessica Moser
ADDRESS ON FILE

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND 
GENERAL RELEASE DATED 
10/21/2022

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.259

Jessica Moser
ADDRESS ON FILE

RE: OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT 
DATED 9/8/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.260

Jeya Presad
ADDRESS ON FILE

FTX BRAND AMBASSADOR 
AGREEMENT DATED 10/12/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.261

João Victor Garcia
ADDRESS ON FILE

FTX PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT DATED 6/24/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.262

Joe Bankman
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYEE INVENTION 
ASSIGNMENT AND 
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 
DATED 12/28/2021

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.263

Joe Bankman
ADDRESS ON FILE

OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT DATED 
12/27/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.264

John Conbere
ADDRESS ON FILE

OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT DATED 
3/1/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 38 of 80
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Debtor Alameda Research Ltd

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11067 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.216

JEREMY ARNOLD 
ADDRESS ON FILE

LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 9/8/2020
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.217

Joe Bankman
ADDRESS ON FILE

ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
1/14/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.218

Joel Becker
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/24/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.219

JOEL BECKER
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
6/21/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.220

Joel Becker
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/7/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.221

JOHN SAMUEL TRABUCCO
ADDRESS ON FILE

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
AGREEMENT DATED 2/1/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.222

Josephine Lee Pereira-Potente
ADDRESS ON FILE

LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 7/1/2022
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 32 of 57
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Debtor West Realm Shires Inc.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11183 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.69

Jayesh Peswani
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
4/14/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.70

Jeff Sime
ADDRESS ON FILE

Retention Incentive Award Agreement
Dated 9/30/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.71

Jeffrey B Dilley
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
3/31/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.72

Jenny Jin A Bong
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYEE INVENTION 
ASSIGNMENT AND 
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.73

Joe Bankman
ADDRESS ON FILE

ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
1/14/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.74

JOHANN KIRSTEN
ADDRESS ON FILE

INVESTORS’ RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.75

John Dwyer
ADDRESS ON FILE

Retention Incentive Award Agreement
Dated 9/30/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 11 of 25
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Debtor FTX Trading Ltd.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11068 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.321

Jessica Ferguson Murray
ADDRESS ON FILE

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.322

Jiayun Shi
ADDRESS ON FILE

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.323

JIN Qiu
ADDRESS ON FILE

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.)State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.324

JIN Qiu
ADDRESS ON FILE

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/28/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.325

Joe Bankman
ADDRESS ON FILE

ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
1/14/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.326

John Samuel Trabucco
ADDRESS ON FILE

SCREENING QUESTIONNAIRE
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.327

JOHN STOSSEL
ADDRESS ON FILE

DOMAIN NAME PURCHASE AND 
TRANSFER AGREEMENT DATED 
2/24/2020

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 47 of 96
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Debtor West Realm Shires Services Inc.

Name

Case number (If known): 22-11071 (JTD)

            Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page.

  Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

       List all contracts and unexpired leases  State the name and mailing address for all other parties with
 whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease

2.55

Balaji Varadaraju Mudaliyar
ADDRESS ON FILE

OFFER OF EMPLOYMENT DATED 
10/30/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.56

Balaji Varadaraju Mudaliyar
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYEE INVENTION 
ASSIGNMENT AND 
CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 
DATED 10/30/2021

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.57

Barbara Miller
ADDRESS ON FILE

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT 
DATED 8/13/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.58

Basketball Properties, Ltd.
Attention: John Vidalin, EVP/COO
601 Biscayne Blvd
Miami, FL 33132

NAMING RIGHTS FACILITATION 
AGREEMENT DATED 3/22/2021State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.59

Benzinga - Allen Arnold
1 CAMPUS MARTIUS, SUITE 200
DETROIT, MI 48226

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT DATED 
1/6/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.60

Berkeley Foundation
1995 UNIVERSITY AVE., SUITE 401
BERKELEY, CA 94704-1058

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, 
BERKELEY - GIFT AGREEMENT 
DATED 6/26/2022

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

2.61

Bert Scott
ADDRESS ON FILE

EMPLOYMENT OFFER DATED 
2/10/2022State what the contract or 

lease is for and the nature
of the debtor’s interest 

State the term remaining

List the contract number of
any government contract

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired LeasesOfficial Form 206G Page 9 of 80
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Debtor Name:  West Realm Shires Services Inc. Case Number:  22-11071 (JTD)

Statement of Financial Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Bankruptcy

SOFA Question 4: Payments or other transfers of property made within 1 year before filing this case that benefited any insider

Relationship to DebtorCreditor Name and Address Total Amount or Value Dates Reason for Payment or Transfer

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$3,029.87 01/21/2022 Cash Payment

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$1,182,653.23 12/31/2021 Cash Payment

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$2,891.10 11/24/2021 Cash Payment

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$4,687.50 2022 Retirement Related Benefits

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$26,041.67 11/30/2021 Salary

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$26,041.67 11/16/2021 Salary

Director/OfficerMark Wetjen
ADDRESS ON FILE

$130,208.35 2022 Salary

Aunt to Samuel Bankman-FriedMiller, Barbara
ADDRESS ON FILE

$14,000.00 01/03/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$290,412.00 09/30/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$461.10 08/30/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$2,378.48 08/25/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$1,898.61 08/18/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$118.31 08/03/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$5,412.94 07/23/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$78.17 06/27/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$1,481.11 06/15/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$431.35 06/07/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$3,429.89 04/13/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$439.18 03/22/2022 Cash Payment

General CounselMiller, Ryne
ADDRESS ON FILE

$3,653.92 03/15/2022 Cash Payment

Page 25 of 111
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IN THE UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
In re: 
 
FTX TRADING LTD., et al.,1 
  
 Debtors. 
 

Chapter 11 
 

    Case No. 22-11068 (JTD) 
 

(Jointly Administered) 
 
 

ALAMEDA RESEARCH LTD.,WEST REALM 
SHIRES, INC., and WEST REALM SHIRES 
SERVICES, INC., 

Plaintiffs, 

- against - 

MICHAEL GILES, et al.,2 

Defendants. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adv. Pro. No. 23-_____(JTD) 

 
COMPLAINT FOR AVOIDANCE AND RECOVERY OF 

TRANSFERS AND OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO  
11 U.S.C. §§ 105, 544, 547, 548, AND 550  

AND DEL. CODE ANN. TIT. 6, §§ 1304 AND 1305, AND FOR  
DISALLOWANCE OF CLAIMS PURSUANT TO 11 U.S.C. § 502 

 
Plaintiffs Alameda Research Ltd. (“Alameda”), West Realm Shires, Inc. 

(“WRS”), and West Realm Shires Services, Inc. (“WRSS”) (together, the “Plaintiffs”), through 

their undersigned counsel, for their Complaint against Michael Giles and certain former holders 

 
 
1 The last four digits of FTX Trading Ltd.’s and Alameda Research LLC’s tax identification numbers are 

3288 and 4063 respectively.  Due to the large number of debtor entities in these Chapter 11 cases, a 
complete list of the Debtors and the last four digits of their federal tax identification numbers is not 
provided herein.  A complete list of such information may be obtained on the website of the Debtors’ 
claims and noticing agent at https://cases.ra.kroll.com/FTX.   

2 Due to the large number of Defendants (defined below) in this adversary proceeding, a complete list is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
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of equity of Embed Financial Technologies Inc. (“Embed”)3 (together, the “Defendants”), state 

as follows:   

NATURE OF THE CASE 

1. Plaintiffs bring this adversary proceeding pursuant to Sections 105, 544, 547, 548, 

and 550 of Title 11 of the United States Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code”), 

and Sections 1304 and 1305 of Title 6 of the Delaware Code, Del. Code Ann. tit. 6, 

§§ 1304(a)(1)-(2) and 1305, to avoid and recover from Defendants, or from any other person or 

entity for whose benefit the transfers were made or obligations incurred, all transfers of property 

of Plaintiffs and all obligations of Plaintiffs to Defendants made on or around September 30, 

2022, prior to commencement of the above-captioned bankruptcy cases (collectively, the 

“Chapter 11 Cases” and each a “Chapter 11 Case”), by the above-captioned debtors and debtors-

in-possession (collectively, the “Debtors” and each a “Debtor”).   

2. On November 11 and November 14, 2022 (as applicable, the “Petition Date”), the 

Debtors filed with the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Court”) 

voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.  No trustee has been 

appointed for Plaintiffs or any other Debtor in the Chapter 11 Cases, and the Debtors continue to 

operate their businesses and manage their properties as debtors-in-possession pursuant to 

Sections 1107(a) and 1108 of the Bankruptcy Code.  Joint administration of the Chapter 11 

 
 
3 Defendants include former holders of Embed (a) shares, (b) options, and (c) simple agreements for future 

equity (“SAFEs”).  Although SAFEs are entitlements to receive equity upon the occurrence of a future 
conversion event, Plaintiffs are categorizing SAFE holders as equity holders for purposes of this Complaint 
for ease of reference.  Two separate adversary proceedings are being filed contemporaneously against the 
following additional former Embed equity holders:  (i) Rocket Internet Capital Partners II SCS, Rocket 
Internet Capital Partners (Euro) II SCS, GFC Global Founders Capital GMBH, GFC Global Founders 
Capital GMBH & Co. Beteiligungs KG Nr. 1, William Hockey Living Trust, and 9Yards Capital 
Investments II LP, and (ii) Samuel Bankman-Fried, Zixiao Wang, and Nishad Singh.    

Case 22-11068-JTD    Doc 1503    Filed 05/17/23    Page 2 of 29
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 -3- 
 

Cases was authorized by the Court by an order entered on November 22, 2022 [D.I. 128].  

Accordingly, Plaintiffs have the authority to file this Complaint to commence, and thereafter to 

prosecute, this adversary proceeding. 

3. Prior to the filing of the Chapter 11 Cases, Alameda was a cryptocurrency trading 

firm owned by Samuel Bankman-Fried and Zixiao “Gary” Wang.  Caroline Ellison was initially 

co-CEO and later the sole CEO of Alameda.  WRS is a Delaware holding company owned by 

Samuel Bankman-Fried, Nishad Singh, and Gary Wang, with a number of subsidiaries, including 

WRSS, which did business as FTX.US, the cryptocurrency exchange founded by Bankman-

Fried, Singh, and Wang to offer cryptocurrency trading services to U.S. customers.  Embed is a 

stock clearing firm and FINRA licensed broker-dealer founded by Michael Giles.   

4. On or about March 15, 2022, WRS began discussions to acquire Embed, 

ostensibly in order to provide FTX.US customers with the ability to trade stocks, in addition to 

cryptocurrency, on the FTX.US exchange platform.  The contemplated product was to be called 

FTX Stocks. 

5. Through a series of self-dealing transactions orchestrated by Bankman-Fried, 

Ellison, Singh, and Wang (hereinafter, the “FTX Insiders”), WRS paid Defendants 

$236,764,105.34 of misappropriated FTX Group4 funds to acquire Defendants’ equity interests 

in Embed on or around September 30, 2022—mere weeks before the Petition Date.  WRS also 

agreed, in “Retention Incentive Award Agreements” effective as of September 30, 2022, to pay 

 
 
4  The FTX Group is comprised of four silos.  These silos include:  (a) a group composed of Plaintiffs and 

Debtors WRS, WRSS, and their Debtor and non-Debtor subsidiaries; (b) a group composed of Plaintiff and 
Debtor Alameda, Debtor Alameda Research LLC, and their Debtor subsidiaries; (c) a group composed of 
Debtor Clifton Bay Investments LLC, Debtor Clifton Bay Investments Ltd., Debtor Island Bay Ventures 
Inc., and Debtor FTX Ventures Ltd.; and (d) a group composed of Debtor FTX Trading Ltd. and its Debtor 
and non-Debtor subsidiaries. 
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Pleadings [D.I. 92], and the Supplemental Declaration of Edgar W. Mosley II in Support of First 

Day Pleadings [D.I. 93] (collectively, the “First Day Declarations”). 

26. The FTX Insiders, among others, took advantage of the FTX Group’s lack of 

controls and recordkeeping to perpetrate a massive fraud—lavishly spending the FTX Group’s 

assets on, among other things, private homes and jets, political and “charitable” contributions, 

and various investments.  The acquisition of Embed was one such transaction.   

27. All of the funding for the Embed acquisition came from Alameda, which, at the 

FTX Insiders’ direction, had surreptitiously and unlawfully diverted and transferred assets 

belonging to FTX.com, the principal international cryptocurrency exchange operated by the FTX 

Group, to spend on the FTX Insiders’ pet projects.  By causing Alameda to take money 

belonging to FTX.com and spend it on the FTX Insiders’ pet projects, the FTX Insiders 

defrauded FTX.com’s creditors, including customers and investors. 

28. The FTX Insiders purportedly pursued the Embed acquisition because they 

believed it would help expand FTX.US’s operations into conventional securities markets, 

thereby enriching themselves as WRS shareholders.  In pursuing the Embed acquisition, the FTX 

Insiders prioritized speed above all else.  They performed almost no due diligence on Embed and 

accepted the significant terms proposed by Giles, Embed’s founder, CEO, and sole 

representative during the negotiation, who personally received approximately $157 million in 

connection with the acquisition.  As a consequence, WRS paid far more than fair or reasonably 

equivalent value for Embed, and awarded Giles an extravagant and unwarranted retention bonus 

as an incentive to complete the acquisition quickly. 

29. All of the FTX Insiders, except for Bankman-Fried, have pleaded guilty to crimes 

perpetrated through the very practices that facilitated the acquisition of Embed.  On December 
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dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight



 
 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Transfers and Obligations to Defendants in Connection with the Acquisition of Embed 

Defendant Type of Interest  
Amount of 
Transfer or 
Obligation 

Harland Group LLC1 Shares    $101,130,330.50 
Propel Venture Partners, LLC Propel Venture 
Partners US Fund I, L.P. Shares $17,516,885.68  

LGF II, L.P. Shares $12,000,752.03  
Buckley Ventures GP, LLC Buckley Ventures, 
LP Shares $12,000,752.03  

Laurence Beal Shares $10,113,033.05  
Y Combinator ES20, LLC Shares $9,161,214.61  
Acrew Capital MGP, LLC Acrew Capital 
Fund, L.P. Shares $4,420,123.58  

Homebrew Ventures III, LP Shares $2,400,166.59  
Propel Venture Partners, LLC Propel Venture 
Partners US Fund I LP Shares $2,400,166.59  

SWS Holding Company, LLC Shares $2,400,166.59  
Treasury Fund I, LP Shares $2,379,556.22  
Harland Group LLC Shares $1,475,329.71  
SWS Holding Company, LLC Shares $1,347,460.52  
Bain Capital Venture Fund 2019 LP Shares $1,253,914.97  
Fund I, a series of 20VC, LP Shares $1,200,093.41  
Soma Capital Fund III Partners LLC SOMA 
Capital Fund, III, LP Shares $960,070.68  

Kerr Investment Holdings Pty Ltd atf The Kerr 
Family Trust Shares $951,818.44  

The 2016 Karkal Family Trust Shares $951,818.44  
SWS Holding Company, LLC Shares $951,818.44  
YCC20, L.P. Shares $943,222.37  
Bain Capital Venture Fund 2019, L.P. Shares $828,783.28  
Yaselleraph Finance Pty Ltd atf Yaselleraph 
Finance Trust Shares $761,470.94  

S20, a series of Chris Golda Investments, LP Shares $720,047.95  
Launchpad Capital Fund I LP Shares $683,560.13  
Buckley Ventures GP, LLC Buckley Ventures, 
LP Shares $673,730.26  

LGF II, L.P. Shares $673,730.26  
Motivate Ventures QP Fund I, LP Shares $596,122.85  

 
 
1  Harland Group LLC is 100% owned by Giles.  
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 A-2 
 

Defendant Type of Interest  
Amount of 
Transfer or 
Obligation 

Acrew Capital MGP, LLC Acrew Capital 
Fund, L.P. Shares $556,985.41  

Liquid 2 Ventures Fund II, L.P. Shares $480,045.45  
Correlation Ventures II, L.P. Shares $480,045.45  
Adapt VC LLC Shares $480,045.45  
AAVCF3 LP Shares $480,045.45  
Basecamp Fund 201 via Alumni Ventures 
Group Embedded Trust  Shares $480,045.45  

The Gardner 2008 Living Trust Shares $480,045.45  
Cathexis Subsidiaries GP, LLC, Cathexis 
Ventures LP Shares $480,045.45  

Launchpad Capital Fund I LP Shares $480,045.45  
Craig Shindledecker Shares $434,860.42  
Operator Partners, LLC Shares $432,028.77  
Acrew Capital MGP, LLC, Acrew Capital 
Fund (A), L.P. Shares $380,189.36  

Kerr Investment Holdings Pty Ltd a/t/f The 
Kerr Family Trust Shares $359,619.46  

Motivate Ventures Motivate Ventures Fund I, 
LP Shares $355,695.60  

Homebrew Ventures III, LP Shares $328,471.31  
Adam Boryenace Shares $303,390.99  
Motivate Ventures Motivate Ventures QP 
Fund I, LP Shares $300,660.47  

Kerr Investment Holdings Pty Ltd a/t/f The 
Kerr Family Trust Shares $269,492.10  

The 2016 Karkal Family Trust Shares $269,492.10  
Stuart Sopp Shares $269,492.10  
VentureSouq Capital SPC o/b/o VSQ SP 59 
(YCS20) Shares $240,022.73  

Jonathan Weiner Shares $240,022.73  
James Nichols Shares $237,959.67  
Peter T. Lawler Living Trust Shares $237,959.67  
Carol H. Duggan Revocable Living Trust Shares $237,959.67  
KV5 Pty Ltd a/t/f KV5 Trust Shares $190,367.73  
Michael Ferrari Shares $190,367.73  
Motivate Ventures Motivate Ventures Fund I, 
LP Shares $179,405.21  

Stanton Camp Shares $141,582.46  
Mike McGee Shares $131,469.43  
BCIP Venture Associates II, L.P. Shares $129,467.05  
Aaron Frank Shares $120,021.48  

Case 22-11068-JTD    Doc 1503-1    Filed 05/17/23    Page 2 of 5
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 A-3 
 

Defendant Type of Interest  
Amount of 
Transfer or 
Obligation 

Benjamin Londergan Shares $120,021.48  
Jonathan Christodoro Shares $120,021.48  
Z Perret Trust Shares $120,021.48  
Akhil Paul Shares $120,021.48  
Fairchild Fund III, LLC Shares $120,021.48  
BCIP Venture Associates II, L.P. Shares $85,576.49  
BCV 2019-MD Primary, L.P. Shares $48,218.94  
Kamran Ansari Shares $48,016.68  
Acrew Capital MGP, LLC Acrew Capital 
Fund (A), L.P. Shares $47,915.55  

BCV 2019-MD Primary, L.P. Shares $31,876.28  
BCIP Venture Associates II-B, L.P. Shares $8,474.72  
BCIP Venture Associates II-B, L.P. Shares $5,602.62  
Total Transferred to Defendants for Shares                                                    $202,149,276.05 

 
Monique Saugstad Options $268,950.74  
Christopher Young Options $258,986.06  
Derek Clark Options $239,075.83  
Adam Boryenace Options $121,697.97  
Craig Shindledecker Options $121,697.97  
Joshua Allen Slate Options $94,616.65  
Justin Lovero Options $84,253.82  
Joshua Slate Options $60,848.98  
Mike McGee Options $60,848.98  
Stanton Camp Options $60,848.98  
Tana Lawler Options $60,848.98  
Tim Millar Options $60,848.98  
Dena Wever Options $35,107.26  
John Dwyer Options $20,782.58  
Brandon Mann Options $16,843.57  
David Meents Options $15,578.62  
Lindsey Boerner Options $7,265.59  
Brent Johnson Options $6,234.77  
David Streckert Options $6,234.77  
Kiara Baudoin Options $4,156.52  
Total Transferred to Defendants for Options                                                      $1,605,727.62 

 
TI Platform NLI Venture Limited II SAFE $9,067,021.82  
Torch Capital II, LP SAFE $6,457,980.65  
Treasury Fund I, LP SAFE $3,690,265.99  
PruVen Capital Partners Fund I, LP SAFE $2,767,694.43  
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Defendant Type of Interest  
Amount of 
Transfer or 
Obligation 

Transpose Platform Fintech Fund II, L.P. SAFE $2,003,816.59  
Fin VC Regatta I, LP SAFE $1,845,122.88  
TI Platform Fund II, LP SAFE $1,845,122.88  
Thomas G. Miglis Revocable Trust SAFE $922,551.33  
SWS Holding Company, LLC SAFE $873,968.32  
Alumni Ventures Group - Embedded Financial 
Trust A SAFE $645,798.06  

Philippe Jabre SAFE $461,275.66  
Bain Capital Venture Fund 2019, L.P. SAFE $401,649.22  
Silverstone Venture Investments Limited SAFE $369,024.58  
EM Fund I, a series of Chris Golda 
Investments, LP SAFE $258,772.29  

TriplePoint Private Venture Credit Inc. SAFE $230,637.83  
Fund 1, a Series of Not Boring Capital, LP SAFE $184,502.17  
Warren Lowell Putnam & Brynn Jinnett 
Putnam, Tenants in Common SAFE $184,502.17  

TriplePoint Ventures 5 LLC SAFE $161,444.46  
Embedfi June 2021, a Series of Party Round 
LLC SAFE $131,004.23  

Correlation Ventures II, LP SAFE $83,028.00  
TriplePoint Venture Lending Fund, LLC SAFE $69,173.15  
Joe Percoco SAFE $46,115.43  
Clayton Gardner SAFE $46,115.43  
Kick the Hive LLC SAFE $46,115.43  
BCIP Venture Associates II, L.P. SAFE $41,463.44  
Stephen Harper SAFE $36,892.34  
Samuel Jones SAFE $36,892.34  
Jonathan Duarte SAFE $36,892.34  
Christian Nordby SAFE $27,669.26  
Christopher Harper SAFE $18,446.17  
BCV 2019-MD Primary, L.P. SAFE $15,432.49  
BCIP Venture Associates II-B, L.P. SAFE $2,710.29 
Total Transferred to Defendants for SAFEs                                                      $33,009,101.67 

 
Michael Giles Retention Payment $55,000,000.00  
Laurence Beal Retention Payment $2,000,000.00  
Monique Saugstad Retention Payment $2,000,000.00  
Joshua Allen Slate Retention Payment $700,000.00  
Paul Trone Retention Payment $700,000.00  
Brandon Mann Retention Payment $500,000.00  
Justin Lovero Retention Payment $300,000.00  
Matthew Lyon Retention Payment $300,000.00  
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dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight

dragonbreathe
Highlight



 
 

 A-5 
 

Defendant Type of Interest  
Amount of 
Transfer or 
Obligation 

Adam Boryenace Retention Payment $250,000.00  
Craig Shindledecker Retention Payment $250,000.00  
Christopher Young Retention Payment $200,000.00  
Dena Wever Retention Payment $175,000.00  
Lindsey Boerner Retention Payment $175,000.00  
Brent Johnson Retention Payment $150,000.00  
John Dwyer Retention Payment $150,000.00  
Tana Lawler Retention Payment $150,000.00  
David Meents Retention Payment $100,000.00  
David Streckert Retention Payment $100,000.00  
Mike McGee Retention Payment $100,000.00  
Stanton Camp Retention Payment $100,000.00  
Tim Millar Retention Payment $100,000.00  
Kiara Baudoin Retention Payment $50,000.00  
Total Retention Payments and Payment Obligations to Defendants                    $63,550,000 
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FTX Traclmg Lid 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2000 

Name 

Filed 07/31/23 Paae 99 of 17 4 
case number(lt1cii<)wnJ: 22-11068 (JTD) -------------

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space Is Meded. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 7/6/2022 Citadel EnterprlH Asia Limited 

2.153 lease Is for and the nature 8 Finance Stree 
of the debtor 's Interest Two lntematlonal Finance Cenler 

161h Floor 
State the term remaining Hong Kong. 

CHINA 
List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONFIDENTIAL GL08AL E:.C.. Securities Amencn LLcl Heath Tarbertl esslca Fricke State w hat the contract or SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT DATED 
2.154 lea.se Is for and the nature 1/13/2022 Si&. SCS:Wh 

of the debtor 's interest Chicago. IL 60603 

State the term remaining 

Ust the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 8110/2021 ClearBank® Limited 

2.155 lea.se is for and the nature 25 Marsh Street 
of the debtor's interest 4th Floor, Prologue Works 

Bristol, BS 1 4AX 
State the term remaining UNITED KINGDOM 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
State what the contract or (NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021 Clement Joshua Ip 

2.156 lease is for and the nature ADDRESS ON FILE 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remain i ng 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

ENGAGEMENT OF CLEMENT T. 
State what the contract or MAYNARD & COMPANY FOR DARE Clement T. Maynard & Company 

2.157 lease Is for and the nature ACT REGISTRATION DATED G. K. Symonette Building 
of the debtor 's interest 6125/2021 Shirley Street 

PO Box N-7525 
State the term remaining Nassau, 

BAHAMAS 
List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CLOUDFLARE ORDER FORM DATED 
State what the contract or 11/4/2022 Cloud Flare 

2.158 lease Is for and the nature ADDRESS UNKNOWN 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MlJTUAL NONDISCLOSURE 
State what the contract or AGREEMENT DATED 10/12/2020 Coinbne, Inc. 

2.159 lease is for and the nature 100 Pine St. 
of the debtor's Interest #1250 

San Francisco. CA 94111 
State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Lea.ses Pa~• 23 of 96 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD 

Wesl Realm Shires I 
Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 63 of 84 

case number (tt'llllown): 22-11183 (JTDJ 
-------------

Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page . 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2.34 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2.35 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2 .36 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Retention Incentive Award Agreemenl 
State what the contract or Dated 9/30/2022 

2.37 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONFIDENTIAL GLOBAL 
State what the contract or SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT DATED 

2.38 lease is for and the nature 1/ 13/2022 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 8118/2021 

2.39 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 

2.40 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

CHAN LUK WAI 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

CHRISTIANA LAI 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Christopher Taylor Johnson 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Christopher Young 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Citadel Securttln Americas LLC - Heath Tarbert, Jessica Fricke 
131 S. Dearbom 
Chicago. IL 60603 

Coachella Music Festival. LLC 
425 W. 11th Street, Sutte 500 
Los Angeles. CA 90015 

COINBASE GL08AL . INC. 
248 3rd Street #434 
Oakland. CA 94607 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 6 of 25 



President of FTX.US Brett Harrison talks about Gamestop [Partnership cancelled, new ... 

. . .. . .. 

I' I 
11 • I 
1. :••• ' ., . • • . ... 

Brett Harrison Platinumsparkles ~ ,, 6 • -. . , " 

our Citadel or Susquehanna investors of 
• 

FTX 
• • • ' ' "" . . \ 

• • • 
• • • • • • • 

5:08 / 24:05 • Are Citadel or Susquehanna investors in FTX? > 



President of FTX.US Brett Harrison talks about Gamestop [Partnership cancelled, new ... 0 ,+ 

~.f • 
• 

'~l '; ~ 

' 

! II 
• 

' --· 
'I 

' l • 
I 

' ' I 
I I' 

-a I ' • -., 
• I -
l 
i 
! 

i , 
I 

~ .,-

5:10 / 24:05 • Are Citadel or Susquehanna investors in FTX? > 



26) Sa ou tokenize stocks. 

Instead of waiting 2 days to settle, you can just swap AAPL

token <> USO-token on a blockchain. Which, remember, takes 
about 10 seconds and costs about $0.0002 in fees. 

No remaining settlement uncertainty or risk. 

6:05 AM · 7/16/22 · Twitter Web App 

17) Ok, so how about market structure? 

On Janua 28th 2021, most major retail brokers shut down. 

Users were u11able to bu · sometimes they were u11able to sell, 
too. And on some platforms users ot Ii uidated. 

The weird thing is that there was basically no leverage! 

6:04 AM · 7/16/22 · Twitter Web App 

23) And on January 28th 2021, there was a lot of retail tradin 

volume. 

Which meant tens (hundreds?) of billions of dollars of pendi11g 
settlements between tens of counterparties which would take 

days. 

As GME rose in price, so did the potential loss if settlement 

failed. 

6:04 AM · 7/16/22 · Twitter Web App 

20) The dollars they send in are routed to the broker's bank 
account. Their order is in turn routed to a PFOF firm, like 

Citadel or Virtu. 

That firm, in turn, might buy the stock on an ATS from another 
trading firm, which would finally bid on NASDAQ, or NYSE. 

6:04 AM · 7 16 22 · Twitter Web A 
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Due Diligenc e 

Professional 

Luke Francis 

Robert Gordon 

Steve Coverick 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Luke Francis 

Mackenz ie Jones 

Steve Coverick 

Luke Francis 

Luke Francis 

Rob Esposito 

Lorenzo Callerlo 

Lorenzo Callerlo 

Lorenzo Callerlo 

Cullen Stockmeyer 

Cullen Stockmeyer 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Lorenzo Callerio 

Mackenz ie Jones 

£,:hibit D 

FTX Trading Ltd. , et al., 
Ti111e Detail by Activity by Profe ssion al 
June 1, 2023 through Jun e 30, 2023 

Date Hours Activity 

6/22/2023 1.2 Review of tokenized share transfers on exchange 

6/22/2023 0.1 Call to review drafted explanations of financial statements fu rnished 
for due diligence request with H. Ardizzoni , R. Gordon (A&M) 

6/22/2023 0.1 Call with S. Coverick and L. Caller io (A&M) re: bonus payment 
analysis 

6/23/2023 0.8 Update the FTX2.0 tracker including new responses received from 
G. Wal ia and K. Ramanathan (A&M) prior to circu late them to PWP 

6/23/2023 0.3 Review the PMO materials received from C. Stockmeyer (A&M) 

6/23/2023 0.4 Prepare an FTX2.0 responses / document approval list to be 
circulated to J. Ray (FTX) 

6/23/2023 1.3 Review of tax related liabilities based on insider payments 

6/23/2023 0.9 Research employmen t detail related to Dotcom employee severance 
claims 

6/23/2023 1.3 Review and provide comments on materials compiled in response to 
UCC request re: payroll data 

6/24/2023 1.3 Review of Insider payments throug~ tokenlze<fshare l n exchang~ 

6/25/2023 0.5 Conference 'Ni.th L. Francis and R. Esposito (A&M) re: tokenized 
shares of stock on exchange regarding insiders 

6/25/2023 0.5 Conference with L Francis and R Esposito (A&M ) re: tokenized 
shares of stock on exchange regarding insiders 

6/26/2023 0.4 Update the FTX2.0 trackers Including certain additiona l documents 
received 

6/26/2023 0.4 Draft a revised FTX2.0 approval 11st to be send to M. Wu (S&C) and 
J. Ray (FTX) 

6/26/2023 0.4 Draft an approval request list for J. Ray (FTX) re: additional Items to 
be published to the UCC data room 

6/27/2023 0.2 Meeting with L . Callerio , C. Stockmeyer (A&M) re: Diligence process 
update 

6/27/2023 1.1 Prepare diligence tracker related to FTX2.0 for additiona l dlllgence 
questions 

6/27/2023 0.4 Update the internal UCC diligence tracker 

6/27/2023 0.6 Draft an updated UCC approva l list to be sent to J. Ray (FTX) 

6/27/2023 0.2 Meeting with L . Callerio , C. Stockmeyer (A&M ) re: Diligence process 
update 

6/27/2023 0.3 Call with S. Coverick and L. Callerio (A&M ) re: dil igence process 
update 

6/27/2023 0.9 Research entity background/legal status for tax filing purposes 

case 22-11068-J TD Doc 2098-2 Filed 07/31/23 Page 327 of 816 

Business Operations 

Professional 

Kevin Baker 

Kevin Baker 

Kevin Baker 

Kora Dusendschon 

Kora Ousendschon 

Kora Dusendschon 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumana n Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Kumanan Ramanathan 

Larry Iwanski 

E.xhibit D 

FTX Trading Ltd., et al., 
Ti111e Detail by Activity by Prof essio nal 
June 1, 2023 through June 30, 2023 

Date Hours Activity 

6/8/2023 2 .3 Research AWS for specific users related to Insider trad ing and 
tokenized equity on or a round petition date 

6/8/2023 2.4 Analyze internal FTX deposit addresses related to specific user 
accounts for S&C request 

6/8/2023 2 .2 Perform quality contro l measures on KYC file IDs and Google Drive 
information related to specific customer accounts 

6/8/2023 0 .2 Draft correspondence requesting additional Information and update 
on KYC related items 

6/8/2023 0.4 Compile weekly dashboard for R. Perubhat la (FTX) for review and 
feedback by the team 

6/8/2023 0.1 Review request for additional metrics for tracking dashboard 

6/8/2023 0 .1 Call with M. Flynn. K. Ramanathan. L. Callerlo (A&M) to discuss 
latest crypto tracing status 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Call with M. Flynn, K. Rarnanathan (A&M ), 0 . Handelsman (S&C) to 
discuss BltGo KYB/AML agreement 

6/8/2023 0.2 Review historical Solana custodial presentation and distribute 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Review of KYC vendor final engagement letter and provide feedback 

6/8/2023 0.4 Call with R. Perubhatla (FTX) to discuss IT matters 

6/8/2023 0.3 Investigate domain registration legal entity 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Review of commercia l terms for coin matrix and discuss internally 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Call with K. Lemire (Quinn) to discuss Solana staking feasibility 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Review of customer accounts headings for borrow limit 150 million 
and its historica l data 

6/8/2023 0 .2 Review of final customer support KYC manual vendor presentation 
materials and distribute to CAO for feedback 

6/8/2023 2 .9 Prepare Solana custody selection presentation and distribute 

6/8/2023 0 .2 Review of most recent trading price SEY token and compare against 
market price of sale 

6/8/2023 0 .3 Call with G. Walla (A&M ) to discuss Alameda 's tracing exercise 

6/8/2023 0.3 Call with L. Abendscheln (Colnbase ) to discuss Solana staking 
options 

6/8/2023 0 .2 Correspond with 0 . Hariton (S&C) to discuss tax lmpllcatlons on 
various hedging proposals 

6/8/2023 1.8 Review of 4 separate tracing deliverables under Req 39 



Debtor 
---- Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 116 of 159 
AJomoda Rosoorch Ltd Cose number (1f known) 22-11067 (JTO) ------------Na mo 

Addltlonal Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Lea ses 
----------------------------- -, 1 
Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor ' s interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor ' s Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor ' s interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MARKET MAKING AGREEMENT 
DATED 7124/2021 

MARGIN LOAN AGREEMEN T DATED 

Coln98 Labs Ltd 
lntershore Chambers 
P.O Box 4342 
Road Town. Tortola, 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

61412020 COINBASE CREDIT . INC. 
ADD RESS UNKNOWN 

CUSTODIAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
DATED 5122/2020 Colnbase Custody lnlematio nal Limited 

70 Sir John Rogerson's Quay 

SECURITY AGREEMENT OVER A 
CUSTODY ACCOUNT DATED 
112612022 

MUTUAL NONDISCLOSURE L_ 
AGREEMENT DATED 1011212020 

COINONE MEMBERSHIP 
AGREEMENT 

LETTER AGREEMENT RE: 
ENGAG EMENT OF COLE-FRIEMAN & 
MALLON LLP DATED 111812022 

Dublin 2. D02 R296 
IRELAND (EIRE) 

COINBASE CUSTODY INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 
70 Sir John Rogerson's Quay 
Dublin. 
IRELAND (EIRE) 

Coinbase . Inc. 
100 Pine St. 
#1250 
San Francisco, CA 94111 

Colnone Inc. 
ADD RESS UNKNOWN 

Cole-Frieman & Mallon LLP - Bart Mallon 
201 California Stree t 
Suite 350 
San Francisco. CA 94111 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068 -JTD 

Alameda Research Ltd 

Neme 

Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 135 of 159 
Cose number (1f known): 22-11067 (JTO) 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 31512021 

2.237 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor ' s Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

COINBASE DER IVATIVES 
State what the cont ract or PARTICIPANT FIRM AGREEMENT 

2.238 lease Is for and the nature DATED 812612022 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenm remain ing 

Li st the contract number of 
any government contract 

BORROWING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what th e contract or 711412020 

2.239 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the tenm remain ing 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

PROPOSAL FOR PAYROLL 
State what the contract or SERVICES DATED 2120/2019 

2.240 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

GROUP SALES AGREEMEN T 
State what the contract or 

2.241 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MUTUAL NON-D ISCLOSUR E 
State what the contract or AGREEMENT DATED 11/24/2020 

2.242 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MARK ET MAKING AGR EEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 8121/2021 

2.243 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenm remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

LMAX Digital Broker Limited 
208 Regus . World Trade Center 
Bayside Road 
Gibraltar . 
GIBRALTAR 

LMX Labs. LLC 
Attn: LMX Labs. LLC Legal Department 
Civic Opera Build ing 
20 N Wacker Or. Suite 3000 
Chicago, IL 60606 

Lunar 8 Global Services Inc 
Mander House. 3rd Floor 
Johnson 's Ghut 
Tortola, 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Manpower Services (Hong Kong) Limited 
9 CHONG YIP STREET 
ROOMS 2303-04. 23/F 
KWUNTONG 
KOWLOON, 
CHINA 

Margarltavllle Beach Resort Nassau 
The Pointe 
New Providence 
Nassau . 00000 
BAHAMAS 

Mart<us lnfanger 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Mars Voyage Limited 
Vlstra Corpora te Services Centre 
Wlckhams Cay I 
Road Town. Tortola, VG 1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 16 of 57 
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ilarch 2022 

LMX Labs LLC 

oinbase Derivatives 

Rulebook 

CHAPTER 6: PRIVATELY NEGOTIATED TRANSA CTIONS 

RULE 601. Block Trades 
(a) The Exchange shall designate the products in wh ich block trades shall be perm itted 

and determine the minimum quantity thresholds for such transactions . 
(b) Products designa ted for Block Trades . 

None. 
(c) The follow ing shall govern block trades: 

million and the block trade is suitable for the customers of such adv isors. 
(10) A foreign Person performing a similar role or function to a CTA or investment 

advisor as described in Sect ion 10, or principal thereof, and subject as such to 
foreign regulation , shall be the applicable entity for purposes of Sections (1 ), (3), 
(4 ) and (5), provided such Persons have total assets under managemen t 
exceeding $25 million and the block trade is su itab le for the customers of such 
Persons. 

(1) A block trade must be for a quant ity that is at or in excess of the applicable 
minimum threshold . Orders may not be aggregated in order to achieve the 
minimum transaction size , except by those entit ies described in Sections (9) and 
(10) below and as provided in Rule 601(c)(2) . 

RULE 602. Exc hange of Derivatives for Related Positions 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

(8) 

(9) 

March 2022 

(a ) The Exchange shall designate the products in which 
Related Pos ition ("EDRP ") are permitted . 

Exchange of Derivatives for 

{b) 
Each Person to a block trade must be an Eligible Contract Participant. 

A broker for a Person sha ll not execute any order by means of a block trade for a (c) 
Person unless such Person has specified that the order be executed as a block 
trade. 
The price at which a block trade is executed must be fa ir and reasonable in light 
of (i) the size of the block trade , (ii) the prices and sizes of other transact ions in 
the same contract at the relevant time , (iii) the prices and sizes of transac tions in 
other relevant markets , including w ithou t limitation the underlying cash market or 
related futures markets , at the relevant time , and (iv) the circums tances of the 
markets or the Participants to the block trade. 
Block trades shall not set off conditional orders (e.g. , Stop Orders and MIT 
Orders) or otherwise affect orders in the regu lar market. 
One of the Persons or the broker of one of the Persons to the block trade must (d ) 
ensure that each block trade is reported to the Exchange within 5 minutes of the 
transaction . The Exchange sha ll promptly publish such info rmation separately 
from the reports of transac tions in the regular market. 
Reporting Method and Information 

1. Block trades must be reported to the Exchange by cal ling the FeirX 
Exchange Contro l Center or in accordance with another approved 
reporting method. 

11 • The block trade report must include the information related to the block 
trade spec ified in the Exchange 's approved report ing method , including: 
the ident ificat ion of parties to the block trade ; product details; trade 
quantity , price , and time; and , Clea ring Firm. 

(e) 

(f) 

Clearing Firms , Participants , Participant Firms , and Broker Firms involved in the (g) 
execution of block trades must maintain a record of the transaction in accordance 
wi th Rules 401. 

A commod ity trad ing adv isor ("CTA") registered or exempt from registration under {h} 
the Act , including , wi thout limitation , any investment advisor registered or exempt 
from registration under the Investment Adv isors Act of 1940 , or principa l thereof , 
shall be the applicab le entity for purposes of Sect ions (1), (3), (4) and (5), 
provided such advisors have total assets under managemen t exceed ing $25 (i) 

58 

EDRPs Permitted 
None . 
Nature of an EDRP 
(1) An EDRP consists of two discrete but related simu ltaneous transactions . One 

party to the EDRP must be the buyer of (or the holder of the long market 
exposure associated wi th ) the related position and the seller of the 
corresponding Contract. The other party to the EDRP must be the seller of (or 
the holder of the short market exposure associated with) the related posit ion 
and the buyer of the correspond ing Con tract. 

(2) However, a Participant may facilitate , as princ ipal , the related posit ion on beha lf 
of a Customer , provided that the Participant can demonstra te that the related 
posit ion was passed through to the Customer who rece ived the Exchange 
Contract position as part of the EDRP. 

Related Pos itions 

The related position ( cash jOiiTl!ijCjiiiiisw~a._,.~~~ tiio~n~, -io~r!l!o•th!le~r~O!IT!IC~ d~e~r~iv~a~tiv!l!IJe 
derivative or related produc o sue on rac a as a reasona 

ust be a 

correlation and quantitat ive equ iva lence to the Con tract. 
Quanti ty 

The quant ity covered by the related pos ition must be approxima tely equivalent to the 
quantity covered by the Exchange Contracts . 
Prices and Price Increments 
An EDRP transaction may be entered into in accordance wi th the applicab le price 
increments or option premium increme nts set forth in the rules governing the pert inent 
Contrac ts , at such prices as are mutually agreed upon by the two parties to the 
transaction . 
Date and Time of Transaction 
The date and the time of execution of all EDRP transactions must be denoted on the 

record of the transact ion required to be created pursuant to Rule 401 . 
Termination of Tradin g in Exchange Contracts 
EDRP transactions may be perm itted after termination of trading in expiring Contracts , 
as prescribed in the app licable ru les governing such Contracts . Such transact ions shall 
not establ ish new pos itions . 
Identification and Subm ission to the Exchange 

59 
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Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD 

Madaunn lnvestmen1S ltd 
Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 61 of 68 case nunber (I !Chov,,i): 22-11087 (JTO) 

------------
Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page _ 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
State what the contract or SHAREHOLDERS ' AGREEMENT 

2.27 lease Is for and the nature DATED 9/ 17/2021 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 11/4/202 1 
State what the contract or 

2.28 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

LOAN AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or 

2.29 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 10/ 10/2022 

2.30 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

SHAREHOLDERS'AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 12/9/2020 

2.31 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

BLOCK TRADE AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 9/ 1/2021 

2.32 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

SECOND AMENDED ANO RESTATED 
State what the contract or LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

2.33 lease is for and the nature AGREEMENT DATED 11/ 19/2021 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor ha.s an ex.ecutory contract or unexpired lease 

M~eague Pte. Ltd_ 
Attention : Sai Srinivas Kiran G 
50 Raffles Place 
#1 S-00, Singapore Land Tower 
Singapore, 048623 
SINGAPORE 

MR SEUNG GUN LEE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

OTC Senrice AG 
Boglerenstrasse 2a 
KOsnacht. 8700 
SWITZERLAND 

Otter Audits LLC 
519 West 22nd Street 
Sioux Falls. SO 57 105 

OVEX (PTY) L TO 
1st Floor , The Annex. 2 Energy Lane 
Brtdgeways Preclnd. Century City 
Cape Town, 7 44 1 
SOUTH AFRICA 

Paradigm Connect Asia Pie Ltd 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

Paradigm Connect Holdings. LLC 
190 Elgin Avenue , George Town 
Grand Cayman, KY 1-9008 
CAYMAN ISLANDS 
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Debtor 
___ _.! case 22-11068-JTD 
Mada urin lnves~nenlS ltd . 

Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 62 of 68 
Casenumber(~Kn= ): 22-11087 (JTO) ------------Name 

Additional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue number ing the lines sequentially fr om the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

INVESTORS ' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 11/19/2021} 

2.34 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT DATED 
State wh at the contract or 10/28/2021 

2.35 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's intere st 

State the term remaining 

Lis t the con tr act number of 
any government contract 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 10/28/2021 

2.36 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term rema ining 

Lis t the con tract number of 
any government contract 

SHAREHOLDERS' AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 10/27/2021 

2.37 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

VOTING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 211/2022 

2.38 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the con tract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 211/2022 

2.39 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term rema ining 

List the con tract number of 
any government contr act 

LETTER AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract o r 211212021 

2.40 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term rema in ing 

Lis t the con tract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory con tra ct or unexp ired lease 

Paradigm Connect Holdings, LLC, 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

PARADIGM ONE (CAYMAN) FEEDER LP 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

PARADIGM ONE GP. LLC 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

Plemont Holdings 1 Limtted 
attention: The Legal Department 
6th Floor. 37 Esplanade 
St Helier, JE2 3QA 
JERSEY 

Portals Labs, Inc. 
4470 W. SUNSET BLVD. 
#90092 
LOS ANGELES , CA 90027 

Portals Labs, Inc. 
4470 W. SUNSET BLVD. 
#90092 
LOS ANGELES , CA 90027 

PYTH DATA FOUNDATION 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 
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Debtor FTX Tredtng Lid 
case 22-11068-JTD 

Name 

Doc 2000 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 132 of 174 
C8se nootber (11 known) 22-11068 (JTO) 

------------

Additional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Cont inue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and uneJ(plred leases 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
State what the contrac t or (NON·U.S.) DATED 11/2212021 

2.384 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any gove rnment cont ract 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
State what the contract or (NON·U.S.) DATED 11/2212021 

2.385 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government cont ract 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN (U.S.) 
State what the contrac t or DATED 11/2212021 

2.386 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government cont ract 

GENERAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 6/30/2020 

2.387 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

COLLABORATION AND 
State what the contract or CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 

2.388 lease Is for and the nature DATED 2/25/2022 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
State what the contract or (NON-U.S.) DATED 11/2212021 

2.389 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

LETTER AGREEMENT RE: FTX 
State what the contrac t or ADVISORY BOARD DATED 8/24/2021 

2.390 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and malllng address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexp ired lease 

Man Ho Cheung 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Man Kai Chui (Brandon) 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Marla Shaikh 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Market Mastery 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

MARQUES & FILMS 
22 rue Perler - 92120 MONTROUGE 

Matt Burgess 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Matt Huang - Paradigm Fund L.P .. Paradigm Green FOl1rtudo LP 
548 Market Street 
San Francisco. CA 94104 
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FTX Trod__l!l9 Lid 
Case 22-1 1068-JTD 

Name 

Doc 200 0 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 142 of 174 
Cose number(II known) 22-11068 (JTO) 

------------

Addltlonal Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed . Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

SECONDARY SHARE PURCHAS E 
State what the cont ract or AG REEMENT DATED 10/18/2021 Paper Bird Inc 

2.454 lease Is for and the nature 3500 South Dupont Highway 
of the debtor 's Intere st Dover, DE 19901 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

PAYMENT AGENT AGREEMENT 
State what the cont ract o r DATED 10/15/2021 Paper Bird Inc 

2.455 lease Is for and the nature 3500 South Dupont Highway 
of the debtor 's Intere st Dover. DE 19901 

State the term rema ining 

List the cont ract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract o r DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

2.456 lease Is for and the nature 548 Market Street Ste 46425 
of the debtor 's Intere st San Francisco. CA 94104 

State the term rema ining 

List the cont ract number of 
any government contra ct 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

2.457 lease Is for and the nature 548 Market Street Ste 46425 
of the debtor 's Interest San Francisco, CA 94104 

State the term rema ining 

Li st the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/202 Paradigm Fund LP 

2.458 lease Is for and the nature 548 Market Street Ste 46425 
of the debtor 's Interest San Francisco. CA 94104 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

2.459 lease Is for and the nature 548 Market Street Ste 46425 
of the debtor 's Intere st San Franc.lsco, CA 94104 

State the term rema ining 

Li st the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Green Fortitudo LP 

2.460 lease Is for and the nature 548 Market Street Ste 46425 
of the debtor 's Intere st San Franc.lsco, CA 94104 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contra ct 
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Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Page 41 of 68 Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Page 45 of 68 
Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number : 22-11087 (JTO) Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number. 22-11087 (JTD) 

Assets • Real and Personal Property Assets - Real and Personal Property 

Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests In incorporated and unincorporated businesses . including any interest in an LLC. partnership, or Joint venture . Part 11, Question 77: Other property of any kind not already listed 

Non-publicly traded stock and interests in incorporated and %o f Valuation method Current value of debtor's 
unincorporated businesses, Inc lud ing any Interest In an LLC , Ow nership used for current value Interest 
partne rship, or Joint vent ure (Name of entity .1 

Other prope rty of any ki nd not al ready lis ted Current value of debtor's 
Examples: Season tickets, country club membership interest 

KABOMPO HOLDINGS. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $4,999,995.39 
Fund Investment: VY DHARANA EM TECHNOLOGY FUND ($0.9M Funded Undetermined 
Amount ) 

Fund Investment: LIQUID VALUE FUND I LP ($27.1 M Funded Amount) Undetermined 

LIGHTBEAM DATA LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $8,675,000.00 

Fund Investment: ETHEREAL VENTURES FUND I L.P. ($1.4M Funded Amount ) Undetermined 

LIMIT BREAK INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amount S1.000.997.36 
Fund Investment: RACE CAPITAL II, L.P. (SO.3M Funded Amount) Undetermined 

MERGE HOLDINGS LTD Undeterm ined Funded Amount $475,965.00 Fund Investment: PARADIGM ONE (Cayman) Feeder LP $20.3M Funded Undetermined 
Amount\ 

MESSAR I HOLDING INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $499 ,996.59 
Fund Investment: IOSG FUND II LP ($3M Funded Amount ) Undetermined 

Fund Investment: AGILE GROUP FUND A ($1M Funded Amount) Undetermined 

METALINK LABS, INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $300 ,000.00 

Fund Investment: KRAKEN VENTU RES FUND I LP ($3M Funded Amount ) Undetermined 

M-L.EAGUE PTE. LTD. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $15,000,000.11 
Fund Investment: SCHF CAYMAN, L.P. ($25M Funded Amount ) Undetermined 

MOJOVERSE . INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $250 ,000.00 Fund Investment: VY SPACE II, L.P. ($9.7M Funded Amount) Undetermined 

Fund Investment: ROK CAPITAL OFFSHORE FUND. LTD. ($SM Funded Amount ) Undetermined 
NESTCOIN HOLD ING LIMITED Undeterm ined Funded Amount $250 ,050.00 

Fund Investment: UVM SIGN UM BLOCKCHA IN FUND VCC ($2.1 M Funded Undetermined 

NOOM LIMITED Undeterm ined Funded Amount $2,073,965.69 
Amount) 

Token Receivable: 1 INCH LIMITED , ( Token: 1 INCH: Qty: 4 ,444,444 .44667; USO Undetermined 
Spot Price Receivable Amount: $5,502 ,355 ) 

O'LEARY PRODUCT IONS USA LLC Undeterm ined Funded Amount s1.ooo.ooo.oo Token Receivable : ARMOR DAO, ( Token: ARMOR; Qty: 833,333.33333 ; USO Undetermined 
Spot Price Receivable Amount: S4. 182 ) 

ODYSSEY TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED Undeterm ined Funded Amount $1,969,205.08 Token Receivable : AXELAR FOUNDATION, ( Token: AXL; Qty: 1.173,708.92019: Undetermined 
USO Spot Price Receivable Amount: $804,280) 

Token Receivable : BASIS YIELD CORP, ( Token: TBD; Qty : 625,000.00000; Undetermined 
OTC SERVICES LTD. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $6,826,000.00 Funded Amount: $2,500,000 ) 

Token Receivable: BLUE HORIZON GLOBA L CORP, ( Token: ZENO ; Qty: Undetermined 

OVEX PROPRIETARY LIMITED Undeterm ined Funded Amount $5,000,000.00 
769,231.00000: Funded Amount: $250,000) 

Token Receivable : BONZA I PROTOCOL LTD., ( Token: TBD; Qty: Undetermined 
s,000.000 .00000: Funded Amount: $750 ,000) 

PARADIGM CONNECT HOLDINGS , Ll:9 Undeterm ined Funded Amount $9,249,976.54 Token Receivable: BULLET GALAXY LABS LTD .. ( Token: GXY; Qty: Undetermined 
800,000.00000; Funded Amount: $200,000 ) 

PINTU INVESTMENTS ONE PTE. LTD. Undeterm ined Funded Amount s2.ooo.ooo.oo 
Token Receivable : BUZZ DEVELOPMENT INC, ( Token: PERC; Qty: Undetermined 
1, 199,999.70000; USO Spot Price Rece ivable Amount: $261,240 ) 

Token Receivable : CHILLCHAT HOLDINGS PTE. LTD., ( Token: TBD ; Qty: Undetermined 

PIONIC VENTURES LLC Undeterm ined Funded Amount $71,300,000 .00 15,000 .000.00000; Funded Amount: $500,000) 

Token Receivable: CONCURRENT C INC. ( Token: TBD: Qty: 196.581.00000: Undetermined 
USO Spot Price Receivable Amount: $75,670 ) 

PIXELYNX, INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amoun t $500 ,000.00 
Token Receivable : CONTRAR IAN DEFI LLC, ( Token : PORT ; Qty: Undetermined 
16,000,000 .00000 ; USO Spot Price Receivable Amount: $138,442) 

PORTALS LABS, INC. Undeterm ined Funded Amount $200,057 .14 Token Receivable : CRYPTOM IND LAB PTE. LTD, ( Token: GF; Qty: Undetermined 
12,000 ,000 .00000 ; USO Spot Price Receivable Amount: S1 .497,600 ) 

Token Receivable : CYBERPREP CORP , ( Token: TBD; Qty : 600,000.00000 ; Undetermined 
Funded Amount: $300,000 ) 



Maclamn~ ~ 22-11068-JTD Doc 2048 Filed 07/3~ ~2 oi __ .6_1ill_1..:..<JT_o.:...> ____ _ 
_,. 

Part 2 : Li s t All Creditors with NONPRIORITY Un sec ur ed C lai m s 

3. Ust In alphabetlcal o rde r all of the creditors with nonp rl orlty unsec ured cla lms . If the debtor has more than 6 creditors with nonprlor1ty 
unsecured claims , fill out and attach the Additional Page of Part 2. 

Amount of clalm 

3.1 Nonpriority creditor 's name and mailing address 
ETHEREAL VENTURES FUND IL P 
C/0 COOt.fY LLP 
ATTENTION· CATHY RUDE 
101 CALIFORNIA STREET, 5TH FlOOR 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

3.2 Nonpriority creditor's name and mailing address 
KINDERGARTEN VENTURES FUND II 
POBox3217 
Seallle 
Seallle, WA98114 

Date or dates debt was Incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

As of the petition filing date, the claim is : 
Check all that app ly. 
0 Contingent 
0 Untiquidated 
0 Disputed 

s Undetermined 

Basis for the claim : Fund Investment: ETHE REAL VENTURES FUND I L.P. 
ISO.SM Unfunded Commitm ent) 
Is the claim subject to offset ? 
@ No 

• Yes 

As of the petition filing date, the cla im is: 
Check all that apply. 
0 Conting ent 
0 Unliquidated 
0 Disputed 

s Undetermined 

Basis for the claim : Fund Investment: KINDERGARTEN VENTU RES FUND II 
IS0.375M Unfunded Commitment\ 
Is the cla im subject to offset ? 
@No 
• Yes 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 73 of 84 
West Realm Shires Inc case number (II~ ): 22-11183 (JTD) 
Name ------------

Additional Page If Debtor Ha.s More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page on ly If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequen t ially fr om the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

State what the contract or 
2.104 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor ' s Intere st 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contra ct or 
2.105 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor ' s Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any gove rnment contra ct 

ASS IGNMENT OF TECHNOLOGY 
AGREEME NT DATED 1112/2021 

FOU NDER'S RESTRICTED STOCK 
PURCHAS E AG REEMENT DATED 
1112/2021 

State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory con t ract or unexpired lease 

Nlshad Singh 
ADD RESS ON FILE 

Nlshad Singh 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

3.3 Nonpriority creditor 's name and mailing address 
KRAKEN VENTURES FUNO I LP 

As of the petition filing date, the claim is : 
Check an that app ly. 
0 Contingent 

s 
State what the contra ct or 

Undetermined 2. l06 lease Is for and the nature 

MEDIAAUTHORI ZATIO N DATED 
2/2112022 NP DIGITAL 

ADD RESS UNKNOW N 
2425 WLSON ST 
AUSTIN, TX 78704-5434 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

3.4 Nonpriority creditor's name and mailing address 
r---' UOUID VALUE FUND I LP 

C/0 MG STOVER & CO. 
ATTN: INVESTOR RELATIONS 
133117TH STREET, SUITE 720 
DENVER. co 80202 

Date or dates debt was Incu rred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

3.S Nonpriority creditor 's name and mailing address 
1---' OPEN LOOT ECOSYSTEM FUND I LTD 

C/0 P.O. BOX 3133 
CASA8LANCA HOUSE LUCK HU 
ROADTOWN 
TORTOlA, 
BRIT1SH VlRGU'I ISLANDS 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undeterm ined 

3.6 No nprlorfty credito r's name and ma lli ng address 
PARADIGM ONE YMAN) FEEDER LP 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

---------- of the debtor ' s Intere st 

0 Unliquidated 
0 Disputed 

Basis for the c laim: Fund Investment: KRA KEN VENTURES FUND I LP (S2M 
Unfunded Commitm ent} 
Is the claim subject to offset? 
@N o 

• Yes 

As of the petition filing date , the cla im is : 
Check all that apply. 
0 Conting ent 
0 Unliquidated 
0 Disputed 

s Undetermined 

Basis for the claim : Fund Investment: LIQUID VALU E FUND I LP (S32.9M 
Unfunded Commitm ent) 
l.s the cla im subject to offset? 
@No 

• Yes 

As of the petition filing date , the claim is : 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 Unliquldated 
0 Disputed 

s Undetermined 

Basis for the c laim: Fund Investmen t: OPEN LOOT ECOSYST EM FUND I LTD 
/S0 .. 25M Unfunded Commitm ent) 
Is the cla im subject to offset? 
@ No 

• Yes 

As of the petiti on fi lin g date , the cla im Is : 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 Unliquidated 

Dis ed 

@No 
• Yes 

s Undetermined 

State the term rema ini ng 

Lis t the contra ct number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 

2.107 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the term rema ining 

Lis t the contract number of 
any government contra ct 

State what the contra ct or 

2.108 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debt or 's Intere st 

State the term remaining 

Lis t the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contra ct or 

2.109 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor ' s Intere st 

State the term rema ining 

Lis t the contra ct number of 
any government contract 

State what the contra ct or 

2.110 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the term rema ining 

Lis t the contract number of 
any government contract 

Offlcla l Form 206E/F Schedule E/F: Creditors Who Have Unsecu red Cla ims Page 2o f 6 Offlclal Form 2060 

LETTER AG REEMENT RE: 
MERCHANT SERVICES DATED NUVEI LIMITED 
1120/2022 Kafkasou. 9. Treppldes Towe 

Floor 3, FlaVOffice 30 1 
Nicosia 
Ag lantzla. 2112 
CYPRUS 

INVESTORS ' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

INVESTORS ' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco . CA 94104 

INVESTORS ' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm Fund LP 

548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco , CA 94104 

Schedule o: Execut ory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 16 of 25 



Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 74 of 84 

West Realm St.res Inc case number (Hxhowil ~ 22-11183 (JTD) 
Name ---'---'--------

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page on ly If more space Is needed . Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

INVESTORS· RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/20 

2.111 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 

2.112 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 

2.113 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contra ct 

l NVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1/21/2022 

2.114 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contra ct 

l NVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
Stata what tha contract or l DATED 1/21/2022 

2.115 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS· RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contra ct or DATED 1/21/2022 

2.116 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS" RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
State what the contra ct or ~ TEO 1/21/2022 

2.117 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contra ct 

State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

Paradigm Fund LP 
548 Market Street 
Suite 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Paradigm Fund LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Paradigm Green For11tudo LP 
548 Market Street 
Suite46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Paradigm Green For11tudo LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Paradigm Green For11tudo LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Paradigm Graen For11tudo LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco, CA 94104 

Paradigm One LP 
548 Market Streat Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

Official Fonn 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 17 ol 25 
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Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 75 of 84 
West Realm Shores Inc, case number (Hl\liown ): 22-11183 (JTD) Debtor ----------------------- -------------Na me 

Additional Paga If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page on ly If more space Is needed. Continua numbering the lines sequentia lly from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

State what the contract or 
2.118 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.119 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remain ing 

List the contr act number of 
any government contract 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/20221 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 

State the name and malling address for all other parties wit h 
whom the debtor has an executory contrac t or unexp ired lease 

Paradigm One LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco. CA941 04 

Paradigm One LP 
548 Market Street 
San Francisco, CA94104 

' 1---
State what the contract or 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 Paradigm One LP 

2.120 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.121 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.122 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.123 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.124 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the tenn remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Fonn 206G 

I INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/21/2022 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 

548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco, CA94104 

Paradigm One LP 
548 Market Street Ste 46425 
San Francisco, CA94104 

3/31/2021 Peter Lau 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ANO 
RELEASE DATED 8/31/2022 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT ANO 
RELEASE DATED 8/26/2022 

PlayUp Ltd. 
48 Epsom Road Zetland 
NSW 
2017 
AUSTRALIA 

PlayUp Ltd. 
48 Epsom Road Zetland 
NSW 
2017 
AUSTRALIA 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 18 of 25 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2050 Filed 07/31/23 Page 43 of 53 
Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) 

Creditor Name & Address 

PARADIGM ONE LP 
548 MARKET STREET 
SUITE #: 46425 
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94104 

RACE CAPITAL II 
437 LYTTON AVE 
SUITE100 
PALO ALTO, CA 94301 

State ment of Finan cial Affairs for Non-tndividua ls Filing for Bank ruptcy 

SOFA Question 3: Certain payments or transfers to creditors within 90 days before filing this case 

Check or W ire 
Number 

Payment Date 

10/06/2022 

10/05/2022 

Reason For Payment 

Other- Investments 

SUBTOTAL 

Other- Investments 

SUBTOTAL 

Amount Paid 

$3,500,000.00 

$3,500,000.00 

$150,000.00 

$150,000.00 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2012 Filed 07/31/23 Page 45 of 58 
Debtor Name : Clifton Bay Investments LLC Case Number: 22-11070 (JTO) 

Assets - Real and Personal Property 

Part 11, Question 77: Other property of any kind not already listed 

Other property of any kind not already listed Current value of debtor's 
Examples: Season tickets , country club membership Interest 

Fund Investment: KINDERGARTEN VENTURES FUND II ($0.13M Funded Undetermir 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: CANONICAL CRYPTO FUND I, L.P. ($0.5M Funded Amount ) Undetermlr 

Fund Investment: DEFI ALLIANCE DELAWARE FEEDER I LP ($0.25M Funded Undetermlr 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: LN SPORTS & HEALTH TECH FUND I, L.P. ($0.3M Funded Undetermir 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: EXPONENT FOUNDERS CAPITAL I, LP ($1M Funded Amount ) Undetermir 

Fund Investment: FUND II, A SERIES OF TOY VENTURES, LP ($12.5M Funded Undetermir 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: SEQUOIA CAPITAL FUND. L.P. ($50M Funded Amount ) Undetermir 

Fund Investment: NURAL CAPITAL FIRST LIGHT (US) LP ($0.1M Funded Undetermir 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: 6529 NFT FUND QP, LP ($5M Funded Amount ) Undetermir 

Fund Investment: MULTI COIN VENTURE FUND II US, L.P. ($5M Funded Amount Undetermir 

Fund Investment: BOND Ill , LP ($0.15M Funded Amount ) Undetermlr 

Fund Investment: MULTICOIN VENTURE FUND Ill US, LP ($2.5M Funded Undetermlr 
Amount) 

Fund Investment: ALTIMETER GROWTH PARTNERS FUND VI, L P. ($1.5M Undetermlr 
Funded Amount) 

Fund Investment: LIQUID 2 VENTURES FUND 111, LP . ($0.75M Funded Amount ) Undetermir 

Fund Investment: ASYMMETRIC TECHNOLOGIES LP ($0 .5M Funded Amount ) Undetermlr 

Fund Investment: SKYBR IDGE COIN FUND LP ($10M Funded Amount ) Undetermlr 

Token Receivable : GREENPARK SPORTS , INC., ( Token: TBD: Qty: Undetermlr 
25,000,000 .00000: Funded Amount: $1,000,000) 

Token Receivable : OTOY INTERNATIONAL SEZC , ( Token: RNDR: Qty: Undetermlr 
15,255,208.00000: USO Spot Price Receivable Amount: $4,857,500 ) 

Token Warrant: CODERRE CT INC., ( Token Warrant: TBD; Qty : TBD; Funded Undetermir 
Amount: $889 ) 

Token Warrant: CREATOROS INC., ( Token Warrant TBD; Qty : TBD; Funded Undetermir 
Amount: $500 ) 

Token Warrant: MATONEE INC., ( Token Warrant: Aptos ; Qty: TBD; Funded Undetermir 
Amount: $500 ) 

Token Warrant: NEXUS PRO, INC., ( Token: TBD; Qty: TBD; Funded Amount: Undetermir 
S500) 

Token Warrant: SUBSPACE LABS, INC., ( Token Warrant: TBD; Qty : TBD; Undetermir 
Funded Amount : $1,000 ) 

Token Warrant: TIPLINK CORP, ( Token Warrant: TBD; Qty: TBD: Funded Undetermir 
Amount: $500 ) 



Debtor A1amooaReseor&g5e 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31.&.anun&c\~O ohli!ii. (JTDl ------------

Part 2: List All Creditors with NONPRI ORITY Uns ec ured Claims 

3. Li st In alphab etica l order all of the credi tors with nonprlorlty un secure d clalms. If Iha debtor has more than 6 creditors with nonpliorfty 
unsecured claims. fill out and attach the Additional Paga of Part 2. 

Amount of clalm 

~ Nonpr lorl ty credi tor's name and malling address As of the petition filing date , the claim Is: 
$ Undetermined APOLLO CAPITAL OPPORTUNITIES f'UNO LTO Check all that apply. 

Seo Moodow House 0 Contingent 
PO Box 116 0 Unllquldated Road TO'MI, T011ola, VG1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 0 Disputed 

Basis for the claim: Loan Payable (see Exhibit 2) 

Data or dates debt was Incurre d Undetermined 
Is the claim subject to off set? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account number • Yes 

3.2 Nonpr lori ty creditor 's name and malling address As of the petition filing date , the claim Is: 
BlockFi Lend..-.g LLC Check ell thet apply. $ Undetermined 
Attn: Zoe Pmce 0 Contingent 
86 Chambers St. 0 Unllquldated Sui1e 205 
NewYOf1<, NY 10007 D Disputed 

Basis for th e claim: Loan Payable (see Exhibit 2) 

Date or dates debt was Incurre d Undetermined Is the clai m subject to offset? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account number • Yes 

3.3 Nonpr lo rity credito r's name and malling address As of the petition filing date , the claim Is: 
$ BlockFills Check all that apply. Undetermined 

401 W. Onlalio Slreet 0 Contingent 
#400 0 Unllquldated Chicago, IL 60654 D Disputed 

Basis for the claim: Loan Payable (see Exhibit 2) 

Date or dates debt was Incurre d Undetermined Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account nu mber • Yes 

3.4 Nonpriority creditor 's name and mailing address As of the petition filing date , the claim is: 
$ BLOOMBERG FINANCE LP. Check all that apply. 30.012.72 

731 LEXINGTON AVE D Contingent 
NEWYORK, NY 0 Unllquldated 

D Disputed 

Basis for the claim: Trade Payable 

Date or dates debt was Incurred Various Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account number • Yes 

3.5 Nonpr lori ty creditor 's name and mailing address As of the petition filing date , the claim Is: 
$ CHICAGO MERCANTILE EXCHANGE INC. Check all that apply. 3.866.67 

20 S. WACKER DR D Contingent 
CHICAGO, IL 60606 0 Unllquldated 

D Disputed 
Basis for the claim: Trade Payable 

Date or dates debt was Incurre d Various Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account number • Yes 

3.6 Nonpr lo rity creditor 's name and malling address As of the petition filing date , the claim Is: 
$ Clover INC Check all that apply. Undetermined 

POl1 Purool 0 Contingent 
Ov.omar Trading Complex Blackbume Road 0 Unllquidated 
Unit 8, 3/F, T011ola 
Road TO'MI, VG1110 D Disputed 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS Basis for the claim: Market Making Loans: CLV: Qty: 57.000.000 

Date or dates debt was Incurred 7/13/2021 Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 

Last 4 digits of account number • Yes 

Official Form 206E/F Schedul e E/F: Creditors Who Have Unsecured Claims Page 2 of 11 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 104 of 159 

Alameda Research Ltd Case number (1f knO'MI): 22-11067 (JTO) ------------Name 

Addit ional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed . Continue numbering the llnn sequentia lly from the previous page . 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

MASTER LOAN AND SECURITY 
State what the contract or AGREEMENT DATED 11116/2020 

2.20 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MARKET MAKING AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 9/27/2021 

2.21 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract num" r of 
any government contract 

MASTER DIGITAL CURRENCY LOAN 
State what the contract or AGREEMENT DATED 7/9/2022 

2.22 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MARKET MAKING AGREEMENT 
State wh at the contract or DATED 1n /2022 

2.23 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

BORROWING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/2/2020 

2.24 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 9/22/2020 
State what the contract or 

2.25 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MASTER LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 9/12/2020 

2.26 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and mailing add ress for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

Anchorage Lending. LLC 
274 Holland Court 
Bridgewater, NJ 08807-0880 

Antimatter Dao Ltd 
Wickhams Cay 11 
Road Town. Tortola. VG 1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

APOLLO CAPITAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND LTD 

PO Box 116 
Road Town. Tortola, VG1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Apricot Platform Limtted 
Dresden Tower 
11TH FLOOR 
Barrio 
Panama City, 
PANAMA 

Ashla International Inc 
c/o Mr. Loi Luu 
3/F J&C Building. PO Box 933 
Tortola 
Road Town. VG 111 O 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

AUX CAVES FINTECH CO. LTD. 
Eden Plaza 
Suite 202. 2nd Floor 
Eden Islands. Mahe 
1352 
SEYCHELLES 

Avalanche (BVI). Inc. 
Attn : Gun Slrer 
t Floor 4. Banco Popular Building 
Road Town. Tortola, VG 1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Cont racts and Unexp ired Leases Page 4 of 57 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2000 Filed 07 /31/23 Paae 82 of 17 4 
FTXTradlnglld Coso number (lf\cnown)· 22-11068 (JTD) ___ ,;_...,;,.. ______ _ 
Name 

Additional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

Ust the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

3 
State what the contrac t or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interes t 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

Ust the contract number of 
any government contract 

Offlclal Form 206G 

PAYMENT AGENT AGREEMENT 
DATED 6/1/2019 

MUTUAL NON-DISCLOSURE 
AGREEMENT DATED 8110/2022 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 

Alameda Research Ltd 
Tortola Pier Par1< 
Building 1. Second Floor. Wlckhams Cay 1 

BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Alder Labs. Inc. 
548 Mancet St 
PMB 77661 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

3/31/2021 Alec Ziupsnys 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/2/202 1 Alec Ziupsnys 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021 

ADVISORY BOARD LETTER DATED 

Alejandro Silva 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

8/24/2021 Alfred Lin· Sequoia Capital Operations, LLC 
2800 Sand Hill Road 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021 

Suite 101 
Menlo Par1c, CA 94025 

Allen Chen 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 6 of 96 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2000 Filed 07 /31/23 Paae 154 of 17 4 
Case number (II known): 22-11068 (JTD) Debtor FTXTradlnglld 

------------Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.538 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

2.539 

2.540 

2.541 

2.542 

2.543 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contrac t number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contrac t number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.544 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Form 206G 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/24/2021 

SCREENING QUESTIONNAIRE 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 7/21/2021 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 10/ 18/2021 

LE I I ER AGREEMENT REl 
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS COMMON 
INTEREST AGREEMENT DATED 
7/21/2021 

AGREEMENT REGARDING 
TERMINATION OF BUSINESS 
COLLABORATION AGREEMENT 

BUSINESS COLLABORATION 

Sebastian Conybeare 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Sebasttan Darrel Conybeare 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

SENATOR GLOBAL OPPORTUNITY MASTER FUND LP 
510 Madison Avenue 
28th Floor 
New Yor1c, NY 10022 

SEQUOIA CAPITAL GLOBAL GROWTH FUND Ill - ENDURANCE 
PARTNERS, L.P. 
2800 Sand Hill Road 
Suite 101 
Menlo Park. CA 94025 

SEQUOIA CAPITAL GLOBAL GROWTH FUND Ill· ENDURANCE 
PARTNERS, L.P 
2800 Sand Hill Road 
Suite 101 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

~e ref Bayirll 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

AGREEMENT· TERMINATED 9/912022 ~eref Bayirl1 
DATED 9/13/2021 ADDRESS ON FILE 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unex Ired Leases Page 78 of 96 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Page 99 of 159 Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Page 41 of 159 
Debtor Name: Alameda Research Ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) 

Assets - Real and Personal Property 

Debtor ·am e: . .\lameda Research Ltd Case Numbe r : 22-11067 (JTD ) 
Part 4, Question 15: Non-public ly traded stock interests in incorporated and unincorporated businesses , including any interest in an LLC, partnership, or joint venture. 

Sched ule F: Cre di tor s Who Have ·onp riority Unsecu 1·ed Claim s, Exhibit 2 - Loan Payables 

Non-publicly traded stock and Interests In Incorporate d and %o f Valuati on method Current value of debtor's 

Lender 
Lo an Out standing Int er est Intere st Paym ent Matw ·ity 

Cur re ncy Amoun t Rat e Curr ency Da te 

unincorporated businesses , includ ing any interest in an LLC , Ownership used for current value interest 
partnership, or joint venture (Name of entity:) 

ALAM EDAAUS PTY LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 

't><\LLO CAPITAL OPPORTIJNIIlliS Fu~ LTD uS DC 3.000.000 9.0% USDC 12/ 1612022 Corporate Org Structure 

lockf i Lendin2 LLC BTC 1.800 3.5% BTC None 
~ 

lockf i Len~ LLC USDC 30.000.000 8.5% USDC None 
lockf i Lending LLC USDC 30.000.000 8.5% USDC None 

[DI: #92) 

ALAM EDA RESEARCH (BAHAMAS) LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

l~ffl! endm0 LLC USDC 30.000.000 8.5% USDC None 
Bloc · s USD 3.000.026 2.5% NIA 71512020 

Compow1d Capital Partnes USDC 2.500. 000 9.0% USDC 12/ 1612022 
itBit PTE. LTD (Paxo s) BTC 250 0.0% BTC None 

ALAM EDA RESEARCH PTE LTD 100% % OWnershlp Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

ALAM EDA RESEARCH YANKAR I LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 

itBit PTE. LTD (Paxo s) BTC 500 0.2% BTC None [DI: #92) 

itBit PTE. LTD (Pa.xos) USD 5.000.000 0.2% USD None 
Len1011 Fwid USDT 1.500.000 9.0% NIA None 
TrustTokeu. Inc. TRU 7.200.000 0.0% NIA None 

ALAMEDA TR SYSTEMS S. DE R. L. 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

BLUE RIDGE LTD 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

CARDINAL VENTURES LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

CEDA R BAY LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

COTTONWOOD GROVE LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

COTTONWOOD TECHNOLOGIES LTD 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

EUCLID WAY LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

HIVE EMPIRE TRADING PTY LTD 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 

. 

MACLAURIN INVESTMENTS LTD. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
rn1• 

NORTH DIMENSION LTD 100% % OWnershlp Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

SNG INVESTMENTS YATIRIM VE DANl~MANLI K ANONiM ~iRKETi 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

STRATEGY ARK COLLECTIVE LTD. 100% % OWnership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92) 

3COMMAS TECHNOLOGIES 00 Undetermined Funded Amount $4,940, 115.63 

TOTAL $4,940,115.63 

+ Undetermined Amounts 



Case 22-11068-J TD Doc 2000 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 83 of 174 case number(IMmown): 22-11068 (JTO) Debtor FTX Trading Ltd 
------------Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy thi s page only if more space Is needed. Continue num beri ng the lines sequentially fro m the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexp ired lease 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contr act 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contr act 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contr act 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

3 
State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contr act 

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT DATED 
5/10/2021 AIIRightsReserved limit ed 

WHITE LABEL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT DATED 3/16/2022 

LETTER AGREEMENT RE: FTX1 

12/F, Han Wai Commercial Building 
213-233 Queens Road East 
Wanchai 
Hong Kong, 
CHINA 

AlteumX International S.A. 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

PANAMA 

ADVISORY BOARD DATED 8/24/2021 Amy Wu· Llghtspeed Strategic Partners I. L.P. Llghtspeed 

548 Market Street 
San Francisco. CA 94104 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
1/2/2021 Andra North 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND 
RELEASE DATED 10/11/2022 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021 

LEGAL FEE AGREEMENT 

Andrew John Collins 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Andy Tran 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Annerton Rechtsanwaltsgesellschaft mbH 
Wohlerstra~e 5 
Niedertassung Frankfurt 
Frankfurt, 60323 
GERMANY 

S_chedule_J;: Executorv_C_ontracts_ant!._Unexp ire_q_Leases Pl!.Q~ 7 of 9J; 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JT D 

Wost Roolm Shiros Inc 
Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 70 of 84 

Ceso number Qij,hoym) 22-11183 (JTD) 
------------

Name 

Additional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexp ired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space Is needed. Continue numbe ring the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contrac t or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.83 lease Is fo r and the nature 

of the debto r's Interest 

State the term remain ing 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the cont ract or 
2.84 lease Is fo r and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remain ing 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contrac t or 
2.85 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

State wh at the contract or 
2.86 lease is for and the nature 

of the debto r's interest 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract numbe r of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.87 lease Is fo r and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.88 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remain ing 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

State what the contract or 
2.89 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term rema ining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

Official Form 206G 

NON-BINDING CONFIDENTIAL TERM 
SHEET - FOR DISCUSSION 
PURPOSES ONLY DATED 7/24/2021 

MEMBERSHIP INTEREST PURCHASE 

Ledger Holdings Inc. 
1110 Brickell Ave 
Suite 430k-200 
Marni, FL 33131 

AGREEMENT DATED 10/1/2022 LedgerPrime LLC 

MEMBERSHIP INTEREST PURCHASE 

1209 Orange St 
Corporation Trust Center 
Wilmington. DE 19801 

AGREEMENT DATED 10/1/2022 LedgerPrime LLC 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 

c/o United Corporate Services, Inc. 
Attn: Shiliang Tang 
874 Walker Road, Suite C 
Dover, DE 19904 

4/14/2021 Lena Ngoy 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 8/31/2021 LIGHTSPEED OPPORTUNITY FUND, L.P. 

2200 Sand Hill Road 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS AGREEMENT, 
DATED 8/31/20211 LIGHTSPEED STRATEGIC PARTNERS I, L.P. 

2200 Sand Hill Road 

LETTER AGREEMENT DATED 
1/25/2021 

Menlo Park, CA 94025 

Lime Partners LLC 
767 Fifth Avenue 
Floor 46 
New York, NY 10153 

Sched u le G: Executory Contracts and Unex pired Leases Page 13 of 25 



Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2000 

FTX Trading Lid 
Filed 07/31/23 Paae 168 of 174 

case nt.mbe! (ti - ~ 22-11068 (JTDJ ___ ,;_..;.. ______ _ 
Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page on ly if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.636 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.637 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.638 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 

2.639 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 

2.640 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.641 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State w hat the contract or 
2.642 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Form 206G 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON•U.S.) 

SCREENING QUESTIONNAIRE 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/2212021 

LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT 
DATED 3/8/2022 

LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT 
DATED 7/26/2022 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) 

SERVICE PROVIDER AGREEMENT 

Victor Xu 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Victor Xu 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Vincent Tsun Ho Kwok 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Vlrtu Financial Singapore Pte Ltd 
1557 Keppel Road. #03-01 
Singapore. 089066 
SINGAPORE 

Vlrtu Financial Singapore Pte. Ltd. 
1557 Keppel Road 
#03-01 
Singapore. 089066 
SINGAPORE 

Vivian Ka Kei Chung 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

DATED 5/1/2021 VKR Insights Limited 
POST OFFICE BOX N-4417 
NASSAU. New Providence 
BAHAMAS 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexp ired Leases Page 92of 96 

Debtor 
~~-~ Case 22-11068-JTD 
l'TX T rad1ng Lid 

Doc 2000 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 120 of 174 
case number (ti kooMl ): 22-11068 (JTDJ -------------Name 

Additional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.300 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any governmen t contract 

State what the contract or 
2.301 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

2.302 

2.303 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any governmen t contract 

State what the contract or 
2.304 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.305 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.306 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Form 206G 

WHITE LABEL SERVICES 
AGREEMENT DATED 12/17/2021 

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT1 
DATED 3/18/2022 

IEX GROUP. INC. TERM SHEET FOR 
STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP WITH 
WEST REALM SHIRES INC. DATED 
1/4/2022 

FIAT INTEGRATION ANO REVOLVING 
LOAN AGREEMENT DATED 
10/16/2020 

MASTER LICENSE ANO SERVICES 
AGREEMENT DATED 6/22/2021 

REWARDS AGENT AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/1/2021 

FTX EASTERN EUROPE 
AGREEMENT DATED 12/17/2019 

ldealex Services oO 
Harju maakond 
Tallinn, Kristiine linnaosa 
Keemia tn 4 
10616 
ESTONIA 

IEX OAP Group LLC 
3 World Trade Center 
58th Floor 
New York. NY 10007 

IEX GROUP. INC. 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

iFinex Inc. 
c/o SHRM Trustees (BVI) Limited 
Attn: Legal Department 
P.O. Box 4301. Trinity Chambers 
Road Town. Tortola. VG1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS 

Inca Dlgltal. Inc. 
1100 15 St NW 
Floor 4 
Washington . DC. 20005 

Incentive Ecosystem Foundation 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

Information Security Group LLC 
Shovkovychna st 
16-b. 54 
Kylv, 01024 
UKRAINE 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page44 of 96 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Page 41 of 84 
Debtor Name: West Realm Shires Inc. Case Number: 22-11183 (JTD) 

Assets • Real and Personal Property 

Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests In Incorporated and unincorporated businesses, Including any Interest In an LLC, partnership, or joint venture. 

Non-publicly traded stock and Interests In Incorporated and •t. of Valuation method Current value of debtor' s 
unincorporated businesses , Inc luding any Interest in an LLC, Ownership used for current value interest 
partnership, or Joint venture (Name of entity:) 

DIGITAL CUSTODY INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
[DI: #92] 

EMBED FINANCIAL TECHNOLOGIES INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

FTX LEND INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

FTX MA RKETPLACE, INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

GOOD LUCK GAMES, LLC 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

HAWAII DIGITALASSETS INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

LEDGER HOLDINGS INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

PIONEER STREET INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

WEST REALM SHIRES FINANCIAL SERVICES INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

WEST REALM SHIRES SERVICES INC. 100% % Ownership Per Undetermined 
Corporate Org Structure 
(01: #92] 

BITNOMIAL. INC. Undetermined Funded Amount s2.000.000.00 

IEX GROUP. INC. Undetermined Funded Am ount S112.554,985.67 

TOTAL $114 ,554 ,985 .67 

+ Undetemwled Amomls 

Page 1 of 1 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 67 of 84 

West Realm Shires tnc case m.rnber(lfl6lown): 22-11183 (JTD) 
------------Name 

Add it ional Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contra cts or Unexp ired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpi red leases 

Retention Incentive Award Agreement 
State wha t the contract or Dated 9/30/2022 

2.62 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONSUL TING AGR EEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2.63 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contra ct number o f 
any government contract 

COLLABORATION AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 3/18/2022 

2.64 lease Is fo r and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government con tract 

JEX GROUP, INC. TERM SHEET FOR 
State what the contract or STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP WITH 

2.65 lease is for and the nature WEST REALM SHIRES INC. DATED 
of the debtor 's interest 1/4/2022 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
State what the contract or DATED 1n12022 

2.66 lease is fo r and the natu re 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CONSULTING AGR EEMENT DATED 
State what the con tract or 3/31/2021 

2.67 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any gove rnmen t contract 

CONSULTING AGR EEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2.68 lease is for and the natu re 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number o f 
any government contract 

State the name and malllng add ress for all other part ies with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

Gregory Sandman 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

HAROLD BOO 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

IEX OAP Group LLC 
3 World Trade Center 
58th Floor 
New YOl'k. NY 10007 

IEX GROUP. INC. 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

lntrinio. Inc. 
76 4th Street N 
#150 
Saint Petersburg. FL 33731 

Ivana Milld c 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

JASON HAMLIN 
ADDRESS ON FIL.E 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexp ired Leases Page 10 of 25 



Debtor • Island BayVenrures 1ncf dse 22-11068-JTD Doc 2024 Filed 07 /31/23 f.&9&n~R11~7_ 22_.1_11_29_cJ_TD_l ___ _ 

L 

67. Do your lists or records Include personally ldentlflable Information of customers (as defined In 11 U.S.C. §§ 101(41A) and 107)? 

O No 

D Yes 

68. Is there an amortization or other similar schedule available for any of the property listed in Part 1 O? 

0 No 

D Yes 

69. Has any of the property listed in Part 10 been appraised by a professional within the last year? 

0 No 

0 Yes 

Part 11 : All other assets 

70. Does the debtor own any other assets that have not yet been reported on this form? 

Include all interests in executory contracts and unexpired leases not previously reported on this fonm. 

D No. Go to Part 12. 

0 Yes. Fill in the information below. 

71. Notes receivable 

Oescrtption (include name of obllg°' ) 

None 

72. Tax refunds and unused net operating losses (NOLs) 

Description (f°' example, federal, state, local) 

None 

73. Interests in in.surance polic ies or annuities 

None 

Total Face Amount 

74. Causes of action against third parties (whether or not a lawsuit 
has been filed) 

None 

Nature of Claim 

Amount Requested $ 

75. Other contingent and unliquidated claims or causes of action of 
every nature , including counterclaims of the debtor and rights to 
set off claims 

None 

Nature of Claim 

Amount Requested $ 

76. Trusts , equitable or Mure Interests In property 

None 

n . Other property of any kind not already listed Examples: Season tlc,kets, 
counby dub me · 

Fund lnvestmen KYBRIDGE CAPITAL II, LLC ($45.9M Funded Amount ) 

78. Total of Part 11. 

Add lines 71 through TT. Copy the total to line 90. 

Doubtful or unoolectible Amount 

Tax Year 

Tax Year 

Tax Year 

79. Has any of the property listed in Part 11 been appraised by a professional within the last year? 

0 No 

D Yes 

•p1us Undetermined Amounts 

Offlclal FO(ffl 206A1B Schedule A/B : Assets - Real and Personal Property 

• $ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Current value of 
debtor's interest 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

$ ___ U.:..nc:.d:..e:..:te.:..nm=i:..cned::..:: 

$ -------

$ ---' U"'n""dc..cec.cte"'nm=in"'ed:..:: 

Page 7 

n~•- I 88'.:::-22-11068 -JTD Doc 2012 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 55 of 58 
,.,.,.,..,. l .. lllcijlifton!IIIIIBayiii

111
1n

111
vestmeiiiiii

11111
nits•~il 'II• ------------- case number (Wlmown): 22_ .1_1_01_o_(_JTD_l ______ _ -

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only if more space is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.6 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2. 7 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

2.8 

2.9 

2.10 

State the term remaining 

list the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

Lis t the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

list the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the con tract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.11 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debt .or 's interest 

State the term remaining 

Lis t the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.12 lease ls for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official FO(ffl 206G 

OPERATING AGREEMENT DATED 
4/15/2021 

OPERATING AGREEMENT DATED 
4/15/2021 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT DATED 

Luxor Technology Corporation 
5232 236th Place SE 
Issaquah, WA 98029 

NEW GEN MINTING LLC 
5232 236th Place SE 
Issaquah, WA 98029 

312/2022 SH FUND GP, LLC 
POB 735 
ALPINE , NJ 07620 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT DATED 
9/7/2022 SkyBridge Capttal II, LLC 

Attention : A. Marie Noble 
527 Madison Avenue 
New York, NY 10022 

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT DATED 
9/7/2022 SkyBr1dge GP Holdings, LLC 

Attention : A. Marie Noble 

INVESTO RS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 2/12/2021 

AMENDED AND RESTATED VOTING 
AGREEMENT DATED 2/12/2021 

527 Madison Avenue 
New York, NY 10022 

TOOLS FOR HUMANITY CORPORATION 
Attention : Alexander Blanla 
650 2nd Street, #605 
San Franclsco, CA 94107 

TOOLS FOR HUMANITY CORPORATION 
Attn : Alexander Blanla 
650 2nd Street, #605 
San Francisco, CA 94107 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 2of3 



Debtor FTX T redmg Lid 
Case 22-11068-JTD 

Name 

Doc 2000 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 157 of 174 
Cose number(II known) 22-11068 (JTD) __ _;.......;. ______ _ 

Add lt lonal Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the llnu sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexp ired leases 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contrac t 

State what the contract or 
lease Is tor and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is tor and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MUTUAL NON-DISCLOSURE 
AGREEMENT DATED 8/612021 

2020 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN 
(NON-U.S.) DATED 11/22/2021 

NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
DATED 8/19/2022 

DATA LICENSING AGREEMENT 
DATED 1/8/2020 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 10/18/2021 

LETTER AGREEMENT· RELEASE 
ANO UNWINDING OF CERTAIN 
RELATIONSHIPS DATED 11/9/2022 

LETTER AGREEMENT - RELEASE 
ANO UNWINDING OF CERTAIN 
RELATIONSHIPS DATED 11/9/2022 

State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debt or has an executory contra ct or unexpired lease 

SINEGY Technologies (M) Sdn.Bhd 
233. Jalan Burma 
Georgetown Penang 
10050 
MALAYSIA 

Siu Ming Wun (Karls) 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

SK Inc 
26 Jongno 
Jongro-gu 
Seoul, 03188, 
KOREA. REPUBLIC OF 

Skew ltd 
107 Cheapslde 
9th Floor 
London, EC2V SON 
UNITED KINGDOM 

SKYBRIOGE CAPITAL 
527 Madison Avenue 
4th Floor 
New York, NY 10022 

SkyBridge Capital 11, LLC 
Attention: A. Marie Noble 
527 Madison Avenue 
New York, NY 10022 

SkyBridge Coin Fund LP 
C/0 SKYBRIOGE CAPITAL II, LLC 
527 MADISON AVENUE 
4TH FLOOR 
NEW YORK, NY 10022 

)fficial Form 206G Schedule G: Exec:utorv Contracts and Unexpired Leases PaQe 81 of 96 

Debtor 
Case 22-11068-JTD 

West Realm Shores Inc 
Doc 2070 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 79 of 84 

Cose ruooer <• t:hown~ 22.11183 (JTDJ ----- - - --- -Name 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contra cts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy th is page on ly If more space Is needed . Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

LETTER AGREEMENT - RELEASE 
State what the contract or ANO UNWINDING OF CERTAIN 

2.146 lease Is for and the nature RELATIONSHIPS DATED 11/9/2022 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

LETTER AGREEMENT - RELEASE 
State what the contract or ANO UNWINDING OF CERTAIN 

2.147 lease Is for and the nature RELATIONSHIPS DATED 11/9/2022 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Retention Incentive Award Agreement 
State what the cont ract or Dated 9/30/2022 

2.148 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remainin g 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

CRYPTOCURRENCYACCOUNT 
State what the contract or SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 

2.149 lease Is for and the nature 12/3/2021 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contra ct number of 
any government contract 

SPONSORSHIP AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contra ct or 5/18/2021 

2 .150 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contra ct number of 
any government contract 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 
State what the contract or 3/31/2021 

2.151 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contr act number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
Retention Incentive Award Agreement 
Dated 9/30/2022 

2.152 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Intere st 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and mailing address for all other parties with 
whom the debt or has an exec:utory contract or unexpired lease 

SkyBridge Coln Fund LP 
C/0 SKYBRIOGE CAPITAL II, LLC 
527 MADISON AVENUE 
4TH FLOOR 
NEW YORK, NY 10022 

SkyBridge GP Holdings. LLC 
ATTENTION: A. MARIE NOBLE 
527 MADISON AVENUE 
NEW YORK. NY 10022 

Stanton Camp 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

StockTwtts. Inc. 
1001 6thAvenue 
7th Floor 
New York. NY 10018 

Swift Media Entertairvnenl Inc. 
ATTN: WalterWang 
5340 Alla Road. #100 
Los Angeles, CA 90066 

Takashl H ldaka 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Tana Lawler 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 22of 25 
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DebtOf Name: Maclaurin Investments Lid. Case Number. 22-11087 (JTD) Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Lid. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) 

Assets • Real and Personal Property Assets • Real and Personal Property 

Part 1, Question 3: Checking , savings. money market. or financial brokerage accounts Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests In Incorporated and unincorporated businesses . Including any Interest In an LLC, partnership . or joint venture. 

Name of Institution (bank or brokerage firm) Type of account Last 4 digits of account Current value of debtor's 
number Interest 

Non-pub licly traded stock and interests In Incorporated and ¼of Valuation method Current value of debtor's 
unincorporated businesses, including any interest in an LLC , Ownership used for current va lue interest 
partnership, or joint venture (Name of entity:) 

Deltec: Unknown 5100 $1.121.126.63 
CHILLCHAT HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $100 ,000 .00 

Prime Trust Corporate 2872 $22 1.907 .00 
CIRCLE INTERNET FINANCIAL LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $10 ,000 ,000.00 

Signature Bank Corporate 2685 $2,529,813 .51 
COIN FINANCE LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $4,000 ,000 .00 

TOTAL $3,872,847.14 COMBAT LAB. INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $500 ,000.00 

CONTXTS.10 INC Undetermined Funded Amount $902,935.00 

DELTA ONE LABS, CORP. Undetermined Funded Amount $1,000 ,000 .00 

DISTRIBUTED LEDGER TECHNOLOGY (DLTX) Undetermined Funded Amount $9,500 ,000.00 

DONOTPAY. INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $750 ,015 .00 

DUNE ANALYTICS AS Undetermined Funded Amount $651 ,997 .00 

ETHOS INV ESTMENTS XII LLC Undetermined Funded Amount $9,500.000.00 

FLOURISHING HUMANITY CORPORATION LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $80 ,000 .00 

FLUENCE LABS. INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $999 ,996.51 

FOLKVANG. SRL Undetermined Funded Amount $3,000 ,000.00 

FRIKTION LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $100 ,000 .00 

,,GENESIS BLOCK LIMITED~ Undetermined Funded Amount $5,000,000.00 

GENESIS DIGITALASSETS LIMITED ! Undetermined Funded Amount $100 ,000 .000 .32 

HATEA LOOP LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $1,500,000 .00 

HAWKU, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $250 ,000 .00 

JITO NETWORK INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $700 ,000.00 



Case 22-11068-JT D Doc 2003 Filed 07/31/23 Page 45 of 57 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2003 Filed 07/31/23 Page 44 of 57 Debtor Name : Alameda Research Ltd ca .se Number. 22- 11067 (JTO) 

Debtor Name: Alameda Research Ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTO) 
Statement of Financial Aff airs for Non-Individuals FIiing for Bankrup tcy 

S1atemen1 of Financ ial Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Ban krup1cy 
SOFA Question 3: Certain payments or transfers to creditors within 90 days before filing this case 

SOFA Question 3: Certain payments or transfers to creditors within 90 days before filing this case 
Creditor Name & Addres s Check or Wi re Payme nt Date Reason For Paym ent Am ount Paid 

Cred itor Name & Address Check or Wire Payment Date Reason For Payment Amount Paid Number 

Number MAXLAW GLOBAL (GBP) 09/09 /2022 Services $10,426.14 

10/21/2022 Services S12,893.50 ALOGATE TOWER , 2 LEMAN 
STREET 

SUBTOTAL $20,544.00 LONDON , E1 8QN 
UNITED KINGDOM 

GENESIS GLOBAL CAPITAL 08/16/2022 Other- Loan Principal and/or Interest $170,300,000.00 10/05/2022 Services $10,242.00 

111 TOWN SQUARE PLACE 
11/03/2022 Services $10,064.70 SUITE 1203 

JERSEY CITY. NJ 07310 
09/20/2022 Other- Loan Principal and/or Interest $3.684. 113.01 SUBTOTAL $30,732. 84 

10/03/2022 Other- Loan Principal and/or Interest S 1. 123,972.60 MODULO CAPITAL INC 09/16/2022 Other- Investments $100 ,000 ,000 .00 
AV ATAULFO OE PAIVA. 341 SL 

11/03/2022 Other- Loan Principal and/or Interest $53,506.85 305 
LEBLON 

11/04/2022 Other- Loan Principal and/or Interest $1.475.260.27 RIO OE JANEIRO . RJ, 
BRAZIL 

SUBTOTAL $176,636,852.73 SUBTOTAL $100,000,000.00 

GGC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 08/22/2022 Other- Payments $5,310,000.00 PERK INS COIE LLP 09/21/2022 Services $53,975.90 
WOODBOURNE HALL 1201 THIRD AVENUE , SUITE 4900 
ROAD TOWN 

SEATTLE, WA98101 TORTOLA, VG1110 
BRITISH VIRGIN ISLANDS SUBTOTAL $53,975.90 

08/30/2022 Other- Payments $21,303.00 
PIPER ALDERMAN LAW 08/15/2022 Services $4,834 .43 

09/27/2022 Other- Payments $1,242,702.00 LEVEL 23 GOVERNOR 
MACOUAIRE TOWER 1 FARRER 

09/28/2022 Other- Payments $183,374.32 PLACE 
NSW 

10/03/2022 Other- Payments $10,000,000.00 SYDNEY , 2000 

10/27/2022 Other- Payments S 112,036.80 
AUSTRALIA 

10/03/2022 Services $42,753.34 

10/31/2022 Other- Payments $6,069.00 
10/17/202.2 Services $5,069 .82 

SUBTOTAL $16,875,485 .12 
SUBTOTAL $52,657.59 

HERBERT SMITH FREEHILLS LLP 09/13/2022 Services S22,788.00 
EXCHANGE HOUSE PRIMROSE PRIME TRUST 10/26/202.2 Other - Investments S250,000.00 
STREET ATTN: NATALIE MARTIN 

LONDON, 330 S RAMPART BLVD 

UNITED KINGDOM LAS VEGAS, NV 89145 

10/05/2022 Services S23,072.89 SUBTOTAL $250 ,000.00 

SUBTOTAL $45,860.811 SILVER MILLER 09/01/202.2 Services S70,000.00 
4450 NW 126THAVE SUITE 101 

Interactive BrOkers LLC' 09/15/2022 Other- Investments $50.000,000.00 CORAL SPRINGS , FL 33065 
Attention : Client Services 10/03/2022 Services $70,000.00 
209 South LaSalle Street 
10th Floor SUBTOTAL $140 ,000.00 
Chlcaao. IL 60604 

SUBTOTAL $50,000,000.00 SMITH 'S CARPENTRY 10/27/2022 Services $ 15,551.35 

JOHN 0 . MORLEY 08/26/2022 Services $51,100.00 SUBTOTAL $15,551.35 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

SUBTOTAL $51,100.00 SULLNAN & CROMWELL LLP 10/19/2022 Services $ 195,484.33 
125 BROAD STREET 

M GROUP STRATEGIC 08/26/2022 Services $26,250.00 NEW YORK . NY 10004-2498 
COMMUNICATIONS 11/03/2022 Services $2,253,670.77 
101 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS, 
9TH FLOOR SUBTOTAL $2,449 ,155.10 
NEW YORK , NY 10013 

09/15/2022 Services $27,800.00 TRITON ONE LIMITED 08/15/2022 Services $59,200.00 
36HOPEST 

SUBTOTAL $54,050.00 DOUGLAS 
ISLE OF MAN, IM1 1AR 
UNITED KINGDOM 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Page 44 of 68 
Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2048 Filed 07/31/23 Page 41 of 68 
Debtor Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) 

Assets - Real and Personal Property 
Assets - Real and Personal Property 

Part 11, Quest ion 71 : Notes receivab le 
Part 4, Questi on 15: Non-publicly traded stock interests in incorporated and unincorporated businesses. including any interest in an LLC. partnership . or joint venture. 

Notes receivable Total face amount Doubtful or unco llectibl e Current value of debtor's 
Descrip tion (Include name of obllgor) amount Interes t 

Loan Receivab le: Mr. Seun Gun Lee • Loan Agreement. 54.751.149.45 Undetemilned Undetemilned 

Non-publicly traded stock and Interests In Incorporated and ¾o f Valuation method Current value of debtor's 
unincorporated businesses, Including any Interest In an LLC, Ownership used for curre nt valu e Interest 
partnership, or Join t venture (Name of entity :) 

November 4. 2021 
KABOMPO HOLDINGS . LTD. Undetemiined Funded Amount $4.999.995.39 

Loan Receivab le: Voyager - Loan, June 2 1. 2022 75.000.000 .00 Undetem,ined Undetem,lned 

Loan Receivab le: PlayUp Limited - Convertible Note. 35.000.000 .00 Undetemiined Undetemilned LIGHTBEAM DATA LABS INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $8.675.000.00 

September 21. 2021 

TOTAL LIMIT BREAK INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $1.000.997.36 

+ Undetermined Amo1.11ts 

MERGE HOLDINGS LTD Undetemiined Funded Amount $475.965 .00 

MESSARI HOLDING INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $499.996 .59 

METALINK LABS. INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $300.000 .00 

M-L.EAGUE PTE. LTD. Undetemiined Funded Amount $15 .000,000.11 

MOJOVERS E. INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $250.000.00 

NESTCOIN HOLDING LIMITED Undetemiined Funded Amount $250.050.00 

NOOM LIMITED Undetemiined Funded Amount $2,073.965.69 

O'LEARY PRODUCTIONS USA LLC I Undetemiined Funded Amount $1.000.000 .00 

ODYSSEY TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED Undetemilned Funded Amount $1.969.205.08 

OTC SERVICES LTD. Undetemiined Funded Amount $6,826.000.00 

OVEX PROPRIETARY LIMITED Undetemiined Funded Amount S5.ooo.ooo .oo 

PARADIGM CONNECT HOLDINGS. LLC Undetemilned Funded Amount $9 ,249.976 .54 

PINTU INVESTMENTS ONE PTE. LTD. Undetemiined Funded Amount s2 .ooo.ooo .oo 

PICNIC VENTURES LLC Undetem,ined Funded Amount $71.300.000.00 

PIXELYNX, INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $500.000.00 

PORTALS LABS. INC. Undetemiined Funded Amount $200.057 .14 
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Debtor Name: Maclaurfn Investments Ltd. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) Debt°' Name: Maclaurin Investments Ltd. Case Number: 22-11087 (JTD) 

Assets . Real and Personal Prope rty Assets • Real and Perso nal Property 

Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests in incorporated and unincorporated businesses. including any interest in an LLC. partnership. °' joint venture. Pa rt 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests In Incorporated and unincorporated businesses, Including any Interest In an LLC. partnership. or joint venture. 

Non-pu blicl y traded sto ck and Interests in incorporated and •1. of Valuat ion meth od Current value of debtor's 
unincorporated bus iness es, Inc lud ing any Inte rest In an LLC , ownership used for curren t value Interest 
partnership , or joi nt venture (Name of entity:) 

Non-p ublic ly traded stock and interests in incorpora ted and %o f Valuation method Current value of debtor's 
unincorporat ed businesses, including any interest in an LLC , Ownership used for current value interest 
partne rship, or jo int venture (Name of entity:) 

KABOMPO HOLDINGS. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $4,999,995 .39 VOLUMEFI SOFTWARE . INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $500,000.00 

LIGHTBEAM DATA LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $8,675,000.00 VOYAGER DIGITAL HOLDINGS . INC Undetermined Funded Amount $75,000,001.00 

LIMIT BREAK INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $ 1.000 .997 .36 WENEW , INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $500,000.00 

MERGE HOLDINGS LTD Undetermined Funded Amount $475 ,965 .00 WIZAROSARDINE , LOA. Undetermined Funded Amount $500,000.00 

MESSARI HOLDING INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $499 ,996.59 WIZPACE Undetermined Funded Amount $100.323 .97 

METALINK LABS, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $300 ,000 .00 WORLOSPARK STUDIOS . INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $250.000 .00 

M-LEAGUE PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $15.000 .000 .11 WUM .BO INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $100,000 .00 

MOJOVERSE, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $250 ,000 .00 XOEFI TECHNOLOGIES LTD Undetermined Funded Amount $100,000 .00 

NESTCOIN HOLDING LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $250 .050 .00 TOTAL $459,455,742.24 

+ Undete,mined Amounts 

NOOM LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $2,073,965.69 

O'LEARY PRODUCTIONS USA LLC Undetermined Funded Amount $1,000,000.00 

ODYSSEY TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $1 ,969.205.08 

OTC SERVICES LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $6,826 ,000 .00 

OVEX PROPRIETARY LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $5,000 ,000 .00 

PARADIGM CONNECT HOLDINGS, LLC Undetermined Funded Amount $9,249,976 .54 

PINTU INVESTMENTS ONE PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $2.000.000 .00 

PIONIC VENTURES LLC Undetermined Funded Amount $7 1,300,000 .00 

PIXELYNX, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $500 .000 .00 

PORTALS LABS. INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $200.057.14 
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Case number(II~) : 22-11110 (JTD) OebUlr l lllod<IOIIO. lnC I 

Name 
------------

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy th is page only if more space Is nffded. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malllng address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.76 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor's Interest 

2.n 

2.78 

State the term remaini ng 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is fo r and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Int erest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.79 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remainin g 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.80 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remainin g 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.81 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remainin g 

Ust the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
2.82 lease is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's interest 

State the term remainin g 

Ust the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Form 206G 

NON-DISPARAGEMENT AGREEMENT 
DATED 2/2212019 Kevin Kai Nielsen Garcia 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

CHANGE IN EMPLOYMENT STATUS 
DATED 1/15/2019 

PARTNERSHIP AND ENDORSEMENT 
SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 
8/6/2021 

MEDIA SERVICES AGREEMENT 
DATED 2117/2021 

MEDIA SERVICES AGREEMENT 
DATED 2/15/2021 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION, 
INVENTION ASSIGNMENT AND 
ARBITRATION AGREEMENT DATED 
6/14/2017 

NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
DATED 2/18/2018 

Kevin Kai Nielsen Garcia 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Kevtn O'Leary 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Ledger and Coble Enterprises 
173 OXMOOR ROAD 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35209 

Ledger Status, LLC 'Weekly Open" 
ADDRESS UNKNOWN 

Logan Howard 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Marina Titova 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Schedu le G: E.xecutory contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 12 of 20 

Debtor lockfoho, Inc 
Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2006 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 66 of 72 

case number(ll16lowri) 22-11110(JTD) 
-------------Name 

Addltlonal Page If Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

Copy this page only If more space Is nffded. Continue numbering the lines sequentlally from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases State the name and malling addre ss for all other part ies with 
whom the debtor has an executory contract or unexpired lease 

State what the contract or 
2.104 lease Is for and the nature 

of the debtor 's Interest 

2.105 

2.106 

2.107 

2.108 

2.109 

2.110 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contra ct number of 
any government contract 

State what the contract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State what the cont ract or 
lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

Official Fonm 206G 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND 
INVENTIONS AGREEMENT DATED 
4/26/2018 

PARTNERSHIP AND ENDORSEMENT 
SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 
8/6/2021 

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 
DATED 3/19/2019 

INVESTORS' RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
DATED 7/26/2018 

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT 
DATED 7/26/2018 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND 
INVENTIONS AGREEMENT DATED 
6/19/2018 

CONFIRMATORY ASSIGNMENT 
AGREEMENT DATED 10/9/2020 

Niki Sharirli 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

O'Leary Productions Inc. c/o Untted Talent Agency 
9336 CMc Center Drive 
Beverly Hills. CA 9021 o 

OPUS LABS N.V. 
Predlkherenlel 1 bus 7 
Gent, B-9000 
BELGIUM 

Pantera Venture Fund II LP 
3000 Sand HIii Road 
Suite 1-235 
Menlo Park. CA 94025 

Paul Veradittakit 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Peter Lau 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Peter Lau 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexpired Leases Page 16of 20 



Debtor ij 1ockro110, lnci 

Name 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2006 Filed 07/31/23 Paae 68 of 72 case nlMTlber (ff ihilwri) 22-11110 (JTD) 

Additional Page if Debtor Has More Executory Contracts or Unexpired Leases 

-------------------------------------------------~ 
Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the previous page. 

List all contracts and unexpired leases 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND 
State what the contract or INVENTIONS AGREEMENT DATED 

2.118 lease Is for and the nature 4126/2018 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

MUTUAL NONDISCLOSURE 
State what the contract or AGREEMENT DATED 10/19/2019 

2.119 lease Is for and the nature 
of the debtor 's Interest 

State the term remaining 

list the contract number of 
any government contract 

PARTNERSHIP AND ENDORSEMENT 
State what the contract or SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 

2.120 lease Is for and the nature 8111/2021 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

PARTNERSHIP AND ENDORSEMENT 
State what the contract or SERVICES AGREEMENT DATED 

2.121 lease is for and the nature 512712021 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION ANO 
State what the contract or INVENTIONS AGREEMENT DATED 

2.122 lease Is for and the nature 412612018 
of the debtor's Interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

SEPARATION AGREEMENT AND 
State what the contract or RELEASE 

2.123 lease is for and the nature 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND 
State what the contract or INVENTIONS AGREEMENT DATED 

2.124 lease Is for and the nature 3126/2018 
of the debtor's interest 

State the term remaining 

List the contract number of 
any government contract 

State the name and malling address for all other parties with 
whom the debtor has an executory contrac1 or unexpired lease 

Sheldon Mcletch le 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Solana labs. Inc. 
645 HOWARD STREET 
SAN FRANCISCO .. CA 94105 

Stephen Curry c/o S30 Inc 
Attn: Hilary Awad 
1875 S. Grant Street. SuHe 120 
San Mateo. CA 94402 

TEB Capital Management, Inc. 
c/o: SCS Financial Services. LLC 
Attn: Peter H. Mattoon 
888 Boylston Street 
Boston. MA 02199 

Thomas Kansehat 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Thomas Kansehat 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Tobin Zikmund 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Official Form 206G Schedule G: Executory Contracts and Unexp ired Leases Page 18 of 20 

Debtor BlockfollO, Inc 

Name 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2006 Filed 07/3~~ mtif~~f 7 oJi _i'i?i ocJTDl 

1:111 Additio na l Page 

Copy this page only If more space Is needed. Continue numbering the lines sequentially from the 
previous page. If no additional NON PRIORITY creditors exist , do not fill out or submit this page. 

Amount of claim 

317 Non priority creditor's name and malling address 

01-EARY PROOUCTIONS INC 
CIO. UNITED TALENT AGENCY 
ATTN. JAY SURES I SAM STONE 
9336 CIVIC CENTER DRIVE 
BEVERLY HILLS. CA 90210 

Date or dates debt was Incurred 

Last 4 digit s of account number 

11/ 10122 

3.18 Non priority creditor's name and malling address 

Poul Vomdrttol<il 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Date or dates debt was Incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

3.19 Nonprlority creditor's name and malling address 

PETER LAU 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Date or dates debt was Incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Undetermined 

3 20 Nonprlorlty creditor's name and malling address 

SHANDIE MARIE TUMALIWAN 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

Various 

3.21 Nonprlor lty creditor's name and malling address 

Slephen Cooy c/o S30 Inc 
Ann: Hilary Awad 
1875 S . Grant Street Suite 120 
San Mateo. CA94402 

Date or dates debt was incurred 

Last 4 digits of account number 

11/10122 

As of the petition filing date, the claim is: 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 Unllquldated 
0 Disputed 

$ Undetermined 

Basis for the claim : PARTNERSHIP ANO ENDORSEMENT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT 

Is the claim subJect to offset? 
@No 
• Yes 

As of the petit ion filing date, the claim Is: 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 U nllquldated 
0 Disputed 

Basis for the claim: Indemnity Agreement 

Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 
• Yes 

As of the petition filing date, the claim is: 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 Unllquldated 
0 Disputed 

Bas is for the claim: Indemnity Agreement 

Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 
• Yes 

As of the petition filing date, the claim Is: 
Check all that apply. 
D Contingent 
0 Unllquldated 
0 Disputed 

Basis for the claim: Trade Payable 

Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 
• Yes 

As of the petition filing date, the claim Is: 
Check all that apply. 
0 Contingent 
0 Unliquidated 
0 Disputed 

$ Undetermined 

$ Undetermined 

s 176.37 

s Undetermined 

Basis for the claim: Partnership and Endorsement Services Agreement 

Is the claim subject to offset? 
@No 
• Yes 

Official Form 206E/F Schedule E/F: Creditors Who Have Unsecured Claims Pacie 5 of 8 
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case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2003 Filed 07/31/23 Page 47 of 57 Debtor Name: Alamed a Research Ltd Case Number. 22-11067 (JTD) 

Debtor Name: Alameda Research ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) Statement of Financi al Affairs for Non-Individuals Filing for Bankruptcy 

Statement of Financial Affa irs for Non-lnd ivldu als Filin g fo r Bankruptcy 
SOFA Questio n 4: Payments or other transfers of property made wi thin 1 year before filing this case that benefited any Insider 

SOFA Questi on 4: Payments or other transfers of property made within 1 year before flllng this case that benefited any Insider Credit or Name and Addr ess Relationship to Debtor Total Am ount or Value Dates Reason for Paym ent or Transfer 

Creditor Name and Addr ess Relationship to Debtor Total Amount or Value Dates Reason for Payment or Transfer 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $100 ,000 ,000 .00 03/08/2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder $6,000,000.00 10/03/2022 Cash Payment 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 
Bankman-Fried , Samuel Founder $200 ,000 ,000 ,00 03/07/2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Fried. Samuel Founder $5,000 ,000.00 09/22/2022 Cash Payment 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 
Bankman-Fried , Samuel Founder $500 ,000 .00 03/06 /2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder $4,000 ,000 .00 09/22/2022 Cash Payment 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $9,000 ,000 .00 02/03/2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Fried , Samuel Founder s100 .000.000 .00 09/20/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $5,000 ,000 .00 01/31 /2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $10.000.000 .00 09/16/2022 cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $14,968 ,501 .91 01/28/2022 Cash Payment 

Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder S 10.000 ,000 .00 08/15/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $2,000,000 .00 01/14/2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Fried , Samuel Founder $68,300,002 .00 08/08/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $175 ,076 ,380 89 05/11/2022 Cash Transfer to Emergent Fidelity 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder $5,000 ,000 .00 08/01/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE Technologies ltd (Samuel 
ADDRESS ON FILE Bankman-Frled 90% owner. Zlxlao 

"Gary" Wang 10% owner) for the 

Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder S5,000,000 .00 07/18/2022 Cash Payment 
ourchase of Roblnhood shares . 

Bankman-Frled , Samue l Founder $316,667.182 .50 04/30/2022 Cash Transfer to Emergent Fidelity ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE Technologies Ltd (Samuel 

Bankman-Frled 90% owner; Zlxlao 
Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder $5,000 ,000 .00 07/11/2022 cash Payment "Gary" Wang 10% owner) for the 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

v11eesmen, Jone an u,rec1or l> l, • .uu as aymen 
Bankman-Frled. Samuel Founder $100,000 ,000 .00 06/07/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Cheesman , Jonathan Director $772 ,100.00 01/11/2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Fried, Samuel Founder $200,000,000 .00 05/26/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Ellison, Caroline Director/Officer $3,500,000 .00 09/09 /2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder $6,000,000 .00 04/26/2022 Cash Payment AD DRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FlLE 

Salame, Ryan Director/Officer $500 ,000 .00 11/04/2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Frled. Samuel Founder $7,000 ,000 .00 04/26/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Salame, Ryan Directo r/Officer $1,500,000.00 10/12/2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder S 10,000 ,000 .00 04/14/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Salama, Ryan Director/Officer $1,000 ,000 .00 10/03/2022 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Frled. Samuel Founder $3,000 ,000 .00 04/08/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder $6,000.000 .00 04/04/2022 Cash Payment 
Salame, Ryan Director/Officer $4,993 ,520 .55 01/28/2022 Cash Payment 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

Salame, Ryan Director/Officer $1,500,000 .00 12/27/2021 Cash Payment 
Bankman-Frled, Samuel Founder S 10,000.000 .00 03/24/2022 Cash Payment ADDRESS ON FILE 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman-Fried. Samuel Founder $4,000 ,000 .00 03/15/2022 Cash Payment Singh , Nishad Director/Officer $23 ,000.00 03/25/2022 Cash Payment 

ADDRESS ON FILE ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman-Frled , Samuel Founder S 10,000 ,000 .00 03/11/2022 Cash Payment Singh, Nishad Director/Officer $14,031 ,447.62 01/28/2022 Cash Payment 

ADDRESS ON FILE ADDRESS ON FILE 
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Debtor Name: Alameda Research Ltd Case Number. 22-11067 (JTD) 
Debtor Name: Alameda Research Ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) 

Statement of Financia l Affa irs for Non-Ind iv idu als Filing for Bankrupt cy 
Statement of Financial Affairs for Non -Indiv idua ls Fifing for Bankruptcy 

SOFA Question 4 : Payments or other transfers of property made with in 1 year before fifing this case that benefited any Insider 
SOFA Question 13: Transfers not already listed on this statement 

Creditor Name and Address Relationship to Debtor Tota l Amount or Value Dates Reason for Payment or Transfer 
Creditor Name and Add ress Descri pti on of Property Relationsh ip to Debtor Date Amount 

Singh . Nishad Director/Officer $2,534,068 .52 12/31/2021 Cash Payment 
ADDRESS ON FILE Bankman-Fried, Samuel Cash Payment Founder 08/01/2021 $250,500 .00 

ADDRESS ON FILE 

Singh , Nlshad Director/Officer $500,000 .00 11/17/2021 Cash Transfer to People for the 
ADDRESS ON FILE Progress ive Governance, Inc in the Bankman-Fried. Samuel Cash Payment Founder 08/15/2021 $500,000 .00 

name of Nlshad Singh ADDRESS ON FILE 

Sun. Can General Counsel $2,339,590 .86 12/29/2021 lntercompany Payable from Alameda 
ADDRESS ON FILE Research Ltd. to FTX Digital Markets Bankman-Fr1ed, Samuel Cash Payment Founder 08/27/2021 $500,000 .00 

Ltd created for the benefit of Can ADDR ESS ON FILE 

Sun as a result of the payment f rom 
FTX Digital Markets Ltd to the sellers Bankman-Fried , Samuel Cash Payment Founder 10/15/2021 $301,298 .00 
of Sandyport property (titled In the ADDRESS ON FILE 
name of Can Sun\ 

Trabucco . John Samuel Director/Officer $2,5 13,000.00 03/11/2022 Cash Transfe r to the Ame rican Yacht Bankman-Fried, Samuel Cash Payment Founder 11/05/2021 $300,894 .00 
ADDRESS ON FILE Group for the benefit of John Samuel ADDRESS ON FILE 

Trabucco 

Wang, Zhe •constance" Director/Officer $8,2 17,658.94 04/29/2022 lntercompany Payable from Alameda Bankman-Fried, Samuel Common Stock Purchase Founder 07/ 18/2021 $170,394.453.00 

ADDRESS ON FILE Research Ltd. to FTX Digital Markets ADDR ESS ON FILE pursuant to the Purchase 

Ltd created for the benefit of Agreement for Class B Common 

Constance Wang as a result of the Stock of West Realm Shires Inc. 

payment from FTX Digital Markets - . mercompany .-aya e " om rounaer ' .,PL,LUU,UUU.uu 

Ltd to the sellers of Albany Bldg. 1 o ADDR ESS ON FILE Alameda Research Lid . to FTX 
Unit 4B (titled In the name of Trading ltd created for the benefit 
Constance Wana l of Samue l Bankman-F ried as a 

Wang . Zlxlao "Gary" Chief Technology Officer of the $2,685,867 .25 01/28/2022 Cash Payment result of the payment from FTX 
ADDRE SS ON FILE Debtors Trading Ltd. to the sellers of One 

Cable Beach Unit 311 (titled in the 

Wang. Zlxlao "Gary" Chief Technology Officer of the $19,452,931.21 05/11/2022 Cash Transfer to Emergent Fldellty 
name of Samue l Bankman-Fr iedl 

Deltec International Group Loan to Deltec arranged by Ryan 10/25/2021 $50,000,000 .00 
ADDRE SS ON FILE Debtors Technologies Ltd (Samue l ATTN: LEGAL DEPARTMENT Salame 

Bankman -Frled 90% owner: Zlxlao DELTEC HOUSE LYFORD CAY 
"Gary• Wang 1 o""' owner) for the NASSAU , WA LLIS AND FUTUNA, 
ourchase of Roblnhood shares. BAHAMAS 

Wang , Zlxlao "Gary" Chief Technology Officer of the $35.185,242.50 04/30/2022 Cash Transfer to Emergenl Fidelity Ellison. Caroline Cash Payment Director/Officer 05/ 14/2021 $22,000.00 
ADDRE SS ON FILE Debtors Technologies Ltd (Samue l ADDRESS ON FILE 

Bankman -Frled 90% owner: Zlxlao 
"Gary" Wang 1 Ojj, Ol'<'.Oer) (or tbe 

Ellison, Caroline Cash Payment Director/Officer 05/25/2021 $100,000 .00 ourchase of Roblnhood shares. 
~ .. ADDRESS ON FILE 

'u , " ,, , v ....... , ... 

ADDRE SS ON FILE 
LayerZero Labs Ltd. Shares of LayerZero Labs Ltd. 11/08/2022 Undetermined 
P.O. Box 430 1 (LayerZero ) owned by Alameda 

Wong Jing Yu. Darren Director $300,000.00 12/09/2021 Cash Payment Road Town, Tortola, Research Ltd. and described in 
ADDRE SS ON FILE BRITISH VIRGI N ISLANDS the Share Transfer Agree ment 

between the Deblor and 
LayerZero transferred to 

Responses to this question do not currently Include all lransfers of cryptocurrency , other digital assets or other assets. LayerZero in exchange for the 
cancellation of a $45MM payable 

Mount Olympus Capital LP Cash Investment In Mount 05/26/2022 $200,000,000 .00 
9 LAGO RCE CIR Olympus Capital LP for the benefit 
MIAMI BEACH . FL 33141-4519 of SGN Albany ( 100% owned by 

Sam , Gary, Nishad, and Alameda 
Research Ltd.) 

Mount Olympus Capital LP Cash Inves tment In Mount 09/20/2022 $100,000,000 .00 
9 LAGORCE CIR Olympus Capital LP for the benefit 
MIAMI BEACH , FL 33141-4519 of SGN Albany (100% owned by 

Sam. Gary. Nlshad, and Alameda 
Research Ltd. I 

" · ' ercompany , aya~,e ,rom ro rmer oyee ;;, I ' ' . 
ADDRE SS ON FILE Alameda Research Ltd. to FTX 

Digital Markets Ltd . crea ted for 
the benefit of Valdez Russell as a 
result of the payment from FTX 
Dig ital Markets Ltd . to the sellers 
of Turnberry Lot #39 (tltled In the 
name of Valdez Russell) 
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Debtor Name: Alameda Research Ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) 

Statement of Finan cial Affair s for Non-Individual s Filing for Bankruptcy 

Debto1· Nn1ne: Alnrnedn Resenl'ch Ltd Cnse Nu1nbel': 22-1106 7 (J TD) 
SOFA Que stion 13: Transfers not already llsted on this statement 

Schedu le D : C!'eclitors Wh o Hn, 1e Clnim s Secure d by Pro perty, Ex hibit 1 - Lonn Pnynble s 

Creditor Name and Addres s Description of Property Relationship to Debtor Date Amount 

Lenclel' 
Loan Outstanding Intel'est Intel'est Payment Mlltul'ity 

Salame, Ryan Cash Payment Director/Officer 05/07/2021 2000000 Cu1Teucy Amount Rate Cu1·1·eucy Date 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Ashla Inten1ational Inc KNC 300,000 0.0% NIA Auto Rene w 
Salame , Ryan Cash Payment Director/Officer 09/17/2021 2000000 BitGo Pri1ne , LLC USD 3,500,000 7.5% US D None 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

BitGo Pri1ne , LLC USD 3,500 ,000 7.5% US D None 

Salame, Ryan lntercompany Payable from Director/Officer 10/29/2021 8887568 BitGo Pri1ne , LLC BTC 160 3.5% BTC None 
ADDRESS ON FILE Alameda Rese arch Ltd. to FTX BitGo Pri111e, LLC BTC 160 3.5% BTC None 

Digital Markets Ltd. created for 
BitGo Pri1ne , LLC ETH 2,200 3.5% ETH None the benefit of Ryan Salame as a 

result of the payment from FTX BitGo Pri111e, LLC ETH 2,200 3.5% ETH None 
Digital Markets Ltd. to the sellers BitGo Pritne , LLC ETH 700 2.3% ETH None 
of Albany Bldg. 10 Unit 3A (titled 

BlockFi Inten1ationa l Ltd ETH 20.450 4.0% ETH None in the name of Rvan Salame) 
Singh, Nishad Common Stock Purchase Director/Officer 07/18/2021 25174029 B lockFi Internationa l Ltd BTC 3.734 4.5% BTC None 
ADDRESS ON FILE pursuant to the Purchase B lockFi Inten1ational Ltd ETH 25.220 3.5% ETH None Agreement for Class B C-0mmon 

Stock of West Realm Shires Inc. B lockFi Inten1ationa l Ltd BTC 2.445 3.5% BT C None 
Singh, Nishad lntercompany Payable from Director/Officer 06/30/2021 1045000 B lockFi Iuteniationa l Ltd ETH 19.300 3.5% ETH None 
ADDRESS ON FILE Alameda Research Ltd. to FTX 

B lockFi Internationa l Ltd BTC 6.540 4.0% BTC None Trading Ltd. created for the 
benefit of Nlshad Singh as a result BlockFi Internationa l Ltd ETH 18.580 4.0% ETH None 
of the payment from FTX Trading B lockFi Internationa l Ltd BT C 4.396 4.0% BT C None 
Ltd. to the sellers of One Cable 
Beach Unit 209 (titled in the name B lockFi Internationa l Ltd ETH 50.410 4.0% ETH None 
of Nishad Sinqh) B lockFi Inten1ational Ltd BTC 2.195 4.0% BT C None 

Trabucco , Jo hn Samuel Cash Payment Director/Officer 03/15/2021 4500000 
B lockFi Internationa l Ltd BTC 4.356 5.0% BT C 1111012022 ADDRESS ON FILE 
Ce lsius Network Ltd EOS 1,303 .482 9.5% EOS None 

Trabucco , John Samuel Cash Payment Director/Officer 03/29/2021 4000000 Ce lsius Network Ltd MATIC 3, 125,000 8.0% MATIC None 
ADDRESS ON FILE 

Celsiu s Network Ltd LTC 83 ,553 3.5% LTC None 

Trabucco , John Samuel Cash Payment Director/Officer 09/28/2021 7000000 Celsiu s Network Ltd ADA 10,000.000 7.0% ADA None 
ADDRESS ON FILE ~ 1,1;.,~ ~ T . ,itPrl ~ --Y ? - - 0.0% NIA None ~ 

NIA Wang , Zixiao "Gary" Common Stock Purchase Director/Officer 07/18/2021 54431521 
Genesis Global Capital. LLC LINK 726.000 3.5% None 

ADDRESS ON FILE pursuant to the Purchase Genesis Global Capital. LLC i LTC 116,000 4.0% NIA None 
Agreement for Class B Common Genesis Global Capital. LLC MATIC 7,000 ,000 9.0% NIA None 
Stock of West Realm Shires Inc. 

Genesis Global Capital. LLC I PAX 2,000 ,000 11.5% NIA None Wang . Zixiao "Gary" lntercompany Payable from Director/Officer 06/14/2021 1502000 
ADDRESS ON FILE Alameda Research Ltd. to FTX Genesis Global Capital. LLC ZEC 50.000 10.0% NIA None 

Trading Ltd created for the benefit Genesis Global Capital. LLC USD l 00,000.000 9.0% NIA None 
of Zixiao "Gary" Wang as a result 

Genesis Global CapitaL LLC BTC 3.400 3.8% NIA None of the payment from FTX Trading 
Ltd. to the sellers of One Cable Ledn Inc. BTC 5.035 4.0% BTC None 
Beach Unit 112 (titled in the name 

Ledn Inc. US DC 20,000 .000 9.8% US D C 11311202 3 of Zixieo "Garv" Wano\ 
Weiyi Xia (Iris) lntercompany Payable from Director/Officer 04/03/2022 1222615 Matrix Po1t Techno logie s (Hong Kong) Linlited US DC 6,000 .000 5.0% US DC 1212812022 
ADDRESS ON FILE Alameda Resea rch Ltd. to FTX Nexo Ca pita l BTC 484 3.9% BTC None 

Digital Markets Ltd. created for 
Nexo Ca pita l US DC 30 ,000.000 8.8% US DC None the benefit of Welyl Xia (Iris) as a 

result of the payment from FTX Tesse ract Group Oy BTC 230 3.0% BTC None 
Digital Markets Ltd. to the sellers 

Te sse ract Group Oy US DC 2 ,000 .000 6.0% ETH No ne of Goldwynn Unit 113 (titled in the 
name of Welyl Xia (lrlsll Va nEck ETP AG SOL 169,963.648258 0.0% NIA None 

Responses to this question do not currently Include all transfers of cryptocurrency, other digital assets or other assets . Va nE ck ETP AG SOL 99,966.405 0.0% NIA None 
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Debto r Name : Alameda Research Ltd Case Number : 22-11067 (JTD) Debtor Name : Alameda Research Ltd Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) 

Assets - Real and Personal Property 
Assets - Real and Personal Property 

Part 1, Que stion 3: Check ing. savings . money market. or financia l broke rage accounts Part 4, Question 14: Mutual funds or publicly traded stocks not included in Part 1 

Name of Institution (bank or brokerage firm) Type of account Last 4 digits of account Current value of debtor's 
Mutual funds or publicly traded stocks not included in Part 1 Valuation method Current value of debtor's 

number Interest 
(Name of fund or stock:) used for current value Interest 

Deltec: FBO 1115 $13 ,091,488.97 
BllW : Bitwise 10 Crypto Index Fund Market Price $21,419 ,443.50 

ED&F Man Brokerage Accoun t 0055 $79,453 .105.18 
BLK: BlackRock Inc Market Price $77,475.00 

ED&F Man Brokers 0270 $19 ,769 ,101.00 
GBTC Grayscale Bilcoirl Trust (BTC) Market Price $196,618 ,806.40 

Interactive Brokars1 Brokers 1808 $341 ,697 ,157.89 
GDLCF: G~ rgl! C FundLLC Market Price $803 ,521.00 

ETCG:~ Ethereum Classic Trust IETCI\ 
Prime Trust Corporate 2505 

Market Price $2,191,714.30 
$0.00 

Prime Trust Corporate 4016 $1,224 ,675 .68 
ETHE: Grayscale Ethenlum Trust ETF Market Price $45,365 ,997.12 

Prime Trust Unknown 1980 $0.00 
LTCN. Grayscale Lileco,n Trusu_LTC_l, Market Price $1,284 ,527.16 

Prime Trust Unknown 8382 $1,000 ,001 .00 TOTAL $267,761,484.48 

San Juan Mercantile Bank & Tru st Unknown 1592 $0.00 Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2002 Filed 07/31/23 Page 42 of 159 
Debtor Name: Alameda Research Lid Case Number : 22-11067 (JTD) 

San Juan Mercanli le Bank & Tru st Unknown 7 198 $0.00 Assets - Real and Pers onal Property 

Signature Bank Corporate 9485 $0.00 
Part 4, Question 16: Govemment bonds, corpora te bonds, and other negotiable and non-negotiab le Instruments not included In Part 1 

,,Signet FBO 9485 $3,880 ,616 .07 
Government bonds, corporate bonds , and other negotiable and Valuation method Current value of debtor's 
non-negotiable Instruments not Included in Part 1 (Describe:/ used for current value Interest 

ED&F Account - United States Treasury BIiis Net Book Value $97.833 .097.20 

SNvergate Bank Corporate 4464 $1,253 ,443 .84 

ED&F Account - United States Treasury Bonds Net Book Value $81,396,875.01 

Sllvergate Bank FBO 4456 $95 ,923 .13 

ED&F Account - United States Treasury Notes Net Book Value $178,830 ,581.66 

Sllvergate Bank FBO 4605 $10 ,4 15,259 .31 

TOTAL $358,060,553.87 1 

Sllvergate Bank Unknown 0006 $15 ,062 ,046 .20 

Stanford Federa l Credit Union Unknown 9832 $0.00 

Westem Alllence FBO 2394 $0.00 

W&ll&m Alllence FBO 3722 $0.00 



Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2005 Filed 07/31/23 Page 44 of 49 
Debtor Name: FTX Ventures Lid. Case Number: 22-11172 (JTD) 

Case 22-11068-JTD Doc 2004 Filed 07/31/23 Page 39 of 57 
Debtor Name: IFT)( Ventures Lid. Case Number. 22-11172 (JTD) 

Statement of Financial Affairs for Non-Indiv iduals Filing for Bankruptcy 
Assets - Real and Personal Property 

SOFA Question 3: Certain payments or transfers to creditors within 90 days before filing this case 

Cred itor Name & Address Check or Wire Payment Date Reason For Payment Amount Paid 
Part 4, Question 15: Non-publicly traded stock Interests In Incorporated and unincorporated businesses. indUdlng any Interest In an LLC, partnership , or joint venture . 

Number 

MYSTEN LABS 09/06/2022 Other- Investments $31,261,056 .63 Non-publicly traded stock and interests in incorporated and % of Valuat io n method Current value of debtor"s 
379 UNIVERSITY AVE unincorporated businesses , including any interest in an LLC, Ownership used for current value interest 
STE 200 partnership , or joint venture (Name of entity:) 
PALO ALTO, CA94301-1717 

KTR GROUP CORPORATION Undetermined Funded Amount $3 ,000.000.00 
SUBTOTAL $31 ,261,056.63 

THIRDVERSE 10/31/2022 Other- Investments $500,000.00 
KANDA SQUARE 11F, WEWORK 

KWI L INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $2.400.000.00 

KANDA NISHIKI-CHO 2-2-1 
CHIYODA 
TOKYO LEMON CASH INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $1.000.000.00 

SHINAGAWA-K U, 101-0054 
JAPAN 

SUBTOTAL $500,000.00 MOVE LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $850,025.00 

XTERIO 09/22/2022 Other- Investmen ts $2,000,000 .00 
DAMMSTRASSE 16 MYSTEN LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $100 .249.741.66 
ZUG, 6300 
SW ITZERLAND 

SUBTOTAL $2,000 ,000.00 NAS EDUCATION PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $100,000.00 

NOD LABS, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $1,000,000.00 

PAC E HEALTH PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $600,000.00 

RECEIPTS DEPOSITARY CORPORATION Undetermined Funded Amount $1,800,000.00 

SAMUDAI TECHNO LOGIES PTE LTD Undetermined Funded Amount $1,000,000.00 

SINTRA LABS, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $720,000.00 

SOBA STUDIOS, INC Undetermined Funded Amount $2,999,986 .21 

SOJ TRADING LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $4,000,000.00 

TALEVERSE ENTERTAINMENT STUDIOS . INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $3,325,000.00 

TRIPLEDOT STUDIOS LIMITED Undetermined Funded Amount $50,000,000.30 

TWENTY-SECOND CENTURY DORA TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS, INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $5,000,000.27 

VERIFYVASP PTE. LTD. Undetermined Funded Amount $2,000,000.00 

VIBE LABS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $1,000,000.00 

VIRTUALNESS INC. Undetermined Funded Amount $250,000.00 
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Debtor Name : Alameda Research lid Case Number : 22-11067 (JID ) 
Debtor Name: Alamed a Research lid Case Number: 22-11067 (JTD) 

Assets - Rea l and Personal Property 
Assets - Rea l and Personal Property 

Part 11, Questi on 71: Notes receivable 
Part 11, Question 71: Notes rece ivab le 

Notes receivable Tota l face amount Doubtful or uncollectible Current value of debtor's 
Notes receivable Total face amount Doubtful or uncollectible Current value of debtor's Description [111clude name of obllgor) amount interest 
Description (include name of obligor ) amount interest 

Loan Receivable : A .J . Ferguson - Various Loans 250,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined 
Loan Receivable: Sam Trabucco - various Loans 22 ,024 ,851.50 Undetermined Undetermined 

Loan Receivable : Samue l Bankman-F ried - Latona 68 ,300,002 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Loan Receivable : BTC Africa S.A. - Promissory Note , 10,000 ,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined 

Bioscience Group lntercornpany Loan Agreement, August 
August 29, 2022 8 and 11, 2022 

Loan Receivable : BTC Africa S.A. - Promissory Note , 25,000 ,000.00 Undeterm ined Undetermined Loan Receivable: Samue l Bankman-Fried - Promissory 20 ,805 ,911.08 Undetermined Undetermined 
December 30, 2021 Note July 15. 2021 

Loan Receivable : BTC Africa S.A. - Promissory Note , 11,000 ,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined Loan Receiva .ble: Samue l Bankman-Fried - Promissory 316 ,667 ,182.50 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
March 14, 2022 Note, April 30 , 2022 

Loan Receivable : Can Sun - Promissory Note : December 2,339,590.86 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable : Samue l Bankman-Fried - Prom issory 250 ,000,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
31.2021 Note, December 1, 2021 

Loan Receivab le: Caroline Ellison - Draw Notice , 3,500,000.00 Undetermined Undetermined Loan Receivable : Samuel Bankman-Fried - Promissory 14,968 ,501 .9 1 Undet erm ined Undetermined 
September 9, 2022 Note, January 28, 2022 

Loan Receivable : Caroline E.lllson - Various Loans 122,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable : Samue l Bankman-Fried - Promissory 170,394,453.07 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Note, July 18, 2021 

Loan Receivable : Consensys Software - Convertible Note , 750,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable : Samuel Bankman-F ried - Promissory 141,000,000.00 Undetermined Undetermined 
February 18. 2021 Note. Ju 22 . 2022 

Loan Receivab le: Constance Wang - Various Loans 8,217,658.94 Undetermined Undetermined Loan Receivable : Samuel Bankman-Fried - Prom issory 1,206,000.00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Note. July 5. 2022 

Loan Receivable : Keith Lennox - Various Loans 2,694,019 .97 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable: Samuel Bankman-F ried - Prom issory 500 ,000 .00 Undetermined Undetermined 
Note, March 18, 2020 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Promissory Note July 3,073 ,815.57 Undetermined Undetermined Loan Receivable: Samue l Bankman-Fried - Promissory 175 ,076 ,380 .89 Undetermined Undeterm ined 
15, 2021 Note, May 11, 2022 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Promissory Note July 25. 174,029 .05 Undeterm ined Undetermined Loan Receivable: Samuel Bankman-Frled - Promissory 210,800 ,000 ,00 Undetermined Undeterm ined 
18,2021 Note. October 1, 2021 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Promissory Note , 14,031,447 .62 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable: Samuel Bankman-Frled - Promissory 42 ,341 ,900 .00 Undetermined Undetermined 
January 28, 2022 Note. September 28. 20.22 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Promissory Note , July 20,000 ,000 .00 Undetermined Undetermined 
22,2022 

Loan Receivable: Samuel Bankma n-Frled -V arious Loans 836 ,424 ,685 .73 Undetermined Undetermined 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Promissory Note , July 5, 180,000.00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
2022 

Loan Receivable: Valdez Russel - Various Loans 1,068,530.72 Undetermined Undetermined 

Loan Receivable : Nlshad Singh - Promissory Note , May 3, 16,500.00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable: Zlxlao Wang - Promissory Note July 15, 6,646,273 .35 Undetermined Unde termined 
2021 202 1 

Loan Receivab le: Nishad Singh - Promissory Note , 477 ,840 ,000 .00 Undetermined Undetermined Loan Receivable : Zlxlao Wang - Promissory Note July 18, 54 ,431,521 .12 Undetermined Undeterm ined 
November 15, 2021 202 1 

Loan Receivable : Nlshad Singh - Promissory Note, 31,000 ,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable : Zlxiao Wang - Promissory Note, Apri l 35 ,185 ,242 .50 Undetermin ed Undetermined 
October 1, 2021 30 ,2022 

Loan Receivable : Nlshad Singh - Promissory Note , 6,226,750.00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined Loan Receivable : Zlxiao Wang - Promissory Note, 2,685 ,867 .25 Undetermined Undetermined 
September 28, 2022 January 28, 2022 

Loan Receivable : Nishad Singh - Various Loans 4,091 .137.04 Undeterm ined Undetermined Loan Receivable : Zlxiao Wang - Promissory Note, July 22. 44 ,000 ,000 .00 Undetermined Undetermined 
2022 

Loan Receivable : Ryan Salame - Promissory Note: 8.164,068.71 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Loan Receivable : Zlxiao Wang - Promissory Note, July 5, 414 ,000.00 Undeterm ined Undetermined December 31, 2021 
2022 

Loan Receivable : Ryan Salama - Promissory Note: 4,993 ,520.55 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Loan Receivable : Zlxiao Wang - Promissory Note, May 11, 19,452,931 .21 Undetermined Undetermined January 28, 2022 (OpEx) 
2022 

Loan Receivable : Ryan Salame - Promissory Note: 50,000 ,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undeterm ined 
Loan Receivable : Zlxlao Wang - Promissory Note, 68,200,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined October 25, 2021 (Norton Hall) 
Oclober 1, 202 1 

Loan Receivable : Ryan Salame - Various Loans 6,926,000 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
Loan Receivable : Zlxlao Wang - Promissory Note, 13,698,850 .00 Undeterm ined Undetermined 
September 22. 2022 
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@tim_cook @Apple 
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9/23/22 @Brett_FTXUS on “1 Token, There 1 GME Share” Embed Stock Clearing @Reddit SuperStonk 
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@SBF_FTX "To My Knowledge They Were" 
h#ps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mHikzIr6Gq8&t=2114s 
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